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The Terms of Reference of the Truth and Reconciliation are as follows:

TERMS OF REFERENCK
1 Within six (6) months from the date of the first sitting of the Commission, or within a

reasonable period thereafier, to inquire into and record certain political events which
occurred it Grenada during the period of 1 January, 1976 to 31 December, 1991
with particular reference to the following: :

(a)  the events leading up to and including those of 13% March, 1979 and
repercussions; '

(b)  the shooting deaths of various persons at Plains, Mount Rose and Mount Rich -
in St. Patrick’s during the period 13™ March, 1979 to 31" December, 1983;

{c)  the events leading up to and including those of 19" October 1983 with
particular reference to the following: -

(i)  the root causes of the general political turmoil in the State;

(i)  the circumstances surrounding the deaths of various persons including
APPENDIX A tlie Prime Minister and other Ministers of Govemment, on what was

then referred to as Fort Rupert (now Fort George).

(iif)  to ascertain as far as it is practicable the identities and total number of
persons who lost their lives on Fort Rupert,

(iv)  the disposal of the bodies of those who lost their lives on Fort Rupert;

(d)  foreign intervention by armed forces of the United States and the Caribbean i
October, 1983. ‘

2. To recommend indemnity to various

persons who give what is considered to be
truthful evidence at the inquiry :

Within three (3) months from the date of the last sitting of the Commission for the
hearing of evidenge or within a reasonable period thereafter, to report and make

recommendations on matters relating to the above with particular attention being
given to the following objectives:

@)  to seek to uncover the truth behind certain political events which occurred in
Grenada during the period 1™ January 1976 to 31* December, 1991;
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)

(b) to provide the nation with a proper and comprehcn_sive gndcrstapding of u.wse
political events as referred to above, so that any mistakeés made in the past may
not be repeated;

(c)  to provide the nation with an opportunity to become genuinely reconciled and
be permanently healed;

: (d) generally to make such recommendations as the Commission may find fit in
- all the circumstances.
The Chairman of the Commission is Hon. Donald A.B. Trotman, retired High Court Judge.

Thic other Commissioners are Bishop Sehon Goodridge, Anglican Bishop of the Windward
Islanids and Fr. Mark Haynes, Local Roman Catholic Priest.

. The Secretary of the Commission is Ms. Claudette Joseph, Attomey at Law.

The Inquiry shail be held in public, however, the Commtissioners shall be entitled to exclude
any particuler person or persons for the preservation of order for the due conduct of the
inquity or for any other reasop.

The Commission urges all persons who may have information relevant to events which

took place during the periods under consideration to come forward and to share this
information. |

The Commission also wishes to advise that persons may submit written memoranda
outlining any televant evidence which such persons might have.

Memoranda must be addressed to the ChaimanLTmth and Reconciliation Commission,
- SEott Street, St. George’s or may be delivered at the said address at any time between the -
hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Monday to Friday.

Phoné numbers are: 435-2962 or 2963
Fax: 435-2964
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majority of the members of the TRC were duly put on notice about the difficulties that the Grenada
|7 were facing with regard to the TRC process.

Moreover, it must have been obvious to anyone that any bona fide TRC Process would require the
full co-operation and participation of the Grenada 17. Yet at no time prior to January 31™ 2002 did

the TRC commissioners or their staff reach out to the Grenada 17 so as to facilitate their pasticipation
and hence to make the process complete and meaningful. '

Additionally, under the Commission of Inquiry’s Act (under which. law the TRC was established), the
Grenada 17 were entitled to be represented by Jegal counsel from the very outset. As aforementioned,
the Grenada 17 expressed their desire from an early date to be represented before the TRC by legal
counsel so as to assist the Commission and to prétect their legal interests. So once again the TRC or a

clear majority of its members were fully aware of the position of the Grenada 17 with regard to legal
represcntation.

Further, gtven the nature of the events which took place in Grenada and the well known difficulty of
genuine fact finding, in particular with regard to events a generation-ago, which stirred up (and still
stirs up) so much emotion, a commission charged with the responsibility of discovering the truth was
duty bound to ensure that natural justice was fully adhered to at every stage of the process. The
Grepada 17 were not and are not free persons who can decide to attend sessions of the TRC at will so
as to protect their interest. They faced special difficulties and problems. But no attempt at obtaining

practical and reasonable solutions to their difficulties and problems, so as to facilitate the work of the
commission, was ever made.

In 2002 the TRC embarked on a senés of outreach programmes which mvolved visiting different
communities around Grenada. Prima facie this is a laudable idea. But obviously such activities, given
that they were held at night, ruled out the participation of the Grenada 17. Again this issue was never

addressed. No attempt was made at finding a reasonable and practical solution so that all sides could
be put and heard at these various gatherings.

AT LAST: THE TRC RECOGNISES EXISTENCE OF GRENADA 17

It took approximately two years after the Grenada 17 first engaged the TRC process by way of their
letter of February 5® 2000 to the two-man committee, and two-thirds of the way through its
scheduled six manths of hearings, before the TRC first recognised their existence and contacted them.

Ti'{at contact came on February 4" 2062, via an oral communication, through the Commissioner of
Pr?sons, in which he informed the Grenada 17 that the TRC Commissioners would be visiting the
Pnisons within a matter of hours to take evidence from them. He went on to say that the TRC would

Fike to get volunteers, up to seven volunteers; but that if they did not get volunteers, then they would
Issue subpoenas.

At best, this was a very unfortunate communication which greatly aggrieved the Grenada 17. And yet
the Grenada 17 immediately responded in writing to the Commissioner of Prisons informing him that
he shonld inform the TRC that the Grenada 17 request that any further communication on the matter

w
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of the TRC should be forwarded to their Counsel, Mr Keith Scotland. This letter is herein attached as]
Appendix 19,

It took a further 2% months or thereabout before the TRC contacted Mr Scotland. In the meantime,
the TRC proceedings continued full speed ahead including the continuation of the community
outreach programme. . A

1
And yet, against this background the Grenadal7 have been reliably informed that at a public forum at
Norton's Hail on April 25" 2002, the Chairman of the TRC gave a wholly misleading view of the
attitude of the Grenada 17. The Chairman was asked whether any effort had been made by the TRC
to invoive the Grenada 17 in the process. The Chainman responded that such efforts had indeed been
made but that they had proven futile becduse of the uncooperative attitude of the Grenada 17.

The Grenada 17 have also been informed that at the said Norton Hall forum the Chairman of the TRC

was also asked whether the Grenada 17 had ever sent any documents or correspondences to the TRC. |

9

The conduct of the sponsor of the TRC confirmed in the minds of many that the TRC was never
intended 10 be a bona fide effort to discover the truth and to bring about reconciliation. It confirmed
what many had long suspected: that the setting up of the TRC was just a cynical abuse of a laudable
and honourable concept with.the pure and simple objective of deceiving people.

However, despite the cynicisin of the governmeut in its approach- to the TRC, it was still
possible for something meaningful to come out of the TRC process. This, however, would have:
required inter alia that the TRC deal fairly and reasonably with the concerns of the Grenada 17
and that it ensured that natural justice was adheved to at all times. Instead, the TRC, in
practice, dealt with the Grenada 17 prisoners in the same contemptuous manner in which they
were dealt with by the two-man committee, They basically ignored the existence of the Grenada
17, dealing with them as ‘mere things’ only to be called upon as leftovers after others bad had
their fill. And as demonstrated by the comments of the Chairman of ¢the TRC referred to in
paragraphs 47 and 48 above: in the face of all the evidence to the contrary, even before their
work has beer completed, the TRC has already publicly embarked on a path of blaming the
Grenada 17 for the fatal consequences of the extraordinary omission of not involving them in

The Chairman said that he was unaware of any such documents or correspondences. This sadly brings |
into jssue the very bona ‘{ides of the TRC personnel. It is incomprehensible that the Chairman of the ,
TRC could, on April 25™ 2002, be unaware of the existence of the plenitude of correspondences to !
the TRC emanating from the Grenada 17. If indeed he was unaware, then, at the very least, that .
would be an indictment of the competence of his fellow commissioners and/or the quality of their |

the TRC process from the very outset. This i3 absurd, and as aforementioned, it brings into
issue the very bona fides of the TRC.

In light of all the above, one is now forced to ask: What purpose would be served by the

communication with him.

COURT ORDER TO FREE THREE GRENADA 17 MEMBERS
AND THE HYSTERICAL RESPONSE OF PRIME MINISTER MITCHELL

On February 14™ 2002, based on the aforementioned motion filed on June 28" 2001, the High Court
of Justice ordered the release forthwith of three of the Grenada 17 on the grounds that their continued
detention was illegal and unconstitutional.

In response to the decision of the High Court the state used administrative means to block the

‘forthwith’ release of the three and thereafier it obtained a stay of execution from the Court of
Appeal.

Within days, the sponsor of the TRC process, P.M. Keith Mitchell, taunched a series of vicious
attacks against the judiciary for the decision to free the prisoners, and against counsel for taking legal
action. The Prime Minister left no one in doubt that his government had no intention of ever freeing
any of the prisoners. Indeed, the Prime Minister’s tirades could be reasonably inferpreted as
indicating that his government is prepared to defy the court so as to prevent the Grenada 17 prisoners
from regaining their freedom. Before that, during the period that the TRC was in progress, the Prime
Minister was in the custom of making negative speeches about the period of the Grenada Revolution,
which it is part of the TRC’s terms of reference to review; but his conduct following the court’s
decision was really “a borse of a different colour’. A document containing excerpts from two of the

Prime Minister's speeches from that period and analyses of those statements are attached herein as
Appendix 20.

Grenada 17 giving evidence literally at the end of the process after months of testimony behind
their backs and without them having been represented by counsel so as to test the credibitity
and veracity of such evidence and to generally assist in uncovering relevant facts?

SO UTH AFRICAN STYLE TRC? ONLY IN NAME

It has been said, first by the government, and also by the TRC itself, that this is a South African style
TRC. The only similarity between the two is in name. In South Africa the TRC process was
transparent at every step of the way. Even the process of choosing the commisstoners was thoroughly
transparent. The post of Commissioner was advertised. There were literally thousands of applicants.
The applicants were then put through a process during which they were subjected to questioning from
a panel 50 as to test their fitness for the job. And this was done in the full glare of publicity. It was
only after that the commissioners were finally chosen. It was therefore in this manner that Archbishop
Desmond Tutu became Chairman of the South Africa TRC.

In South Africa the TRC took place on a level playing field. All the principal participants were freed
and came from their homes to provide evidence and then they returned to their homes thereafier. In
Grenada the government made it clear that with regard to the TRC there would be no such level
playing field,

In South Africa the Commission had the power to grant immunities and pardons. In Grenada the
Commission is invested with no such power.
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THE GRENADA 17 PROPOSE

Having said all of the above it should be clearly stated that the consensus among the Grenada 17
prisoners i that they remain prepared to fully participate in a genuine TRC process, including giving
evidence on oath and subjecting themselves to cross-examination. However, this cannot be a
substitute for their legal actions both pending in the court and soon to be filed. They therefore
propose that the TRC suspend its proceedings and await the completion of the legal process in which

the Grenada 17 are engaged. Once this process is concluded the TRC should recommence from

scratch. Howgevcr, t%le process of recommencing should include the addressing of the concerns of the
Grenada 17, in particular their request for state assistance to obtain legal counsel to represent them
throughout the entire process, and the recusat of Father Mark Haynes.

‘The Grenada 17 recognise that there are practical problems related to their proposal. However, they
carinot be blamed for tlus From the very commencement of the process they have gone the extra mile
1o ensure that }he minimum necessary conditions for the effective functioning of the TRC were
brought into existence. They were made to believe that they had a vested interest in the TRC being
done properly because the Prime Minister had linked their very liberty to the TRC process. That was
one of the main reasons why they went to the lengths that they went in making representations
concerning the TRC process; to ensure that the thing was done properly. Their efforts in this regard
are borne out by the bO{iy of correspondences annexed to this submission. However, the Grenada 17
were contem;ftu-ously dismissed or disregarded at every juncture. They therefore cannot now be
faulted for insisting that what should have been done from the very beginning should now be done as

corrective MEAsUres so as to ensure that a fair and meaningful TRC capable of fulfilling its mandate is
executed.

Should the TRC for whatever reason reject the proposal herein to suspend and later recommence
from scratch, the Grenada 17 request that this submission and all the attachments hereto be included

as part of its Final Report: This is without prejudice to any remedy open to_the Grenada 17 with
regard to the current defective process. ’

APPENDIX

1
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February 5, 2000

Senator Lawrence Joseph, ! 5. We submit to you that the probability of truth emerging would be adversely affected if the
Attorney General and Minister of Labour, Comuission were to operaie in a context in. which we are behind bars.

Father Mark Haynes, Roman Catholic Priest,

Committee Responsible for Organising We so submit for the following reasons:

The Truth and Reconciliation Commission, '

St. George’s. s a) Itis notorious fact that the events of October 1983, 16% vears later, still stir up tremendous

passion amongst our people. Many, including people from outside Grenada, have neted that
Grenadians discuss the events of 1983 as if they took place last week. This was particularty
evident in October-November 1999, immediately following the televised broadcast of the

Dear Sirs, a ‘ Interview that Mr. Leslie Pierre conducted with four members of the Grenada 17.
o : We submit that the fundamental reason for such currency and immediacy and passion is-that,
SUBMISSION TO TWO-MAN COMMITTER : in the minds of the overwhelming majority of the people, decigions and debate about the
RESPONSIBLE FOR ORGANISING -~ events are firmly linked to the issue as to whether we should or should not be freed.
THE TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION COMMISSION Therefore, once we remain behind bars while the Commission is in operation, no matter what

the intentions of the govemment, or your committee, or the commissioners of the TRC itself]
inevitably the focus of the inquiry would be: should they, or should they not be freed? Are

they, or are they not guilty? etc.
1. We, the undersigned, wish to record our support for the setting up and operation of a Truth and ' i
Reconciliation Commission so as fo discover the truth of what happened in October 1983, and lo b) Once that is the focus of the Inquiry, battle lines would be drawn inside and outside of the
put those cvents in their correct perspective. ' Tnguiry. Those who have for years been campaigning to have the Grenada 17 remain locked
up will go all out in the newspapers, on radio and television ete., to stir up emotions and get
- 2. We wish to point out that members of the Grenada 17 were the very first to call for a Comumission across their views that we should remain locked up. No need pretending we don’t know about
of Inquiry into the tragic events of October 19® 1983. Indeed, in the period October 19-25 1983 that. The fall-out from the interview last October-November is a good indicator as to what
cgncrete steps were taken in this regard. The Prime Minister of Trinidad and Tobago durin?: th:q; would happen. This is clearly not the atmosphere for discussing truth.
SIX dav period {and for some vears thereafier), the late Prime Minister George Cl;mbers :i)s ont _ o _
record in the Trnidad & Tobago parliament, describing the discussions betwc:n the author;tics in c) If the Grenada 17 remain locked up, that in jiself would also provide a very powerful
Trinidad & Tobago and those in Grenada at that time (namely, some members of the Grenada 17) incentive for people who are committed to seeing the Grenada 17 remain behind bars, to come
regarding gefting a Commission of Inquiry set up in the shortest possible time. The authoﬁtles 0% forward and lie. Their principal concem is to have the Grenada 17 remain behind bars, not
both countries were keen on getting the Secretary General of the Commonwealth to selec tl the truth. The tragi-comedy which has been playing out over the whereaboiits of the remains of
Comumissioners for such an Inquiry, and hopefully to head it up himself Primc' Minister Bishop et al is a case in poinf. As it now appears, for 16 vears the US government, leading
Chambers, in his statement to the Trinidad & Tobago parliament, both lament e;i and condermned officials in Grenada and several prominent citizens knew that the Grenada 17 were not
the fact that the U.S. Invasion of Grenada brought to an end Ih; efforts 1o establish a crodibl responsible for the whereabouts of the remains since they were recoversd from Calivigny.
independent, and internationally composed Commission of Inquiry into the even;s' (;f Octob:,' Facts on this matter were aiso adduced at our trial’. Yet, all those in the know kept quiet and
1983. . ) ! allowed the lic that we were somehow still aware of the whereabouts of the remains {o be
Additionally, after the Invasion, we communicated our view through our lawyers to those perpetuated. They aliowed this 1o go on because it was convenient. It belped to keep us locked
in charge of Grenada in 1984 that 2 Commission of Inquiry should proceed before the laying of up. During this time the relatives of the deceased suffered immense pain. But keeping the
charges against anyone; and that out of the Inquiry should come the decision as to whether H::Lgonc | Grenada 17 locked up was more important than selcasing the selatives from their pain and
should be charged, or not. This, unfortunately, was rejected. | o giving them peac.
If the Grenada 17 are released then that powerful ingentive to lie, namely the desire to keep
3. We wish to state that we stand willing and ready to fully participate in the proceedings of a ‘Truth them behind bars, would be removed, and the probability of truth emerging from the exercise
and Reconciliation Commission’, including giving full evidence and facing cross-examination | would be improved.

once it is clear that wuth and reconciliation are indesd the objectives o i ‘
s of the exercise. . . o -
s ¢ | d) A big obstacle to the discovery of truth, whenever the Inquiry is held, would be the question

4. t\hUc are of the _vicw that if truth and reconciliation are really the ohjectives behind the exercise, Of, overcoming fear. There is still 2 lot of fear fn our soctery. fn. oW mainds, this is the {single

en everyone involved in the setting up of the Commission and its operation should be united in | pieatest obstacle to a TRC really and trly uncovering ALL the facts, all the truth of what

the Hls.k. ot_" creating the most favourable conditions possible to ensure that truth emerges and : happened leading up to, and on the 19™ October 1983 itself, and in the immediate aftermath
reconciliation is achieved. of that supremely tragic day.

Several issues will have to be addressed, and obstacles overcome, in this regarc:




* There is the lroubling question of how to get dozens and dozens of people 1o testify;
People who know various crucial aspects of what occurred: who are indispensable fo
the rruth emerging,

butt who see themselves presently as having everything fo lose from
lestifying.

Clearly, we are not talking of the many who will come and give one
~— many truthfully; others exaggeratedly;

referring to those who can festify
and every menther of the Grenada I7 on that day
whereabouts and actions of other kep
Dpersonal roles, if any, in some of these

THESE PEOPLE, NOTHING APPRO,
THE EXERCISE.

side of the story
and yet others fancifully and lyingly. We are
truthfully as to the wiher

(and before, and after), as also the
‘players’ in the events; and also of their ovn
events. WITHOUT THE PARTICIPATION OF
4CHING THE TRUTH WILL EMERGE FROM

Why, then, have these persons remained silent for all thege years? Why did none
come forward — or offer to d

0 50 — for our Trial'? Why will they either refuse 1o testify,
or lie and say they know nothi & they weren't there, etc., if they are forced by subpoena to
appear? [So many presently live outside the country, that, in any case, subpoenas wouldn't
work. Indeed, we suspeot th

at this was one of thejr considerations in fleeing the country as
soon as they could, following the invasion —. and rone have returned.] We must ROW
examine this in some detail, if we are to knock

heads and find some way of overcoming
this huge obstacle, for we MUST overcome it, if at alt possible.

Even after so many years, there is fear of just being identified as 'supporting' the
Grenada 17 in any way (let alone going out on a limb to testify on their behalf) Let ug give
a few different kinds of exarples of the social estracism and pressure to which many
have found. themselves subjected:

* There is the case of o senior member of the Roman Catholic Clergy in Gren
clergyman is on record — in church services broadc
condemning the

Grenada Revotution,

ast on radie and TV — g
and stating that the US Invasion of Grenada was
God-sent. He is far from. being any

‘supporter’ of the Grenada 17. But he is also a
Christian. He believes in reconcdiation. So he invited eleven prisoners, including three
members of the Grenada 17, to his church six years ago (i.e., ten vears after the October
'83 events) to sing and pray with his congregation. The three members of the Grenada 17
who went (Comwall, Stroude and Strachan) were warmly embraced — literally -— by
the congregation.

ada. This

However, at the time key
local:High Court Judge, certai
sections of the population at
clergyman had to temporarily
He has never invited any

people in Grenadian society were so offended {e.g., the
i government ministers, certain newspapers, and certain
large), that he received a storm of hysterical protest. This
flee Grenada for his hom

eland ‘until things cooled down'
of us since,

- There is the case of Glen 8¢t Louis. He was ope of the callers on 2 local radio call-in

programme (GBN-Radio's 'To The Point'), three years ago, on the issue of whether of
nat Grenadians supnorted the call by the Grenada Counic
Phyllis Coard and Kamau Mc Bamette on medical/h
callers,

d of Churches for the fiecing of
b did not give his name, All callers are

umanitarian grounds. Like all other
anonymous: this is the policy generally

eabouts and actions of EACH

|
B
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MR v ' opposition NDT
follotwed on these programmes. He was an execun? m;mb?e Oai éhiooipa o
thin ! cecuti et in his absen :
fithin 24 hours his party executive m : e otehs he
Egs?iy;:l?lcdndenm him for supporting the Council of C.‘un;ﬁ;e;ﬂcsﬁilgicn) though be
; t 'as eXpressing & person: ) ‘
¢ - on the programme that he was € . om), aud cntec
ma(:cf . :cl)ci‘t‘;s(i}gn ot pfacger expulsion. Normally, that party toek '(and ::f;g; ;-5 o
mzmnmrmn its discipiinéﬁ( committee to take action agamnst c_:m;ut;w:t rgt e e e
sucm:u'ni't't:ml far more serious 'breaches' (if one can describe what St.
c
reach’ of party rules).

7 ] "ol aper.
there is the case of Leskie Pierre, the Editor of The Grenadian Ioweox;exz'girf“e;
Thcn' , ulgr amongst Grenmadians, but always respecte(:?. A man _ of s a: i
chm et c‘:nd- aﬁvays speaks his mind, even if or when 3t geis hlm m )a e,
II1{1(.:pm’dmﬁt::m?{c"\‘ﬂt:i,h.ltion When he recently (last October) dl.d the m.tcmcviv Dt
s of v ed $ cciallv.aftcr he stated that we had not 1'ccewedla ﬁeebzlx_nclv ;hm 'mé
B o Ic. p110 hz;d always extolled his integrity stmed saying pu_ ic ﬁd o{hers
e iy br Wd him to sayvthis' and then dismissed his views out of 1131;i s
CO&.{rd fm}ﬂ}f bribe }u;zve been sin;ilariy abused and dismissed. Of course, u;ke ol
o Slm"lar forre ne bit — but it ha.s.sioﬁped others. When they see pcoplc?E 1111 i
i LeSh?ﬁfi;l:g ; ::bliclv they stay silent; they are afraid to come forward. " Eelj
ablh%_cd E'md ?1 oﬁepn lamér;tcd, inhis newspaper columa, the fact that mz;mznp?oic o
L'eShe I')le?cl ‘:tstat they agree with what he is saying re the Grenadanl .,d‘ u e e
hlm)ig(‘;’l; Yair their views publicly; not even anonymously on the radio (
E;:tl\e(mc recognises their voice, we guess).

is the case of Teddy Victor. Another politicai_ dcm'm-e.c- o thedr::i?ilr? mi?ii
Then there 15 1y respected in Grenada for standing for his convictions an " %ﬂm
another one hig_hlfiﬁre P When he appears on the -Sunday radio .‘md TV lY ber our
under the R?VD Ul-IO'H-Octobcr (last) with Leslie Pierre, suppogimg the <2’ Ofor S0
b 6;12 ?ixours the NDC executive meets and publicly condems. hi}m N'D.*C
ﬁ-gcdom: i u?t he resigns from the executive. NO ONE condemnbbt:; it _
domg.- As a rzs (;m Teddy — at least, not publicly. Many g,rumble ak f:)m They
it:ﬁluc;::; szrmse Eglcr members of the executive — but all are afiaid to speak out. The
all remain silent.

7 saking on one of the
There is a poung woman dismissed the next day from h er _w.f)gfr;p;z;;}r;gé O ecaninod
radio cali-in programmes in favour of the Grenada 17 being freed. :
et voice on the radio, and that was fhat.

. ; embers of the
iy ety who were eiflier mes ‘
out one thousand people in the sociel . v of them are
1{3}?; frivﬂfr members of the People's Revolutionary Artny (med I;;E:: members of
in a é:;itibn from personal knowledge, to refut many of the lies }txounfolded or October
m (I; enada 17 and about various key aspects of the events W}-uc have EVER rung up
th%’ {;83 Less than one dozen of these one thousand-odd persons ’ v blic position, in
'1191";di0 stzlxtion, o waiften letets (0 e nOWspapers, <f3r ;akcn ki)rgilguto t:S iMam’ have
e are peopie who are far from - Cdical
defence of orf}}gport fl? rvl;shgffﬁ wit'a rz];:f)nev_ {ood, clothes, pa):;;lcrgts {f;fe ::nif;{cjié
aelned our ‘cuh\.ﬂ'eﬂ; iia L A = N7 . . 75 .r i
2519:*; ':;1‘:; ophthalmological services for members of the %p%(ﬁe];ent day Grenadiarn
jgg;};'ING which will jeopardize their hard-won pesifions Ut p !



~ Jor years following the October 1 9™ catastrophe. 1t took mosl of them over 10 vears lo
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society. All those who speak out for us these days, openly distribute pamphlets and stic
up posters, and s0 on, are either people who are presently under thirty years of age {the
vast majority) — most of them unemployed youths, secondary school students, anc
voung self-employed persons —-or those'who were (a) out of the country in 1983 AI‘\*D
(b) are presenily self-employed within Grenada (and therefore in no danger of losing

'
k]

their jobs, source of income, etc.). While the numbers of those openly speaking for us
and working actively on our behalf amongst the people is steadily growing, none of
them is of any use for purposes of testifying as to the fruth of what happened i October
1983, as they wete too young to have been in the party or army then, or were oul of the
couniry studying and/or working, as pointed out earlier. However, it has proven
extraordinarily difficult to get more than a very few of the former Party and Army
Comrades to simply come forward and testify honestly about what they saw and know.
Or to even provide sworn affidavits. It is vital to understand-why.

All members of the NJM and of the PRA experienced enormous social OSIrUCish!

'rebuild" their standing in their communities (ie., by getting people to ‘forget that they
were NTM or PRA as the case may be). Verv few of them are prepared to endanger this
painfully won process of societal 'rehabilitation’. They are ALL, all too aware of what it
would do to their current lifestyles and careers. They are nearly all now married, with
children, a house, morigage, car, good jobs and income, regained respect, and so on,
Doing ANYTHING, PUBLICLY, that even smells like open support for the Grenada 17,

would endanger all the above, [After all, look at the examples given above of people
who were the Grenada 17's political enemies, but who have spoken publicly in their
favour!] They will help us in all ways they can — secretly; guietly — but NO public
manifestations of support! They will NOT sign affidavits; they will NOT testify in court;
even less will they do so in a high profile TRC exercise. {We want you to note the
Grenadians working at the Medical School who were involtved in examining the remains
of Bishop and others in Novenber 1983. They made it clear on TV that they were afraid
to say all they knew. Even an American docter who was involved has said he'll onty talk
if his employers give him permission!]

So even if the Inquiry takes place after we have been freed and things have cooled
out, there would be fear. If the inquiry takes place while we are still behind bars the fear
will be compounded 1000 times. Anyone who is courageous enough to come forward to
provide facts favourable to the Grenada 17 and which are decisive to the tiuth would be
accused of 'saying those things to get their comrades out'. And certainly very, very few
will come forward. If people are afraid to calt in on the radio in a context of anonymity,
would they be prepared to come forward it a public inquiry and testi{y?

‘We submit that all the above facts and arguments conclusively establish that the

‘ staging of 'a TRC while the Grenada 17 remain locked up has very little chance of {

obtaining truth, Hence, if truth is really the objective, the exercise would be futile in 2
context in which we are still in prison; it would be a waste of time and resources; it’
would descend into an acrimonious spectacle with the focus as, aforementioned,.
inevitably being whether we should, be freed or not freed. This is simply nol the
atmosphere in which anything resembling truth can be discovered. A ‘truth’ |
Commission in this context would-simply amount to a rehashing of old propaganda.

10.
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We wish to note that in the much_alluded to South African ‘precedent of a
TRC under the chairmanship of the distinguished and Nobel Prize winning
Archbishop Desmond Tutu. all the leading participants in the TRC exercise came
from their iiomes to the TRC to testifv and returned ta their hames thereafter.

-

Therefore, we, with all the force we can muster, submit that your committes recommends that a
precondition for the Inguiry must be the freeing of the Grenada 17.

If the government feels unable to utilise Sections 73-74 of the Constitution to bring about this
precondition then we-submit that we should be aliowed to take our case before the Privy Council.
Currently there is a law, Act 19 of 1991, that blocks us from so doing. We submit that as an
alternative to utilising Sections 73—74 to freeing us, the government counld amend Act 19 of 1991
since we are convinced that given the nature of the case the Privy Council would quash the
convictions and free us. In this regard, we wish to put you on nefice that we intend te challenge
the constitutionality of Act 19 of 1991 in the courts so as to clear the way for taking our criminal

appeals before the Privy Council. If the government were 10 amend Act 19 of 1991 this would
greatiy speed up the process.

If the process is accelerated by the amendment of Act 19 of 1991, and if the state
cooperates, then it is possible for the matter to be resolved by the Privy Council in a matter
of months. This would then cicar the way for the staging of the TRC in a short period
thereafter. Indeed, even while our appeal is being determined by the PC, preparaiions for
the TRC could continue so that as little time as possible is lost between the two events.

We submit further, that to hold a TRC while we remain behind bars and before allowing us our
rights under the Constitution to take our case before the Privy Council, would be unfair to us.

We wish to point out that if recoticiliation is truly the objective of the contemplated Inquiry then il
would be very odd, to put it miidly, to start off the process by adding another grievance to those
on one side, Many among the Grenada 17 are demonstrably innocent of the charges brought
against them; 1.e. even the Prosecution's evidence, carefully analysed, establishes their
innocence. We have insisted on this over and over again. To us it would be grossly unfair to put
us through yet another public trial while we remain locked up in prison at this time with the status
of 'convicted murderers’, and without allowing us our constitutional sight of appealing our
convictions 10 the Privy Council. This issue must be seriousty addressed.

Without prejudice to the above submissions or any of them, we submit that if it is the intentjon to
proceed with a TRC while we remain behind bars, and before our ratter is allowed to be heard by
the Privy Council, then the TRC must at a very minimum satisfy the following conditions:

(i) The TRC should be comprised of people of undoubted independence, character and
eminence. In other words, peoplc who cannot remotely be considered .as being bought
and who would not be perceived by anyons as doing the bidding of any side. {The
payment of over one million E.C. dollars to each of the Appeat Court Judges in ow
case, comhined with their failure to produce the written judgement eight-and-a-haif
years later, in. violation of Scction 8 of the; Constitution, ‘has leat credence in many
minds to this concern.] This is of IMMENSE importance. If the enfire membership of
the TRC is not comprised of internationally renonwned persons of unimpeachable

[
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reputation (and with no links whatsoever to regional politicians), then neither the

Grenada 17 nor pumy other objective and fair ninded people will have the necessary
cenfidence in such a body.

Such a body would need; ideally, to have, as part of its composition, a-kighly
respected clerical figure — someone of the stature of Archbishop Desmond Tuty; @

highiy respected jurist from outside the Caribbesn region, someone of the stature of

Lord Justice Scarman of Great Britain (for reasons intimated below); and a sgm'or
military man, also from outside the Caribbean region (also, for reasons mentioned
below).

We cannot stress too much the point that too many people in the authority
structures of virtually all CARICOM countries were involved, in one way or another, {6
one degree or another, in the revolutionary process (i.¢. either supporting, -or tnore
nsually, vehemently opposing), in the Invasion and Occupation and deterition of the
Grenada 17, in the trial process of the Grenada 17, and in the general propaganda wars
arising out of all the above. Too many are therefore tainted, in one direction or the other,
by the above. Remember the involvement of nearly all regional governments in the
Invasion and Occupation, and the involvement of every OECS government in detying
us access to the Courts of the Grenada Constitution for eight years after the rest of the
Constitution was restored [See P.M. John Compton's letter of March 22", 1988].

We therefore submit that comumissioners should be chosen from the (British)
Commonwealth of Nations outside of the English speaking Caribbean. This we
submit can be done with the help of the Commonwealth Secretary General. This
way, NO ONE, FROM ANY ‘CAMP' can say that the Commissioners are ‘biased®,
or picked only 'by one side', and so on. "

The state to meet the cost of retaining a team of competent lavwyers of our choice to
represent us at the Inquiry. [This is to be able to effectively cross-examine
witnesses who appear before the TRC and lie, and to be‘in 2 position to effectively
expose these lies; to examine-in-chie{ witnesses whom we can persuade 1o come

and testify as to-what really occurred; and generally to protect our legal interests
before such a tribunal.]

After all, we and our families have been Lirerally bankrupted by having to provide
legal representation for a Preliminary Inquiry (held in March-August 1984). Some had
to pay thetr own legal counsel for the 'Trial’ (March—-Decesnber 1986), the 'Appeal’

(March 1988-July 1991) and for several Constitutional Motions arising from this
process.

Having effectively gone through three major “trial' processes — all in
unconstitutional courts — the Grenada 17's financial resources are presently non-
existent. It would be totally unfair to expect us to have to {ind funds to pay lawyers
for what would be effectively another ‘trial process', and one not of our choosing.
AT THIS TIME we want to raise whatever funds we can {o take our matter — for
the first time ever — before Grenada's highest (and enly) independent court af Law:
the Privy Council. This is only fair and reasonable.

APPENDIX 2




¢fo Augustine & Augustine,
Attornevs-at-Law,
Chambers,

Green Street,

St. Geoige's,

Grenada.

April 20, 2000

The Chairman and Members of

The Truth & Reconciliation Commission:
Justice Carl Rattray, Q.C,,

Bishop Sehon Goodnidge,

Father Mark Haynes.

Sirs,
Enclosed please find cight (8) documcn’(;s numbered 1 1o 3. They are, respectively:

1. Submission To_Two-Man Committee Responsible For OQrpanising The Truth And
Reconciliation Commission;

2. Statement From Members Of The Grenada 17 (Writien In Response To Press Release From
The Prime Minister’s Office of March 23™ 2000); -

3. Reflections And Apologies To All Detainees Of The PRG From Some Former Leaders Of
The NIM;

4. Apology To The Families Of The Victimg Of The Qctober 1983 Crisis. And To The
Grenadian People by Bernard Coard, ’

5. Statement To The Media (Given At The Qctober 1999 Televised Interview With T eslic
Pierre) By Ewart Lavne, Former Day-To-Day Commander Of The Peoples Revolutionary

"C)~6. Fact Sheet On The Case Of The Grenada 17;

7. A Travesty Of Justice: How 10 NJIM I eaders Of Tl}e Grenada Revolution Were Convicled
Bv One Lic by Ewart Layne;

8. Genesis And Development Of The Unconstitutional Court System (And The Jury Selection
ProceduresiUsed To Try The Grenada 17.

Documenis numbers 1 and 2 provide a detailed exposition and the rationale for our position on
the Truth and Reconciliation Commission {TRC). Documents numbers 3, 4, and 3 comprise three of the
apologies given by various members of the Grenada 17 to the Grenadian public. Finally, documents
numbers 6, 7, and 8 provide core information on the evidence and legal process to which the Grenada
17 were subjected, from October 1983 to August 1991, We consider these eight documents vital to
understandiing our currend pusttion on ail matiers reiafing to our case and the Truth and Reconciliation
Commission, and this is why we take the liberty of providing them to you even before your first official
sifting.

(iti)  The question of the fairness of the legal process or lack thereof through which the
Grenada 17 were put must be one of the matters the Commission should look into.
What happened re the legal process is an issue of truth as well as an issue of our
legal rights. After all, reconciliation is a two-way process. How can one- side
become reconciled after being put through an obscenely unjust and co'r.rupt
Judicial process leading to life imprisonment, with a special law passed to
permanently deny that side justice by an independent court process? This would

require that the Commissjon have at least one but preferably three jurisis as part
of its panel,

(iv) The Commission must have the power to make binding orders in particutar with
regard to our continued incarceration. In our view, if — despite all that we have
submitted — it is decided that the Inquiry would proceed with us in prisen and
before we are allowed to take our matter before the Privy Council, then the
commissioners must have the power to make orders concerning our incarceration
based on their view of the validity of the legal process. It would be totally
unacceptable to us for the Commission te find thiat, based on the law, our detention
is illegal and yet only have the power to make reconimendations and hence leave
the final decision as to our freedom to a palitical directorate which does not feel
politically able to deal with the sue and has so stated, publicly on several
occasions. Indeed, the denial to the Commission of the power to make binding
orders would be consirued by objective obsgervers as intended to ensure that the

issue of the liberty of the Grenada 17 is not to be determined on the basis of law
but on the hasis of political fiat and/or political fears.

We note again that in the mwuch celebrated and successful South Afrvican
precedent, the TRC was invesled with lepal powers to grant pardons as it saw fit,
and this was indeed exercised in many instances.

In addition to the above four stated minimum conditions, there is fhe question of the time
Jrame for the setting up of a serious TRC, the determining of « fived period for the hearings, and a
fixed period within which the TRC must submit its findings, orders, and formal Report. This is self-
evident. The country cannot afford, either financially or emotionally, to have an open-ended process,
Neither would it help the country's healing process to do a rush-job Just for the sake of going
through the motions of saying that you had a TRC. This weuld be an awful waste of time, money
and af people's expectations. WHATEVER IS BEING DONE, IT MUST BE DONE PROPERLY, OR
DON'T BOTHER TO DOIT AT ALL: THIS IS OUR POSITION.

Finally, we the undersigned are of the view that the period to be inquired into should be October
1983, However, since the svents of October 1983 did not take place in a vacuun we consider that
conieutmal matiers going back as far as 1973 — if necessary — should be part of the terms of reference.
We see this as important in the interest of time and expense, What people really want to know about is

October '83, what happened and why it happened (context comes in here). The main effort should
therefore be expended on this.

We therefore humbly submit the following Draft Terms of Reference for your consideration:
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“To enquire into the pertinent (and contextual) events leading up to m:ld oluttllf 19 . 0&;5 1"101111
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Grenada 17,

indi i ings ecommendations ag the Commuission
‘And 10 issue binding orders, submit findings, and make reco

El
sees appropriate, in all the circumstances.

Yours Respectfully,

Ewart Layne

M

Selwyn Strachan

o Jaus

Liam Jamgs

L]

We welcome in principle the establishment of the TRC by the government of Grenada, We would
like to parficipate and generally covperate with it fully, We consider such cooperalion on our part ta be
decisively important both to uncovering truth and in stanting ihe reconciliation process. This we say not
out of fmmodesty or any inflated sense of our own importance, but simply because of the objechive

reality of our central role in making and building the 1979-1983 Grenada Revolution, and,

unfortunately, in the crisis, ragedy and catastrophe of October 1983,

We recognise that many different groupings of Grenadians have felt hurt and have legitimate
grievances arising oul of some or all of the various events under. review: Gairy supporters, ex-political
detaimees and others who suffered during the Revotution, the families of the NIM leaders and civilians
who lost their lives on October 19% 1983, the families and soldier-corrades of the soldiers who were
killed also on the 19 October 1983, and of those kilied during the U.S. Invasion from October 25%

onwards, among others. To each of these groupings of aggrieved citizens we have apologised, publicly,
on radio, T.V., and in the newspapers.

In this connection, however, the legitimate grievances of varigus members of the Grenada 17 are
generally ignored—or not even contemplated—by most people. We sefer not only to the judicial
process to which we were subjected (including unprecedented, masstve; adverse pre-trial publicity,
extenisive tortures and beatings, and denial of all avenues of legal redregs through the constitutional
court system) but alse to the (continued) detention for 16 ¥ vears of certain members of the Grenada
17 KNOWN TO BE DEMONSTRABLY: INNOCENT EVEN ON THE BASIS OF FABRICATED
PROSECUTION EVIDENCE.

We have certain fundamental concerns which we consider stand in-the way of the TRC seriously
fulfilling its mandate. We must fran kly confeys that, given the totality of our experience over the lust 16
% years, we are deeply fearful of its likely outcome. [Indeed, the very latest in a litany of unfulfilled
promuses and legjtimate expectations was played out in recent months. In the second half of 1999, the
government of Grenada, through the Prime Minister, anpounced publicly the setiing up, in accordance
with existing Law and Prison Rules, of a five-person Sentence Review Board headed by a Cabinet
Minister. This Board, it was announced, would interview: all those who had already served in excess of
15 years in prdson (including all members of the Grenada 17} with a view to recommending their
release to the Mercy Commiitee (the latter set up under Sections 72-74 of Grenada's Constitution) for
the purpose of pardoning, reducing or replacing senfences, otc. ). This Senitence Review Board under the
Honourable Minister of Social Security, Tourism, Civil Aviation and Women’s Affairs, Mrs Brenda
Hood, and including a Consuttant Psychiatrist, the National Security Advisor (a man with many vears
of experience in the Jamajcan military and in the Grenada Police Service), a distinguished Atiorney-at-
Law (who also is in evangelical work for many religious denominations) and the Permanent Secretary
10 the Ministry of Health, met with all but two of the Grenada 17 over a period of several months. Each
one was asked detailed questions, including about the events of October 1983, therr individual role(s)
In the events, and their current attitude to thesc events. Towards the very end of this process, we were
suddenly told that these structures—the Sentence Review Board followed by the Mercy Committee—
would no longer be used as the route to our freedom, but insicad we would have 1o go through a TRC
Pracess, at the end of which the TRC might recommend our refease. )

While our concems allided to above are oullined in detail in documents ngtiteis 1 and 2, we
Wish to particularly single out for your urgent attention and consideration the following:



[

1?*

LS

Our continued incarceration while Hearings take place, compounded by the fact of vup
continued denial of access to the Privy Council, the highest court of Grenada's Constitution,
by means of a discriminatory law. {See documents #s 1 and 2 for specifics.]

The failure to include specifically in the ferms of reference of the TRC an inquiry inlo all
aspects of the Judicial process to which we were subjected. In light of the PM’s address 1o
the nation on Friday 7% April last, where he stated that the government has now-decided 1o
include the “trial, pre-trial and post-irial period” as part of the terms of reference, it may weil
be that this concem of ours has now been addressed. However, we are not sure whether this
is a correct jnterpretation of what the PM said; and so we still need-clarification on this
point.

The apparent failure to provide the TRC with powers to grant amnesties or pardons to those
already imprisoned, in stark contrast to its powers to grant immunity to persons coming off
the street to testify..[ This point is fully developed in document #2.] We.are however puzzled
by a statement in the PM's nation-wide broadcast (referred 1o above) where he spoke of the
TRC being “a legally binding bodv”™. We are not clear if this means that the
recommendations of the Commission with regard to the issue of amnesties, for example,
would be legaliy binding, giving rise to a legal obligation on the part of the government to
mplement them. We also believe that this i3 a matter which needs clanfication given its
critical importance.

Connected with the amnesty issue is our deep concern over the ssue of the burden of proof
placed upon us by the terms of reference to convince the Commission that we are speaking
the truth. Based on our understanding of the terms of reference, we cannot be recommended
by the TRC for amnesty simply by speaking the wuth. We have to_convince the
‘Commissioners that we have spoken the truth, This in the following contexts:

(a)

All our preparation of evidence, mobilisation of detailed documentation, etc., must be
done from prison cells (unlike all other participants in the process);

{b).  All the minutes of key Political Bureau, Central Commitiee and General Meetings of
the NJM; military documents including Duty Officer Diaries {which would record the
comings and goings and times of political and military figures central to the
mvestigation); written and tape recorded confessions by Cletus St. Paul regarding his
part in spreading the rumour of October 12% 1983 {see document #7 for the centrality

of St. Panl in the entire case], and other documentation, continue 1o be held by the U.S.

Government, which steadfastly refuses to hand them over, even after 16 % years. [We

have iniliated legal action in the U.S. Federal Cownt o refrieve these documents
(through a friend). We won at the first instance, but the US Government continues to
stall by means of appeals and other devices.];

(©)

Massive pre-trial publicity over many years which has resulted in many fixed positions
and attitudes regarding the facts of the events and the role(s) of various gpecific
individuals among the Grenada 17, in them. Altogether, the US Government spent
US$18 million to achisve this objective, according to US Congressional Records,

()  The atmosphere of passion and hate that this massive campaign against. us, coming on
top of the horrific events themselves, has stirred up amongst the general population.
This has resulted in the fear (of social astracism and in some cases even of jobg and

careers) on the part of the vast majority of persons who are in possession of critical
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nformation. Hence such persons would be highty vnlikely to come forward and give
testimony which could be interpreted as being in favour of some or all of the Grenada
17. [See document #1 for detailed data re this point,]

(¢) On the other hand, this same atmosphere of passion and hate would be a strong
motivating factor or incentive to come forward and lie, given that the percepfion of
{hose hostile fo us would be that our continued incarceration or relsase hangs on the

evidence presented to the Commission.

The failure to address the issue of legal representation of our choice to protect our interests
before the Commission. The detailed reasons. wity this is so fundamental are provided in
documents numbers 1 and 2.

We hope that our sincerely held, fundamental concerns will be given due consideration and
meaningfully addressed.

Thank you for your attention.

Yours sincerely,

Signed %

: Bemard Coard

Signed: \g\,un.# X‘W—GU\*

Signed: ),,s/?_i‘*'?"ya# O

Selwyn Strachan

Signed: (X‘:%»VL /DM

Ewart Layne Liam James

e

Signed: h@{nt«fﬁl-
//

Leon Comwall




APPENDIX 3

Statement Froi‘n Members Of The Grenada 17

[Written in response to Press Release:
From the Prime Minister’s Office of 23™ March, 2000]

Members of the Grenadal7 wish to reiterate that we welcome the decision of the Grenada
Government to finally hold an mquiry o the evenis of Oclober 1983, As we have previously stafed
such an inquiry should have been held since 1984 before any charges were laid. "Thus s a classic case of
having put the cart before the horse. But then agaitt, belter Jate than never.

We note that the Two-man-Committee that was mandated by Cabinc( to orgaaise the Troth and
Reconciliation Commission (TRC) has rsjectled a request by thiee of us o be given a hearing regarding,
jssues relating to the sefling wp of the Commission. This rejection is particularly significant given the
fact that it was publicly announced that the conunittee would be carrving oul consuliations with
interested parties; given the fact that the 17 must be central to the nguiry; and given the {aci thal the

three members made a written suybmission to the two-man commnitiee, lhe receipl of which has been
confirmed, -

F

We have become aware that terms of reference for the TRC were issued in a press release put
out by the Prime Minister’s office and dated March 23™ 2000. I is evident from thal selease that the

contents of the submigsion made by the membecs ol thie 17 have been ignored and this (s in a context in
which they were not given a licaring.

We however wish (o comment on these terms of reference so {hat our views can be
unambiguously clear to all concerned.

1. We agree with the time frame for the operation of the TRC fe. six months (o take evidence

and a further three months to issue a report,

We suggested the lollowing terms of reference: “To inquire into the periinent {and
contextual) events leading up to and on the 19 October 1983 ilsell] and iy its immediate
aftermath; as also into the entire judicial and refated processes, from the mowent of initial
detention up lo Augusi 15, 1991, of those persons generally referved to as the Grenoada 177

For us, inclusion of the Judicia] Process, in all of its aspects, 1o which we were subjecied is
absolutely fundamental.

We note that one of the tenms of reference for the TRC is for evidence to be taken so as to
discover the truth of the ‘circumstances surtounding the deaths of PM Bishop...* This is a clear and
tnambiguous admission by those in avthority that the truth about the deaths of Bishop et al has not
been discovered after a legal process lasting 7 ' vears; and yet 17 persons have been imprisoned for 17
years in connection with the maiter. Clearly this is a matier that in and of iself requires inquiting inlo.

We note that the March 23" press release gtates that the conunission will be comprised of thuee
Persons. No names have been given. We are very strongly of the view that the commission should be
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comprised of people of undoubted independence, character and eminence: ps‘oll)h-_: ‘:11;}1cb;?ii:i]jilntrl::;‘}t:i
be considered as being bought or who would not be pe}*csive(l ‘b_\’ anyone :}s,.c of‘n;l, o e amr{ M
side. This is a grave cancern of ours given the expetience \.m.(h the judges (}H {lfg et ot o
Appeal. Each of those judges was confracted for over Simiflion. Tl:ey 'll}')h;l 1 ; oo viniati}n; M
sentences against the 17 yet to this day they have pot produced wnttcs‘t‘ u %‘3“ II “‘mm come from
Gection 8 of the Grenada constitution. We are of the vi.ew (hat the cunn‘mss‘;n.;nla: !s: ot
within the Commonwealth but from ouiside the Cm‘lbbcm‘i. Our reasons for (his were 5¢

our submission to the two-man conumnittee referred lo earlier.

We view with great concern the obrvious imcmi'o‘n 10 proceed willh i.‘m_a '1?{0 \:ﬂ; i(’icu\:::?r rz:‘!:latl::
behind bars and before allowing us the right gow :wmlai?le to olher. G} euadm:_\_a 1o al {m,, wn“.i.;i"cﬂ
before the Privy Council. Strong reasons were articudated’ uf.l.he subniission i(') 1151-1\v<}—. 1 o Uu{. "
as to why such a course of action will definitely not result 1n lix‘c Ll‘l:ll'h smerging, t was'l -m,-imm‘goﬁg
that subr}lission that once we are behind bars the TRC would inevilably (iesc‘enid u}m{;n 1; oo no.i
debate over the issue of whether we should be freed or :}ot figed; aud the trulh “f(fu_f’ < : (hc {el-;,ls
emerge in that atmosphere. In this regard it is highly significant that the mere puhl‘xmlfu;r‘}:)mh : feams
of reference has already sparked off the debale. Th‘c Grenaf*z’g Today ne‘wspfl;).e{ 0 q{;gnt )1- !0, [t;c
already published an editorial and lead story both taking the view thal the inquury 1s an & pl
the ‘Coard Gang’ etc,, etc.

We note that several persons who committed atrocities in the timé fram.c umte‘r 001151('16-;;1?0.1;
arc free and have been free for the Jast 17 years. Hence these persons will be coming l::eime the TRC, i
at all, from their homes. In this regard we note that:

e The persons who were convicted for the killings of June 19™ 1980 in.the F)omb:mg al Quecn::s l‘::;;
as well as those charged for the killing of four people in Plains St. Pairick’s mt No»cl.n‘l')'c; lf 9[1
were freed in November 1983 despite the fact that the appeals of the first group, and the triat ol lhe

second group were still pending before the court. .

) ) L1 -
¢ The persons responsible for the killings of soldiers on Tort Rupert on Oclober 19 1983 h‘we.
never been charged.

All of the above persons would be coming from their homes to give evidence before U
commission.

On the other hand we have already speni the equivalent ofa 25 year sentence heiu‘nd ha.iig’,l.h:;
on the basis of a highly dubious legal process and in a context‘in which we lt?vc Leen de’—med_ mib‘e:i m
the highest court under Grenada’s constitution to test the valifhf.y 01"; our fmprisonment, ‘1(-::1 wc. .h; ‘Tll;eu
remain tocked up. We would have 1o come from prison to give gvidence to the comutigsion and
return to prison. And the only thing in the exercise for us is a hope that:

(a)  the commissioners would recommend our freedom and then thal

N . " . . e R ihgs_
(b)  the government, which hag admitted on several occasions in words and l:m aclions mt
it is politically unable to deal With the malter of our release, would implement j
recommendation. . y o .
We note that while the commission has the power to grant indemutijes to certain perso )
testify, with regard to the 17 it can only recommend amnesties. Again the digparily i weaint
stify, g

I
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evident. People who have not spent a single day in prison are provided with protection in exchange for
testifying. Such protection is not left up to the politicians. The commission has the power to grant such
protccﬁﬂﬂ- No conditions are attached. However in the case of us, who have alrcady been subjected to o
25-year term of imprisonment, the commission can only recommend. After that it is up to the
pojiticians to decide. There s no guarantee that the recommendations of the conunission will be
implemented. A fime frame has been given for the commission to sit and report. But no time frame has
peen given for the implementation of the recommendations of the commission.

We note that the commission has the power ‘(o recommend a general amnesty fto cerfain
petsons who in the opinion of the commission have given truthful information during the hearing of
evidence’. The construction of this clause i puzzling. However it can be reasomably regarded as
referring to the 17. And it raises the issue as to how the commisstoners are 1o arrive at their opinions as
to whether evidence provided is truthful or not. The obvious answer is through assessing all the

evidence before them, the demeanour of the various witnesses and the assessment of their characters.
Tlds has certain implications:

(a) We are placed at a structural disadvantage in that we have to appear before the commission as
convicted murderers despite the fact that we have not been allowed to have our matter reviewed
and finally determined by Grenada’s highest appeal count, the Privy Council;

() It must’:‘i'cquire that all persons appearing before the commission be very clear that they are subject

to prosecution for perjury if they are discovered to have deliberately Iied. This would prevent the
rehashing of blatant lies and half-truths some persons have said over the radio, in papers, in the
streets,-and even in books over the years. This would enhance the probability of the commissioners
having to assess and analyse only evidence that those giving it honestly belisve to be true;

iy

(c} It also requires that we must be represented throughout by legal counsel sq as to enable us to

examine and crogs-examine all witnesses who come forward. This i1s fundamental since we have a
tangible interest in every aspect of the proceedings since our freedom could depend on 2,

(d)  This raises the further issue of the cost of the exercise. For example who will pay the legal cost

incurred by the Grenada 177 )

We wish to once again point out that ouwr legal matter was dealt with in a nakedly political
manner. We were specifically targeted by the political directorates of Grenada and other OECS islands
1o be tried in a kangaroo court. Proof of this can be found in the John Compton {then Prime Minister of
St. Lucia) letter of March 22" 1988 informing the government of Grenada that the constitutional court
of Grenada would not be allowed to resume operation in Grenada unti] the Maurice Bishop Murder trial
was disposed of, Since that was a decision of the OECS Authority and such decisions have to be
unanimous it folowed that the government of Grenada concurred in that decision. Such concurrence
was in direct breach of an undertaking given by the government of Grenada to the Court of Appeal to
return the constitutional court to Grenada from 1 January 1987, By way of that device the
unconstitutional court was kept in operation up until August 1991 until our matter was fially dealt
with and it was dissolved immediately thereafter. And a law was passed in the Grenada Parliament
blocking the Grenada 17 fror taking their case to the Privy Council, the highest coutt of appeal under

ngm eyl : .
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We are convinced that if our matter were allowed to go before the Privy Council we would be
released instantanecusly. Many respected lawyers in the Caribbean share out view. The failure of the
defunct Court of Appeal, i violation of our rights under the Constitution, to issue a writtea judgement
9 15 year§ after the completion of arguments in Qur case is construed by us as an admission on the part
of the judges that no reasons in law can be given for upholding the verdicts against us and hence for our
continued incarceration,

-

Given all that has been said above, given the contents of the submission made to the two- man

organising comumittee by theee of us, given the Jong record of statements by the government about its “
desire to Teconcile the nation and its oqually long record of explanations as to why it is unable 1o free ug
we find it difficult to unders tand the following: ’

¥

e  The insistence by the government that we remain locked up in prison while the TRC proceeds.

« The continned refusal by the government t0 amend Act 19 of 1991 50 as 10 aliow us the rght
now afforded to other Grenadians fo take our case before the Privy Coungil so that it can be
finally determined according to law.
APPENDIX 4
e The failure of the government t0 specifically mclude as part of the terms of reference an inqairy
into the legal process through which we were put.

o  The apparent refusal by the government to give the Commission the power 10 make binding
orders regarding our freedoim

« The insistence by the government that the igsue of our freedom must not be decided on the basis
of law but that it and it alone. roust have the power to determing that jssue: not the Prvy
Council; not even, apparently. the TRC that it is setting up.




REFLECTIONS AND APOLOGIES
T0: ALL EX-DETAINEES OF THE PRG
FROM: SOME FORMER LEADERS OF THE NjM

[Published in The Grenadian Voice of February 8, 1997, on the front page and several inside pages. ]

Dear Fellow Grenadians:

This Ietter was written over a period of several weeks; a joint project of many months of contemplation,
and thirteen years of reflections. It was written prior to the October 2nd [1996] interview at the
Richmond Hill Prisons. However, we have felf it it to‘make a few changes and additions to the oniginaj
draft of the letter, bearing in mind the interview and subsequent developments.

As you may well imagine we have had to ponder long and hard over the content of this letter. We are
fully conscious of the fact that in writing we reay be approaching a veritable minefield of emotions. In the
final analysis we have come 1o the conclusion that we should just speak from the heart. Thos 15 not to say
that there arc no differences of opinion and of degrees of emphasis among us on this and that, That is

only natural. Thus, even more, we do not expect you to agree with us in all we say and believe. But be
assured we speak with conviction.

Although addressed to the ex-detainees, we felt the need to address certain other matters, which though

going beyond the detainee question are more than tangentially related to you. We crave your indulgence
in this regard.

WE RECQOGNIZE AND APOLOGIZE FOR YOUR SUFFERING

Over the last several years we have becoms acutely conscious of the suffering you political detainees
experienced during the 4 % years of Revolution.

We have heard some of you complain that to this day many
pretend that vou never suffered during the vears of the R

that you only got what you deserved. We can well
perceptions cause even today.

people do not recognize your sufiering;
evolution; that the Revolution did no wrong; or

understand the agony such expressions and

One of the reasons why we are moved to write this letter is because we feel that w

‘ e have a moral duty to
recogtuze the fact that you suffered and suffered unjustly during the ve

ars of the Revolution.

We fully appreciate and recognize the hardship and sufferings you experienced on account of the denial
of your freedom over varying periods up to four and a half years; the separation from vour families; the
suffering inflicted on family members and relatives on account of your plight; the break up of your
families in some cases; the psychological damage to vour children and spouses; the loss of property; loss
of earnings; psychological pressure arising from the uncertainty as to the length of detention: and the
psychelogical and physical hardship and deprivations generally attendant (o prison life.
We believe and recognize that those of us

who were leaders during the vears of the Revolution were, as
part of the lcadership, collectively

responsible for your sufferings and must fully accept such

“
i

ponsibility. Thus we feel that theleast that we can do is‘to express to.you a;n;r*prof?'u?d rleng;;tts ;1;::
e atant  our sinéere and d apologies as a minimal form of atonement. The
sment and offer you our sincere and unreserved apologi | : - ‘
O o e ot i would appreciate;_saying sorry does
i ted to do this several vears now. But as you: ap ;-Saying sor
e o or i i ho were carmarked for execution in July
iy i West Indian culture, Still, some of us who w Jul:
B e taors so o ies duting what' we . believeéd to berourdast hours: In
ade efforts torecord our regrets and apologies doning . ]
31?31@2;! ‘je obtained the comfort of knowing, that we had, even though'as 2 last testament, taken steps to
y y thili v ' {‘FL___ — “_'l i
discharge our meoral responsibility. .

—_ - ~

. . _ R
“YOUR SUPPORT IN OUR DARKEST HOURS: o

Tt is now over thirteen years sinde we hgve been behind bars. And as yn;; may \;f&ﬂ:;now 1‘2::; 1;11;1%11;25 1;_
l us. thess y inot only been a litany of woes.. :
not been easy for us. However, these years i?ave no 1 , >
h;founted to a geﬁbd of growth: emotionally, intellectually and spiritvally. None of us hag :1:;2
;touchcd by this process of growth. We believe that-we can hpnestly say that'we are much more 1
and much wiser than 13 Years ago.

This maturity and wisdom has come about ofi account of' the'deep .reﬂelction and .igtrgsli;:cno;; :v;nhg\‘;:;
been able to do. Reflection on our ndividual ]jxes; on d?c;sxons and'ciloxf;es we 1;1;? ¢ in the past;
country; on the 1979-1983 révolutionary prodess; diid ofi the events in'October 1983

J .
We have discovered thitouph refléction and also through coract with some of.vou, !th{:t advcris::}c; ;23
suffering can bring the very best out of many-of us, Wehave been not. only. am:zzdud 1‘.1t %c;:c;.ei .:{_,f
humbled by the fact that many-of you-who ' have real cause to lhalc us,--havmg suff_arc uring’the reign
the Revolution, are the ones who are prepared to forgive and indeed empathize with us.

We will forever remember’ that i the very difficalt days of Joly-August 1991, when.- frannc .moxlfesuw;;f:
afoot to execute some of us, people like Mit. Leslie Pierre and Mt. Lloyc! Noel were very vocal aga ne!
the impending hangwngs. Their efforts, we are convince‘d',_ p}aycd a decisive role in ove;p;)‘x??niom
hanging party, inside and outside'the government, in facilitating the courageous actu'ms of § u 10{ lh
Brathwaite, Mrs. Joan Purcell and others. We are also aware of Ih'c pubiic pqsmons in ogp((;51h0é1 to mz
hangings taken by Mr. Mautice Paiterson and also Mr. Errol Maitland. Dl.mng. that péno man ;nmm
years since, we experienced the humanity of Commissioner gf Pm.sons,l M. Wmstonl ‘ f)ux Y, ! };i !
who we regard as a remarkable Grenadian: We have Reard Mr. Winston Whyte phub‘hc.,l_y pronou?)c.' v
wﬂli'ngncssvto forgive and reconcile. We have been surprised and touched. by the 1’>ubhc-..statcmen’t Y Laé
Clem Langdon calling for forgiveness and amnesty in relation to us. Mr. Teddy Vu:,tor has beeriz1 ddr;:igluiﬁs
visitor of ours;. bringing Words of encoufagement and support:-And we have been deeply touc ew j;]
attitude. We have also.come into contact with Mr.-Raymond'De Souza and Mr. ()sben‘.;arrnmes. R el .'zr;
been touched by their empathy. And we have come across..Ksnncdy Bud.lﬂaII,..Ras Nang .?Na’ng, e]_%;l >
Phillip, Kade Layne and many more; and their lack of bitterness has impressed u,s. On,a nfuxﬁl ‘S
oceasions Mr. Ien‘;\': Romain has accompanied Bishop Sidney Charles on New Year s1 Day o fellowship
with prisoners, including us.. . ;

-QUR COMMON BOND . b
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This remarkable attitude of forgiveness and empatlty has served as a great example and guide (o ug an d. |

has cnabled us to. better respond 10 and put in perspective the wrongs which we ourselves have sufy;

treg ¥
over the 13 years of incarcération.

oy} 2
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We'are also conscious that prison has bonded us in many other ways. We have been livisig for the p_‘ast 13
“years in the same cells which you occupied. Some of the graffiti inscribed by some of you is still Withy y

We share many of the utensils and other facilities you shared, We .shared Father Leavy as a SPitifyy
guide. We have both been inspired by his humanity, optimistn, honesty, understanding and wisdom, We
shared the book, Mun’s Search For Meaning, the one written by the psychiatrist, Dr. Frankel, abou his
experience In a Nazi concehtration camp, and tips on how he coped. Teddy sent us that book in 199)
He told us that it was widely read within the detainee ¢ommunity and that it proved a source of grey
strength. For many of us it was a virtual life line, providing strength, courage and hope in the face o
immense odds. Also, Teddy always says whenever he visits the prison to feflowship, that being within t,
walls is a special experience. Lioyd also spoke of that same special feeling, several months ago on a vigy
1o participate in a religious service. In fact both Teddy and Lioyd have said to those visiting along with
them, that only those who have experienced the walls from the inside could truly nuderstand the fecting
‘The truth is that those walls reflect a spititual bond between us. They breathe your spirit every day. A
they will breathe ours together with yours for the next hundred years.

Through ali our reflection we have come 1o see you as individuals with names, with families and relativey
and even idinsyncrasies, instead of as ‘counters’, ‘destabilizers,’ etc. It was Martin Luther King Jr. who
in modem times most eloguently emphasized the predominant importance of character. We have trdly
come to appreciate that, ultimately, it matters fittle the political label or outlook a person may carry at 3
particular time. What matters most is the “contents of the character” of the individual;

And so we have had 1o seek answers; to ask oursebves why? Why did we take the course of imprisoning
you dusing the days of the Revolution? We think there were reasons. though not excus:s.

THE CONTEXT OF YOUR UNJUST TREATMENT

A: THE MANNER OF TAKING POWER

In the first place, the fact that we were forced to take power by unconstingional means shaped many of
our actions and decisions in the first 6 months of the Revolution.

We believed in and were guided by the view expressed in the preamble to the 1776 American Declaration
of Independence that when a people, are lefl with no alternative it is their God~given and inalicnable sigh

to forcibly remove their oppressors. It was this right which, in our view, was exercised by the NTM and

Grenadian masses in 1979,

Still, we venture to say that, with greater maturity, we recognize that it is always a misfortune for !

country when its people are left with no alternative but to resort to force to change their governmen!
Such a course of action is bound to result in dislocations: in hardships for many people, including some
whally mnocent ones; in the suspension of constitutional rights; in arrest; injury and loss of life. And such

a situation is pregnant with the possibility for abuse. The responsibility falis on those who have assumﬁéé

power in the name of the people to display the wisdom and exercise the necessary restraiat to minimiZ,
the dislocation and abuse. We did not always measure up to this challenge. :

B: THE COLD WAR

1 2% Cold War at the time- distosted the
rortantly, we believe that the existence of the 1 g
Scwndi}’fmirmg;cunut:gf as it did that of many others. This was the background agamnst which the
olitics o1 @ .
Rgvolution anfolded.
1:

ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE REVOLUTION AND 1TS CONSEQUENCES

i deny social and econoruic achisverenis recorded by the Rev?‘lflt}on
Mo ot C?/Fl S?zrzus’fhjh:c:%i: E’i{;’r:i;?fo:cﬁigme Housing, Community Centers and Mt:fiical {“hm“s
st oéram%' fhe Primary Health Care, Milk Feeding, School Bo&_)i_cs and Uniforms: }ilcc
construCﬂ?nEglfmmon and. through massive scholarships awards, to Universitics; mSﬁP and CPE
Secondar.? stablishing NéB G]BTC,, NIS, MNIB, GRC, NTS, Agro-lndustries: Fruit and yegetflble,
ngramq’dcﬁsh DDCSS';ng‘. t‘;'le Fastern Main Road (Phase 1), Farm and Feeder Roads, S ‘amimn, Sione
s anﬂnd Aﬁp;hﬂl‘i Miiking Plant Facilities, Electricity Expansion in Grenada and Cagriacou and the
g;;flil?zgfaﬁon of Petite Martinigue; and Maternity, Trade Union Recognition, and other social legislation,

are all examples. }

Indeed, by 1983, the PRG was engaged in 164 construction prqief:ts simultanfeousb’. All thcsi prt;g,raimsi
grcatly- contributed to the massive reduction in unemployment. This c@oes not include the scores oi ot :161
micro-projects undertaken by the people voluntarily at a commuuity fevel Gr?nada has new;r. Scfn
anything fike this before or since. The building of the Internaiional Airport was simply the Jewe! i the
Crown.,

-

All these achievements and successes caused our people fo glow with pride, dignity, and a sense of

purpose as the revolution captured their imagination and that of large sections of the Caribbean people.

At the same time the trumph of the Revolution instilied and reinforced in us, as leaders, that sense of
purpese and mission we carricd with us when we risked our lives on March 13, 1979.

I

THE US ATTITUDE AND OUR RESPONSE

At the same time, however, there was the US. It is an indisputable fact that the government of the US,
for ideological reasons, wanted to overthrow the Grenada Revolution from its inception. Grenada was
seen by the US government as a mere piece on the Cold War chess boa{d. The US government
obviously had its great power concerns and fears. And admittedly the leadership of the Revolution was
immature and unrealistic in our reaction to the attitude of the US government.

But we as voung revolutionariss, on a mission of transforming our country, a mission gupponcci l(?r the
overwhelming majority of the Grenadian people, were not prepared to allow any foreign power 1o diclate
fo us in any way, 1o hold us back,
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We perceived that the US would attempt to organize internal resistance backed up by the extemmal thrsagg
to achieve the objective of overthrowing the Revolution. And for this view we had the Iranian (I1934)
Guatemalan (1950), Guyanese (1964), Chilean (1973) and Jamaican (I976 and 1980) precedents. In flyg
context we were morbidly afraid of internal opposition: seeing the hand and mind of the US governmeny
and its agencies in and behind every manifestation of intemal: dissent. This state of mind which, quickly
spread to virtually the entire population. resulted in an atmosphere of penmanent combat alarm or state of
emergency — in a siege mentality. The sisge mentality was fed by provocations taking violent forms by
some political detainees such as the Queens Park bombing of June 19, 1980. In this siege atmosphere the
civil and human rights of those who opposed or even disagreed with us, sadly, counted for little. We just
did not have the maturity and wisdom at the time to recognize that many who dissented did not do so
because they were stooges of the US government, CIA agents or unpatriotic Grenathans; but because of
their concemns about the non-existence of checks and balances; and because they felt, correctly so, that as
citizens they had a right to freedom of expression, and to participate in the political process.

We just did not have it at the time to recognize that if the Revolution were to succeed in-the medium and
long term, if it were to retain its liberating and spiritual power, then we had to find a way to combine
Revolution with democracy, to combine the undoubted social and economic gains with political
democracy. Not sham political democracy, hut genuine political democracy, entajling respect for the civil
rights and liberties of the citizens, and free elections in a genuinely free atmosphere. There was no way
the Revolution could have truly and ultimately established its right to reign as of right. No other way it
could have evolved from being a fleeting experiment into a permanent feature of the Grenadian political
and constitutional landscape, particularly given the limitations of size, resources, and the external threat.
But 1o have successfully combined revolution with political democracy in the years of the Cold War
would have required a level of maturity and wisdom that was beyond us at the time. Arguably, no
country has successflly achieved this combination in the 20th Century.

THE SIEGE ATMOSPHERE
AND
ITHE OCTOBER 1983 EVENTS

Though you were undoubted victims of the siege atmosphere and siege mentality we have referred 1o,
ultimately, we the revolutionaries and all Grenada were victims,

The truth is that the October 1983 events which finally led to the downfall of the Revolution, cannot be
divorced from the siege atmosphere which developed and existed over most of the 4 % yeas. Sadly,
many in their cagemess to find heroes and villains, saints and devils, to lay blame and point fingers,
thirteen years later, have not come to appreciate that.

Qutside of that environment the political differences which emerged within' the NM would not have
ended in a violent confrontation and such terrible tragsdy. At the very worst such differences would have
resulted in a split in the NJM in the same way the NNP split when PM Blaize broke off and formed the
TNP after losing the leadership of the NNP to Dr, Keith Mitchell. It is a part of the normal democratic
process for parties all over the world to occasionally decide, by vote of its membership or delegates, to
change its leaders or its teadership structure. Unfortunately this sometimes results in splits. However, in a
demncratic and normal snvironment, ihese differences never spill over into violent confrontations. It is
Jjust not conceivable that outside of the context of that siege atmosphere that Fort Rupert (Fort George)
would have been overrun and seized by the civilian crowd on October 19, 1983, After all, in 1973-74,
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for example, the Grenadian masses spearheaded by the NIM, marched in the streets day after day, {or
n(: onths, in an effort 10 bring down the Gairy Government; yet not cven a small out-district police station
wras ever entored.

The more we reflect on it, the more we realize that on that fateful day, someu(‘Jf us were destined to die.
I£ things had unfolded differently and the armed crowd at Fort Rupert had gained the upch-hand, ‘there
js no doubt in our minds that some or all of us now presently in prison would hayc bcm. kﬂlc‘d. We are -
a0t saying that Maurice would have ordered that. That would have happened despite and in spite of him.
Things had just gone too far out of hand.

WE APOLOGIZE TO THE ENTIRE GRENADIAN PEOPLE

But this belief in no way mitigates the pain and grief we feel as we reflect on those tragic events. We are
clear in our minds that those of us who were leaders and survived have to accept full polilical and moral
responsibility for the deaths of Maurice and all those who died-on October 19, 1983. As part of %h_c
collective leadership of the revolution we were responsible for creating the atmosphere in which the crisis
unfolded in the manner in which it unfolded and climaxed. Thus we have to bear the -blame. Those
soldiers who were actually involved in the tragic events, ot to mention those who have been framed,
were all victims, Their misfortune was that they were the ones on spot (and some of those framed were
not even on spot). The leaders of the Revolution were the ones really at fault.

We were the ones whao created the political and psychological climate and framework outside of which
there could and wouid have been no October tragedy. It was our decisions and choices, strategy and
factics over four and a half years, which created the siege atmosphere. And it was this-atmosphere which
provided the fertile ground upon which political differences giving rise to a political problem and crisis
could so quickly and catastrophically degenerate into a military situation, placing the couniry on the brink
of a civil war.

In the particular case of Bernard Coard, as he has already stated publicly, hs is of the visw that as one of
the two top leaders of the Revolution around whom the leadership dispute was centered, over and
beyond the responsibility he bears as a member of the collective leadership, ultimate and full personal
responsibility for the October Tragedy lies on his shoulders. This is a heavy burden which Bernard has
stated that he has borne for the last 13 years and will bear for the rest of his life.

We know that the demise of the Revolution has dashed many dreams. Thus we understand the frustration
and anger of the Grenadian people arising out of these dashed expectations and feeling of betrayal on
account of the tragedy and defeat of the Revolution. Whilg we believe that all the Leaders of the
Revolution were collectively at fault and connibuted to its demise; we fully appreciate and accept that
those who survived must bear the cross. This is why we have borne for the past 13 years while
imptisoned, and shall always bear, the enormous burden of feeling responsible, morally responsible, for
al the events which took place in October 1983, And it is also on this basis that we most profoundly
apologize, 1o all the victims and sufferers and their families, tg the families of all those who died and to
the entire Grenadian people, inchuding members of the NIM itself, the members of the PRA, Militia,
Youth, Women’s, Farmers and Workers’ organizations (all who belisved in us and 1elied on s fo
Bositively transform Grenada economically and socially).

ot b W LALALELE W S DERV At
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MORAL RESPONSIBILITY
YERSUS
CRIMINAL LIABILITY
However, while we accept full moraf and political responsibility, criminal liability is something co'mp;ﬁtﬁ}
different. :
Some people have genuine difficulty understanding the difference between moral responsibility f
something and criminal liability for it. Let ug look, not at a paraliel situation but at an

| analogy: et \,
supposc that we as parents neglect our children, show no love; m some cases ph}'sicaﬂy and
psychologically abuse them, and even throw them out on the streets. When our children turn to 2 fife
crime, we cannot be accused of either committing the crimes or erdering our children to commit then
Although unwittingly, we created the climate, the

context, the environment, the conditions for ; Such
crimes 1o be committed. We are, therefore, res

ponsible in the most profound of senses: we
responsible for'the committal of those crimes by our children, It would, however, be

an obscenity
prosecutors to manufacture evidence in order to claim that we committed the crimes or ordeyeq Ot
children 1o commit those crimes and in that wa

y convict us for them; so as to have an excuse for
imposing the sanctions of criminal law, e it imprisonment or death by hanging,

¢ Morafy

THERE WAS NO CONSPIRACY TO KILL ANYONE

In the specific case of the October 1983 events, criminal liability
conspired.or otherwise agreed that Maurice et al must be- killed
triggers were asting as agents of the Centyal Committee in s0 do

would entail that the Central Commts:
; and that those who actually pulled the
ing.

The fact that the NJM CC may have (a) unwittingly sp
proposal and then (b) mishandled it, resulting in things g
military situation, is not sufficient to ground criminal
require more. In the specific case it requires
kill. We categorically deny that there was
planned. Fhings developed spontaneously b

arked the political crisis by the Joint Leadership
etting out of hand, to the point of erupting into a
habilitv. The criminal law and criminal {iability
the existence of a criminal conspiracy Le., a conspiracy fo
any Such conspiracy. The events on Ford Rupert were not
ecause the situation got out of hand.

THAT'S WHY THERE IS NO EVIDENCE
TO PROVE A CONSPIRACY

But there is an additional point here. We deny that there was any conspiracy, And that is the trufh
Others, including the prosecutors in our case, say there was a conspiracy; and that on that basis we art

criminally liable. They are clearly entitled to their opinions. However, to move from (a) the stage of being
entitled to a political opinion, to (b) the stage of justification of the application of the sanctions of the
criminal law — death or imprisonment — it is not sufficient that those with a contrary view simply insist.

We assert that, to this day, there is not one shred of credible evidence to show that as leaders we
conspired to kill anyone or that the Central Committee of the NIM ordered the killing of anyone. Not
one stusdi This despite the fact that there was a court process lasting over seven vears and costing tens of
millions of dollars. The reason for this

because there was no conspiracy.

ornission is very simple: therc is no evidence of any conspiracy

£
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WE HAVE NOT RECEIVED
A FAIR HEARING

h iat,k Of evidencc we wWeEre Sﬁnteﬂced fo dﬂaﬂl, &nd we ha‘fﬁ hesn
'tt: the v 2
Vel despt

ot 1 is under an obligation to
hed under the law and constitution of Grenada_’ that the statt:b!; 111{;(1 under the law that
1t's welt estabhsh¢f m‘-‘nnlg sriminal charges with a fair hearing, It 15 alsx;ﬂ &tzsta ase well established and
ovide everyone L its ch beyond a reasonable doubt. cre & :
. to prove its charges Ly e - - proving guilt.
it is for thco:iirft proiedutcs with regard to admigsibility of evidence, etc., f91 i
indeed sacrosd

i bstance of a fair
. have not been provided with even the semblance not to me'nn{o.n tlclz j;tl i}gnvici'ed i
Butto 138 da}’f :ve were condemmed and convicted long before we were tned lcasht;d in the Exiglish
hearlnt Inc;jttcrz the press; by way of the most vicious propaganda campaign ever un
condemtned O} ?

speaking Caribbean.

omee ﬂle da]lla.ge had beeﬂ d(}nc, aﬂcﬁ‘ tlle populat:()n hﬂ.d _been Satufﬂted th Pl'ej 1 ( g.‘ 1 OI
I‘Cp |~ Wi R Y

1 ’ e corrected the errors of the trial But thus
T e ﬂPpeglbpf ?1:: ssa:'vr:luciz :ji? cﬁﬁé;zgﬁiﬁnh;é to the justices of appenll as borne o;;t.tlaaiaiiz
R wer 10 2 Subv?c in} the 1S)f:;flate: from Mr. Derek Knight Q.C. That sum carried the lennufl hate
answer (0 & ques \? n onder that, to this day, more than five years after the Court gf Appe tfp cm e
stcn.C%’l of a bribe. Mo ivof trial, cicspitc repeated requests from our counsgl, .the judges have ?f_ 3};
dec}SlOﬂS of &'le copld ernent stating their reasons for upholding the convictions. They .are. not | ola“;
They knom Wﬂ“ﬁm ::flhft they did. They know only too well that they cannot 1}1‘0\/}(13 any 1casomts ;nmmm
Eggzldk;(;wthc:zgn}:ficﬁons. 'fhcy know ihat they just did a job on us. And that a wntien Jjudgemen
stand up to scrutiny.

i i es, including the
And finally, to complete the “legal plot” against us, there have been various r?;?r;?cz;frc rs;mmd SO g1 e
passage of 31 law, aimed at debarring us from having our case re-opened, to be fauly \
obtaint fustice according to faw.

WE THANK THOSE OF YOU WHO
HAVE CALLED FOR OUR FREEDOM

i i le speak as
And yet such has been the success of the propagandaf campaign against UT‘ lih:;: s;r:x;ng?pgadi;; * s
though it is & mortal sin to mention, the idea of freeing the seventeen dpoi i;r 1;0.!:)8 o b\ o
some who shouted “Revolution” together with us have h-ecn clo.wcd an a];;p e Ltie bire
perception. Amidst all this we cannot fail to note the public pesitions taker_l. }mat ¥ Joe, Leslic FRC™,
and Clem -Lang_don We are thankful to them for this. They have advocated : .te R e our
on grounds ofurccc;nciliaﬁon. We also thank the many of you who have made private apy
freedom to those in authority.

1 A
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APPENDIX 5

APOLOGY TO THE FAMILIES OF THE VICTIMS. OF THE OCTOBER 1983 CRISIS,
AND TO THE GRENADIAN PEOPLE

Two years ago the former (imprisoned) leaders of the NJM and the PRG issued a public
apotogy to the political detainees of the Revolution, to the families of those who died in October 1983,
and to the Grenadian peopie as a whole, Qur apology, titled, "Reflections and Apologies by . Bernard
Coard and his colleagues;” was published in the Greradian Veice of 8 February 1997.

It is our impression that most of the former political detainees did read that apology; but that
magny other Grenadians never saw it and therefore believc up to today that we have never apologized to
those hurt by our actions in 1983,

X We therefore wish to repeat, to the relatives of the victims of the October 1983 crisis, as well as
to the entire Grenadian people, that we fully and unreservedly accept responsibility for the tragedy
which occurred in October1983. '

In particular, we wish to extend our deepest apologies to the families of those whose lives were
lost. We fully appreciate the pain, suffering, and deep sense of loss you have experienced; and we
express our profound sorrow and apologies for our part in causing your suffering,

We fully appreciate that no amount of words from us can heal your pain: only God's loving
embrace can gradually bring you peace. Yet we hope that this unreserved public apology will bring vou
some small comfort. -

We want 1o express to you too, our deep sorrow and apology for our faih.Jre to ensure that the
bodies of your loved ones were handed over to you during the 5 % day period after the October 19
tragedy and before the invasion. We want you to know that we do appreciate the tremendous additional
grief and pain caused to you by this failure of curs. We also recognize your pain caused by the fact that

to this day the remains of your loved ones have not been handed over to you for a proper Chsistian
burial.

& We want you all to know that we did cooperate fully in the effort to locate the remains,

including by disclosing to the authorities, in 1983 and again in 1996, all the information ever in the
possession of merbers of the Grenada 17 on this matter. We ask you to believe that if we had any
knowledge at all, as to the present whereabouts of your relatives’ remains, we would disclose it to you
Withm{t a moment's hesitation. However, we simply do not know where their remains are, because, to

our knowledge, the American military took. possession of the bodies of your relatives shortly after the
invasion.




You may remember that in early November 1983, a Captain Forde of the US Forces heyg ., _
announced to the press that they had found the bodies of Maurice and others at Camp Fed%
Calivigny. Then, at the 1986 'Maunce Bishop Murder Trial, the prosecution presented eViden,, B
confirming the recovery of the bodies. In particular, they presented iters of jewellery swhich fUreign |

military and police witnesses testified were recovered with the bodies; and some members of e

families of the deceased identified these in court as belonging to and, worn -by their loved oneg "

October 19,1983, We-are therefore as mystified as everyone else by the failure of those who g -

possession of the remains after the invasion to hand them over (o their families at any time during g,
last fifteen and more vears. It is our deepest and prayeriul ‘hope that these remains will finally y,
restored 1o you.

We-also wish to take this opportunity to repeat our apology to all those who on account of gy
actions suffered in any way whatsoever during the period of the Grenada Revolution. And we o
more apologize to all the Grenadian people for the pain and frauma caused them by the tragic events,

We wish to express our gratitude to all those who have found it in their hearts to forgive usf
the wrongs they suffered. You have touched our lives in profound ways.. '

We thank those who have given us moral and spiritual support over the last fifteen and aid
years, including under the most trying circumstances. We will never forget this.

We also thank those who have prayed and continue to pray for us. We feel blessed by ym

~

prayers. i
We and our families hiave also suffered a great ordeal over the last 15 % years: a fact whia
makes us more sensitive to the pain and suffering of others. But we wish to unequivocally declare tf
we hold no grudges, bitterness nor hatred whatsoever towards anyone.
Once more, to each and everyone who has suffered pain, hurt and trauma arising from &

actions, we sincerely, profoundly and unreservedly express our sOmrow and apologies.

- / Bem ﬁrd CC’
On behalf of impris®

Former NIM and PRG feal?
and the Grent¥
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STATEMENT TO THE MEDIA BY EWART LAYNE
FORMER DAY -TO-DAY COMMANDER OF
THE PEOPLES REVOLUTIONARY ARMY

On October 191983, as the dav-to-day commander of the Peoples Revolunionary Army, it fe|)
upon my young shoulders to make certain decistons m the context of the serious political and military
gituation which developed in our country. At that time, in 1983, as I was discharging what lionestly

perceived to be my duty, I could nol imagine the catastrophic consequences which would flow from my

actions.

I had always been deeply committed to the Grenadian Revolution, In my early teenage vears]
accepted as an ideal the necessity of the revolutionary transformation of Grenacda and I worked
tirelessly towards that. 1 was one of a few dozen Grenadians who in the early hours of March 13" 1979
risked everything to herald the Revolution. I was due to leave Grenada with my family on Apsit ™
1979, three-and-a-half weeks into the Revolution, to migrate to the USA to live and study. To fhe
dismay and incomprehension of my family, hours before our scheduled departurs, I furned my back o
this opportunity. The only cxplanation I have ever given my parents for this action, which broke their
hearts, is that duty demanded that I stay. In fact on the moming on which I was due to depart T wis
called upon by the leadership of the Revolution, and by Prime Minister Maurice Bishop personally, to
remain at home and help consolidate and build the revolution which I had contributed to making. I say
all of the above 1o make the point that there is no way that I, Ewart Joseph Layne, would have dons
anything which [ believed could hurt the Revolution, not fo mention destroy it. Of course I was voung
and immature, and above afl I'm human, and therefore I was fully capable of making Dlunders. Bull
think my state of mind and motives at the time were beyond reproacl.

What happened on October 19" 1983 was in no way planned. I awoke on that tragic day very
hopeful that a solution to the political crisis was at hand. There was no way that the though! crossed my
mind or could have crossed¢ my mind that in just a few hours the greatest tragedy imaginable would
descend on our country and that in a few days the Grenadian Revolution would be no more.

Reflections of the day even 16 years later have the fecl of a very bad dream. First, ] remembef
the crowds gathering in the streets; then their appearance at the entrance to Mt. Wheldale; then the
breaking into the compound and the taking away of Maurice. Next thing T knew Imndreds had overnt
and seized Fort Rupert, the headquarters of the army. Then alarming reports as to what was takin?
place at Fort Rupert and as to the declared intentions of those there, started to come in: the Qperation®
Room had been occupied: members of the General Staff were under arrest; the soldiers had b'-f*—""
disarmed, the armoury had been seized; weapons had been distributed to civilians; unils were berd

formed to move to seize the Radio Station, and Army logistics base where all the reserve weaponry of

the army were held. Civil war was evidently at the door.

'

!
t

.

-J

Faced with this alarming situation, efforts were made to contact those assumed to be in charge
of Fort Rupert with a view to resolving the situation peacefully. But all of these efforts were rejeciled
qut of hand with the demand to surrender or face the consequences. It was in this context that 1 gave the
order 1o a militaty unit to proceed to Fort Rupert and retake the headquarters.

I honestly believe that any objective observer who is aware of all the material facts wouid _

recognise that October 19" was a spontaneous situation, which got terribly out of control.

But I do not consider this an excuse. My perspective is that those who were leaders must accept
responsibility for what happened. I was the one who ordered the troops to go to Fori Rupert and to use
military means to recapture the Headquarters, Therefore, from the military standpoint, 1 must
unreservedly accept respensibility for what happened. I s0 do. It is a very heavy responsibifity given
the magnitude of the events and given my vouthfulness and immaturity at the fime. Bui it is one I must
bear.

I know it is terribly difficult for many Grenadians to forgive what happened, and particularly so
for those who lost loved ones. Indeed, it is only in the last 36 months that I have finaily been able to
forgive myself, and this with a lot of help from my family, some dear friends and several spiritual
leaders. But still, I seek the understanding of all Grenadians as to the extremely, almost impossibly
difficult situation which I as a 25-year-old Lieutenant Colonel had to face up io in 1983.

Once again I express my profound regrets and apologies for the consequences of my actions.

September 1999
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Fact Sheef ont Case of Lhe Grenada ¢/

PO YOU KNOW:

L.

2

-

3.

That the Seventeen Political Prisoners did NOT {eceive
a free and fair trial? In civilised Societiels/countnes tht
are based on the principles of natural justice, a person is
innocent until proven guilty beyond _reasonable doublt,
in an impartial court of law. Section & OIT".C'irenadas
constitution (the lughest law) entitles every citizen to a

fair hearing.

That after the Registrar of the Grenada High Court, Mr

Christian "Brim” St. Louis had selected a panel of Jurors
from which the {2-member Jury was to be {’hf”e“ fc_"
their trial, he was fired and, within ‘.24 bhours, immedj-
atelv replaced by a person (Ms Denise Camnbc;ll) who,
the day bhefore. was a member of the team of l ROSE-

CUTION lawvers for the case?

And that the Judge dismissed the Jury Panel selected

by Mr St. Lowuis? .
And that Ms Campbell then chose her own Jury Panel?

How can somcone who s PAID TO PROSECUTE
YOU, CHOOSE THE JURY T TRY YOQU? Can

that be FAIR?:

That in open court on 11 April 1986, the new Pan&l.(?f
Iurors selected by Ms Campbell shouted at the 17 Politi-
cal Prisoners "you are murderers and ¢criminals!”"?

And the Judee chose the {inal 12-member Jury from

oners (hy calling them "murderers”) beflore t‘hev ha.d
heard one word _of evidence? Can this be fair? Is it
t-ﬁ;l?efore surprising that this same Jury brought

a2 T ‘?
thewm ' guilty'™? n e e
FRCr Swent orp oeise 2 7he Crrernccia §o

8. That the rcason stated in the Compton letier is wholly

4.

10,

tnacceptable and dangerous, and highlights this case as
having been singled out consciously by the then leading
-politicians of ihc OECS for special treatment. It ig fur-
ther open to the suggestion that only an uncounstitutional
court of no penmanence and wiose Judges had no secu-
tity of tenure could have, in those politicians' view, dealt
with this particular case. This view s reinforced by the
subsequent passage of the law referred o i #11 below.
The effect of all these political machinations by those in
power at the time was 10 prevent The |7 access to the
highest court under 1he Grenada Constitution ~ the Piivy
Council. This is a clear and umitigated case of denial of
due process.

That the Appeal Court Judges were EACH PAID §i

MILLION DOLLARS to deliver a written judgement -

(as is required by Law) FOR ONE CASE ALONE (the
Case of The 17)? Something that had never before lap-
pened in Grenada's history and sinee? Does this sound
right?

That the Appeal Court, however, gave a VERBAL Ry -
ING (instead of the prowmised wiiten one), in July 1991,
tpholding the ‘murder convictions'.

. That immediately afier the Appeal Court's verbal ruling,

clauses v a special baw (Act #19 of 1991) were passed
by the then Government n July 1991 10 prevent The 17
from taking their case to the highest court in Gre-
nada, the Privy Council. Is that fair? Was the Goverg-
ment afraid that their ‘convictions' woukd be quashed be-
cause there was in fact no evidence {o convict them angd
that they did not get a fair tria]? Would 1he Government

fract Sheet on Case of The Grenada 77

4. And that ome week AFTER THE "TRIAL’ of The 17

ENDED on 4 December 1986, MR CHRISTIAN ST.
LOUIS WAS REAPPOINTED AS HIGH COURT
REGISTRAR!? Isn't it clear that he was ONLY RE-
MOVED FOR THE 'TRIAL' OF THE (7 so that the
Prosecution could choose the Jury they wanted? Is
that FAIRNESS?

5. That Documents (seized by the US mulitary forces in

1983) which could prove that the testimony of several
prosecution witnesses were false, and thus prove the in-
nocence of some of The 17, were denied to them? Is
that faimess?

6. That these and scores of other irregularities took

place at their 'trial’ causing the International Commission
of Jurists, members of the US Congress, Members of the
British and European Parliaments, . Human _Rights,
Church, Trade Union and many other organisations and
individuals in the world (like former US Attamey Gen-
eral Ramsey Clarke) to describe their ‘trial’ as a "travesty
of justice” and a "Kangaroo Trial"?

7. That the Prime Ministers of the Eastern Caribbean States

(OECS) who had participated with the Reagan Admini-
stration of the US in the Invasion of Grenada met and
decided and communicated in the form of a formal let-
ter from then Prime Minister John Compton of St.
Lucia, then head of the OECS Authority, tu then
Prime Minister H.A. Blaize of Grenada, on March
22, 1988 that the OECS Prime Ministers had decided to
withhold the return of the OECS Court to Grenada (the
Court of the Grenada Constitution) until the "Maurice

Bishop Murder Case" (and that case specifically so
named — the case of the Grenada I'7) had been Jisposed

ot

Fact Sheet on Case of The Grenada 17

have passed these special discriminatory clauses in the
law apainst The 17 if they were sure they really had a
case against them?

I2. That today — OVER 84 YEARS AFTER THE APPEAL

COURT JUDGES (headed by Sir Frederick Smith, of
Barbados) GAVE THEIR VERBAL RULING uphold-
ing the 'murder’ 'couviction§‘, and after the Govt. paid
thern $1 million dollars eacl, — they have conlinued. to
Lﬁ_ﬂﬁuv__}l_a_lfﬂ._Q.YE_r_LiLIhQ__ll_@,ﬂﬂ_.ﬂ&if_!awxgliﬂl@
Written Judgement in their_case as is required by
Law? No one has ever séen the judgement. Have they
destroyed i, knowing that it CANNOT stand the sciy-
tbiny of a higher and nmpartial court?

13. That NINE (9) different laws were passed by the Gre-

nada Governmenis PRINCIPALLY for the 17's case?

For example, there were 3 Jury laws passed for iheir
case.

14, That the sole material evidence against nine (9) of The

17 (i.c. the Leaders of the rulmg party of the Grenada
Revolation) in the 'tria)' js that ane witness (Cletus St.
Paul) saw them huddleq together in an open yard,
talking and nodding their heads — even though he ad-
mitted lie could not hear what they were saying?

= il o Wity

[5. That this same Prosecution wilness gave five (5) differ-

ent statements about what he claimed he saw (3 dif-
ferent statements (o the foreipn (Barbadian) police, one
at the Magistrate's Court and the other at the rial'), and
this caused the late former President of the Appcal Court
(respected Guyanese and Caribbean Jurist Goff Haynes)
to summon St. Pan) (and, also, anotlier Prosecution wit-
ness) to the Appeai Conrt hearings to be questioned be-




16.

17.

Fact Sheet on Case of The Grenada 17

cause he (Justice Haynes) could not believe that the
same person had given these 5 different statements)?
But before this could be done, Justice Haynes died. It
should be noted that, despite the vigorous and continued

“protest of the defendants that that evidence was a fabri-

cation from A to_Z, nonc of these statements were
made available to the defendants prior to the trial or
sinee; and that their existence only came to light when
Justice Haynes commented on them. And since his death
the matter was swept under the carpet. All of a sudden
the other Appeal Court Judges, fed by Sir Frederick
Smith of Barbados, refused to call the witness. Does-
o't something seem wrong here? Isn't something smeli-
ing? Is that faimess?

That virtually all of The 17, including Mrs Phyllis
Coard, the lone female, were tortured by the US- led
invasion forces; specifically, a specially selected team
of Barbadian police? And that some of the foreign sol-
diers guarding-the 17 were horvified by this and pro-
tested to their superiors but were overruled at very high
levels?

That the US government while claiming in a formal
statement to the Organisation of American States’ Hu-
man Rights Comniission that it had not been involved
in the tortures admitted that its agénts — to wii, the
US Military — had denied (despite repeated requests)
all of the 17 access to legal counset for the first six
weeks that they had been detained and held as Pris-
oners of War and then 'Political Detainees' by the US
occupation forces? *

Fuace Sheet on Case of The Grenada 17

. That Grenadians who are hostile to them are still saying

that they don't know what really happened on Oct
19, 1983 and are calling for a Commission of Inguiry

- into the events? If The 17 received a fair tral, shouldn't

that 'trial’ — IF IT WERE FAIR - have revealed
what had happened?

OURS IS A CHRISTIAN SOCIETY.

18,

IT'S TIME TO FORGIVE,
HEAL THE WOUNDS AND
PUT THE PAST BEHIND US.
. i ~\\\‘\t. \_3..\\5;'.\;:;_"\....‘\\..:\_._\#\&\

19.

20.

I~
Q]

fuct Sheet on Case of The Grenada {7

That all those tortured during that six week period were
made to sign 'confessions' dictated by the invasion
force; 'confessions' later used in then 'trial’ against them?

That The 17 have spent more than 16 years in
prison- — the equivalent of a prison term of over 24
years — which is longer than the normal definition of a
life sentence’ in many counftries. For many of thera that
represents the majority of their adult lives.

That 14 of the 17 Political Prisoners put their lives at
risk and directly participated in the making of the
Grenada Revolution on March 13 19797

. That The 17 have made much sacrifice for the devel-

opment of Gremada? That the NIS, MNIB, Interna-
tional Airport, NISTEP, CPE, NCB, GBC, NTS, House
Repair Programme, Agro Industries {(and other pro-
grammes. of the Revolution), and the scores of poor peo-
ple's children who are today qualified as doctors, engi-
neers and in other professiopal areas, and who are seri-
ously contributing to the country, arc also part of the se-
rious contributions of The 17 10 Grenada's Develop-
ment? Several of them selflessly gave up their young
lives, sacrificing opportunities that were available to
them for personal development, so as to make a contri-
bution to Grenada.

. That The 17 have publicly acknowledged that they

made mistakes, and have publicly apologised to the
people of Grenada, and to all those who were hurt as a
result of their errors/mistakes? {See the Open Leiter in
The Grenadian Voice newspaper of February 8, 1997,
front page and several inside pages, and Televised Inter-
view with Leslie Pierre, October, 1999.]

7
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A Travesty of Justice:

How 10 NJM Leaders
Of The Grenada Revolution

Were Convicted By One Lie

A Travesty of Justice: How Ten Leaders
of the Grenada Revolution Were Convicted by One Lie
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by
Ewart Layne
3
- = i - = - A Travesns c;;“.}us:ic:z- - T
I Ewerre Layrie
. - . The entire analysis which follows is based on the case
A TrdveSty Of JuStlce' presented by the prosecation; on evidence from prosecu-
tion witnesses,
How 10 NJM Leaders

» It would be recalled that the Grenada 17 refused to rec-

-

Of The Grenada Revolution
Were Convicted By One Lie

We of the Grenada 17 and our supporters have been say-
ing for 8 years now that the legal process which we were
put through was unfair.

We want to make it abundantly clear that our complaint
is not:just about legal niceties. It is a fundamental com-
plaint, in that we are saying that the verdicts returned
against us at the trial and upheld on appeal were bad in
law. That is why we say with all the conviction we can
muster that justice according to law demands that we be
freed. This is an entirely different issue from that of po-
litical and moral responsibility for the events, including
the October 19™ tragedy which we have publicly and
unequivocally accepted. '

This article focuses on the case against the former lead-
ers of the NJM, collectively described as the NJM Cen-
tral committee. It is not motivated by any feelings of an-
ger or recrimination or any desire to hit back; we have
long passed that stage. The article is an effort to address
and lay bare a critical aspect of the legal process, the sig-
nificance of which has been buried under,a mountain of
propaganda. ¥

TLIT T
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oguise the court or participate in the trial except to make
indicative defence statements from the dock. There -was
therefore no cross-examination of the prosecution wit-
nesses por were there any witnesses for the defence. In
other words, basically only one side of the story was pre-
sented. Yet it would be established herein that even on
the basis of this one side of the story if the case was
fairly put to an impartial-jury there could have been no
convictions.

Evidence of Cletus St. Paul: It’s Importance

At the trial the prosecution relied on the evidence of
Cletus St. Paul to convict all those who were executive
members of the NJM and hence leaders of the Revolu-
tion. His was the sole evidence against the leaders. This
was made clear by the trial judge when he was explain-
ing to the jury the importance of St. Paul’s evidence.
Without his evidence there could have been no convic-
tions. Therefore, if his evidence is bad then the convic-
tions are by that very fact bad.

Cletus St. Paul was the former chief bodyguard of PM
Bishop. He was arrested on October 12" 1983, accord-
ing to him on the orders of the NJM CC. He was locked
up at Camp Fedon in Calivigny from October 12* 1983
to October 19" 1983,
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J. O. F Haynes and St. Paul’'s Evidence

-1t should be noted that at the outset of the appeal then

President of the Court of Appeal J. Q. F. Haynes made it
clear that he considered the convictions of the’ NIM
leaders suspect because to him St. Paul’s evidence

lacked credibility.

. . ¢
Justice Haynes also expressed his grave misgivings a
the fact that St. Paul had given five (5) dlfﬁ?rﬂ'lt Sta.tc-
ments: three (3) to the police; one at the preliminary 1n-
quiry; and his testimony at the trial. He could not under-
stand how the same person could give such different

statements.

On account of his concern Justice Haynes ruled that he
was going to call Cletus St. Paul before the court so that
he could question him himself.

" However, Justice Haynes died suddenly before he coulfi

qucstion St. Paul. A new Court of Appeal was consti-
tuted. The decision to call St. Paui was shelved. ’j;'he po-
lice statements of St. Paul have never been provided to

the defence. And of course, ail the convictions were up-
heid.

’ Untruth
The untruthfulness of the evidence of Cletus St. Paul is

demonstrated by the fact of its inconsistency with that
given by all other prosecution witnesses.

-~

dress the critical issue of time.

Ewart Layrne

Indeed, when the 11:00 a.m. tme for the arrival of the

“crowd at Fort Rupert, which. other witnesses gave, is

combined with the 1:15 p.m. time. for the start of the
shooting at Fort Rupert given by the Sandhurst-trained
military man, we get a 2% hours time gap between the
‘two events.

As aforementioned, the only key witness whose evi-
dence is-inconsistent was Cletus St. Paul. Although St.
Paul was very careful to avoid giving any times for any
event at the trial, something which is itself suspect; what
is clear is that his story is radically inconsistent with.a
two hour time gap -for the two critical events, namely,
the seizure of Fort Rupert and the arrival of the APC’s.

Bernard Coard and Others Arrived
at Fort Frederick - Minutes After Crowd
Seized Fort Rupert

In assessing the significance of the evidence of Cletus
St. Paul it is important to establish that only a few min-
utes elapsed. between the time theicrowd arrived at Fort
Rupert and the time that Benard Coard et al arrived at
Fort Frederick. Both tables 1 and 2 assert this but it is so
important that it shotild be examined. -

From the evidence of the prosecution Bernard Coard and
some other members of the Central Committee were at
the home of the Coard’s at the.Mt. Wheldale compound
when the demonstrators broke in.

From the Mt. Wheldale compound Fort Rupert couid be
clearly seen. This is notorious fact and. it was also at-
tested to at the trial. .

A Travesty of Justice

events took place. The final column to the right shows
the time elapse or time gap between the various events.
Table Two which follows is an expanded version of Ta-
ble One and explains the movements of Cletus St. Paul
on October 1 9%,

What emerged from the trial was a remarkable level of
consistency between witnesses at different locations
with regard to time. One witness was located at Old
Fort; another one was located at the Mental Hospital
near to Fort Frederick; another was at the Fire Station on
the Carenage; yet another was at Richmond Hill Prison.
Some wrre part of the crowd which went to Mt. Whel-
dale. And some were on Fort Rupert.

All the key witnesses on this issue except one, (Cletus
St. Paul) based on the time they gave and the activities
they described, were agreed that at least 2. hours
elapsed between the fime Fort Rupert was over taken
by the civilian crowd and the time the fragedy started
to unfoid on Fort Rupert, i.e. when the armoured Per-
sonnel carriers (APC’s) arrived up there and the
shooting started.

One witness, a Sandhurst-trained military man was lo-
cated at Old Fort overlooking St. George’s. He said that
the APC's arrived at Fort Rupert and the shooting started
at 1:15 p.m. Given that witness' background his estimate
of time is likely to be highly accurate. This 1:13 p.m. es-
timate also corresponds to the 1:39 p.m. time officially
recorded by the Fire Station Chief for the fire alarm
caused by the fire at Fort Rupert immediately following
the approximately 15 minutes shootout at the Fort when

At the end of this document are two tables which ad-

« Table One shows the time which some of the critical

the APC's arrived.

3
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The clear inference from the prosecution evidence at the
trial was that, on seeing the crowd that left Mt. Wheldale
with Bishop entering the Army HQ at Fort Ruper, the
members of the Central Committee panicked and bolted
for Fort Frederick.

Indeed, the aforementioned Sandhurst trained offi-
cer testified -that he was-monitoring the -activities at
Coard’s home from his vantage point, through a bin-
oculars: He said that as he saw the crowd entering
Fort Rupert he shifted his focus to the army head-
quarters for a short while. And that when he re-
turned focus to Coard’s home, everyome who were
there had gone. '

With the haste in which-the Central Committee members
left Coard’s home, they would have arrived at Fort Fre-
derick, five minutes drive away from Mt Wheldale,
within minutes. Indeed one witness, a ‘worker at the
mental hospital, which-adjoins Fort Frederick, said at the
trial that from there-he saw the crowd going up to Fort
Rupert and about the same time he saw cars with Ber-
nard Coard and others speed pass in front of him-and-en-
tered Fort Frederick. Bemard Coard_and others therefore
clearly arrived at Fort Frederick at approximately 11:05
a.m. while the crowd was still in the process of seizing
Fort Rupert. (At the Preliminary Inquiry St. Bernard said
that he saw the car pass about half hour after he saw the
crowd arrive at Fort Rupert. It would mean that at worst,
Coard et al would have arrived at Fort Frederick at ap-
proximately 11:30 am.)

The conclusion from :ill the above is therefore this:

there is no significant-time gap between when the ci-
vilian crowd seized Fort Rupert and when Bernard

- 8
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Coard et al entered Fort Frederick. Cletus St. Paul’s

-- evidence must be analysed with this important con-
clusion in mind.

St. Paul’s Story

St. Paul’s story is that he was standing at the entrance-of -

Fort Frederick on October 19™ 1983 when he saw Ber-
nard Coard and other members of the Central Commit-
tee arrive in a state of great urgency. That immediately
upon their arrival they huddied together for a brief mo-
ment right there at the entrance, only half dozen yards
from him. That he saw them shaking their heads and
moving their hands though he could not hear what they
were saying. That shortly after in the presence of the
others, one of the CC members, Comnwall, made a very
short statemment to soldiers who were gathered at Fort
Frederick that Bishop and others had taken over the Fort
and that they must be liquidated. That immediately after
Comwall’s statement Coard and the rest of the CC
members left for the top level of Fort Frederick. But that
Ewart Layne stayed back and spoke.to some of the army
" commanders. And shortly thereafter, ‘those commanders
together with a contingent of troops on APC’s left Fort
Frederick. And that, 10-15 minutes later; he heard shoot-
ing from Fort. Rupert.

Missing 2 Hours

On St. Paul’s version, no more that 15 to 20 minutes
would have elapsed between the seizure.of Fort Rupert
(approx. 11.00 am., on the basis of the rest of the
prosecution case) and the arrival of the APC*s {approx.

Ih.
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gether with the unit led by Conrad Mayers. He arrived
there in handcuffs, since on his own admission he was a

- prisoner at Calivigny since October 12" 1983. There are
dozens of soldiers in our community who were at Fort
Frederick or who arrived from Calivigny together with
St. Paul can verify when ke, St. Paul, arrived. They
would have been too fearful to go public. But anyone in-
terested in the truth can get that from them.

As a footnote: it would also be observed that at the Pre-
liminary Inquiry in 1984, only a few months afler the
tragic events, St. Paul says nothing. about seeing any-
thing at Fort Frederick which could pass as a Central
Committee meeting, However, at the trial 2% years after
the events he recalls seeing the Central Committes
members huddled together and shaking their heads —
the prosecution’s evidence of a Central Committee meet-
ing. This is not a minor detail because in law the mere
presence of the Central*Committee members-at Fort Fre-
derick, based on St. Paul's Preliminary Inquiry evidence,
would not have been sufficient to secure convictions
against all of them. Some form of participation in the
making of a decision had to be established. The huddie
and the shaking of heads and moving of hands is how
the prosecution decided to achieve that. It was a neat le-
gal manoeuvre which shows the presence of a legal
mind.

The Problem the Prosecution Had
The problem the prosecution faced is that they could
obtain no truthful evidence to convict the members

of the Central Committee. Yet the conviction of the
surviving leaders was so. important for those whe

11
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1.15 p.m. on the besis of the rest of the prosecution evi-
dence). Twd hours would go missing,

On St. Paul’s version, some of the people who died
on Fort Rupert could mot have died there. They

“would not have heen there because they arrived there

over ome hour after the Fort was seized. If St. Paul is
speaking the.truth then it must be that those people are
alive somewhere. They were not at Fort Rupert.

On St. Paul’s version, some of the people who said
they were in the Operattons Room at Fort Rupert

.and who-described their experience in graphic details

would be lying. They could not have been-there he-
cause they went to the Fort a long time after it was
seized. Some close to two -hours_ after- No one would
seriously suggest that these people lied. But that is
the irresistible logic of Cletus St Paul’s evidence. If
he is speaking the truth then they are lying. And if
they are speaking the truth St. Paul is lying. It is as

simple as that.

o
The Truth

Table Two below lays out the truth as to St Paul’s
whereabouts on October 19™ 1983. The truth is that
Cletus St. Paul did not see a single member of the CC.
arrive at Fort Frederick on-October 19™ 1983.

He could not have seen that because at the time the CC
members were arriving at Fort Frederick Cletus-St. Paul
would have been at Camp Fedon in Calivigny.

Cletus St. Paul arrivéd at Fort Frederick a whole 12
hours after Bernard Coard et ‘al. He arrived there fo-

— rry
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had seized Grepada that they were prepared. to
manufacture evidence to dchieve that. Because the
Grenadian people were already angered by the death
of Bishop in particular and the loss of the Revolution
.and given the job the invaders did in demonizing the
surviving leaders, they were confident that Grenadi-
ans would go aleng. So they manufactared evidence.

It is instructive that in 1983 or early 1984, in answer to
questions from the regional media as to the reason for
the delay in laying charges against the former leaders,
Sir Nicholas Braithwaite, then head of the interim gov-
ernment, told the Caribbean media that there was no evi-
dence to charge anyone. Clearly, Sir Nicholas being a
man of high Christian values must have been greatly dis-
turbed by the fact that at one time there was no evidence
but then later evidence of a highly dubious nature ap-
peared. We suspect that this doubt must have played a
role in Sir Nicholas and Mrs. Purcell taking the coura-
geous decision to commute the death sentences in 1991.

A Further Problem

In using St. Paul to manufacture the evidence -which
nearly sent the former NJM leaders to the gallows, the
prosecution had a further problem. The only other wit-
ness who gave testimony with-regard to Fort Frederick
stated that he was standing outside of the gate of Fort
Frederick when Bernard Coard, Selwyn Strachan and
others arrived in haste. He said that as they jumped out’
of their cars they shouted Forward Ever! Backward =
Never! And they immediately departed for the top level
of the Fort about 100 yards away.

12
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St. Paul therefore could not testify that the CC members
remained down in the bottom yard in front of him for
.any length of time. It had to be a brief time span so that
it could be arpued that the other wimess standing far
away missed the brief delay. The other witness had pre-
viously stated that he did not know Layne so St. Paul
could safely have him stay back to ‘Give the orders’. It
was a neat operation and that is why we are convinced,
though we cannot prove, that St. Paul did not fabncate
this on his own, but that a legal mind was behind this
manufacture. .

St. Paul’s Evidence: How It Was ‘Backed Up’

Throughout the legal process everything was done to en-
sure that St. Panl’s piece of fabrication could be effec-
tively-used:

Mentioh has already been made of the fact that his three
different police statements were never handed over to
the defence.

Mention has also been made of the shelving of the deci-
sion to call St, Paul before the court to question him.
Once Presrdcnt J. O. F. Haynes died suddenly, this deci-
sion was swept aside,

" Additionally:

At the preliminary inquiry another. prosecution - witness,
Errol George, gave evidence which gives the lie to
Cletus St. Paul’s evidence that-he was there standing at
Fort Frederick when. members of the -CC amived: The
-prosecution refused to call that witness at the trial. And
the court, despite the call of the-undefénded accused to
do s0, also refused.

Lwvarr Layre

Not just.that the self-declared unconstitutional court was
kept i place because of our case and our case alone.
[This was openly admitted in an official letter from the
then O.E.C.S. Prime Mimisters, submitted to the Appeal
Court.]

‘Not just that a prosecution lawyer was the one who se-
lected'the array from which the final panel of jurors was
drawn.

Not just the-fact that the array was selected in a highly
rregular manner.

Not just that the summoned array was hlghjy biased, and
demonstrated this by shouting at The 17 in open court,
two weeks before the first witness was called, that we
were ‘Criminals and Murderers’.

Not just that nothing was done by the judge to screen the

panel so as to neutralise or mitigate the effect of the
_massive prejudice dished out by the media against the

Seventeen for over-2%; years before the conimencement
of the tnal.

Not just that.the judge took the unprecedented step. of
metaphoncally putting a gun to the-head of the- Jury
by giving them a verdict sheet which ecach -of-them
had to-sign and return showing how they' voted on
each count. Even in general elections peaple vote.se-
cret ballots. The issue of the secrecy of the jury proc- .

ess in the Commonwealth is as fundamental to the

judicial ‘process as secret halloting is to fair elections.
The judge’s action aimounted to duress and naked
coercion of the jury. After the 2% years and millions
of dollars spent in. propaganda to peison the minds of
Grenadians, which juror would- have signed-a paper
saying that he/she voted to acquit Bernard Coard,
for example? '
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+ There is a duty officer diary which was kept at Fort

Frederick. This diary would have a record of persons

-who entered Fort Frederick on October 19" It
would show that Bernard Coard aird others-arrived
“at around 11:00 a.m. and that ¢he unit from Calivi-
gny along with a prisoner, Cletus St. Paul, arrived
‘there at 12:30 p.oo. Since this is an official document
it can be used in evidence. The Americans seized this
diary in 1983 and despite the appeals by The 17 to
have it returned to assist them-in their defence, the
Americans have refused to hand it over.

» At the trial the judge spent several days summing up
the case and giving directions to the jury. His sum-
ming up runs into hundreds of pages. Yet, over all
these days not even on one single occasion did the
judge draw to the attention of the jury the fact that
St. Paul’s evidence does not fit with that of the other
prosecutlon witnesses. There is not even 2 hint of
that. The jury would therefore have retired com-
pletely oblivious of the fact that St. Paul’s evxdence
was at odds with that of the other witnesses, and the
implication of that. This failufe by the judge, this
non-direction, is fatal to the comvictions. Any appeal
court with even a modicum of integrity would quash
the convictions on this ground alone not to mention

scores of other grounds.

Not Just Legal Niceties.

»  So when we say that the trial was unfair we are not just
speaking of legal niceties.

« Not just about the fact that nine (9) separate laws were
passed to deal with our case.

14
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~» So our, complaint about the lack of a.fair trial is not just

.» about the fact that the Appeal Court, following the death
. of I. O. F. Haynes, refused to call St. Paul to be ques-
tioned at the appeal.

» [It.isnot just about the failure of the Court of Appeal,
indeed the refusal of the court of Appeal, to hand
.over a written judgement, up to this day, in open vio- -
lation of Section 8.of the Grenada Constitution.

What we are saying is that, outside of all the above, the
convictions over our heads would have béen.impossible. In
a fair trial the verdicts would have been not guiity, In a.fair
appeal the guilty verdicts would have been quashed. That is

" what we mean when we say that justice according to law de-

mands that we be freed.

No to Constitutional Court And No To Privy Council

Moreover, those who mounted the case against us
were themselves well aware that convictions could not be
secured in an independent and impartial court. Those who
controlled power therefore decided that come what may the
case of.the.Grenada 17 would be dealt with in a special un-
constitutional court; and that there would be no appeal to the
Privy Council, Grenada’s highest court.

Thus the self-declared uncopstitutional Grenada Su-
preme Court was kept.in existence until 1991.¢ven: though .
all other sections of Grenada's constitution, were brought
back into full-effect since 1984. Once-the court of appeal of
that unconstitutional set-up- had upheld the convictions
against us, an Act of parliament to facilitate the'return of the
QECS court, the court of the Grenada constitution was
passed. Together with the return of the OECS cout, the ju-
risdiction of the Privy Council was restored to Grenada.
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. However, the very Act 19 of 1991 which brought
back the OECS court and Privy Council to Grenida ‘con-
tained a provision — 57 (4) — preventing any case finally
determined by the unconstitutional appeal court from being
taken to the Privy Council. Put in simple terms, the case of
the Grenada 17 was to go no further!

There can be absolutely no doubt that S7 (4) of Act
19 of 1991 was aimed at stopping the Grenada 17 from get-
ting an independent review of their matter. Indeed, in March.
1988 the OECS Heads in a letter signed by then-chaipman,
PM Compton of St Lucia to the government_ of Grenada,,
stated that the OECS Supreme Court, which is the court of
the Grenada constitution, would not be allowed to resume
function in- Grenada until the Maurice Bishop Murder
Trial (actually named) was disposed of . This letter was
read into the record of the appeal proceedings and arnaz-
ingly it was used as the ‘jurisprudential’ basis for the contin-
ued existence of the unconstitutional court. In other words,
the politicians of the various OECS islands were openly de-
claring that they, and not the judges of the OECS .court,
would determine if and when the court of the Grenada con-
stitution would be permitted to exercise its legal jurisdiction
in Grenada. It was one thing for the politicians to so declare;.
1t was another thing for the judges who had the power of life

and death over citizens to concede this authority to the poli- -

ticians. The question therefore of the legal validity of ‘the
unconstitutional court previously premised on the operation
of the doctfine of state necessity, was no longer to be deter-
mined by accepted principles of law. It was now to be deter-
mined by political fiat. Everything was wrong with thatt.
More naked political interference in the judicial process is
hardly imaginable! But that was not the end of the matter.

Act 19 of 1991 was due to take effect on August-"l"1
1991. Five of the 17, among then former Deputy Prime Min-

— sy ){r;;‘ i - —

Political and Moral Responsibili ty
and 16 Years Imprisonment

This is not to say that we are bitter about the 16
years imprisonment. We have accepted it among other rea-
Sons because we view it as the price we have had to pay for
being responsible in a profound sense for the disaster of Oc-
tober 19, 1983, for the demise of the Grenada Revolution,
for the pain and suffering inflicted upon many Grenadians
during the Revolution and for the pain so many have suf-
fered since. We think that the acceptance of this punishment
with dignity is the honourable thing. And that js why any
fear or concern that we would seek compensation for the 16
years or seek revenge against others is totally without basis.

Grenada would soon have to face up to a new mil-
lennium. The world has to face jt. We believe it is time to
Iook forward, From our standpoint, we think it’s time to
bring an end to our ordeal.-We Just want to get on with our
lives; to care for our children and. families. We just want to
mOoVe on.

Cletos St. Paul, We Have Forgiven You

Finally, we say to Cletus St. Paul: We have forgiven
you. Of course we were bitter and angry for years. But we
have let go of the anger and the bitterness. We know you
were committed to the Revolution. We know that you loved
Maurice immensely. We are clear that the desire for revenge
is what motivated you to do what you did. We pray that it
would be possible to.forgive yourseif for something that the
better side of you must tell you was wrong, We pray that
with the help of God you will be able to find inner peace.

.
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ister Bernard Coard, were schedule.to be hanged on July

" 30™ 1991. The date for the hangings was postponed follow-

ing an international outcry. On July 29" lawyers for the 17
filed an action to be heard by the QECS Court of Appeal. It
would have meant that under -the provisions of Act 19 of
1991, to wit $7°(3), this motion would have had to be heard
by the OECS Court of Appeal since, it wouid be pendmg in
the defunct Court of Appeal on Angust 1%, With this the 17
would -get into the.constitutional stream and be able to take

their matter to the Privy Council..

The' government reacted to this situation swiftly and
in a most dubiously lawful manner. By execntive action the
date for the return of the constitutional court was pushed
back. The uncopstitutional court was hwriedly reconverned,
The matter was beard and swiftly dismissed by this uncon-
stitntional court. And shortly thereafter the constitutional
court was allowed back into Grenada,

This determination to prevent the Grenada 17 from
having their matter heard and/or reviewed by an mdepez.xd_
ent court (in this case the Privy Council) is a clear adrmsspn
by those in power that the case cannot stand up to scrutiny.
That the only way they could achieve their ;-aohucal objec-
tive of convicting the 17 for murder was in a kangamo
court. {And, as noted earlier, this Ka.ngamo court to this
very day, is afraid of ANYONE reading its written judge-
ment and exposing, consequently, its ba.nkruptcy Thus,
eight years later — and counting —— no written judgement
has seen the light of day.]

" So once again it is clear that justice according to law
is on the side of the Grenada 17; and those who were in

power in, the post-invasion Grenada were I?ﬂly aware of
that. But politics was more important thaw justice!

A Travesry of .Fustice

TABLE 1

TABLE OF TIME SOME OF THE MAIN EVENTS
OCCURRED ON OCTOBER 19™ 1983

No. Time Event Time Elapse

Approx.  Crowds start to gather ip the streets
1. 08000900 of St. George's.

hrs
Sizeable crowd reaches the entiance
Approx. of ML Wheldale (the compound 1-2
2. 000 brs  which housed the homes of PMm hours
Bishop and Bernard Coard).
Approx.  Crowd breaks into the compound of 30
3. 1030 hrs. Mt Wheldale. Bishop leaves with minutes
them,
(@) Crowd enters Fort Rupert
Approx.  (b) Those members of the Central 30
4. 1140 hrs Committee who were at the minutes
home of Bernard Coaed depart
for Fort Frederick.
Approx.  Bermard Coard et al arrive at Fort 5
5. 1185 hrs  Frederick minutes

Approx.  Troops leave Fort Frederick for Fort 2 hours
6. 1300 hrs  Rupert

Approx.  Troops arrive at Fort Rupert. 10-15
7. 1315hrs  Shooting begins. minutes

Note the 2 hours + time pa between events #4 and 5 on_the one

20

»



Ewart Layne

TABLE 2

EXPANDED TABLE OF TIME
OF SOME OF THE MAIN EVENTS
ON OCTOBER 197 1983

Ne. Time Event Time Elapse

Approx. -Unit at Calivigny rises. Cletus St
1. 0600 hrs  Pauai is at that time a prisoner at

Calivigny.
Approx.  Crowds start to gather in the streets 2-3
2. 6800-0900 of St George’s. hours
hrs
Appros.  Sizeabie crowd reaches the entrance 1 hour

3. 1000 hrs  of Mt. Wheldale.

Approx. Crowd hreaks into the compound of 30
4. 1030 hrs Mt Wheldale. Bishop leaves with minutes
' them.
Approx. Combat alarm is sounded in y 20
5. 1050 hrs  Calivigny. minutes

(a) Crowd enters Fort Rupert
Approx. (b} Those members of the Central i0
6. 1160 hrs «  Committee who were at the minutes
home of Bernard Ceard depart
for Fart Frederick.

Approx. -Bernard Coard et al arrive at Fort 5 minutes
7. 1105 hrs  Frederick

o .

Approx.  Unit from Calivigny arrives at Fort 1'%z hours

3. 1230 hers  Frederick. C. St. Paud arrives to- .
gether with unit as a prisoner.

4 XIANAddV

About the Author

Ewart Layne was a Lt. Colonel in the People’s Revo-
lutionary Army, and Day to Day Commander of the Army at
the time of October 19, 1983. In 1996 he was awarded an
LLB (Honours) degree by London University. In August
1999 he wrote the final exam for an LLM with the same
London University and has been awarded an LLM with
merit, in Commercial and Corporate Law.

Prior to the Grenada Revolution (March 1979—
October 1983), Layne taught Economics and Mathematics
up to A Level at the St. David's R. C. Secondary School. A
record-breaking athlete in his own right, while a student at
Presentation Boys College (as well as playing Youth Cricket
at the Nattonal Level), he was also the School's Games Mas-
ter (1978) when the School's girls achieved their first ever
victory over all Secondary Schools at Intercol (athletic)
Games.

During the over 16 years Layne has been a political
prisoner at Richmond Hill Prison, he has taught Mathemat-
i,cs (at all levels, from Basic Numeracy upwards), Statistics
(at first year university level), and Law (at university level)
even while pursuing his own studies in Law and holding
down a full-time job in the Prison Industries.

By means of a special, discriminatory law passed in
July 1991, Layne, along with the other members of the Gre-
nada 17, continues to be denied access to Grenada's highest
(and only independent) court, the Privy Council; an access
wiuch all other Grenadians, in practice, have.
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Coﬁfer@me of Churches Grenada

Tess:
Chairman: Rev. Andrew Baker Knox Ho u;:@
Yice Chairman: Canen Leopold Friday . PO 7:Rr:x i
Fxecutive Secretary: Rev. Arthur Yorke St. G;;tgg‘i: ,
Treasurer: My, Robert Robinson Gren I

Telepfione: (473} 440 9766 Fax: (473} 440 2436

26th May, 2000

Fr. Mark Haymes

The Presbytery
Beaulieun R.C. Church
Beaulieu

ST. GEORGE'S

Dear Fr. Haynes,

Greetings to you in the name of Jesus Christ.

" Please find enclosed the Statement on the Truth and
Reconciliation Commission from the Conference of Churches Grenada.

Yours sincerely,
4 i &é"‘/
Andrew Baker
CHATRMAN

A Truth and ﬁeconcfliation Commission - for the h.eaiinq of the nation.

Reflections from the Conference of Churches.

The Conference of Churches recogrises the significance of the year AD 2000
and weicomes the opportunity to seize the year of jubilee as the time to heal our
wounded nation through the path of truth and recanciliation. We are ready to

cooperate with genuine attempts to walk this road, noting the need for integrity
and urgency in the process,

Having shared in discussions with the former Minister of Justice in South Africa, it
is evident that the process of disclasing truth and effecting reconciliation — from
the selection of the commission to the giving of evidence — in his wounded nation
was always very.cpen. Alt parties who were to be reconciled were involved. It
was very helpful for us-to have diract conversations with a key person from

South Africa and to understand something of the process.in which they are
involved,

It is important for us to ascertain from the outset what truth needs to be disclosed
and which parties need to be reconciled. Truth and reconciliation cannot be
spoken about in isclation from the needs of hurting men and women.. What
stands in the-way of genuine reconciliation needs to be overcome; this wil

involve the disclosure of the truth about tha involvernent of persons in the history
of Grenada. - «

The South African model cano
divisions in Grenada, We mus

public is clear about the purpo
its activities,

ffer us some guidance ‘és"wé'-‘seekio repair the
i ensure that the process is open and that tha
se of the commission and is kept informed:about

The commission should be (and be seen to be) independent of the government
and given the authority to pass judgement without government ratification. This
s important in order to establish the seriousness, with which we are embarking
On this process and to distance the rocess from the.interests of any. political

p_arty. The commission is accountable o the nation as a whole-and could report
directly to the Gavernor General. '

We welcome the cppartunity to comment on th

Commission; which were published in the media recently. One area, in-which

there seems 1o be an inconsistency, is in the question of indemnity (see article 2

of the terms of reference) and amnesty (see article 3(d) of the terms of

rgference). It is stated thaf the commission may grant indemnity to persons who
IsClose truths about the period under consideration (but this indemnity is not

Quaranteed). If persons are to be encouraged to disclose the truth, they need to
NOW what the grounds are, for which indemnity is to be granted. The

e terms of reference for the




commission can only make recommendations with respect to the granting of
amnesty. it is not clear to whom these recommendations would be made, nor
why there should be a difference between the authority to grant indemnity and
only to recommend amnesty. (n the South African process, persons were invited
to submit their disclosure through the amnesty committee of the commission:
The commission was given the authority to grant amnesty on condition that there
had-been full disclosure and that the transgression of the law had been poiitically
motivated. :Persons already in prison were given the opportunity to appear
before this amnesty commission first. This gives clear guidelines to the

commission and a message to the nation about the serious desire for truth and
reconciliationand their part in it.

The trial:and subsequent appeal’ which followed the intervention in 1983, are
also shrouded in mystety, and-confusion about their constitutionality remains in: -
the minds of the public. We are-of thé opinion that an investigation into the trial
and appeal should be included in the commission’s remit in order to make the
process complete. A truth and reconciliation commission’s task cannat, by
definition, be repeated, so that we must ensure that all aspects of the.nation's
pain are exposed to the healing process. 1
Our final concern is with the urgency of the process. It is not clear how the
process is to be propeiled forward, especially as two members. of the commission
are from outside the state of Grenada. The public needs to be kept informed s

to the practical steps which have been taken towards the establishing of a
secretariat and the time frame for the beginning of the hearing of evidence. If the -
-patioq is convinced that this is the path to healing, then let it be pursued with
integrity, zeal-and commitment. As a Cénference of Churches, we recognise that
there is much hurt and misufiderstanding in the nation and a need for

reco_nciliation between persons and between groups, This cannot be allowed to |
ﬁontlfnue to fester and so we seek to find a way forward, which willlyield genuine h
ealing. ) p

To. Prime-Minister, Dr. Keith Mitchell
Members of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission, Grenada
President of South Africa, Mr. Thabo Mbeki
Media houses in Grenada
Heads of Churches

STATEMENT TO THE TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION COMMISSION
PRESENTED BY DR. TERENCE A MARRYSHOW.
11% April 2002

Mr Chairman, __
Distinguished Members of the Commission,

It gives me great pride and honour to address you and to thank you for the opportunity to
have (his audience with you. White tremendous crticism hus been levelled at the
Commission from certain circles within the societyl, the Commission to my mind

remains relevant in seeking the truth about many eJIents that transpired in our recent past
and hopefuily, as the saying goes, once we arrive at that truth, the truth shall set us free.

Since 1983, following the collapse of the Grenada Révolution and the U, S led invasion of
Grenada, oorparty the Maurice Bishop Patriotic Movement(M.B.P.M) has been cngaged
in a struggle for the restoration of many of the programmes of.the Revolution which

-benefited the poor and working people of our country. It wauld be fair to say that over the

last 18 years we have indeed championed the cause of the poor, the oppressed and the
dispossessed in our society and have been the-conscience of the nation but our calls have.+
fallen on deaf ears. The revolution. which sought to address many of the social, political
and economtic injustices in our society hrought about by years.of colonialism and
domination, made tremendous strides in only four and a haif years. The fouhdation that it
laid giving Grenadians ownership of two commercial banks, the ¢lectricity and

telephones companies, an agroindustnial-compiex, a brand new intémational airport , a
national insurance scheme, hundreds of trained professionals , a2 new.-work ethic, a new-
found national pride and patriotism is a legacy that can never be denied and

unequivocally demonstrates that the Bishop Government was clearly committed-to

.- qualitatively changing the life of each and every Grenadian. It is for these palpable and

tangible reasons that [ remain and will remain to the end of my days a die-hard supporter

" of the Peoples Revolulionary Guvernmend led by Miurice Bishop because it was the (irst

time in our history that 1 had everseena Government so committed to social justice and
equality by striving i eliminate the prejudices and inequalities of the past in such'a short -
space of time . ‘

The events of October 1983 which culminated with the brutul assassination of Maurice
Bishop.and scveral of his cabinct collcaguss, still remain one of the'if not-the darkest
days in our entire history and this was followed by the cfiminal invasion of our country
under the guise of rescue mission; an intervention and the restoration of democracy. The
events leading up to the decision to place Prime Minister Bishop under house arrest
following his successful trip to Hungary in 1983 must be seen as one of the most critical
decisions that eventually led to an escalation of the internal crisis and ultimately his
untimely demise. Tt would be interesting to find out who gave the order and who had the
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Employec: a1 Sep-
reeam  Brothers Ccii-
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sveroge of 15.209
increase  in  wages,
which 1ock effect- last
Friday.

Megolistions between
Scereeam Brothers In.
destrial Reletions Off-
icer from Trinidad, Mr
Vemon Guendoo and
Technica) and Allied

- Workers Union (TAWU)
Freentive Secretary,
bir. Chesier Humphrey
resurned iast Thursday,
when the i arcas of
differcacc: which in:
clude  wages  were
setled.

Two weeks ago,
workers went on B [wp-
day strike w force the
company  to -rasume
negoliaticons for better
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ONE CUBAN-TRAINED

Doctor is siill ‘out in
the .cold' and has not
been absorbed in the
two-year Internship
programme laid dov. .
by the Registratiorn
Board end:  the
Government. ;
Dr. Terry Marryshow
- & 34 year old:
grndson of the late T.
Abert Marryshow -
told Grenadian
Vaice that govern-
ment, in = letter dxted
Tune 30, told- him that

"Cebinet, at jts meel
ing of 15th June,
1587,  withdrew . its

gppraval for you fo be
absorbed into the pre-
registration programme
BS an intern, becauss of
recent developments”.
Seven of the ten
doctors who returned 10
the jsland 2 year age,
cla:mmg immediate,
Tegisration are cument-
ly attached 1o the
Mim'stry of Health as

wzi nevelr caH us o a task
then abandon us
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interns, One . Dr.,
Senin Phillip - was
wwken by St Vincent
and Dr. Sonin Nixon
went to Jamaica under a
private anangcmcni.
Mamryshow said that
he was not prepared to
£o lo any othey island
os he:had been awsy
irec: Grenada for 14

years - soven in the~

United Statez of

_Amenct md seven in
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Cuba. He said he was
not in the island whan
clearonce: came for him
to be absorbed., When
he rerurned, in May. he
recporied to the Minis-

uonIuS033s puE AN 1B Jo. Jurszosap st doysig et 9AMaq am pue s1doad mo Jo

o Suryewr 03 ATO 10U SpTW STY Y 18U CORNGINUOCD SUIPUEISINo St JO SSTEaq
A rendod € usaq sey sny seak g 1o, "Hodiry reuonewaim] doysigy adUNsiA] &Y} paurey

«

-ardoad pojmm ® s urede pIemiof saoul Ann wed opdaad Ino"21033q [J 10F pue U0
dn paresjs aq éonsé_t SNO[NGLU 5593 pue pajednsaaurAradoid 2q 1snuw ponad sty 1By

MBTA INO

nay Suunouoy ux plIom S PURCTE SAEIMOO AURwT JO Suonpen o) i Juidssy oy

2q 03 podire souIeg JUIoJ. oWy 107 SuruSredures Aq dogsig 03 nonU3091 1adoxd 2A13
0) 1,qﬁnng wq A11vd Ino ‘WAl I9)TR SYIRWPURLOR)IoduT Sunury AqQ SICUIRW PUR SA0IAY

4

May b be available for
June 1. ‘When he
recamed he was told by
Medical Superintendent,

Dr. Lloyd Al‘_XIS‘ that

Doctors ~would be
switching cotations on
Tuly 1 and it would be
better for him Lo wait
vnti] then, He aceepted
this but, Jollowing a
‘trip he mate to Cuba,
he received the letter
notifying him that the

gepproval hed been
. withdrawn,

The doztor told

Grenadias Volce

that he s Sectetary of
the Maurice Bishop
Youth Movement and,
in that capacity he had
made trips ta many

Uy and was told that ig —Faris of the world. This

would be taken on from
June 1. He said ke
needed to pay a visit {o
America to maintain
his residential staqus
and he mdde the tnp in

Lot Publishing Co. Lizaited,

was not ddne secretly
but openly md he did
nol think that this
should present a
pioblem. Hs said he

has a son aged 3 years
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daughtcr aged threes ¢

who is with hia Cuban
wife in Cuba) and he
needs. to cam a hvmg
If the government is
not going to put him
in the programme he
feels he should be
. granted registration so
that he could practice
his profession.
Asked to commeni
+ on the matter, Minister
of Health Danny
Williams, “confirmed
the information sup-
plied: by Marryshow,
He said that Marryshow
was the last of the
Cuban-trained Doctors
to signify w1llmgncss
Lo parlicipate in the
pre-registration pro-
gramme bul arrange-
ments were finally
mzade for him to be
absorbed, a5 were the
other seven, _elthough
funds for them had not
been budgeted and wers
very herd 1o come-by.
Wllhtms sud thu

Streee, 32,
" fec Splce Ielavad Primters Limbted, P.0O, Boz 3, 8, Georgo's,
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when his tum argived
Marryshow was nol in
the island and could nat
be contacted. Aftey

arrangenienls  were
finally made, howaver,
it was brought 1o the
attention of the cabiner
that, during his [sst
visit to the United
States, Marryshow had
addressed meetings in
which he was extremely
critical of government.
It was Ffelt that the
hostility he displayed
towards the govermnmment
was not consistent with
the attitude of somenne
wishing 0 work wily
the seme governme.at
and who would he
subject to the rules
governing  all pubiic
officers. For rthese
teasons, the Minister
smid, the decision vogs
taken: to withdraw the
epproval for him to be

. absotbed into the s

registration pro-

gramme.
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Grenadian students in Cuba, I was elected as the Leader of the Grenadian students in
Cuba. T way therefore entrusted with the rcqun;ibiiihy of haadling mdny of the
bureaucratic problems facing the students in Cuba and also representing youth and
students at many international meetings all over the world. I had in fact become an
unofficial ambassador for youth and students from Grenada especially at'a time. when
Vouth within Grenada were unable to tfavel to represent Grenada abroad.

Following the tragic events which led to the collapse of the revolution, I wrote to the-
Chuirman of the Interim Advisory Council headed by Nichulus Brathwaile, indicating our
willingness and desire to remain in Cuba to complete our studies despite a catl for us to
return home by the Council. Prior to our graduation in 1986, I again wrdte to the Blaize
administration, informing them of our imminent return to Grenada and piedging our
services to our country and people. We asked for jobs to be provided to us as had been
guaranteed by the P.R.G who was the government responsible for sending us to Cuba.;

On our return to Grenada in 1986, all imaginable obstacles were placed it otr way. We
were told that no funds were available to absorb us into the system and we should
nrobably look for other opportunities elsewhere. This led to one of our giaduates going to
Tamaica and anéther to St. Vincent. They then said that they were going to absorb only
five and'the rest would have to look for opportunitigs elsewhere . This I found totally
unacceptahle and T-called on the government to give us licences and registration so that
those who could not be absorbed could then go intolprivate practice if they so desired.
The government refused this offer and instead demanded that we all do two more years of
internship at the general Hospital before receiving the right to practice. We had already
completed internship before returning to Grenada and no.other Grenadian graduating
from other universities were required to undergo such stringent measures. I indicated to
the goveriiment at.the.time that I will be.the last fo enter the programme since I would
have no choicg-atter some of my colleagues decided to accept their demand.

“When fdy turn came to be absorbed into the pre-registration internship programme in
June 1987, I wits given Lhe run-around-by the Minisiry of Heuith und then Onally, 1
received a letter from the government signed by the permanent secretary in the Ministry
of Ilealth Mrs Pamela Steele, informing me that decision was taken to withdraw my
‘entry into the programme.I sought clarification from the then Minister Mr Daniel
Williams our present Governor-General who failed to provide any answers. It was not
until I took my: case to the press and then the Editor of the Grenadian Voice newspaper
intcrvicwed the Minister to got the other side of the story, that he was informed about the
true reason. The reason was that I had addressed a meeting in the United States at which
I was extremely critical of government add that hostility that I displayed tawards the
government was not consistent with the attitude of Someone wishing to work with the
same government and who would be subject to the fules governing all public officers.
From September 1986 until Segtember 1990 I was denied my right to work, a '
fundamental right enshrined in the Constitution. The only crime T commiited was to
utilize my god-given right to speak and express my opinions and for that reason, my right
to work and four of the best years of my professional life were taken away from me. Over

Y

-

the years I have writteni to_successive govemmentts to address the issue of compensation
for thuse years of deprivation but these have falfen on deafl ears.

It is my hope that in'the same way the revolution as put under scrutiny and many who
elt they were wronged and viclimized by (he revolution were entitled to some level of
compensation, 1 too feel that 1 am entitled to some from of compensation for the four
years I was deprived of my right to work. I was a victim and a scapegoat, having' been
granted the distinction of being the only Grenadian graduate from Cuba who has been
singled out for such treatment. During that time, my family and in particular my wife and
children and my mother suffered tremendously as I was not able to contribute 'ﬁnam;:ially'
to their upkeep and well-being but instead depended on them, The psychological pressure
put on me during those years was overwhelming but I have survived them and have seen
many of the things that I fought for during those years now becoming a reality . Students
are not only going to Cuba again but they receive moral and financial assistance from thé
Government and on their return are all accepted with open arms as citizens who have a
role to play in the development of our country. , ‘

Mr Chairmain, distinguished Commisioners, I thank you.
[
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THe kosary Priory,
P.0.Box 1350,
St.Gearge's;

gth .April 2002

1
{440-9047
I

The Chairman,

Truth end Beconciliaticn Commission,
Scoti Street. .
_St.George's.

Dear Sir,

I herein enclose my personal impressicn of the period under the
consideration of the Cqmmis:ioh, My belief is a account of tHe EMotigy,
of these times is as significant as a record of eyénts. Our Fee}iQQSm
elation and of despair were stretched to extremes,leaving us. very

conFused. It is at this level that the pain remalns and needs to be

healead.

I would like tc think that these reflections will be of some assistane
!

to the Commission. I remain available should you should wish to

interview me.

Yours fFaithfully,

{fr.) Peter Clarke,0.F.

o
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rognal Reflections on the Pre-Aevolution and Aevolution Period

. the Truth and Reconciliation Commission, Grenada
T 2

April 2002
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«yhen Yahweh brought back Zion's capgtives we lived in i
. . . in a dr ?
+auth5 fillad with laughter and our lips with Song. (Pg.lgg?’then aur

To my-mind,thera have been two such d =1 :

sesociation with Grenada sincs 1958. ?Ezieliﬁﬁeeﬁﬁﬁgge“ﬁes during my
was seemingly in bondage and weoof given a reprieve Th; 21 the Natian
march 1378 FAeveolution and 2}the 1983 Intervention ;hen iE W?re L) tﬁalf
peceme 3 'Nightmare.' My purpose is not to give a’ recj ® Dream
histbrical'events but a description of what it waspl-kjsi_acFDunt oF
English priest of the Dominican Order ,working in Grs_-:;vt'3 'OP m?!an

chese years. : ille during

gefore the Aevolution

Eric Gairy,a charismatic with his large Following, =.de

potential and the opportunity to lead Greanda tcgééﬁmuir’had the
gfe?tnesS. Regrettably,with his self-undérstandin :? bEyEI or
divinaly appc?ntgd,his obsegsion with personsl aggand' cred
became parancid in his suspicion of ‘any criticism or ;;zgz?ziZ:

Consequently,restrictions were placed on freedom of s

smali'gruups_ Members of the Peolice Fo?de/Securig éDPEECh,bEtWEEn

3?:T;iclence against suspected dissenters. Tt wasyexp;Z?anE:d b

Himf Tﬁaies:gzo;t:;nzz Gglry,compvomi?ipg to be openly critic:l EF

ey lnere e oppressive intimidation. Throughout this
& wis an under-current of discontent and resentment.

Most significamtl i
1 Yy,soclety at avery lavel Fami
ot : . - Family,communij
ihesch,became ln;r5551qgly polarized. Unintenticn:ILy butlty,even
:Dnts§gably)church ministers of the Conference of Chu;ch
‘ : : r es
ols ;h:;eg t?dthls polarization. Such ministers,I was rone of them
i oy not be true to their callij i ‘ ’
: : alling witho i : i
lalations of ,and promnticn?gF,human Tightsg ue Eheir denouncing
Typical ’
Wioh o TW:S the comment made tc me that they were rnow be presented
cansclatia:wahurchi - Nno longer one that offersd coMfort and )
churahae on ut one thaF dabbled in politics. I would Say thst th
congrogat 8t take considerable bldame For not educdating the}r )
is intpins?ns that the promotion of social Justice and humaﬁ right
were mos ic to the authentic proclamation of the Gospel seom]
In Faoy FED:p:;edlgggr ministers of religion taking principled stand
<Y =] =1 i g [ i £ o
expedlency ne until row mdst people are inclimed toc sct From
personal advantage rather than from principle. Folitiecal
2. a

°Yalty h ronger +h r £ rot
Y 8s long been stro t 3 2 ’
! - ge harn logalty'tu the Word o God o o

The people
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! Thig leads me to suggest that throug%gut the Wwholeé of this timeithe

| churches were going through a 'Mission-Identity Crisis' - mhow to be

i suthentic in the circumstances of the moment? This i illustrated by
an exchange at a meeting of Catholic priests. One clsimed that our
wes to ensure that our traditionsel pastoral ministry should rnot be
jeopardized by controversial sermons. When he was reminded that, in
imitation oF Christ,we should bear witness to the truth and be
p;épahed to take the consequences,his response was that this wasg
theology and had nothing to do with real life! How could one blame
the laity for being bewildered and pained that theyfoufd themselvee
rejecting the church that they loveds /)

duty

However,it was the same ministers of religion who were counted as
subversive by both Erie Gairy and Mautice Bishop for their preaching
the same message of human rights. Such preachers could never be '
cﬁm#orpable with the khewledge that their sermons were tape-recorded
or raprorted toc the authorities. Nor that pecple walked' out of church
in protest at the sermons. Others prefered the less ocbtrusive approge
of conveying their concern s to the leadership of both regimes. Thay
wers criticized For their apparent lack of concern. .

+

. i C s sl
To give an impression of what it was like for a minister of religicén
( in the Gairy days I refer to two incldants that involved me: perscnally,
| .

T was officiating at the country funeral of Gairy supporter who had bag
killed in a shoot-ocut at a time when the churches were heing blamed For
kindlimg the unrest in Grenada. At the grave-side a man with = broken
pottle rushed me from the crowd. Fertunstely,Galry supporters/church
members raestrsined him. Pecople said I was lucky to come out alive. Fer
some time afterwards I knew what it was to temble with Fear.

In the late 1870s the. New Jewal Movemept was akttracting support. It
was suspected that caches of weapons 'wo secreted throughout the island
Freperties wene searched,including the residence of the Dominican
priests outside Grenville. Recently a bush had been transplanted -
leaving a mound of disturbed earth. I stood by while police armed
with rifles and sticks probed the ground. Their leader told me I
shaould not think that my white skin would save,nor that my prayers
would be heard. He would cut me down at the zaltar. Neo idle threat!

A sad note to the search of the house was the unfriendliness of the
young men with their guns -and sticks who scoured the foam of =
gentle,eldarly,priest. He had taught them religicn with the utmost
kindness and generosity. His shock that they could have shown him |
such hostility caused him ta callapsq. He 'had to be taken to«hcspita%
las a Frightened,heart-broken man. His recovery did not take lormg. Thi®
igsingle incident highlights how much a totalitarian regime could snsnef
angd pervert the minds of lts adherents.

AgsenBy 78 '
It is nmo exaggeration to assert that Assembly '78 was the most ,
signiFicant,most exciting ,event in living wemery for the Catholic Chur®
in Grenada. Im this the Church sought to evaluste its actual situatliol

*

- - ' |

-3-

gnd tO charter itﬁ path for the Fyuture. Every aspect of its ]1iFfi
giscussed by groups throughout the Nstion. e
oF General Assembly at which Resolutions we
yoted upon. The end-praduct was a Diccesan
intended. '

; waé
The climax was severa] days
re submitted,debated, and !
Fastoral Plan - 3as had been |

g the topics discussed were Family LiFe,Worship and,of hecessity,
the Just Séciety.thaF thq lccal-Ehur?h should promote and defend. It
ghould be borne in mind that this was 2t a time when dissstisfFaction
with Gaiylsm was wide-spread and the New Jewel Movement was gaining
ipopular support. Ther? wes ‘1o avert ?aliti?al militancy in these
|discussicn5 but certainly there was intensity of feelling and commitment.
yere the concerns of the Church and the New Jewel Movement coincided.
some have claimed - I believe wrongly - that the Assgembly was hijacked
by the N.J.M.

Amoh

carly in 13879 there was the sentiment that the N.J.M. and

gairy were on s collision course and it was believedthat Gairy was about
to act decisively to ensure that he prevaliled. Fear was tangible at that
time. This was the 'Nightmare' that preceded the 'Oream-like’ reprieve,

of the RBevoleotionary coup of 13th March 1979.

The Ravolution

That day it seemed like a dream. Enthusissm For what had happened was
wide-spread., As was detérmingtion that all measures should be taken to
secure what hadibeeh gained. Ranking Gairy supporters were put into
Security Detention. The Constition was -suspended. The Nastionm was to be
administered by Revolutionary Law,

the euphoria and optimism of' those early days,as well as the
vulnerability to internaticn%l opinion and reaction especially
iFrom the United States,that the Sevolltion was granted considerable
itatitude in the decisions it saw Fit to make. As the years passed s
sisge mentality became in&resssingly prdnounced. This cah be attributed
to the suspicion/amxiety of Caribbezn and other democrascies over the
fFact that the Revolution had the suppert of Marxist Cuba and Russia.
Aevoluticrnary patriotism was manipulsted te the full.

e
However,the churches,while promisihg te lend - . support to the de Facto
government,of the Revolution made it known that RYY would be vigilant in
monitoring respect for human rights. The new regifme deserved toc be given
4 chance to prove its worth. I remember & theonlogy besing nroduced that
justified the opverthrow of tyrants (i.e.Gairy}

Such was
jcense of

Many good things happened through the Rsvolutian.
Msny,especially the youth,were -giver a sense of self-wdrth and
Slgnificance to their lives. Frequent mass rallies geherdted unity and
C?-Dperation such as had not been seen befors. Agriculture prospered,as|
did initiastives im minor industries,and in =adult literacy educatian.
Many young peaple were given the cgpportunity For tertiary education in
Cubs and eisewhere. ’
i f
Eradually disillusiaorn set in,For a nuﬁbeh of reasons. Any dissent was
©*da8rded as subversion that had to be'dealt with 'heavy mannersi' Time
QTI?Etentiqn without been chearged for any offence. It was seemingly
: Pltrary. The numbers of inmates increased as accusaticns were made,
0 Dy members of one's own family or circle of Friends. Parhaps the
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? greatest casualty was the breakdown df trust and the insecurity thy

" produced. With such a small papuleation in Grenada everyone had 4 s
friend or relative in detentidn and Feared when their turn woulg con
ioin the crowd behind bhars. I submit that this Fear was delihepatelyet;
created to produce unquestioning submission.

F-a

A recurrent theme was the threat of an American invafidn to over
the Revolution with its Marxist affilistlions and its peolicy of
indoegtrinating the population in Communist theory. The FEGF—PEactiuh
was the militarization of the Nation,with even yOUnﬁsteqrcarrying “iﬂeg
LR

Thus the Hevolution established’ (tself as the sole authority
to be obeyed,the arbiter of what was right and wrong
ascerding to its thinking. On an absurd accasion the Minister of
Education advised a group of Catheolic teachers that their church
should be 'hiophilic' (loving life ess understaad by the Révolutig
not ‘'necrophilic' (loving death - f.e. opposing the Revolutian).
LY

Thus the very structures of authority - family,school,church = that
undergird society were constantly undermined. The little boy with
big gun and access to the sar of Maubice Bishop was the boss-man t
heeded. Today,we are feeling efFect bF this demise ofF respect for

! authority. ! '

rn),

ha
be

| , |
Grenadians ara besically Christian, While many subjugated this to the
Revolutionary cause there were those who were determined to hanyg on tq
their Christian ideals and practice. From the early 1970s many of all
éges found courage and solace in the prayer~meetings 'of the Charismatic
Henewal. Pilgrimages to the Shrine ogutsidas Granville regularly attracte
large crowds who sought Christian solidarity in the midst of what ‘they
:perceived to be a godless erviropment. The Dominican priests made thelr
residence in La Digue available For those who wished t0o weepen and
strengthen the Faith lest they be sucked into- the mentality of the
Revolution. In addition to these,there was an ongding residential
course For training lay leaders.

All these =mctivities were regarded with the. greatast. suspicion,but
Freedom of religion was never denied. Howkver,a provocative Editorial
caused the Catholic manthly paper,Gathalic Facus, to bhe closed down. At
a‘time when the introduction of Peaple's Courts that would decide cases
by public acclamatian was a possibility,the paper asserted that the
vaice of the people is not necessarily the voice of God. The people hat
shouted, "Crucify Him.‘Such were the risks that some priests took ib
 their public utterances. They did not win for themselves many Friends.
| S 5 |
 Becegnition must be givén ta those teachers
traditional standards of Christian morality,
that = number of them were removed Fram the clasdiroom to administrative
jobs in the Public Service. In other walks of life people displayed
personal integrity at considerable cost to themselves. At thé»very
least, they lived under the threat of being victimized znd ocstfacized.

in schoels whaftaught pupils
Such was their ifAFfluence

l.Preﬂcher E

- -

he circumstances of Grenada it was always Necessary for the

o be circumspect im what he chose to g8y ,how to say it,and
not to say- He had the responsibility of not wantonly making a bad

ation warse,while at the same time he owed it to people to proclaim

truth that would set them Free. 0ftan we discussed togethier how

d to the 'signs of the times.:

what
x5 1t

the s
best to rESPED

: THE PEAR jondTHAN ' L8TrEn,

i . preamble 1s needed to explain the conseguences of an ll-considered

‘ Thitiativg that was deeply compromising to the Oomirican priests warking
in

. Grenada. I refer to the Dear Jonathan Letter -

1ning their Provincial Superior in England. One of our Priests, teaching

bi ¢he Aegicnal Seminary in Trinidad. In his awn ‘hand he wrote a letter
2 Fr.Jonathan suggesting that priests engaged in the Marxist-Christian
‘;?EIUQUE in Europe should come to Grenada for a similar dislogue. He

" gsked ‘one oF our Grenadian students,an ardent supporter of the
Revoluticn to type the letter,

Fr.Jonathanuikgetwood

The student sent & copy of the letter to Maurice Bishop,who,in a radig
hroadcast,furiously accused the Foreign priests of planning tqg
destabilize the Revolution. We priests were totally discredited,without
a word to say in our defence. At no point had we been cohsul ted gr ;
infFarmed about the proposad initiidtive. Though no action was taken
against us,our Mission in Gremada was rendered Far more difFFicult. We
had lost the trust of the people. . |
Pes
To conclude this section,it is noted that the common View, that the
Grenada Revolution would be as enduring as that in Cuba. It came as a8
complete surprise t¢o most that the ﬁevuluticn should implode UDDh[itSelF.

The Demise of the Revolution

Who can say when the populsce began td become disaFffedted with
living in a Fortress/prisan environment of suspicion,mistrust and
personal insecurity? Probably there were two causes of the
Revolution turning upon itself - personality and ideologidal
differences between Bishop and Coard. Everyone was shocked at the
house-arrest of Bishop.. It was the youth in Grenville who staged
the First demonstration in Favour of Bishop. This was Followed by
mass-demonistration in St.Georgé's which liberated Bishop and took
to the city and to the Fart.

him

It was while I was visiting the village of Muncib in St.Andrew's that
News came through of guns being turned on people at the Fort,of some
leaping over the high walls ﬁ@ safaety,of the execution of Maurice Bishop
and some of his Cabinet colleagues. Someong remarked to me,'This ig

the end of Grenada. There is na hope fFor Grenada.’ Total f
despair . The People’s Revolution had turned against the very onhes whao
had Supported it and believed in i, Nothing remained to defend,
thhing was there to look to Forf governance. Those who Formed the
Revolutionary Military Council were demonized, loathed and Fesred)|
Maurice Bishop,the popular charismatic leader was elevated to the status
oF the hergic martyr. It was éonvenlently overlooked that BisHop was the

Srchitect of oppression. IF people were to believe in the dreams that
ﬁad inspired them they had to have someocne,Bishop,in whonthey believed
N oand were Froud to have followed. One can only understand present-day

“fenada in terms of a self-imposed denial of 'several years of nightmarist
PPressign.

3




A icou F i ; i £ all social

rhe periocdu of curfew,with the suspenslon o
ézgifiy wa:SE therapeutic to a people deeply in shack. It gave thenm 4
iespité in which they could 'eatch themselves.’ There was no OppPOrtunj.
For wildcat gestures of anger or revenge that would have produced
Further distress and instability But there was deep apprehensicpn
about what the Future would hold,with no perceived possibilities +: .4
offered hbope. Clearly,the Revolutionary Military Council would oanly
be mble to function through duress and intimidsation. It would never
inspire popular loyalty and afFectiaon.

Sor many this was a time of inten?e‘prayer - placing trust in Ged
without daring ‘to guess what he might have to offer. Grea? were the
inconveniences of not being able to Le?ve_one's h?me ta Vls%?
neighbaurs,purchaﬁe FnodstuFf,saek medical'atten?lan,ten§ animals. It
was a sobering -thought that this was the First time public acts of
Sunday worship were Forbidden throughout the land. Yet

again,a Grenadian nightmare.

Surprized jubilation greeted the newsthat armed Fo?ces had came Fa.
rescue Grehada. Frayers were being answpred. The.n}gﬁtTare was giving
way to the unfolding of & dream of glorious posslbllltl?s. Aegardless
of the high-minded protests of outside commentators ageinst an alleged
idvasion of National Sovereinty,for those wﬁc were there in Grened? this
sz Humanitarian fntervention,a Rescusa Misslcnzthat was welcomed with
gHatitude. At that time saveraeignty was a meaningless concept. Actual
survival wsas the issue of the moment.

Ta ma it is irrelevant that the motives of the Americans,as the chief

component of the Armed FCPQESJWBPE posgi?ly of selF-interest —'bringing
home their studenty at the St.George's University Schoal aof Medicine,
suppressing a Marxist regime ip its 'Caribbean bhackyard.' For

Grenadians the important thing was they were given the opportunity to
return to the rnormalecy of a Free democracy. Whatever the mistakes and
short-comings of subsequent years we must count ourselves as being
truly hlezsed.

In :unclugign,undoubtsdly there is much residusal pai? ang anger %n the
hearts of individuslssnd of speciFic graups. To my mlhd,lnsuFFiCLenF
attention has been given to the fact of this beingia Nation collectively
living with a shattered dream. Almost universally at the beginning there
were high hopes and expectations of the Revolution. In the egrly da¥5
it schieved much and promised moré. Gradually,as has been stated, this
dream was tsrnished. Eventually it was smashed to pleces. T believe thve
older generation is experiencing the pain of loss and massive .
disappointment. The younger generation,not having lived through these
diﬁFicult times,doesn't know and doesn't want to know. This als?
applies to those Grenadians who lived abroad during the Hevnlut}av.
They have nao tFeel 'For cur recent history. This paint is exam?l;Fled

by the handling of Thenksgiving Day 25th Octoher. COriginally it .,had a
specific historical theme related to the Rescue Mission. In recent
years the thanksgiving has been s$c generalized that it could bEJ
applied to any place ip the‘g ribbean of 'keyond. It wauld ?Dntr%butﬁ to
the healing of the Nation if, could be discerned why there is this
avasionh of remembrance of the past.

ST

7o: The Truth and Reconciliation Commission, Scott St., St. George's.

From: Fr. Sean Doggett, Cathedral Presbytery, St. George's
2™ November 2001

Tuesday, 25" October 1'983_, | was in the Catholic Presbytery at Grand Roy, St.
John's. At about 8.00 a.m. a lorry went south towards St. George's preceded by
a blue Diahatsu. About an hour later about six vehicles went down with local
boys from Grand Roy who were militia members. Not very long afier that afier a

biue Pajero (393) came back up to Grand Roy from the direction of St. George's.

The two men in it told people the vehicles with the militia members from Grand
Roy had been ambushed at Beau Sejours and that some of the boys had been
killed and others injured.

| celebrated Mass in Grand Roy at 6.30 a.m. on the moming of Thursday 27
After Mass-people were talking heatedly about the situation in the viliage. Some
of the militia-members had'returned home and reported that the bodies of some
of the boys killed in the ambush wére stili at Beau Sejours. | went to see two of
my parishioners, Denise McEwen whaose son Godwin (Bassio) was said to have
been killed and Veronica Baptiste whose son Michae! had not returned home.

After some discussion it was decided that | would drive to St. George's with a
group of the parents or other relatives of those who were missing. At Beau
Sejours we found four bodies badly decomposed. Two were in the sugar cane
field.opposite the radio station-and two were inside the radio station building. Two
were identified as "Papa" and "Colours” from Grand Roy. There was aiso the
body of a P.R.A. soldier from Gouyave called "Kung Fu", We did not at that time
identify the bodies in the building. Denise McEwen thought one was her son
Godwin but could not be sure. Later her daughter Pamela positively identified
one of the bodies as that of her brother Godwin.

. We continued to St. George's to fook for three boys who had still not been

accounted for. | was informed by an American officer at Queen's Park that the
Americans had not taken any prisoners and that the boys would probably be
found at the hospital. We did indeed find them there.

Michael Baptiste had been shot in the back and was paralysed.

Derek Benjamin had sustained the following injuries: gunshot to the face just

be:ow the eye; exit wound in the roof of his mouth! a broken jaw and a broken
pelvis,

Julien "Clari" (whose susname ! have forgotten) had superficial shrapnel injuries
to his hands and face.




i spoke to the officer at Queen's Park, a Col. Smith, about the need fo bury the
bodies that had been lying at Beau Sejours for two days. He said he couid not
help but assured me some units of the U.S. army would have responsibility for
such matters and would see to it that the podies would be properly taken care of.

On Sunday 30" October | went to Brizan for Mass. | wastold that the bodies had
still not been buried but that the men of Brizan would to do so that day. That
afternoon some of the men did dig ‘four shallow graves but were afraid to-touch
the bodies without some protective clothing etc.

Later that same day at the General Hospita! 1. met another officer who told me he
had responsibility for public heaith. He assured me that since graves were dug
he would see to-it that the bodies were buried. They were in fact burieg:on
Tuesday 1* November. '

I later came to understand that the bodies were subsequently exhumed and
taken to Cuba for identification. The Cuban authorities identified any bodies-that
were not wearing khaki or camoufiage as their nationals and any that were as
Grenadians. | understand that these bodies were brought back to Grenada;in
coffins and buried by Otways Funeral Undertakers at the Centre Cemetery in St.
George's. To the best of my knowledge no information was ever passed to any

of the relatives nor was any attempt made to find them.

| suggest the site of these graves be marked with the names of those deceased
who are known and a Religious Service be held for them. | further suggest that
some form of compensation be given to those who were injured and possibly to
dependant relatives of those who were killed.

This Religious Service could be part of a National Service of Remembrance for
all who wee killed in the events of 19" - 26" October 1983.

o At

Fr. Sean Doggett

Signed: ~

N k///g,,,u..../u_ 2 Oy

" Date:

MEMORANDUM
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=

MR. E.A. HEYLIGER, Q.C. LL.B

L
TO: COMMISSION - TRUTH AND
RECONCILATION

SUBJECT: INJUSTICE TO JUSTICE OF THE HIGH
COURT

In 1944 [ was practiSing my profession in Guyana and in
December of that year I was recruited in the sé’;ﬁviée of the Windward
and Leeward Islands and accepted the post of Registrar,. St. Lucia.
In 1948 1 was appointed Ma:gistrate in Grenada_.

I was later appointed as Attorney General of Grenada. In 1961
I was sent to éct Judge in St. Kitts. See letter dated 29th December
1965. 1 was never paid my subsistence allowancé.

In 1963 I applied for ten and a half montHs. leave which was
not granted due to the exigéncies- of the service. In 1964 | again

L)

applied for twelve months leavé to which 1 was entitled. Field C.J.

was very cold towards me and said I neyer he:érd of anybody going

on twelve months leave. 1 told him Jackson €:.J. went on twelve

of

i

1t 1 IRDAOIE

LAY}




Months leave and cven recently Cenac, the Crown Attorney of St. Lucia went on twelve
months leave. Field C.J. said ‘I shall recommend six months leave for you’ which was
granted by the Secretary of State.

On the day T was supposed to set sail the Government refused to pay my passage
to the united Kingdom, claiming that I was a designated officer and only was entitled to a
passage to Guyana. That was totally incorrect. IfI were a designated officer to Grenada,
as I believe I should have been, my pension from the United Kingdom would have
included all my service in Grenada. Please see unsigned draft letter dated 4™ October
1977 marked ‘X’ -

In 1967 the Windward and Leeward Islands Supreme Court was abolished and the
West Indies Associated States Supreme Court established. I was not appointed to the
new court neither was Chief Justice Field. 1 went into private practice and some years.
later the Government asked me to return to the service as'Legal Advisor and Legal
Draftsman to the Government: -

Some years later Mr, Eric Gairy (later Sir Eric Gairy Prime Minister of Grenada
showed me sofne confidential secret files at Government House. I was shocked at what [
read for the remarks were highly defamatory and without any statement of fact. The
statement was simply the opinion of the writers.

I refer now to a Report made to Sir Arthur Grattan Bellew by Chief Justice Field
headed “Confidential — Mr. Justice Heyliger”.
In that report three serious allegations were made against me —

I. 1 had an affair with a policeman’s wife and when
Accosted by him drew a gun on him;

2. When I was Attomney General in Grenada I improperly
drew $50.40 Counsef’s fee, which I had arranged with
my staff to draw the money and pay it into my
personal account;

3. I unfawfully obtained land at Old Fort by means of a
Fraud.
All these allegations were made by the Chief Justice totally unknown to me, made behind
my back in secret and each one was found to be totally false. .

Those allegations were made with the knowledge and consent of Governor Tutbott (see
attachment “A"). I submit there was a calculated conspiracy to destroy me.

I now attach a Secret and Personal Report dated 25" Qctober .
1965, written by Administrator lan Turbott to Mr. Douglas Williams
who was a very scnior officer in the Colonial Office. That Report

H
+

shows that the police could find no evidence of my affairs With a policeman’s wife and
they were now looking for evidence of my fraudulent acquisition of land. The source of
their information in this respect was an aflegation by the Chief Justice’s. Secretary and it
is clear that the Chief Justice was championing her cause.

What amazes me was that nobody ever asked the Chief Justice who had given him
that information that I had an affair with a policeman’s wife and my drawing the
Counsel’s fee of ten guineas, in the manner stated. it should be noted that no previous
Chief Justice ever raised the question of counsel’s fee with me. This had happened years
before and they must have known the position. Letter marked ‘B’ attached from
Administrator Turbott to Mr. Douglas Williams.

I respectfully submit that the conduct of Administrator Turbott and Field C.J.
shows express malice,

'I_‘,hc; su cstgggys, in this letter again accuse me of fraudulent behaviour and then
comes hx‘s pefaﬁ?&ﬂﬁpmen : “It seems to me that Mr. Heyliger maneuvered his case to get
the Administrator and Executive Council to be favourably disposed”. All 1 can say is that

his ways are not my ways nos my-thought his thoughts. The conspiracy is fully
developed.




I now come to when I was first informed of any allegations
against me by letter dated 3rd December 1965. This letter jg
attached and marked ‘C’. I made a detailed reply and hoped that
they w;)uld‘ understand what inter-colonial accounting meant. In
other words the expenditure of the court is not ’é.ttachledi to any one
island, it serves all the islz;nds. When I realized that unknown to
me my office staff in thg Attorney General’s Chambers in Grenada,
had drawn my sdlary as Attorney General and banked it to my
account my only comment was ‘God rhoves in a-mysterious way his
wonders to perform”; for when the Government owes you moncy it is
very difficult, almost impossible to get them to pay you. The Privy
Council has recently given a very learned judgment on that matter.

I claimed a set-off which is a proper and legal claim in law and
sent the Government $3,152 ..84 which was the z;mount 1 was légally
owing them. Please see attachmen{ ‘D

It is interesting to note a letter dated 4th December 1965
attached and marked Y’ from Administrator Turbott to Mr. Douglas
Williams. It seems to me Mr. Berridge, the Attorney General was

something of a sneak.

Governor Turbott replied by letter dated éSrd November 1966,
and casually says, “As-far as the item of $50.40 1s concerrnied, I have
to inform you that it is not proposed to pursue this aspect of thle
matter”. See attached marked ‘E’. I replied by letter dated 23rd
December 1966, and asked for an apology. See letter attached
marked ‘F'. He refused to apologise. I received letter dated 2nd
March 1967, in which paragraph 4 reads as follo:ws:-

“The Attorney General will be asked to institute legal
proceedings against you for r’éccivery of the sum i)f $4,202, if you do
not pay that sum to the Government of Grene;.da within 14 days of
date of this letter.”

On receipt of this letter I hdad a feeling of relief. [ felt that at
last I could -expose the qonspiraéy Iaga.inst me. My reply was short.
I replied as follows:- | |

“6th March 1967
Sir,
I acknowledge receipt of your letter of 2nd March

1967.

In the circumstances, 1 suggest that you proceed as

indicated in paragraph

i

I

oA

NAYA

)
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4 of your letter without further delay.
I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient Servant
Puisne Judge.
His Exc?llency the Governor ‘
Government House
St. George's”.
The conspirators who had strong opinions about me in gecret were
' afraid to come into the open court. [ heard nothing further from
them.
1 am prepared to appear before the Compgissi_on and give
fur*;her details and answer to any question they méy choose to ask.
On retirement 1 was paid forty thousand dollars [$40,000.60)-
by the Colonial Office for loss of carcer and got a pension of a little
over six hundred dollars ($600.00) per month from the Government
of Grenada and a little over six }zundmd poungl_s; from the United

Kingdom. However, the damage done to my character and career by

Administrator Turbott and Field C.J. was great, 1 suffered. el

"* Colonial Office.

S

Had [ known these facts | would have taken up the matter with the Colonial

In conclusion, I attach the copy of a letter dated 11 December 1963 written

= 1o my: by Sir Kenneth Roberts-Wray, Head of the Legal Department of the
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FALELo! =
No. e o . MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFA

Ref-

GOVERNMENT OF GRENADA g e FALY
‘“ﬁ; and date of this MINISTERIAL COMPLEX
N BOTANICAL GARDENS

et should be qiated,

MEMORANDUM' - - ' L. ST. GEORGE’S

y GRENADA, W1.
-7 Tel: 440-2640/2712/2255
& : SECRETARY, PRIME MINISTER'S OFFICE , - ' . Facddpalsa
FROM : - PERMANENT SECRETARY - MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS .
AND INTERNATIONAL TRADE - | The Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Trade of Grenada presents its
. compliments to the Department of State of the United States of America in Washington, D.C.
REF.NO. : FA165/01 . : o
. ] and has the honour to refer to the period following the military intervention into Grenada by
DATE : MAY 14, 2002 forces of the United States of America and Caribbean countries on October 25, 1983,
SUBJECT : REQUESTFORRETURN OF CONFISCATED DOC:HMENTS - The Ministry has the further honour to réfer'to the extensive collection 6f Grenadian
E documhents that were removed from Grenada during the said period by officials of the
' ‘ : Government of the United States of America, and to request, on behalf of the Government of
Your memorandum of May 03, 2002 regarding the stated subject refers. Grenada, that the Deparuneng of State arrange for the entire collection of material to be
Please find attached a copy of Note No. 373 / 02 which was forwarded to the U.S. ‘ returned to the éustody of the Gavernnient of Grenada at the earliest possible convenience. The
Department of State, through the Embassy of the U.5.A. in St. George's, requesting the Ministry has no déubt that the Department of State would appreciate that the documents
retumn of the documents. . . 1
constitute a very valuable national asset which remains the property of Grenada. i

Also forwarded, herewith, is a copy of the covering note sent to the U.S. Embassy, as
well as, the memorandum to our Washington, D.C. Mission regarding the subject. - In this context, therefore, the Government of Grenada looks forward to the kind

cocperation of the Department of State in communicating the former’s request to the

Governmept_of the United States of America.

"

i 008 N B s TheMinistrychoreignAffairsandIntemationalTradeofGrenadaavailsitselfofthis
:7 Joseph Charte - _ opportunity to renew to the Department of State of the United States of America in
PERMANENT SECRETARY | Washington, D.C. the assurances of its highest consideration.

AR/ah
St. Gearge’s, May 06, 2602
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for workers

Employees a1 Sep-
recam Brathers Ce-
struction  Compagy
have recaived  4p
uversge of 15:20%
incrense in wages,
which lock effect fast
Friday.

Megotistions between
Secreeam Brothers In-
dusirial Reletions Off-
icer from Trinidad, Mr
Vemon Guendoo and
Tuchnical end Allied
Workers Unien (TAWL)
Fxecutive Secretary,
Mr. Chesier Humphrey
resurned fast Thursday,

whenr the main areas of
differcnze; whish. in-
elude  wapes  were
settled.

Two  weeks  ago,

workers went on u two-
day smike w force the
company to "Tesume
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ONE CUBAN TRAINED

Doctor is siilf ‘out in
the cold’ and has not
been sbsorbed in the
two-year Internship
PTCRTAmMme faid dov. |

by the Resistratios,
Board  snd  the
Government.

Dr. Terry Mm-yshow '.

- & 34 yanr old
gr3ndson of the late T.
fdbert Marryshow -
told Grenadian
Volce that govern-
ment, in a letter dated
June 30,"told him that
"Cabinet, at its ‘meer-
ing of 15th June,
1587, withdrew . iIs
‘2pproval for you to be
-2bsorbed into the pre-
registration programme
85 an jnlemn, becanse of
Tecent dmlapmmts“.
. Seven of the ten
doctors who rerurned 1o.
the island s year ago,
cla:mmg immediate,
regismration are current—
ly attached to the
Ministry of Health as

R T

d sz eer! us t a task,
then abandon us
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interns, One - Dr,
Sonia FPhillip - was
tzken by S$t. VYincent
ard Dr. Sonia Nixon
went to Jamsica under a
privaie arrangement
Marryshow said that
he was not prepared to
go to any other island
as he vhad been away
fresn Greneds for 14
years - soven i the-
United States of

-.Amcricg_ llnd seven in’
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Cuba, He said: he was
not ‘in the island when
tlearance came for him
tn be absorbed. When
ke tetumned, in May, he
Iepotied to the Minis-
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Marryshow teft in

May 10 be available for
June 1. When he
retumned he was told by
Medical Superintendent,
Dr. Lloyd Alexis, that

Doctors  would be
switching totations on
July 1 and it wonld be
benter for him to wait
vntil then. He accepted
this but, following a
tnp he mede 1o Cuba,
he received the letrer
nqtifying him ihat the

‘approval had been
C'withdrawn.

The doztor told
‘Grenadlag Volce

that he is Secrelary of
the Maurice Bishop
Youth Movement and,
n that capacity he had
made Irips 1o many

by and wes bold that e ™ pants of the world. This

would be taken on from
June 1. He said he
needed 1o pay a visit o
America {6 maintein
his residentisl status
and he made- Lhc lnp m

byTan T Publiaking Co. Lizalted,
foe Spice Iland Printers Lismtted, 1.0, Box 3, % Goorge
[

\Laooon KOdU DL Nt

was not ddne secretly
but openly mmd he did
not think that ihis
should presemt a
problem. Hé sajd he
has a son aged 13 years

{in, Amenc) and a

daughtcr aged three ¢
who is with his Cuban
wife in Cubt.) and he
needs to eam a hvmg
If the government is
not going to put him
in the programme he
feels he should be
granted registration so
that he could practice
his profession.

Asked to comment
on the mattér, Minister
of Health Danny
Williams, confirmed
the information sup-
ptied by Marryshow.
He szid that Marryshow
was the last of the
Cuban-trained Doctors
to. signify willingness
to participste in the
pre-regisiration  pro-
gramme but arrange-
ments were finally
mede for him to be
shsorbed, as were the
other seven, nllhough
funds_for them had not
been budgetcd and were
very hard to come by,
Wlllllm.l said that
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when his tum arrived
Marryshow was not in
the island and could not
be contacted. After

ATTANEEements were
finally made, however,
it was brought to the
attention of the cabinet
that, during his lzs
visit to the United
States, Marryshow had
addressed meetings in
which he war extremely
critical of government
It was felt that the
hostility he displayed
towards the government
was not censistent with
the atfitude of someone
wishing o work wils
the same governme.u
and whe would be
subject to the rules
govcrnmg_ all public
officers. For these
reasons, the Minister
said, -the decision was
taken o withdraw the
spproval for him to be

; absotbed into the pia-
“regiztration
gigmie,
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Grenadian students in Cuba, I was elected as the Leader of the Grenadian students in
Cuba. T was therefore entrusted with the responsibillty of handling many of the
bureaucratic problems facing the studeats in Cuba and also representing youth and
stidents at many international meetings all over the world. T had in fact become an
unofficial ambassador for youth and students from Greneda especially at a time when
Youth within-Grenada were unable to travel to represent Grénada abroad.

Following the tragic events which led to the collapse of the revolution, [ wrote to the

. Chairmai of the Interim Advisory Council headed by Nicholas Brathwaile, indicating our
willingness and desire to remain in Cuba to compiete our studies despite a call for us to
return home by the.Council. Prior to.our graduation in 1986, I again wrote to the Blaize
administration, informing them of our imminent retum to Grenada and pledging our
services to our country and people. We asked for jobs to be provided to us as'had heen
guarintecd by the P.R.G who was the government respunsible for sending us to Cuba.

On our return to Grenada in 1986, all imaginable obstacles were placed in our way. We
were told that no funds were available to absorb us into the system and we should
probably look for other opportunities elséwhere. This led to-orie of our graduates going to
Jamaica and another to St. Vincent. They then said that they were going to absorb osly
five and the rést would have to look for opportunities elsewhere . This I found totelly
unacceptable and [-called on the govemment to give us licences and registration so that
those who could not be absorbed could then go intolprivate practice if they so desired.
The government refused this offer and instead demanded that we all do two more years of
internship at the general Hospital before recejving the right to practice. We had already
completed internship before retuming to Grenada-and no other Grenadian graduating
from other universities were required to undergo such stringent measures. I indicated to
the government at the time that I will be the last to enter the programme since I would -
have no choice dfter some of my colleagues decided to accept their demand.

When my turn came to be absorbed into the pre-registration internship programme in
June 1987, T was giver e runzaround by e Ministry of Health and then finally, I
received a letter from the government signed by the permanent secretary in the Ministry
of Tlealth ,Mrs Pamela Steele, informing me that decision was taken to withdraw my
‘entry into the programme.I sought clarification from the then Minister Mr Daniel
Williams our present Governor-General who failed to provide any answers. It was not
until [ took my case to the press and then the Editor of the Grenadian Voice newspaper
intcrvicwed the Minister to get the-other side of thie story, that he was informed about the
true reason. The reason was that [ had addressed a meeting in the United States at which
I was extremely critical of government and that bostility that I displayed towards the
govemment was 1ot consistent with the attitude of someone wishing to work with the
same government and who would be subject to the gules governing all public officers.
From September 1986-until September 1990 I was denied my right to work, a
fundamental right enshrined in the Constitution. The only ¢rime T committed was to
utilize my god-given right to speak and express my opinions and for that reason, my right
to work and four of the best years of my professional life were taken away from me. Over

. [ . .
the years  have written to successivé governments to address the issue of compensation
for thost years of deprivation but these have [allen on deuf cars.

Tt is my hope that in the same way the revolution as put under sc_:mtin}r and many who
(elt they were wionged and viclimized by the revolution were entitled o some level of
compensation, 1 too feel that 1 am entitled to some from of compensation for the four
years | was deprived of my right to work, Twasa victim and a scapegoat, having been
granted the distinction of being the only Grenadian gradu?te from Cuba. who has been
singled out for such treatment. During that time, my family and 1o pamcn_zlar my wife and
children and my mother suffered tremendously as I was not able to contribute financially
to their upkeep and well-being but instead depended on them. Tl}c psychological pressurc
put on me during those years was overwhelming but I have survived them and have seen
many of the things that I fought for during those years now becoming a re?lliy . Students
are not only goirig to Cuba again but they reccive moral and ﬂn,anma} assistance from the
Government and on their return are all accepted with open arms as citizens who have a
role to play in the development of our country.

Mr Chairmain, distinguished Commisioners, T thank you.
!
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pargaonal AReflections on_ the Pre-Revoluticon and Revolution Period
peracns.

L For the Truth and Reconciliation Commission,Grenada April. 2002
i ¥ ‘i e . By ,
) The Aosary Priary,
‘440-9047 P.0.Box 1950, Fram Fr.Peter Clarke,0.F. Phone 440-9047
' St.Geocrge's;
ath April 2002 :
) » t L

4hern Yahweh braought back Zion's captives we lived in a dream,then

our
houths Filled with laughter and our lips with song. (Ps.125).
! .

The Chalirman, . . .
Truth and Aecpnciliation Commission, ‘
Secott Street. - .

St .George's.

To :my mind,there have been two such dream-like experiences during my
assaciation with Grenada since 13958. Thes& were times when the Nation
_ was seemingly in bondage and wrowf given a reprieve. These were 1) the
March 1973 Revolution and 2)the 1983 Intervention,when the ‘'Oream’ J%¢l*

Dear Sir,

becgme a 'Nightmare.' My purpose is not to give a precise account of
. ton of the period under the historical events but = description ofF whet it was like For me,an .

v, 1 B m persmnal 1mPP5551° : h emoti ! . -, .y . . . !
I herein enclos y = igsian, My pelief is a account of the &m onsg English priest aof the Dominican Order ,working in Grenville during
consideration of the C?m:;iican; as & record of events. Our fFeelings of these years.

imes is s s1g - i us ver s
of tﬁase it d ‘mir were stretched to extremes,leaving us Yb ]
elation and aof desp ; 1 1 that the pain remains and needs to. De BeFora the Revaolution
; i eve : '
conrfused. It is at this :
healed. ) Eric Galry,a charismatic with his large follawing, =<der,had the
d like to think that these reflections will be of some asslstance  poyepntial and the opportunity toc lead Greanda to some Jevel of

I woul ke

le should you should wish to i greatness. Regrettably,with his self-understanding of being
divinely appuointed,bis abse¢sion with personal agrandisement,he
bacame parancld irn his suspicion of &ny criticism or opposition.

+n the Commission. I remain availab
"{interview me.

Yours fFaithfully, Consequently,restrictions were placed on freedom of speech between

. i small groups. Members of the PFolice FcTce/Secgrity Forces used
¢:::2$:z:z},/15;?§§Z£-ﬂ-‘fﬂ£j © gun-violence agalnst suspected dissenters. It was expedient to be
. visibly a suppeorter oF Galry,compromising to. be apenly critical of
(Fr.) Peter clarke,0.P. I Him, There was a sense ofF oppressive imtimidation. Throughout this
periecd there was an under-current of discontent and resentment.

Most significantly,scciety at every level - family,community,even
church,became increasingly polarized. Unintentionally,but
inescapably,church ministers of the ConFerence of Churches
tontributed to this polarization. Such ministers,I was ome of them,
Felt they could not be true to their calling without their
violations of ,and premation, OF ,human rights.

denouncing

Typical was the comment made tc me that they were now be presented

With & ' mew Church' - no longer oné that dFFered comfort and
Consolation but one that dabbled in politics. 'T would say that the
Cthurches must take considerabkle blame for not educating theic
Congregations that the promotion of social justice and human rights

s intrinsic to the authentic proclamation of the Gospel. The people
“ere, npt prepared for ministers &f religion taking principled stands.
In Fact,From the 1970s until now most people are inclined to sct Ffrom
®Xpediency and personal advantagé rather tham from principle. Political

Syalty has long been stronger than loyalty to the Word afF God or tol
® voice of a church. !
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This leads me to suggest that thruug&out the whale ofF thig time:the
churches were going through a 'Miss}bn—Identity Crisis’' - how to pg
suthentic in the circumstances of the moment? This is illustrated:by
an exchange at a meeting of Catholie priests. One claimed that our gy,
was toc ensure that cur traditional pasteoral ministry should not be ty
jeapardized by controversial sermons. When he was reminded that, in
jmitation. of Christ,we should bear witness to the truth and Ge
prepared toc take the consequencas,his response was that this wasg
theology and had nothing to do with real l1ife! How could one blame
the laity for being bewilder=d and pained that thichund themselveg
rejecting thg church- that they loveds ’

However ,it was the same ministers of religion who were counted as
subversive by both Erie Gairy and Maurice Bishop For their preaching
the same message of human rights. Such preachers could never be
comfortable with the knowledge that their sermons were tape-recordeg
or reprorted to the authorities. Nor that pecple walked out af church.
in protest at the sermons. Others prefered the less obtrusive approag
of conveying their concern s to the leadership of both regimes. They
waere criticlzed Foaor their apparent lack of concern.

was like for a minister of religién

To give =an impression of what it
inc%dents that involved me personally.

in the Gairy days I refer to two

I was officiating at the country Funeral of Gairy supporter who had bee
killed in a shoot-out at a time when the churches were being blamed for
kindling the unrest in Gremada. At the grave-side a man with a broken
bEottle rushed me Frem the crowd. Fortunately,Bairy supporters/church

members restraih&d himM. People said I was lucky to come out alive. For

some time afterwards I knew what it was to temble with Fear.

In the late 12870s the New Jewel Movemeht was attracting support. It
was suspected that caches of weapons "wo secreted throughout the island.
Properties were searched,including the residence of the Doeminican
priests cutside Grenville. Aecently a bush had been transplanted -
leaving a mound of disturbed &arth. I stocd by while pclice armed
with rifles and sticks prabed the ground. Their leader tald e I
should not think that my white skin would save,nor that my prayers
would be heard. He would cut me down at the altar. No idle threat!

A sad note to the search of the bouse was the unfriendliness of the
young men with their guns and sticks who scoured the room of a
gentle,elderly,priest. He had taught them religion with the utmost
kindhess angd genergsity. His shock that they could have shown him
such hostility caused him to collapsa. He 'had to be taken to haspital
as a frightened,heart-broken man. His recovery did not take long. This
single incident highlights how much a totalitarian regime could ensnar?
and pervert the minds qF its sdherents. :
- - AoseRLy 74 .
It is no exaggeration to assert that Assembly '78 was the most
signiFicant,mdst exciting ,event im living memory For the Catholic- Churd
in Grenada. In this the Church sought te evaluate its actual situstion

A

L,

~3-

g ©0 charter‘it? pE?h Fof the Futurej Every aspect of its IiFe'-waé
discussgd by_groupg ;hrnqghnut the N?tlnn. The climax was several days
of Gengpay Assembly at which Hesolu?lnns were submitted,debated,and J-
soted upoOT. The end-product was a Diocesan Pastaral Plan - as ‘had been
intgnded -

the toplcs discussed were Family Lifé,Worship and,of necessity,
among Society that the lacal Church should promote and defend. It
Lhe Jusze barne jin mind that thiig wa% at a time when dissatisfmection
sheuld © ism was wide-spread and the New .Jewel Movement was gaining
Ewith GEEYU bnrtr There was no overt political militancy 1in these
1pUPUlaF15nz put certainly there was iptensity of Feeling and commitment.
1discuss Dcon:erns ofF the Church and the New Jewel Movement coincided.
:er: ﬁgie‘claiméd - I belisve wrongly - that the Assembly was hi jacked
om !

by the N..J.M,

79 there was the sentiment that the N.J.M. and

on & collision course and it was believedthat Gairy -was about
that he prevailed. Fear was tangible at that
that preceded the 'Dream-like’ reprieve,

garly im 18
Gairy were
ta =zot decisively to ensure

time. This was ‘the "Nightmare'
of the Revolotionary coup of 13¢h March 1979.

“The Aevaolution

That day it seemed like a dream. Enthusiasm for what had happened was

a5 a s - t
wide-spread. As was determlnatxcn.that §ll measures should be t?k:n o
segure what had been gained. Rankimg Gairy supporters wer? put inta
Security BDetention. The Constition was suspended. The Nation was to be

administered by Revolutionary Law.

the euphoria and optimism of' those early days,as.well as th?
vulperability to internaticn%l opinion and reaction especially
United Statas,that the Revolution was granted ccns;éerbble
llatijtude in the decisions it saw Fit to make. As thé years passed a

siege mentality became ineresasingly pronounced. This cav he attributed
to the suspicion/anxiety of Caribbean and other ?emccraCLEs over ?he

fact that the Revolution had the suppor? of Marxist Cuba and Russia.
Hevolutibnary patrioctism was manipulated ta the full.

fRest”
‘support to the de facto

Such was
sense of
From the

However , the churches,while promising to lend - . he .
QDVErnmént of the Beveolution made it known that fhey would be Vlgllan; in

’ r I LA
monitoring respect for human rights. The new regife deserved to be given
a chance to praove its worth. I remembér a theology being produced that

justified the pverthrow of tyrants (i.e.06airy)

Man i c happened through the Revolution. o

Maﬁz,g:ggczgiqs thepgduth,wera given a sense aFtselF—wnrth Sﬁd v and
significance to their lives. Frequent msss rall:eS_generate unity
to-gperation such as had not been seen before. Agr%culture prnspérad,asf
did initiatives in minar industries,and in adult 11tetacy educg?%gﬁ_r
Many young people were given the opportunity for tertianry education in

Cuba and slsewhere. . ]
|

n,for a nuhber of reasons. Any dissent was
i 3 T 1t T 3
i ! avy manners. ime
T3garded as subversion that had to be'dealt with h; ¥ AN i
i detention without been charged Far any offence. It was seemingly
8 bitrary. The numbers of inmates increased as accusatlons were made ,
€ 2n by members of one's awn Family or circle of friends. Perhaps the

Gradually disillusion set i
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;T che cirgumstances of Grenada 1t wes always necessary for the |
In be circumspect in what he chose to say,how to say it,and

{ . . . . 0

! greatest casualty was the breakdown af trust and the insecurit ; reachel’ P s ]

' produced. With such a small populatidn in Grenada everyone Héz ;hls zhat not to Ss8Y- :leaztt::er::E:ni;zll;ty of n?t wantonly making a béd
Friend or relative in detention and feared when their turn wauld ggge sjtuation wDriE;guld o thom Proe -Gitai Ewei-lt to.gecple ;o p;gclalm
join the crowd behind Bsrs. I submit that this fear was delibepately 3 the rruth tha oh c . té! be ? iscusse together A%
created to produce ungquestioning submission. . best tO respond to e '=ighs o times.

Py THE Peak, JonATHBM ! LETIER

' This preamble is needed yp-explain'tﬁe consgqqanca?_?F.an ili-considered
initistive that was deeply compromising to the Dominican priests working
i Gremads. 1 refer to the Dear Jonathan Letter - Fr.Jnnathanugkgetwnod
being their Provincial Superior in England. One of our priests,teaching
at the Regional Seminmary in Trinidad. In his own hand he wrote & letter
o Fr.Jnnathap-suggesting that priests engaged in the Marxist-Christian
-gimlegue in glirope rshould come to Grenada for a similar dialogue. He

' asked ome of our Grenadian studesnts,an ardent supporter of the
nevolution to type the letter.

A recurrent theme was the threat of an American invadion to overthprpy
+he Revolution with its Marxist affiliations and. its pelicy of
indostrinmaeting the population in Communist theary. The Fear-reaction
was Fhe;militarizaticn of the Natlon,with even youngsterg carrying FiFleg

Thus the Revolution established jtsalf as the scole authority

to be cbeyad1the arbiter of what was right and wrong

ascecording to its thinking. On an absurd ocecasion the Minister of

Education advised a group of Cathollic teachers that thelir church

shou%d he 'bfa?hfllc' €1091ﬂ9 11FE_35 UﬁdEPS?OOd by the Hev?l”tlon}’ The student sent s copy of the letter to Maurice Bishop,who,in a radio
. not 'necrophilic' (loving death - i.e. oppaosing the Revolutiom]. P Lrpadeast, Furiously accused the foreign priests of planning to
destabilize the Revalutién. We priests were totally discredited,without
a word to ssy i our defence. At ng point had we been consulted or '
informed about the proposed initiative. Though no action was taken
ageinst us,our Mission in Grenada was rendered far more difficult. We
had lost the trust of the people. : i

L)t

To conclude this section,it is noted that the common view, that the
Grenada Aeveolution would be ass enduring as that in Cuba. It came as a
complete surprise to most that the ﬁevolution should implode upon ‘itself.

Thus the very structures of authority - Fami l'y ,schocl,church -~ thet
undérgird socigty were constantly undermined. The little boy with the
big gun and access to the edsr of Meubice Bishop was the boss-man o be
heeded. Today,we are Feeling effect bF this demise of respect for
authority. ’ '

Grenadians are pasically Christian, While :many subjugated this to the
Revolutianary cause there were those who were determined to hanyg on to
their Christian idesls and practice. From the early 1970s many af all

ages Fcund.cou?aga and solacs i? the pr?yernmeat§ngs\oF the CharismatM_ The Demise of thé:Hevnlution : N
Renaewal. Filgrimages to the Shrine outside Grenville regularly attracte s —

large crowds who sought Christian solidarity in the midst of what they
perceived to be a godless environment. The Dominican priests made their
residence in La Digue available For those who wished to deespen and
strengthen the Faith lest they be ssucked into the mentality of the

Who can say when the populace began to become disaffected with
living in s fortress/prison environment of suspicion,mistrust and
personal insecurity? Frobably there were two csuses of the

. .. . . ) Ravolution turning upon itself - personality amd ideologicsl

Revolution. In addition to these,there was an ongoing residenti=l differences betwegn gishcp and Cogrd Everyine was shocged at the
r =12 ini lead . '

course for training l=my leaders house-arrest of Bishop.. It was the youth in Grenville who staged

tha First demomstration in Favour of Bishep. This was Followaed by =&
mass-demonstration in St.Gegergk's. which. liberated Bishop and took him
to the city and to the Fort.

All these activities were regarded with the greatest guspicion,but
Freedom of religiem was never denied. However,a provocative Editori=al
caused the Catholic monthly paper,Catholic Focus,to be closed down. At|
a-time when the introduction of Peaple's Courts that would decide c¢ases Tt w hil et he vill F M {h in St.And te tha

by public acclamatiorm was 2. possibility,the paper asserted that ths ! newgas whi : I was :151 153 the v age.c “nT1 1n+Ht'Fn rew” s st
voice of the people is not necessarily the voice of God. The people ha log _came through oF guns being turned on people at the ort,aof some
shouted, "Crucify Him. Such were the risks that some priests took im ping over the high walls to safety,of the execution of Maurice Bishop

s - and some of his Cabimet colleasgues. Semecona remarked to me, "This is
thelr public utt=rances. ; ; iends- = It ;
- Dg . They did no? win for themselves many frlen the end oF Grenadz. There‘®is -na hope For Grenade.’' Total !

despair . The People's Revolution had turned against the very ones who
had supported it and believed in it, Nothing remained to defend.
thhing was there to look to For governance. Those who formed the
Aevolutionary Military Coumcil werd demonized,loathed and Fearad.»
Maurice Bishop,the popular charismatic leader was elevated to the status
oF the herpic martyr. It was conveniently overlooked that BisHop was the

-

i

Becognition must-be given to those teachers in schools who taught pUP”E
traditional standards of Christian morality. Such was ‘their influence
that a number of them were removed From the classrcom to administrative
jobs in the Public Service. In othar walks aof life people displayed
perschal integrity at considerablie cost to themselves. At the very
least,they lived wunder the threat of being victimized and ogtracized-

architect of oppression. IF people were to believe in the dreams that
had inspired them they h=d to have somsone,Bishop,in whonthey believed
ih and were proudd to have followed. COne can only understand present-day
“renada in terms of o selfF-imposed denial of several ygars of nightmarist
“Ppression.




'Aerhaps che ﬁerfbdv oF cupﬁgw,with the suspension of all .saeial
dotivity wa® therapeutic to a people deeply in shock. It gave thenm a
respite in which they could ‘catch themselves.' There w8s no op

' POPTunie
far wildcat gestures of anger or revenge that would heve araduced d
fFurther distress and instability But there was deep apprehension

ghout what the Future wouldg hold,with. no pgrceivéd_passibilities *:
offered hope. Clearly,the Revolutionary Military Council would only
be able to Funetion through duress and intimidation. It would Never
ingpire popular loyalty and afFection.

it

For many this waes a8 time of intense prayer - plac{ng trust inm God

without daring to guess what hé might have to offFer. Great were the
inconvaeniences of not being ahle ta leave one's ‘home to visit
neighbours,purchase fFoodstuffF,seek medical attenticn, tend animals. It

was a sobering thought that this was the First time public scts of

Sunday worship were farbidden throughout the land. Yet

again,a Grenadian nightmare. =}

Surprised jubilation greeted the newsthat armed fForces had come to
rescue Grenada. Prayers were being answered. The nightmare was giving
way to the unfolding of a dream of gloricdus possibilities. ARegardlesg
of the high-minded protests of outside ktommentators agesinst an alileged
ijvasian-oF National Sovereinty,far thnEe who were there in Brenada this
wds Humenitariarn Interventicn,s Rescue Mission)that wes welcomed with
gratitude. At that time savereignty wes a meaningless cancept. Actual
survival was the issue of the mament.

To me it is irrelevant that the motives of the Americans,as the chisf

component af the Armed Forces, were possibly of self-interest - bringing
home their students at the St.George's University School of Medicine,
suppressing a Marxist regime in its 'Caribbean backyard.' For

Granadians the impartant"thing was they were given the cpportunity to
return to the normaley of a Free democracy. Whatever the mistakes and
short-comings of subsequent years we must Count ocurselves as being

truly blessed.

In conclusion,undoubtedly there is much residual pain and anger in the
hearts of individualt and of specifFic groups. To my mind,insuffFicient ,
attention has been given to the fact of this being a Natioca éollectively |
living with a shattered dream. Almost universally at the beginﬁ&ng there
were high hopes and expectations of the Revolution. In the early days }
it achieved mueh and promised mbre.—Gradually,as has been stated, this '
dream was tarnished. Eventually it was smashed to pieces. I believe the
older generation is experiencing the pain of loss and massive X
disappointment. The yoaunger generation,nct having lived through these
diiFicult times,doesn't know and doesn't want to know. This alsa

applies to those Grenadians who 1jived abroad during the BEVQthion. ‘
They have no 'Feel'for our recent history. This point is exemplified

By the handling of Thanksgiving Day 2S5th October. Griginally it _had a
specific historical ‘theme related to the Aescus Missien. In recent

years the thanksgiving has been so generalized that it could be

applied to any place in the Caribbean of beyornd. It would contribute to
the healing ofF the Natign iF;could be discerned why there is this

evasion of remembrance ofF the past.

A

To:  The Truth and Reconciliation Commission, Scott St., St. George's.

From: Fr. Sean Doggett, Cathedral Presbytery, St. George's
2" November 2001

Tuesday, 25" October 1983, | was in the Catholic Presbytery at Grand Roy, St.
John's. Atabout 8.00 a.m. a lorry went south towards St. George's preceded by
a blue Diahatsu. About an hour later about six vehicles went down with local
boys from Grand Roy who were militia members. Not very long after that after a
blue Pajero (393} came back up to Grand Roy from the.direction of St. George's.
The two men in it told people the vehicles with the militia members from Grand
Roy had been ambushed at Beau Sejours and that some of the boys had been.
killed and others injured. :

| celebrated Mass in Grand Roy at 6.30 a.m. on the morming of Thursday 27%.
After Mass people were talking heatedly about the situation in the village. Some
of the militia members had returned home and reported that the bodies of some
of the boys kilted in the ambush were stiil at Beau Sejours. | went to see two of
my parishioners, Denise McEwen whose son Godwin (Bossio} was said to have
been killed-and Veronica-Baptiste whose sor Michae! had not retumed home.

After some discussion it was decided that } would drive to St. George's with a
group of the parents or other relatives of those who were missing. At Beau
Sejours we found- four bodies badly decomposed. Two were in the sugar cane
field. opposite the radio station and.two wére inside the radio station building. Two
were {dentified as "Papa” and "Colours” from Grand Roy. There was aiso the
body of a P.R.A. soldier from Gouyave called "Kung Fu". We did not at that time
identify the bodies in the building. Denise McEwen thought one was her son.
Godwin but could not be sure. Later her daughter, Pamela positively identified
one of the bodies as that of her brother Godwin.

. We continued to St. George's to look for three boys who had still not been

accounted for. | was informed by an American officer at Queen's Park that the
Americans had not taken any prisoners and that the boys would probably be
found at the hospital. We did indeed find them there.

Michael Baptiste had been shot in the back and was paralysed:
Derek Benjamin had sustained the following injuries: gunshot to the face just
below the eye; exit wound in the roof of his mouth: a broken jaw and a-broken

pelvis.

Julien “Clari" (whose sumame | have forgotten) had superficial shrapnel injuries
to his hands and face.




" Date:

| spoke to the officer at Queen's Park, a Col. Smith, about the need to bury the
bodies that had been lying at Beau Sejours for two days. He said he could not
help but assured me some units of the U.S. army would have responsihility for
such matters and would see to it that the bodies would be properly taken care of.

On Sunday 30" October | went to Brizan for. Mass. | was told that the bodies had
still not been buried but that the men of Brizan would to do so that day. That
afternoon some of the men did dig four shatlow graves but were afraid to touch
the bodies without some protective clothing etc.

Later that same day at the General Hospital |.-met another officer who told me he
had responsibility for public health. He assured me that since graves were dug
he would see to-it that the bodies were buried. They were in fact buried on
Tuesday 1% November.

[ fater came o understand that the bodies were subsequently exhumed and
taken to Cuba‘for identification. The Cuban authorities identified any bodies that
were not wearing khaki or camouflage as their nationals and any that were as
Grenadians. | understand that these bodies were brought back to Grenada in
coffins and buried by Otways Funeral Undertakers at the Centre Cemetery in ‘St.
George's. To the best of my knowledge no information was ever passed to any
of the relatives nor was any attempt made to find them.

I suggest the site of these graves be marked with the names of those deceased
who are known and a Religious Service be held for them. | furthet suggest that
some form-of compensation be given to those who were injured and-possibly to
dependant relatives of those who were killed.

This Religious Service could be part of a Nationai Service of Remembrance for
all who were killed in the events of 19™ - 26" October 1983.

Fr. Sean Doggett

Signed:

MEMORANDUM
FROM: MR. E.A. HEYLIGER, Q.C. LL.B
TO: COMMISSION - TRUTH AND
RECONCILATION

SUBJECT: INJUSTICE TO JUSTICE OF THE HIGH
COURT v .

In 1944 1 was practifing my profession in Guyana and in
Decgfnber of that year I was recruited in the sé;’vice of the Windward
and Leeward Islands and accepted the post of Registrar, St. Lucia.
In 1948 I was appointed Magistrate in Grenadg-..

I was later appointed as Attorney General of Grenada. In 1961
I was sent to éct Judge in St, Kitts. See letter dated 29th December
1965. 1was never paid my subsistence allowance.

In 1963 1 applied for ten and a half months leave which was
not granted due to the exigencies of the service, In 1964 | again
applied for twelve months lca.\;_t__a to which I was entitléd. Field C.J.

was very cold towards me and said [ never heard of anybody going

on twelve months leave. I told him Jackson C.J. went on -twelv_e




Months leave and even recently Cenac, the Crown Attorney of St. Lucia went on twelve
months leave. Field C.J. said ‘T shall recommend six months leave for you’ which was
granted by the Secretary of State.

On the day I was supposed to set sail the Government refused to pay my passage
to the united Kingdom, claiming that I was a designated officer and only was entitled to a
‘passage to Guyana. That was totally incorrect. If1 were a designated officer to Grenada,_
as 1 believe I should have been, my pension from the United Kingdom would have
included all my service in Grenada. Please see unsigned draft letter dated 4™ October
1977 marked ‘X",

In 1967 the Windward and Leeward Islands Supreme Court was abolished and the
West Indies Associated States Supreme Court established. I was not appointed to the
new court neither was Chief Justice Field. I-went into private practice and some years
fater the Government asked me to return to the service as Legal Advisor and Legal
Draftsman to the Government.

Some years later Mr. Eric Gairy (later Sir Esic Gairy Prime Ministes of Grenada
showed me some confidential secret files at Government House. I was shocked at what I
read for the remarks were highly defamatory and without any statement of fact. The
statement was simply the opinion of the writers.

I refer now to a Report made to Sir Arthur Grattan Bellew by Chief Justice Field
headed “Confidential - Mr. Justice Heyliger”.
In that report three serious altegations were made against me —

1. I had an affair with a policeman’s wife and when
Accosted by him drew a gun on him,

2. When I was Attorney General in Grenada I improperly
drew $50.40 Counsel’s fee, which I had arranged with
my staff to draw the money and pay it into my
personal account;

3. I'unlawfully obtained land at Old Fort by means.of a
Fraud.
All these allegations were made by the Chief Justice totally unknown to me, made behind
‘my back in secset and each one was found to be totally false.

Those allegations were made with the knowledge and congent of Governor Turbott (see
attachment ‘A’). I submit there was a calculated conspiracy to destroy me.

[ now attacha Secret and Personal Report-dated 25" Qctober
1965, written by Administrator Ian Turbott to Mr. Douglas Williams
who'was a very senior officer in the Colonial Office. That Report

shows that the police could find'no evidence of my affairs with a policeman’s wife and
they were now looking for evidence of my fraudulent acquisition of land. The source of
their information in this respect was an allegation by the Chief Justice’s Secretary and'it
is clear that the Chief Justice was championing her cause.

What amazes me was that nobody ever asked the Chief Justice who had given him
that information that I had an affair with a policeman’s wife and my drawing the
Counsel’s fee of ten guineas, in the manner stated. It should be noted that no previous
Chief Justice ever raised the question of counsel’s fee with me. This had happened years
before and they must have known'the position. Letter marked ‘B’ attached from
Administrator Turbott to Mr. Douglas Williams.

I respectfitlly submit that the conduct of Administrator Turbott and Field C.J.
shows express malice,

The su esti_zns in this letter again accuse me of fraudulent behaviour and then
comes lﬁs,é&”ﬁ@opoﬂéa “It seems to me that Mr. Heyliger maneuvered his case to get

the Administrator and Executive Council to be favourably dispo sec!”. A!l I can say is that
his ways are not my ways nor my thought his thoughts. The conspiracy is fuily
devélopéd.




I now come to when I was first informed of any allegations
against me by letter dated 3rd December 1965. This letter is
attached and marked ‘C’. I made a detailed reply and hoped that
they w;Jpl_d understand what inter-colonial accounting meant. In
other words the expenditure of the court is not 'a'\ttachcd- to any one
island, it serves all the islands. When I realized that unknown to
me my office stafl inr the Attorney General’s Chambers in Grenada,
had drawn my salary as Attorney General and banked it to my
account my only commeént was ‘God moves in a- mysterious way his
wonders to perform”; for when the Government owes you money it is
very difficuit, almost impossible to get them to pay you. The Privy
Council has recently given a very learned judgment on that matter.

[ claimed a set-off which is a proper and legal claim in law and
sent the Government $3,152 .l84 which was the émount I was legally
owing them, Please see attachmen-t ‘D’

It is interesting to note a letter dated 4th December 1965
attached and marked Y’ from Administrator Turbott to Mr, Douglas
Williams. It seems to me Mr. Berridge, the At.torney General was

something of a sneak.

—— " ekig—

Governor Turbott replied by letter dated éSrd November 1966,
and casually says, “As far as the item of $50.40 is concerried, I have
to inform you that it is not proposed to pursue this aspect of the
matter”. See attached marked ‘E’. 1 replied by letter dated 23rd
December 1966, and asked for an apology. .See letter attached
marked ‘F'. He refused to apologise. I received letter dated 2nd
March 1967, in which paragraph 4 reads as follo;vs:—

“The Attorney General will be asked to institute legal
proceedings against you for récovery of the sum i)f $4,202, if you do
not pay that sum to the Government of Grenada within 14 days of
date of this letter.”

On receipt of this letter I had a feeling of relief. 1 felt that at
last I could expose the qonspiracy against me, My reply was short.
I replied as follows:- | |

“6th March 1967

Sir,

I acknowledge receipt of your letter of 2nd March
1967.
in the circumstances, 1 suggest that you proceed as

indicated in paragraph




. 1d have taken up the matter with the Colonial
4 ofyour letter without further delay. Had ! known these facts [ wou

T have the honourto be, " Dffice.

Si In conclusion, 1 attach the copy of a letter dated 11™ December 1963-written
ir, ,

to my by Sir Kenneth Roberts-Wray, Head of the Legal Department of the

Your obedient Servant

Puisne Judge. Colonial Office.

His Excellency the Governor
Government House

St. George’s”.

The conspirators who had strong opinions about me in secret were
afraid to come into the open court. I heard nothing further from

them.

[ am prepared to appear before the Commission and: give

further details and answer to any guestion they may choose to ask
On retirement 1 was pa1d forty thousand dollars ($40,000. 00}-

by the Colonial Office for loss of career and got a pension of a little

over six hundred dollars ($600.00) per month from the Government

of Grenada and a little over six hundred poundé {from the United

Kingdom However, the damage done to my character and career by

Adm1n1strator Turbott and Field C.J. was great. [ suffered. =fHwmiad
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S oF . .His Excellency, The Governor General, . - P Lo
: - §ir Paul Scoon 'Ld red that the handcuffs should be put as tight as pdssible. .
v ' ' o . 4 Orhead repeated similar exercise for my feety removing my pants *
:ffFROM:\ Christopher Williams, -Member of Advisory Coumﬁfi; Red snderpa“ts' Redhead then tock the rope and tied me around my ;
i S 4 vYaps . - : o and + and gave the loose end to Randy Bobb. Layne put me to i
¥ DATEY. 5. Ma¥ 14, 1984 ' 9 - . et W?tﬁon the board and -Randy Bodd tied me on the board in.a sitting |
2 ! L g . : . - 51 s S
i WjSUBJECT ¢~  Stateément by Winston .Simon of Tivolis St. Andys - W |
X - : : t e the bucket of galt |

L asked for a packet of razor blades, _
Lggne =han o P A PRA soldier brought the

i - 7 ; and the bucket of pepper water. A PR ;
e ' wi;ng and the bucket as ordered. Layn€ then: ask me, "You kgow ¢
2 " T told him I think so and he saifl r

v they does butcher pig?* s _
%§w<w11{ use the same method on me. He asked, "You know what:

they use on pig to cut the balls?” I told him a razor blade and
“ome salt.water. He asked me if they do not put pepper water on
v, I told him I did not know that. Heé told me he will use-wf'

er water on me too. I asked him if he would pour the.
Lhe bovy He told me no and said that .after he. .

e, ) ; < . . Ty o
“About 10.30 on the morning of June 18, 1980, Randy BotHioe
Of the PRA came ‘to my home and told-me that Captain:
Layne wanted to talk to me. I accompanied Bobb to a'dl

v and I was taken to Pearls airport. On arrival I wag’)

. . handcuffed By Lester Redhead (goat). Layne put hig-

oy arm dround me-and told me let us walk, He asked mey i

1 i, e I0Knew him, IT461d him I did and he told m g pepper: water on my back. | S ' gﬁﬁ o
T 4 s CAntain Lovn “otherwise known as “"Head CheE“Pgewzs“' Ecutsmy-balls and cut off my private he will pgur the pepper bﬁﬁsﬂ:,
ii ™ SER s o6, T "'%ﬁméi*" P =alt water on then and if I did not die if T ’o out I won [ .
- - v : CT RS N R C.e Ll 5 & a i 4 Lo i I i " ' 2 ¥ ' !
% inless we: arerfinished cleaning the mdss.wé+*are not gble to take woman again. I said, "Go ahead.” | [‘ W
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t . . _ e then opened the blades while 'Randy Bobb stood on my 1??Eiéz
Layf pe Brathwaite and andtﬁ??

side and Lester Redhead on my right side. ahol
soldier crowded the cell, several others were close by outslde;f ,
JLayne then stooped down in front of me. Brathwaite stood on my - -
thandcuffed feet and held my right leg pulling 1t open. The oth?;
soldier held@ my left leg pulling it open. Randy Bobb held my * .

Mhandcuffed hands pulling them to him. Redhead grabbed myj;gpgv§._
‘pulled me to.him. other soldier came -with a five-pounc

¥y, P

L 3 . I told him I.did not knowfﬁhat mess he was talkings
) - and asked him to explain ™mess to me, he told
#Irwould know.  We continudd walking.towards ah o
cell at the PRA camp at tHe airport. at-ihe cam
umber- of armed. PRA soldiers. While in the ya
cell Lester Redhead put a pair of handcuff

s diSetlien smoved: sofie®distance from: o0k
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hair and took

- L

let off my

_ beating me Qiﬁh;gﬁﬁ whole peppers from the.

Butts. He then

el : The sold3 TN : ) . 3P om -t
{1 [ . Brathwaite, Elton and John. Two gthgss whom I’reco f bowl ‘burst them on the floor with hig bocts and put them 1n‘thgr
1 were present but they did not hit me. Carl Mason o | water, after he was finished he held my hair again. -l
it and Tony Spider of Levera. Layne, Redhead and Randy S~

were ‘vresent while €h: i : - £ _ , ;
3 3 ¢ the beating was going on. After-d | Layne then held on to my balls took a razor blade and began;qlic;:

I ;

5 . whilé Layne picked pme.up and ied me insi o - 8

f “ oo c¢ell’in the: yard.,gd 6'£oldiers brouggglgeb§§2k822é§{ | them. while he was cutting mé up Redhead was pouring pepper .

’ v v plBced themistanfifg on thefr edges: agd _put a board o } Water on the cuts. Salt water was also poured on the cuts.

' . tEhem.. A piece,df¥erginé iron provided’ deéntre suppot ¢ Apart from cutting theé balls the foreskin of thé penis was cut
Ao wiar Hieibodrdt nTtheara Lester Redhead ask to bring? and slight cuts 'on the penis were also’ made. Salt water and
r“”mrf “ﬁhe’EgQEEJ"“"Nﬁ%”ﬁ“**'va*hwhm-; 'uslmuwfm_@“.Mth ----- z Pepper water werepoure¥ on the peénis. Wwhile this exe;cise Was
ETEST N AT T S Soing on Randy Bobb wad contindally beating sy head with the:
aho - P A - ' % buttof his pistol. My head was bursted in six or seven places

gy 1iTthe mgaﬁfbﬁqﬁ;ﬁgﬁyef@rﬁérediﬁedhead to remove thi&-Efr
: 5 handcuﬁﬁs‘anﬁﬁFqggrqff my: shirt. This he did, replacing
£ 7. - the handcuffs &Pter the shirf was reémoved. Randy Bobb#
C U S . o

& 2s & result. There was much blood in the ¢ell. They then put me
} 4 Foutside the cell. i ) :
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Redhead called one of-the men and asked him to bring the hot
cutlass. When he got the cutlass he hit me on several parts

of my body branding me. Several marks are still visible. After
this Redhead picked up- a piece of 2 x 2 wood and hit me two hard
blows on my left shoulder. Randy Bobb repeated the exercise

and Brathwaite gave me some blows on my head with his gun butt.
other soldiers started kicking me up again. Layne then lifted
.me and stopped them from beating me because I was bleeding too
much. He instructed Redhead to put me back inside the cell.

. . ;
As Redhead héld me to put me in the cell I saw Cornwall and

Schoolboy coming to my direction.’ They assisted Redhead in
holding me up and brought me to the cell.

rl

In the late afternoon, maybe about .5.00 p.m., a few of them came °
to the cell. Randy Bobb said "Broco how you so : g bad",

_I. asked him what I did he said, "You go: no what you do", as he
said this he hit me about 3 or 4 cuffs-.in my kiack, then he hit =

me some more blows with the butt of his gun. 'Then another group -
appeared, I saw Layne, Schoolboy, Cornwall and Owsu. Redhead i
took a gun from his waist and started pounding my chest with it.
Owsu then said ™ah you Tivoli people to f£........ .g bad", and he.'
started tramping my chest with his bcots. As he was doing this}f',q‘

he said, "Ah you doh do the man nothing ah you doh see the man’

" full ah life in him still", then he kicked me.
kicked me while I was on the ground.
went away.

Randy Bobb also o
Then they all left me and M

1] . }&Eﬁ;{ﬁ"ﬁ 'g'.;mﬁ-.-é.‘

ey o c

heaved me-on a pile O ¢
,»agd-CornwaLl my feet and attempted to pull me apart.
: n+ght~time, Then Redhead toock a spade and started covering me
.with sand. He ‘hegan with my feet and stopped at my neck then theyf'
placed about eight concrete blocks on the sand on my chest and ‘
left. . Shotrtly afterwards, scmeone said "look at the fella dying -
here", they came back, took away the blocks and sand and brought.  * .
me to the yard. They put me to lie down. They took off the
handcuffs from my hands and feet, while Lavne and Owsu sat nearby
they stretched me out lying on my belly and tied my hands and
feet to four pickets .in the yvard. ' Then Layne ordered the hot
cutlass and iron. He pushed the iron in my bottom and Redhead
branded me with the hot! cutlass. 3

-
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They then took me UPevuannas /4
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they then.toék me up and brought me outside the gate, put me
under a pipe and a PRA soldiér took a coconut broom and rubbed
the cut and burns on my back. They brought me back and tied mq
to thd plcﬁet'where I rémained ‘for the -night. I kewmined in
pedrls for ee-weeks and was onjand off the picket for fohr
days. - '

i -
|
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At one stage Pedhead kicked me in my mouth and I lost four teeth.
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(1) My name is Teddy Victor and | was a FounderMember of the JEWEL Organisation, 1872,
the precurser Organisation of the New Jowel Movement (NJM) and served as its Editor for the
entire duration of that Organisation's life.

(2) 1 was a Founder/Member of the NJM and held various positions on its Bureau (Executive)
from its birth in 1973 until 1976.

(3) 1partook in the overthrow of the Govemment of Sir Eric in 1979 and was defacto.
Commander of the St. David's region.

{4) In late March 1979, | was accused of Master minding a plot to liquidate the leadership of the
NJM/PRG and was removed from the Armed Farces.

{5) On October 15, 1979, | was hoodwinked from my home, lured into a well conceived trap,
ambushed and dumped into prison. The news at dawn placed me at the head of a plot, caught

- red-handed at that, to overthrow the Peoples' Revolutionary Government.

(6) 'Thus | became one of the 3112, (ONLY ONE), persons detained by the PRG during the
period March 13, 1979 to October 25, 1983. And 1 speak for that Organisation (those dead and
those alive) that the PRG had inadvertengly brought into being.

‘(17) | was held in Palitical Detention from October 15, 1979 to October 25, 1983 - 4 years and 10
ays.

(8)‘ H was charged under the PRG's Peoples Terrotist, Refro-Active Laws; ied and convicied n
their vile, Barbarian Courl, specially corwened to deal with potitical Activests thal did not shace
the dangerous and erroneous philosophies of the NIMPRG.

{9) | served a 2 year prison sentence within my four {4) years of Polilical Prison’s Saltary
Confinement.

(10) I'was Re-Detained at the expiration of my prison sentence.
(11) | was FREED {only) by tha Intervention Forces on October 25, T983.

Forgive me if { am wrong, but 1 feet strongly that my evidence can very well tum outto be
‘Klassic’, and | am ready to testify before this Commission.
However  rave_ S mdolgenc e this Commission thal it will endeavour lo puasues,
meticulously, the following areas of grave and painful concern fo many, many of us, the victims
and discarded human trash of the Grenada Revolution,

{1 ). Endeavour to find and Bring to the stand the men who received the instructions kom Sir Exc
Galfy (R.1.P.) te liquidate the leadership of the NJM, for that was the reason advanced for the
justification of the Coup of 1978.

{11) Endeavour to bring to the stand the then Govemor General o explain how ha was able to
exact the ALCHEMIC FEAT of retaining his positionas the Representative of Her Majesty, the
Queen, albeit, at the head of the Revolution that oveithrew the said Majesty's Govermment and
the very constitution that empowered him.

What concretely did he do in the face of unprecedented atrockies in the Nation of which he was
relained as the regaliaed Head of State?

(M 1) Endeavour to have brought to the stand the then Captain of the Grenada Defence Force to
axplain how he was able, in months, to be whisked-aut of Grenada to safety, care and security

(HE \{W\S CAPTAIN), while the poor and destitute Cocporals and privates of the said Force, who
wers just eking out a living, had to remain for years in Detention for 'Securily Reasons’; and who
upon release had apartheid, South-African-like restrictions imposed on them in what was then, or
was supposed to have been, a'FREE GRENADA'".

(1) Endsavour to have the Commissioners of Potice of The PRG era explain theis ivolvemant
in the proffering of charges (Summary and Indictablé) agalrist peisons alieddy in custody for
over 2 years when they were beng charged.

(V) Erdéavour fo establish that thers was in fact an ilegal shipment of ams, in barvels of
grease, into Grenadain February!March '1979,.and to establish who.were involved in this
shipment and what it was they were planning for.

{V1) Endeavour to establish once and for all whether the event of March 13, 1972 was
(Exacute_d) {0 pre-empt the liquidation of the NJM leadership (that was evertually liquidated} or
Whetl!er it was to pre-empt the consequences of the investigation into the iliegal importation of
ams into Grenada during the first quarter of 1979.

{V11) Endeavour to have the Catholic Church’s Assembly 78 focussed upon and authorities of
the Church called to explain why the Church's Anti-Gairy Ally - NJM - had  within moaths of its
Revolution déemed the very church to be the NO. 4 enemy of its Revolution.

Once | am given the assurance that these areas of concerm wik not be over looked, You to
can be assured that ! and hundreds of others are well prepared to come forward to tell our sad

and epic stories of the deceptions and atrocities perpetrated by the NIM/PRG during their
operative ysars.

Finally, coming from the deepest recessas of my heart are my deepest cravings to help
establish once and for all, that the event of October 19,1983, was not an isolated event and for
which 17 Grenadians are being asked to pay, but the culmination of a process for which all
Grenadians must take responsibility: A case of what went around coming around: A Frankinstein
that worked wonders in the past retuming to wreak havoc on its creators.

| am all for genuine Reconciliation,

Howsver, if ‘ - . ﬂm!m@h&aswaﬂ liken my coming
before this Commnss:on to that of a pretty girl; with beau’t:fut FALSE teeth, siniling before 8

camera to advertise tooth paste.
29?7 Vit




GOVERNMENT OF GRENADA

*  MEMORANDUM -

TO :  PERMANENT SECRETARY, PRIME MINISTER’S OFFICE

FROM ‘PERMANENT SECRETARY - MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS h
AND INTERNATIONAL TRADE -

REF. NO. FA 166/ 01

DATE MAY 14, 2002

SUBJECT REQUEST FOR RETURN OF CONFISCATED DOCUMENTS

Your memorandum of May 03, 2002 regarding the stated subject refers.

Please find attached a copy of Note No. 373 / 02 which was forwarded to the U.S.
Department of State, through the Embassy of the U.S.A. in St. George's, requesting:the.
return of the documents.

Also forwarded, herewith, is a copy of the covering note sent to the U.S. Embassy, as
well as, the memorandum to our Washington, D.C. Mission regarding the subject,

ﬁfoseph Chalt I

PERMANENT SECRETARY

AHfah

I

Jetter should be quoted.

Tel: 440-2640/2712/2255
Fax: 440-4134

\ E-matl: faff; ibsurf,com
NOTE NO. 373 /02 m gnd@ecaribsurf.c

The Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International -Trade of Grenada presents its
compliments to the Department of State of the United States of America in Washington, D.C.

and has the honour to refer to the period fdloﬁng the military intervention into Grenada by

forces of the United States of America and Caribbean countries on October 25, 1983.

The Ministry has the further honauvr to refer to the extensive collection’of Grenadian
documents that Were removed from Grenada during the said period by officials of the
Government of the United Statés of America, and-to request, on behaif of the Govemm ent of
Grenada, that tlie Department of State arrange for the entire collection of material to be
refurned to the custody of the Government of Grenada at the eariiest possible convenience. The
Ministry has no doubt that the ljepartment of State would appreciate that the documents

constitute a very valuable national asset which remains the property of Grenada.

In this context, therefore, the Government of Grenada looks forward to the kind
cooperation of the Department of State in communicating the former’s request to the

Governmeglt of the United States of America,

Cm
. W

The Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Trade of Grenada avails itself of this
opportunity to renew to the Department of State of the United States of America in

Washington, D.C. the assurances of its highest consideration.

St. George’s, May 06, 2002
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) The Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Trade of Grenada presents its complimes
~+  to the Embassy of the United States of ,Ameri'ca in St. George’s and has the honour to requs
..y, ,  transmission of the attached note No.373/02 to the Department of State of the United Sta

.. “we of America in Washington, D.C. at the earliest convenience.

e v

4t o - The Ministry of Foreigﬂ__Affairs and International Trade of Grenada, wii
‘Ea“h“grﬂ“’ Empbassy of the United States of America in St. George’s in antic|pation dfi

kind cooperation in this matter, avails itself of this opportunity to renew the assurances off

highest consideration.

-

St. Gegrge’-h, May 06, 2002

faitgnd@rcaribsurf cop,

FROM:

De. . Reginald Buckmire, MBI
TO: Chairman, Truth and Reconciliation Commissign
MEMORANDUM: Pre-Revo, Revo and Post-Revo
DATL: May 5, 2002
INTRODUCTION

Let me congratufate the powers that be for setting up this (TRC) Truth and Reconciliation
Commission. This TRC was jong overdue. Let’s hope that it does not suffer the fate of
other Comimissions of-enquiry which were ignored !

it is unfortunate therefore, that we did not learn from South Africa although we
adopted their name. For il we learnt anything we may have adapted their model in the
choice of the Commissioners and in setting up: the Commission. Perhaps. then more
interest would have been generated and the people would feel to be more a part of this
enguiry. Il am not mistaken, I was under the impression that we received technical
assistance from South Africa.

| must hasten to state that the views expressed herein does not represent the views of
the Grenada Civil Awareness Organization of which [ am President of -the other {4)four
arganizations of which Fam assoctated.

in this memo | shall cover the period before the Grenada Revolution{Pre-Revo), the

periad of the revolution( Revo) and the period afier the Grenada Revolution (Post - Revo).

Therefore it is sad to see that no serious effort was made to provide Amnesty to those
who may want 1o testify truthfully about some of the cxcesscs or otherwisc which may
have been afflicted on us before the revolution or during the revolution. We must always
remember that true reconciliation or forgiveness can occur only alter genuine confession
of what or how one may have hurt another and a request for forgiveness. This 15
particularly important when you consider that immediately after colonialism there Have
heen excesses meted out 1o us from the highest tevel. The effects of some these eXCESSES
still linger among us and may have influenced the experience Cirenada has gone through
since then.



PRE-REVQ PERIOD

It is my view that Grenada was not prepared for Independence and wha)l h: prencd ;‘ 1
Independence and immediate afler Independence reflects 1111§ view point, i erhaps i may
be instructive for the members of the TRC to review the Dufus Commission’s report.

{ should potnt out also that | left Grenada because {)I' what | s::?w as the Imq <:E;;::[:(;::
for profcssionals and professionalism during that period. It was an open s‘u,n.}-f hat our
leaders at the highest level (politicians and M1m§ters) gave us, the nnpre;s:oln (; 0 {h}:c
agronomy and’engineering and economics although they were never schoo ‘c "j"l ’1-0%;‘
areas. ‘This resulied in cohstant conflict between the pohuplans and the fechnita s:1 .
Even more signiﬁcant were the decisions of politicians to dismantle most of thf: sfy_stu:f
and in some cases the infrastructure which were set up for checks :_md balances in the
community and society.

There were constant dimands 1o employ persons as paironage 399‘”““1“"'“},5_ “i’hcz
they weré not needed. ‘there were programs catled “Land for the Landless™ ‘whic

dismantied large parcels of lands called Estates with no recourse to introduce any new

system to replace this productive economic maci‘aiqmy. There were even attempts (o
dismantle the Grenada Cooperative Nutmeg Association.

Vhe blatant attack on personai rights became prevalent with no recoutic to thearule ol

law. But even more important was the corruption and reported request for bribes For
favors which hecame prevalent. ‘Most of these were perpetuated by our leaders.

THE REVQO PERIOD

‘During the revo period* ) would «come into Grenadd to assist with Agro Industriat

Development and' would inferact with the leadership and ordinary persons 66 4 daily
hasis,

At that time | cani¢ to realize that most of the leaders did not wish fo have any

structured opposition. They wére under the impression thal they were ‘the repository ol

information both technical and non - technical. 1 recall tryf:’fg to dcyc!_op a cocoa drink
sitnilar to “milo™ and the resistance [ received in even ordering ingredients and coming

up with the name for this product. in the end out of frustration | abandoned this project.

I recalf trying to introduce a semblance of distillation skills to develop spice oils and
oledresins and the conflict it created,

t recall going to a meeting and hearing the turmoil in the society as the youths
developed an attitude that those who Loited and achicvcfi ha‘d cxploited t}mr icl_iow u::_en.
It was a period of turmoil with no outlet which must inevitably end with an ""P’*f?‘f-‘”
rathe than an explosion. The concept of Blockorama (later) knnown as the “Blocka™ {or

tund raising evolved during the re

volution while the coneept maybe good it had led 1o
indiscriminate noisc pollution..

Post Revolutign

Since the demisc of the revolution Grenada has.been trying to cvolve ¢
with little success. Qur organization- The Grenada Civie Awareness ¢
(GCAD) was formed to develop and strengthen Democracy and civic wninded
responsibility.  Today however there stil] has not begn devetoped any respect dor
opposition which gives an altemate view. Once an

| OppoSing view is expressed, the
originator of this opposing view is immediately marked and loses histher opportunify for
road work or otherwise.

vnew Democracy
dganization, Lid.

Similarly there has been a growing tendency for vandalism and 1o lose respeet for
other persons property. This oceurs at fall levels-and at a-bigger level in government,
Hence the deterioration in our social fabric and the tearing down of - constructive id
This is way Grenada seems to be going backwards rather than “forward ever: ¢
never.”

cas,
backward

These tendencies together with the paternalism in part four (4) politics have led:to o
virtual loss of interest in any in-depth professionai appraach to problem solving, As 4
result professionalism leads to frustr

_ ation.  But this same policy may lead to an
opportunity for a repeat of 1979,




A PRESENTATION TO THE TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION COMMISS_I_(?IS!

From : E.P.Friday, Richmond Hill, St. George's, Grenada.

Tel, 440 - 0425 ( Home) 440-2346 (Office) FAX 440-6604

1 have lived at Richmond Hill since 1971, My property abuts the grounds of the
Richmond Hill Prisons on one side, and, on another, the road leading into the
Prisons. After the Intervention of 1983, a gate was installed for the purpose of
blocking off free access on that road into the Prisons. That gate was erected by the
side of my own gate, at the entrance into my own premises. Where my property
abuts the Prison road, there is a high retaining wall, which is my property, The foot
of that wall lies along the Prison road. The foot of the wall lies on my property.

In addition to the gate mentioned above, the Prison Authoritics installed concertina
barbed wire along the wholé length of the top edge of my retaining wall. As a resul¢
of the presence of the Prison gate and the coucertina barbed wire, I have been
effectively denied access to a part of my property; namely, the land along the road
at the foot of the retaining wall. T have not been able to approach my retaining wall
even for the purpose of inspecting .

I was not asked ( nor did I give ) permission to set up barbed wire at the top of my
retaining wall. In the interest of National security, I simply left it. However, I have
asked different Government Administrations about some compensation for the use
of my property, and for their denying me access to & part of my property. No
compensation has been forthcoming, Indeed, I have never received a response,

After the Intervention, there arose a dire need of accommodation and facilities to
service a Tourism Industry ravaged under the preceding Revolutionary
Government. The Government of the day was looking for properties which counld be
quickly transformed into Tourism - related facilities. My property at Richmond Hill
was approved by the Grenada Development Bank for such development. I was
encouraged to proceed with the conversion by both the Development Bank and the
Grenada Industrial Development Corporation. The Development Bank loaned me
money to proceed with the conversion of my home and Clinic into a small hotel,
Hotel Balisier. In order to access the financing it was necessary to establish a
Company. I, therefore, set up a Company named NORTHPOINT Corporation for
the proposed development. 1 was the principal shareholder,

The Balisier was a 15 - room hotel with an excellent restaurant. Because of the
unique panoramic view, the restaurant attracted a large number of patrons,
especially foreigners. It was, in fact, a thriving business, operated by my wife now
deceased. With the tightening of security at Richmond Hill, before, during and after
the Trials related to the Maurice Bishap killing, we encountered 2 number of serious
problems. For example, Security personnel were more in evidence at the Prison
gate. This impacted on persons approaching the gate to the Balisier (1o the hotel

and the restaurant ). The restaurant was patronized mainly at night when
harassment to guests was greatest. It was also, unfortunately, the time when it wonld
be least acceptable to guests. This situation wag aggravated by two other measures
adopted by the Commissioner of Prisons, who at the time was s Mr. Maloney:

(1) He ordered the removal of a street light which had been placed close to the
gate of the Balisier, on the grounds that it was shining too brightly on the Prisons
gate, manned by security personnel,

(2) Heset up a NO PARKING zone from the main road to Morne Jaloux down
to the gates (.of Balisier and Prisons), which stand side by side.

As patronage diminished we became very concerned. In attempting to get answers,
we interviewed a number of foreign persons, who informed us that the Balisier was
experiencing a negative rating because of the security at the Prisons.

The main clements causing the negative attitude were: that the prisons housed
dangerous political prisoners; that there was a frightening exhibition of concertina-
barbed wire on the retaining wall of the BALISIER (iinstailed by the prisons); that
they were obliged.to park at a distance from Balisier, because of the NO PARKING
zone on the road to Balisier ( enforced by-the Commissioner of Prisons );.that
because there was no street light ( removed on instruction from the Commissioner of
Prisons) foreigners were not likely. to walk to a restaurant in the dark, in a
maximum security area. Nor would they stay at a hotel where concertina-barbed
wire was considered an absolutely, necessary precaution in a maximum security
facility just next door.

From being a prosperouns establishment, the Balisier slumped into being a non-
profitable one, by 1989, We had spent a tremendous lot of money to get the hotel
going. We had based our projections on-the expertise of the- Development Bank,
who had advised on the feasibility of the project, and made loans ayailable for the
purpose, We had reasonably assumed.that the state of things at the prisons-would

be only temporary. In fact, the concertina barbed wire is still hooked up on-my
retaining wall.

We were obliged to close the Balisier Hotel because of the negative publicity caused
by scculrity measures at the prisons. We had no control over thase measures; nor do
we know whether they were absolutely necessary. The security at the prisons was
intensified to this point only after, and because of, the events of October 1983. As a
consequence of all the changes at the Richmond Hill Prisons I was personally
affected. My property was utilized without any form of compensation. Hotel
Balisier, instituted as part of the national effort to assist Tourism, failed because of”
security measures at the Prisons. My property was offered as security for the

Balisier. The Development Bank has threatened to sell that property, in which I
have lived since April 1971.




..,

1 am submitting to the Commissioners that my bitsifiess ( Hotel Balisier ) underwent
much hardship occasioned by the events of October 1983 and sfter, because of the
specific security measures at Richmond Hill. Indeed; those measures (‘exhibition of
concertina barbed wire, removal of street light, institution of a no parking Zone)
were directly responsible for the demise of Hotel Balisier. The use of my personal
property for those security measures at the Prisons still continues.

When Hote! Balisier folded up, it was no fonger possible to meet the required
repayments on the loan which was used to develop that hotel. However, the
property has been my personal home since 1971, and I had submitted the deed for-
it to the Development Bank as security for the loan in question, Notwithstanding
the circnmstances, however, I have attempted to make payments on the inferest.
Last year, the Development Bank advised me that they were prepared to sell the
property to repay the loan plus interests due. Prior to this notification, I had, in
fact, asked the Development Bank to consider a relief on the loan, since the default
on repayments was due to the demise of a business caught up in Goverament's
plans to secure Special prisoners at Richmond Hill Prisons; and to maintain order
during the special Court hearings at Richinond Hill. The relief I sought from the
Bank was a waiver of interests on the loan. Further, I am asking that interests
already paid be deducted from the Principal sum borrowed.

As regards compensation for the use of my property by Government, aad the
concomitant denial to me of access to parts of that property, I am proposing
monetary compensation cumulative from January 1, 1584 to the present. In-
practical terms, the use of the property for the security of the prisons is likely to be

indefinite. Some years ago I had requested compensation in this same matter. I
had no response.

1 wish the commissioners to be appreciative of the difficulties encountered at
Richimond Hill, situated as ] am right next to the Prisons, during the period under
consideration. Prior to October 1983, the access road to the prisons was not blocked;
nor was there any exhibition of wire fences and security personnel. My own
property was used in devising these measures. And we suffered as a result of them.

I would like the Commissioners to intercede on my behalf with the Grenada
Development Bank and with Government.

Sincerely,

October 8, 2001

TRUTH AND RECONCfFIATION
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DEFINITIONS

TRUTH: ouality or smre of bff"‘r"? TRUE

TRUE: in accordance with facr or reality;
GENUINE; ACCURAITE

RECONCILIATION: making Rriendly sgain afrer
ESTRANGEMENT; SETTIE; harmonize

N.B. All definirions 1aken from the Oxford Dicrionary..

THE BACKGROUND TO THE TRC AND THE FREEDOM OF THE GRENADA 17

The idea of a Truth and Reconciliation Commussion (TRC) to look into the events of October 1983
inter alia was first raised by the NNE government of Dr Keith Mitchell in. March 1997, That was in
the immediate aftermath of the decision by the Mercy Committee to not accede to a request from the
Conference of Churches to release two of the Grenada 17 political prisoners, namely Phyllis Coard
and Kamau McBarsiette, on medical grounds. Speaking from Trinidad, Prime Minister Keith Mitchell
announced that the setting up of a TRC manned by prominent persens to look inta the tragic events
and to make the necessary recommendations was the way forward to the goal -of bringing about
healing and closure to that tragic period of Grenada’s history. |

However, after the Prime Minister’s. announcement, several months passed without any movement
towards, the establishment of the TRC. Subsequently, at a press conference, Prime Minister Mitchell
was asked about the TRC. He responded by saying that his government had been advised ihat the
time for such a TRC had passed and, further, that such a TRC was not feasible within the framework
of Grenadian [aw.

In the periad leading to the new millennium the Grenadian Prime Minister led the way in beating the
drum of reconciliation and forgiveness. The Prime Minister went on record over and over again
saying that reconciliation was the comerstone of his govemnment and that the country cannot and
would not be allowed to go into the new millennium with the baggage of the 19807s,

The Prime Minister was clearly understood by the Grenada 17, their families and supporters and by
the population at large to mean that the Grenada 17 prisoners would be released prior to 1¥ January
2000. .

This view was strengthened when the: Grenada Government set up the Prison Septence Review
Board. The Sentence Review Board is provided for under the Prison: Act. It is charged with the
responsibility of reviewing the sentences of long-term prisoners with a view to recommending early
release. The Board had not been in existence since 1983. Its resurrection at that time was therefore
viewed as significant. !

The setting up of the Sentence Review Board took on further siguificance when Prime Minister Keith
Mitchell, in response to a question, at one of his Face to Face meetings, concerning alleged plans by
the government to release the Grenadal7, said that the release of the prisoners is -a process, that the
process involves the Sentence Review Board and that the process was ongoing,

Between June 1999 and March 2000, or thereabout, the Sentence Review Board process took place.
All the Grenada 17 prisoners save and except two appeared before the Board. They were subjected to
exhaustive questioning, including on matters that formed the basis of the indictment against them.

At the end of the process no one was released. Instead, the Grenada 17 prisoners were told that the
issue of freedom was to be decided by the Truth and Reconciliation Commission.

In the wee hours of January 1¥ 2000, in a national broadcast to mark the advent of the new
miliennium, Prime Minister Mitchell said that his government would soon set up a process 10 allow
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persons impn'soneﬁ as a result of past political events ‘to free themselves'. Prime Mini
. S _ - nister Mj
was therefore unmistakably linking the freedom of the Grenada 17 with the process which rwh(;[llltche”

soon set.up. The Grenada 17 gathéred from this that they had a vested .int in " 'd be
TRC process was faitly and properly executed. Y Interest in ensuring that th

4
to take our matter — for the first time ever — before Grenada's highest
(and only) independent court of Law: the. Privy Council. This is only fair
and reasonable.” There was no respotse to this proposal, not then, not since.

ESTABLISHMENT OF TWQ-MAN COMMITTEE TO ORGANISE TRC: | DENIAL OF ACCESS TO LEGAL COINSEL
GRENADA 17 APPROACH TO COMMITTEE IGNORED

Having received no reply from the two-man committee, having heard the Prime Minister announce

- that the TRC would soon be commencing, having written to the TRC and also receiving no reply, the

In the first half of January 2000 or thereabout Prime Mini ' 5 - Grenada 17 began efforts to try and get the pro borio services of counsel. The lawyers wio they asked
ster Mitchell announced in parfiam . o : X g U

TRC process would be set up. He announced the names of a two-man commiittee w}l:ich' Wagri:thg:zez 1o visit them requested to do so. However, the rélevant officers at the prison informed those lawyers

with th ibili i . - : ould not be allowed to see the Grenada 17 without a request emanating from the prisoners
e responsibility of setting up the TRC. The committee comprised, Cabinet Minister, :Eztmt;l;ze\: This was an upprecedented development.. . BromuEp

t}\th:)m::;nabcl:: nl;:u?:trence Jlodseph and Catholic priest 'Father Mark Haynes. It was announced that ¢he
- ee would meet with inte] .parti ] < S ., , .
committee with any ideas and'p‘mpﬂ;:::.rested parties and the public was invited to contact the In consequence of what was conveyed to counsel, on August 7% 2000, Sewlyn Strachan and Ewart
Layne wrote the Commissioner of Prisons on behalf of themselves and their colleagues, requesting
th MY e . : . .
On Fqbruary 57 2000, some m':embers of the Grenada 17 took the step of writing to' the two-ma permission }o see counsel ini relation to the TRC and other legal matters. This letter is hereby attached
committee. A copy of that letter is herein attached as Appendix 1. " as Appendix 11

The Grenada 17 received no formal response to their request. Their constant verbal inquiries were
met with the response that their request had been forwarded to the Ministry, [of National. Secunty] for
consideration and no response had bgen received as.yet. It is to be noted that under Prison Rule 344

i L2 i !

In that letterthe Grenada. 1.7.members stated-inter-alia:

We, the undersigned, wish to record our support for the setting up and

operation of a Truth and Reconciliation Commission so as _ [Statuto and Ord R.O) #14 of 1980, made. under_the Prisons Act; Chapter 254 of the
, fo discover the : .t . <) :

fruth O'{ what happened in October 1983, and to puf' those events i their Law lf enada, 1990] it is for the Superintendent of. Prisons to handle.the issue of access to legal

correct perspective... We wish to state thai we stand willing and ready 1o fully counsel

participate in the proceedings of a "Truth and Reconciliation Commission’
including giving full evidence and facing cross-examination, once it is clea;
‘that- trurb 'a.nd recor:rciliaff'ori dre indeed the objectives of :r}:e-- exercise... We
;zr: ;)f the. vre‘r;thar.‘{f truth cfnd "recoa'ifrilian'on are réally the objectives behind
e exercise, then everyone involved in the sélting up of the Commission and
its operation should be united in the task of creating the most Javourable

conditions possible to ensure that iruth iation ~i ;
achieved " emerges and reconciliation ~is Other of the September 2000 correspondences related to problems which the Grenada 17 were

Th encountering. One of these documents was titled: RE: Access to Legal Counsel by Members of the
ey thereafter raised certain conceriis and difficulti ‘Grenada 17’ for. inter alig, arrangements for Participation in the Truth and Reconciliation
- " culties and m ‘opats e ; - ; ;
concems and difficulties could be addressed. - ade concrete suggestions as to how these Commrss;on;l Thqrelri, the Grenada 17 members outlined the problem that they were having with
| access to legal counscl.

In September 2000 members of the Grenada 17 submitted a number of other documents to the TRC.
A total of 6 documents in all (including Appendix 11) were submitted in September 2000. Among
them were documents siggesting witnesses the TRC may be interested in interviewing and
documents which they should consulf. Members of the Grenada 17 had control of or-access to some
of these docunients and they undertook to make them available for the TRC.

“es—r

The two-man committee, however is initiati
. _ : \ , treated this initiative by the G 1 1
| | disregard. They did not even do the courtesy of c::uiﬁrminy et the luay_ers with complefe

: receint of the lette 1 Compiey Another of the September 2000 correspondences was titled: RE: Suggested Recusal of One Member
il certain that they received, since it was hand-delivered. g pt of the letter — a letter which it is

of the Commission. Therein, the members of the Grenada 17 raised the issue of Father Mark Haynes
recusing himself as d& member of .the TRC on account of information in their possession that he had
certain firmly;held and publicly expressed highly negative positions against.them.

t |

| ! To this date, the Grenada 17 members have not received a reply to any of the September 2000
' correspondences. These correspondences are hereby attached as Appendicies Nos 12-17.

i N



In Aprl 2000 Prime Minister Mitchell in a national broadcast announced the names of y,
commissioners. They were: The Honourable Justice Carl Rattray, of Jamaica; Bishop Seho‘e
Goodridge; and the aforementioned Father Mark Haynes. He further announced thas thn
commisstoners would start sitting within a matter of weeks. _ ¢

. f

The Grenada 17 took the immediate step of wntmg to the TRC Commissioners announced by the
Prime Minister. In their létter of April 20®, the menbers of the Grenada 17 stated that,.

“We welcome in principle the establishiment of the TRC by the government of
Grenada. We would like o participate and generally cooperate with it Sully.
We consider such cooperation on our part to be decisively important both to
uncovering truth and in starting the reconciliagtion process. This we say not
out of immodesty or any inflated sense of our own importance, but simply
because of the objective reality of our central role in makirig and building the

1979-1983 Grenada Revolution, and, unfortunately, in the crisis, tragedy and
catastrophe of October 1983.”

Eight documents were attached to that letter. Among them was the aforementioned letter to the
two-man committee. A package containing the letter and attachments were sent to each member
of the TRC. No reply was ever received to that letter though Justice Rattray confirmed receipt of
the letter and attachments in writing. The April 20™ 2000 letter and the additional attachments are
hereby annexed to this submission as Appendicies Nos. 2-10.

In light of the impending TRC the Grenada 17 were obviou sly concerned.about and interested in legal
representation. Indeed, that was one of the issues that was raised with the two-man committee in the

above-mentioned letter. Therein, the Grenada 17 members pleaded for state assistance in retaining
legal counsel. They had requested that-the state

“meet the cost of retaining a team.of competent lawyers of our choice to
represent us at the Inquiry. [This is to bé able to effectively crpss-‘
examine witnesses who-appear before the TRC and lie, and to he in a
position to efTectively expose these lies; to examine-in-chief witnesses
whom we can persuade to come and testify as to what really occurred;
and generally to protect our legal interests before such a
tribunal.].. . After all, we and our families have been fiterally bankrupted by
having to- provide legal representation for a Préfiminary Inquiry (held in,
March~August 1984). Some had 1o pay their own legal counsel for the 'Trial’
(March—December 1986), the 'Appeal’ (March 1988~July 1991) and for
several Constitutional Motions arising from this process... Having effectively
gone through three major ‘trial' processes — all in unconstitutional
courts — the Grenada 17's financial resoiirces are presently non-existent.
It would be totally unfair to expect us to have to find funds to pay
lawyers for what would be effectively another "trial process’, and one not
-of our choosing. AT THIS TIME we want to raise whatever funds we can

5

ber 2000, there was still no commencement of the TRC deliberations. In the meantime the
1.wel'n'ster v,e many different, reasons for the failure to get the TRC oﬂ: the '_g’r_oul_r}‘d.. I?.a
eamadcagta on the night of Fﬁda_y March 9™ 2001 he said that_a_TRC rf:qm_rc‘:d,an_ atmosphere
and tranquillity and that there could be no TRC while there was industnial unrest.

J
nation
Of peace

“We cannot expect the Commission 1o ﬁmcﬁfon effectively gf tﬁe 'g'o:?mj;?;s
experiencing disruptions. because of the actions of a few gnc{rmi){ ._ua;.!_ e
process of truth and reconciliation requires an atinosphere of peace m; o've,
rather than attempts by some to close down poris, or Erevent people front
travelling, thereby reviving painful memories of the past. L.

" : : in' ' i ] ;1e various excises ‘that the
‘ this statement was made in March 2001, it crystallized t ric ises 't
;In‘tmhzul%hﬁrﬁster and other NNP officials had for several months been providing for the failure to
commence the TRC.

{planatic he fai d given all that had taken place
e lafiation for the failure to get the TRC off the grot_;nd_, an ! en
:3 glll‘:}znltgg;xgle Grenada 17 finally came to the conclusion that the NNP government was insincere

<y and had no intention to freé them despite intimations.to the contrary. They therefore decided that they

would place no further reliance on the TRC process as a way of ob'tait‘ling' their freedom; and thaIt,
nstead, they would seek redress for their continued illegal detention thro_ugh. the _colprtz. n
¥ ';con'seqilence of this conclusion, in November 2000, the Grenada 17 retained Mr. Keith Scotland out

& ofthe jurisdiction of Trinidad to challenge the legality of their continued detention.

& th f La te a letter to the Commissioner of

November 29" 2000, Sewlyn Strachan and Ewart Layne wro _ one
I?Ii'lsonz as a follow up to their letter of August 7% 2000. In that letter ?he:y informed t!me Commissioner
of the visit to Grenada of their legal counsel and they sought permission to see him. That letter 1s
hereby attached as Appendix 18.

The Grenada 17 agdin received no response to their request. Thez were again tolc.L wh'en they
inquired, that their request had been forwarded to the Ministry and that it was under consideration.

On December '6® 2000 the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of National Security visited Itht:
pn'séﬁ. A difect inquiry regarding_the issue of access to legal counsel was ,gnadg to him. In particu aij,
he was asked about the status of the request to see Mr. Scotl?nd. The Permanent Secretary confirme
that the letter of request was forwardéd and received 'by him. He added that it was for the Prime
Minister to decide and he had forwarded the request to him.

On Decembér 19 2000 Mr. Scotland visited Grenada with the view of visiting hjs clients. He was
denied permission.

In March 2001 Mr. Scotland again visited Grenada with a:_view to seeing_hjs clients. Once again he
was refused permiission. -

On, April 5® 2001, or thereabout, Mr, Scotland agdin retuned to Grenada. Once again he requested to
seg his clients. And once again he was refused.

On Apiil 11® 2001, Mr. Scotland sought leave from the ;},ﬁgh Court to apply for judicial review
redress so asto compel the state to ellow him access to his clients.




\?_thn the motion came up for heanng, on Apnl 27" the state represented by the Attorney General
conceded that there was no legal basis upon which Mr. Scotland could be denied access. And the
judge so ruled.

NEW QFFER OF FREEDOM THR(‘)IU'GH TRC

Sometime after the hearing of the motioh it was intimated that the G-17 not proceed'to take legel
action against the state on the issue of their freedom because the TRC would be soon set up for the
purpose of freeing them. o
aﬂilc.e

As was counsel’s duty he put the offer of the Attorney General to the Grenada [7. The Grenada 17
took the view that firstly, the TRC seemed to be a-dead idea but secondly, they now seriously doubted
the ‘bona fides of a TRC sponsored by the NNP government. They -tock the view thaf the TRC
appeared to be a trick; a trick of dangling their freedom before them while doing nothing to bring it
about and while at the same time blocking them from taking legal action.to secure it. The Grenada 17
viewed the offer coming from the Attorney General as a device to get them to voluntarily hold off
fegal action, the state’s effort to prevent them from pursuing such action having been defeated. The
Grenada 17 therefore took the view that while they would maintain an open mind to thé TRC, they
would place no reliance on it as a vehicle for regaining their liberty; and that they would therefore
pursue independent legal action to secure their freedom.

MENCEMENT OF LEGAL ACTION TO SECURE FREEDOM OF GRENADA 17:
COMMENCEMENT OF TRC AND DISREGARD FOR NATURAL JUSTICE

R

On June Z8® 2001 Mr. Keith Scotland filed a motion in the High Court of Justice on behalf of three
of the Grenada 17 seeking their freedom forthwith. That was nearly 18 months after the
announcement of the TRC and 15 months afier the Commissionéss were named and yet the TRC had
not yet begun hearings. When, the motion came up on July 12® Mr Scotland put the. state. on notice
that he would be filing other matters on behalf of all his other clients. "

In the latter half of August 2001 it was announded in the parliament of Grenada that the TRC would
be launched within a matter of days. It was also announced that Justice Carl Rattray had withdrawn
due to illness and that the Chairman of the TRC would now be Justice Donald Trotman olt of
Guyana.

The TRC was indeed launched ‘on September 4™ 2001. Several sessions of the TRC were held in the
period from September 2001 to January 3 1* 2002. At no time was the Grenada 17 contacted or in any
other way communicated to regarding their participation in the TRC. This despite the long record of
communication with the TRC personnel as borne out by the attachments to this letter. It should be
reemphazied here that one of the TRC commissioners was also a member of the two-man committee
which helped set to st up the TRC. One other commissioner was announced as a, member of the TRC
as far back as April 2000. Many, if not all, of the attachments to this submission were de'!ivpréd to
those two: Therefore then, as far back as a year before the attual commencement of ‘the TRC, 8
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. GENESIS AND DEVELOPMENT
OF THE UNCONSTITUTIONAL COURT SYSTEM
(AND THE JURY SELECTION PROCEDURES)
USED TO TRY THE GRENADA 17

Preamble

On December 3™ 1986, fourteen (14) former government and military officials of the Grenada
Revolution were convicted of murder by a Grenadian court and sentenced o hang. Thuee other soldiers
of the People’s Revolutionary Army of the Revolution were convicted of manslaughter and given long
prison sentences,

The trial of the group, now teferred to as the Grenada 17, was by its very nature a high profile
event. Indeed it was the most high profile trial in the history of the English speaking Caribbean. On
trial were former leaders of a government, including a deputy Prime Minister; they stood in the dock
charged with killing other members of the former government, including the Prime Minister.

The background against which the alleged murders took place elevated the profile of the trial.

On March 13% 1979, tiny Grenada, a tri-island state ‘af 1335q miles (340 km? and 100,000
people exploded in the English speaking Caribbean’s first successful revolution.

The radical New Jewel Movement (NIM) spearheaded the revolution. The government of Eric
Gairy was overthrown. The overthrow of the Gairy government followed years of abuse of power in
the decade leading up to 1979. Some of these abuses were catalogued in the Report of the Duffus
Commission which looked into the breakdown of the rule of law in Grenada in the period 1973-74. Not
surprisingly, then; the overthrow of the Eric Gairy government and the triumph of the Revolution had
the widespread support of the Grenadian people.

With the advent of the Revolution, Maurice Bishop became Prime Minister of the People’s
Revolutionary Government (PRG). Bernard Coard was his deputy.

The People’s Revolutionary Government ruled Grenada from March 13% 1979 up to QOctober
1983. During the period of its reign it had to contend with intense political pressure from outside
Grenada, in particular from the USA whose President, Ronald Reagan, Lad publicly pronounced his
ambition and intention to land troops in Grenada to put an end to the revolutionary process.

The mtense political pressure and military threat from outside Grenada compounded the
difficulties inherent in developing and guiding the revolution, an entirsly new experiment in the
English speaking Caribbean. This also exacerbated the differences, which are bound to arise in the
context of any human endeavour involving power, particelarly of a state political power character.

In consequence, in October 1983, differences that were simmering within the New Jewel
Movement broke out into the open: And the revolutionary party which, united, took power on March
13" 1979, split into two main factions.

Despite cfforts to mend these differences the conflict heightened, and on October 19% 1983 the
then Prime Minister of Grenada and others died during circumstances of civil disorder. Prior to those
fragic events several members of the government had resigned and at least one was absent from fhe
island. Thereafter, in the vacuum created by the non-functioning of the government, a Revolutionary
Military Council was formed to restore peace, stability and good order.

g
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Arrest, Detention And Torturing Of The Grenada Seventeen

On October 25% 1983, despite the fact that calm had returned to Grenada (there had’beeq no other
acts of vialence or armed confrontation since October 19") and that no American or forcignl citizens 0{
foreign owned property. was in any danger,. or had suffered any injury or da_mage, the Unlltcd_.Statcs
armed. forces together with $small contingents of forces from: eight (8): Caribbean countries invaded
Grenada and overwhelmed the small local array with superior forces. '

This armed jntervention into Grenada was. roundly condernned by the United Nations General
Assembly as an itlegal act, .

During the invasion. the members of the Grenada. 17, several of whom Wers-leaders of the (NIM)
New Jewel Movement, were. captured. They were first held as prisoners of war (POW‘S). Later their
official status was changed to that of Political Detainces. Later still they were charged with the murders
of Maurice Bishop and seven (7) others. |

During the period when they were prisoners of war and/or political detamecs.scvcral of the
Grenada 17 were taken away from the prisoner-of-war camps and othex detention centres ‘to
interrogation centres manned by members of the invading forces now turned occupation forces, In each
case they were denied access to legal counsel, and- forced to sign ‘confessions® after several hours of
orture.
o In all, confessions were extracted from seven (7) of the Grenada 17 between November 1% and
November 22nd. During that period there were 10,000 foreign troops in and around -Grenada. At no
time did any of the seven (7) applicants have access to counsel despite requests for such access. And
indecd the government of the US has.conceded that such requests for access to counsel were made and
denied, and that the Grenada 17 were only granted access to legal counsel in December 1983, Despite
these facts during their trial in 1986 the trial judge ruled that all the alleged ‘confessions’ were freely
and voluntarily given and could be used as evidence in the trial.®

Propaganda War Against The Grenada'17
By US Psychological Warfare Battalion

A significant. fact is that, as part of the invading forces, the U.S. Janded a psychological waxfare
battalion in Grenada. That battalion quickly got to work. They took full advantage of the traumatized
and vulnerable stater in which the Grenadian people were caught. And they completely and totally
poisoned tlie minds of the Grenadian people against the Gienada 17 with the, most vicious propa.g_anda
campaign ever unleashed in these parts. They thoroughly, systematically. and comprehensively
embedded into the minds of Grenadians the view that the 17 were fully respensible for the-deaths of the
widely beloved Prime Minjster, Matrice Bishop. That they ‘conspired’ to kil him. That they were
‘Power hungry” ‘criminals’ and ‘murdesers’.? -

At the end of 1983 (carly 1984) the Reagan Administration provided a further $8 million US to
be spent in Grenada for the purpose of justifying the invasion to the Grenadian peopie.

With this injection of capital and riding on the wave of the job already dom? by the Psy-ops
battalion, the propaganda war against the Grenadian 17 was sustained for a period of eight years.

At the time of the commencement of the trial in 1986, the adverse publicity against the 17 was at
4 crescendo. '

In the context, the seventeen were therefore éxtremely concerned and worried a5 to whether they
would receive a fair trial. Their concéths centred on the issues of:
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(@) Whether they woukt be tried by an independent court; .one that was free of the ifluence of
those who assumed power in Grenada and which was not vuinerable to their manipuiation; and

(b) Whether a jury could be found to impartially decide the facts in issue.

From March to December 1986 (the period:of the trial) there was a battle inside and outside the
court around these issues. The trial itself descended into a farce. The Seventeen instructed their lawyers
1o withdraw from the trial. Upon the lawyers announcing their intention 1o withdraw there was an
uproar of disapproval from the-assembled array of jurors theri present in court. These potential jurors,
clearly under the influence of the propaganda onslaught carried on in every division of the média,
turned their wrath eon the: Seventeen. Before one word: of evidence was heard in the case, they shouted
at.the Seventeen that they were ‘criminals’ and ‘murderers’ and that ‘we go get allyou’.

The issue of the court in which the Seventeen would be tried was a live issue because in theory
there were two different court systems with jurisdiction in Grenada in March 1986. There svas the
QECS Supreme Court which was the court provided for under the constitution; and there was the
Grenada Supreme Court which-was set up in 1979 following the revolution.

The Seventeen desired to be tried by the court of the constitution because that system provideg
for a final appeal io the Privy Council. The Seventeen were convinced that given all the politics in
which their matter was enmeshed, and given the necessity of seciiring convictions against them to
justify the invasion of Grenada, they could only be asswed of justice from a court completely
independent of local and regional politicians:

Genesis of the OECS Supreme Court

On 22™ February 1967, Her Majesty in Council made the Grenada Constitution Ovder 1967,
Statutory Instrument No. 227 of 1967. This order came into operation on the 3™ dqy of March 1967. By
virtue of this Order, Grenada recetved.a new Constitution which conferred upon the siate internal seif-
government. _ '

On February 22™ Her ‘Majesty also made two other Orders. The first of these was the ‘West
Indies Associated States Supreme Court Order 1967 No. 223 herein after referred (o as the Courts
Order’, The second of these Orders was the ‘West, Indies Associated States (Appeals to the Privy
Councily Order 1967 Statutory Instruments 1967 No. 244°, Both of these Orders came into operation on
27* February 1967. By the Cowrts Ordef, was established a Supreme Court for the West: Indics
Associated States Supreme Court. This court was established as a superior court of record and
consisted of a Cotirt of Appeal and a High Court of Justice. The West Indies Associated States
(Appeals to Privy Council) Order 1967 conferred a right of appeal to Her Majesty in Council from
decisions of the Court of Appeal established by the Court’s Order, in such cases as may be prescribed
by or in purstiance of the constitution of a stite.

By the 3™ March 1967, Grenada had acquired a new political status under the West Indies Act
1967, a new constitution under the Grenada Constitution Order 1967 and a2 new judicial’ system- under
the Courts Order, '

The Constitution that Grenada received on March 3™ 1967 was.based on the Westminster model.
Under it there was separation of powers between the Legislature, the Executive and Judicature. The
Judicature was established by the Courts Order which was made a part of the Constitution, The
Constitution also provided for the Protection of Fundamenta] Rights and Freedoms and their
enforcemerit.

i
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The: Supreme Court established by the Courts Order was the Congtitutional Céurt of Grenada. It
was the only:Supreme Court'that the Constijtution recognised as having or being capable of having any
Jurisdiction in and over Grenada.

Various entrenched provisions in the new Constitution protected the éxistence of this Court.

The Courts Order. did not set.the details of the jurisdiction of the new Supreme Court which it
created. Section 9 (1) of the Court’s Order provides that the High Court shall have such ‘jurisdiction
and powers as may be conferred oft it by the Constitution or any other law of the state".

At the time when the constitution came into force on the 3 March 1967, the general jurisdiction
of the Supreme Court was based on the Supreme Court Ordinance Chapter 289 of the laws of Grenada.

On the 16" of April 1971 the West Indies Associated States Suprems Court {Grenada) Act 1971
ActNo. 17 of 1971 came into operation. It repealed Chapter 289 but vested the repealed jurisdiction in
the Supreme Court of Grenada established by the Courts Order.

On the 16™ April 1971, the position was that there was a special jurisdiction vested in the courts
by the Constitution, namely Section 16 (Enforcement of Protection Provisions), Section 37
(Determination of-Questions as to Methbership of the Tegislature) and Section 103 {6) (Appeals). And
in addition thereto there was the general jurisdiction vested in the courts by virtue of Act No 17 of
1971.

The existence of the Supreme Court” established by the Courts Order, the Jurisdiction of the
Supreme Court conferred by Sections 16 and 37 of the Constitution and certain parts of the Courts
Order were all fully entrenched and protected by the Constitution,

On February _T‘h 1974, Grenada's status of association with the United Kingdom was terminated.
This was' effected :by the Grenada Termination of Association Order 1973, which was made by Her

‘Majesty in Council on the 19 day of December, 1973.

On the said Februarv 7" g new Constitution came into force in-Grenada. This was by virtue of the

Grenada Constimution Order 1973 that was passed by Her Majesty in Council on the 19% day of
December 1973.

This new anstilutibn mvolved very few ch:gnges from the 1967 Constitution. The Supreme
Court established by the Courts Order remained fully protected by means of enfrenched provisions.
And the jurisdiction of the Supreme Court created by Sections 16 and 37 of the Constimtion also
remained fully protected. ’

Genesis of the Grenada Supreme Court

' Although the majority of Grenadians welcomed the Grenada Revolution, Grenada’s neighbours
including those with whom Grenada shared the W.1 Associated States Supreme Cowt were opposed to
it. And from a very early date they adopted a hostile stance.

~ In-responise to the Revolution the leaders of the other states with whom Grenada shared the West
Indies Associated States Supreme Court ordered the court to withdraw its services from Grenada. That
this 15 how that court was rendered inoperable in Grenada was confirried by Justice Archibald Nedd,
who was the resident judge in Grenada at the time of the Revolution, during his judgement. in Suit No.
303 of 1984. : | -

As a result of the withdrawal of the West Indies Associated States Supreme Court Grenada was

pui out in the cold judicialty. 1t had no judicial syster.

It was against thig background that the new government, the People’s Revolutionary
Government, set up, by way.of People’s Laws Nos. 4 and 14 of 1979, the Grenada Supreme Court.
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Under People’s Law No. 14 the judges of the Gyenada Supreme Court were 10 be appointe ¢,

the Governor General (which the Revolution retained both-in-terms of office and personnel) acling o,
the advice of the Prime Minister.

It should be noted that one of the effects of the withdrawal of the West Indies Associated States
Supreme Court was that Grenada was ipso facfo deprived of the services of the Privy Council singe by
virtue of the West Indies Associated States (Appeals-te the Privy. Council) Order 1967 Sm’mto,;.
Instrument 1967 No. 224, appeals to the Privy Council were to be from' decisions of the Court o
Appeal established by the Courts Order. .

However, later in 1979, by virtue- of Peoples Law No. 84 of 1979 the PRG in recognition of th,
reality that Grenada was deprived of the services of the Privy Council, for the avoidance of doubt ang

obvigusly for other tactical reasons, emacted that no appeals ‘to the Privy Council would be frop,
Grenada.

Post October 1983 Machinations by the New Powers
To Keep Qut The Court Of The Constitution;
Efforts By The Seventeen To Secure Its Restoration

Once the Revolution had heen defeated and the foreign troops had gained dominance, they set out
0 establish and consolidate their rule. In pursuit of this-objective the Governor General, "His Excellency
Sir Paul Scoon, was co-opted by the invading forces: Backed by the military mtight of the invading

forces he formally assumed power, On October 31 1983 by proclamation he invoked Section 57 (2) of
the Grenada Constitution Order 1973. Section 57 {2) provides.

Subject to the provisions of this Constitution, the executive authority
of Grenada may be exercised on behalf of Her Majesty by the
Governor General either directly or. through officers subordinated to
him.

The Governor General proclaimed that

Until a government is duly clected under the provisions of the
constitution of Grenada set out in schedule 1 to the Grenada
Constitution Order 1973 and pursuant fo subsection(s) of section 57
of the said Constitution I shall exercise the executive authority on
behalf of her Majesty in consultation with Advisory Council...

The Govemnor General therefore formally assumed power in the name of the Constitution. This
exercise of power was, according to the Governor Gengral, to be temporary and facilitative of
Grenada’s return to constitutional rule and in accordance with the Grenada Constitution Order 1973.

Betwsen October 31% and November 12" 1983, the Governor General issued seweral other
proclamations which inter alia had the effect of keeping in place the Grenada Supreme Court set up
under the People’s Laws Nos. 4 and 14 of 1979

Once it became clear that the Grenada 17 would be charged and iried for murder arising out of
_the events of October 19" 1983, the issue of which legal system would try them became of critical
importance.

The new powers in Grenada were bent on trying the 17 in the Grenada Supreme Court.

&
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Act 1 of 1985 provides that:

For the avoidance of doubt it is hereby enacted that the following laws,
rules and proclamations are in force, and shall remain in force -until
otherwise enacted:

1. ‘Laws and rules made by the People’s Revolutionary Government,

2. Proclamations made by the Governor General during the period of
Inferim Government, namely the period .between the military
intervention and the appointment of the Prime Minister on the 4" day
of December, 1984,

3. Laws and rules made by the: Governor General on the advice of the
Advisory Council established by him in -advisory council
proclamation, 1983.

Act 1 of 1985, therefore, inter alia, purported to validate the continued suspension of the
provisions of the Constitution relating to the Courts Order.

As was naturally the case, givcn their conviction that it was impossible to gef a fair hearing under
the Grenada Supreme Court System in the post-mvasxon political reality, the 17 sought at-every tum 1o
challenge the validity of the court to hear their matier.

In 1984 they filed Suit No. 303 of 1984, in which they sought inter alia a Declaration that the
Grenada Supreme Court is unconstitutional and invalid and an Order that all further proceedings on
their matter be stayed until the indictments which they face can be heard and determined by the ‘court
established Ly the Courts Ordet.

After hearing arguments Nedd C.J. dismissed Suit 303 of 1984 on the grounds that the PRG had
by 1983 atfained de jure status and therefore all its laws including People's Laws Nos. 4 and 14 were
de-fure Valid: thus the Grenada Supreme Court was constitutional not by virtue of fie 1973 Constitution
Order but in a Kelsenian sense, and Hience could validiy try the 17.

On appeal, however, the Coust-of Appeal by a majority reversed Nedd C.J. The Court of Appeal
held that there was no evidence before the court upon-which the ‘court could make a finding that the
PRG had achieved de jure status. It was pressed upon the court in argument that the PRG had only
suspended the Constitution Order 1973; and that the PRG had' pledged in the Declaration of the
revolution-

... to refurn to constitutional rule at an early opportunity. and to appoint
a Consultative Assembly to consult with all the people far the purpose of
the cstablishment of & new Constitution which will reflect the wishes
and aspirations of all the people of Grenada. The new Consfimfion will
be submitted for popular approval in a referendum. All classes and strata
will be invoived;"

and.that by October 1983 there was a Constitutional Comission in place and in the process of drafting
the new constitution: thus even then the Grenada Constiation Order 1973 still remained the
Constitution of Grenada albeit suspended.

Since the Court of Appeal held that the PRG had not achieved de jure status it aiso heid (hat the
independence Constitution was always in existence even though-suspended, i.e. it was never abolished.
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The Court of Appeal next looked to see whether the action of the Governor General to keep the
Courts Order in suspension was-constitutional.

The Court of Appeal held that suspension of the Courts Order and its purported replacement by
the Grenada Supreme Court amounted to a purported alteration of the Constitution within the meaning
of Section 39 of the Constitution; aad that for such an alteration. to be constitutional it must comply
with the provisions of Sectlon 39 which require the concurrence of a 2/3™ majority of the House of
Representatives and, of 2/3™ of the votes validly cast in a referendum duly sumnmoned:

The Court of Appeal however went on to hold that though unconstitutional Aci.1 of 1985 was
legally valid when passed on the basis of the law of necessity anid therefore the Grenada Supreme Coutt
was temporarily valid. -

But valid for how long? To this question the Premdcnt of the Court of Appeal J.O.F. Haynes in
his lucid judgement repliéd:

“* Unitil either effective steps shall-have been taken to resume the state's
representation in the pre-revolution ‘Supreme Court or constitutional
legidlation shall have been passed in compliance with Section 39 of the
Constitution to establish another Supreme Court in its place."

President Havnes then said:

" Of course it is to be assumed the government will act with reasonable
dispatch.”

The ruling of the Court of Appeal wa§ challenged by the 17 before the Privy Council. The 17
were <lissatisfied with the granting of temporary validity to the cowrt since that meant that the
temporary coust could.proceed on the indictinents pending against them.

The Privy Council declined to hear the appeal of the 17 on the ground: that the Grenada
Parliament could validly approve the abolition .of appeals to the Privy Council provided for under
Section ‘104 of the constitution. Since the repeal of that clause did not require the hokling of a
referenclum it was sifficient that 2/3 of both Houses approved the Bill. The- Privy Council also held
that in any case itnever had jurisdiction to hear appeals from the Grenada Supreme Court, but: only
from the Court of Appeal established by the Courts Order. The way therefore seemed clear for (he
comumenicemnent of the trial on.the mndictments,

By May 1986, the prolongation of the temporary jurisdiction of the Grenada Supreme Court was
becoming a source of embarrassment. Inithat month the Court of Appeal expressed dissatisfaction with
the failure of the Govermnment to restore constitutionality to the .court system as the said Coust of
Appeal in its judgement more than 1 % years before had directed should be done expeditiousty. The
Court of Appeal ordered the government in the person of the Attomey-General to appear before it so as
to inform the court of the government's timetable for retuming to a constitational court system. In
compliance with the order of the court the government informed the Cowrt of Appeal that the OECS
Suprerie Conrt would be operational in Grenada again from 1% January 1987.

Thus while the 17 were disappointed that the Court of Appeal had condoned the trial in the
unconstitutional court system, there was a clear and legitimate expectation based on the government’s
promise that their appeal(s) would be allowed to po forward within ‘the constitutional court system.
This howewver was not to be.
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March 1988: The Compton Letter

In the period 1* Januarv1987 to March 1988, as far as the Seventeen were then. awate, no steps
had been taken by the government of Grenada to retum Grenada, to the Constitutional Cour-t Sy§tcxn.
The Appeal Court of Necessity remained operational even though the conditions of necessity giving

{empotary sanction to the said court-had long expired. The 17 therefore had no alternative but to take

their appeals before the unconstitutional court.

When the Appeal commenced in March of 1988 the Seventeen and their counse! Jearned that a
ew basis was put forward to justify the continued existence of the unconstitutional courl. It was not a
basis in taw but politics.

In March 1988, the OECS Heads in a letter signed by tfaen-chairman; UM Compton of St. Lucta,
to the government of Grenada, stated that the OECS Supreme Court, which is the court of the Grenada
Constitution, would not be allowed to resurme function in Grenada until the Maurice Bishop Murder
Trial (actually named) was disposed of. This letter was read into the cecord of the appeat proceedings
and amazingly # was used as the Yurisprudential’ basis foi the continued existence of the
unconstitutional court. In other words, the politicians of the various OECS islands were openly
declaring that they, and not the judges of the OECS Court, would defermine if and when the Court of
the Grenada Constitution would be permitted to exercise its legal jurisdiction in Grenada.’ It was one
thing for the politicians to so declare; it was another thing for the judges who had the power of life and
death over citizens to concede this authority to the politicians, The question therefore of the legal
validity of the unconstitutional coust previousty premised on the operation of the doctrine of state
necessity, was no longer to be determined by accepted principles of faw. It was nowto be deternuned
by political fiat. Everything was wrong with that. More naked potitical interference in the judicial
process is hardly imaginable! But that was not the end of the matter.

Appeals Nos. 4-20 were proceeded with before the unconstifutional court. Several months after
the commencement of the appeals the President of the Coutt of Appeal died after a short illness. The
appeals had to recommence under a newly constituted court. This court heard argumenfs until
September 1990. The court promused a judgement within three months.

However, afier.the expiry of three months no judgement was forthcoming, The explanation given
was that the court was delayed because it had decided to produce a full written judgement.

In the period during which the judgethent of the court was being -awaited information was
revealed in the Parliament, in answer {0 3 question from an opposition senator, which showed that the
judges of the Appeal Court were paid approximately $3 million EC for their services with regard to the
case of the 17.

Shortly before the Court of Appeal handed down its ruling i July 1991, the Grenada parliament
passed the Constitutional Judicature (Restoration) Act 1991, Act No. 19 of. 1991, The Act was assented
to by the Governor General on July 19, 1991,

_ This Act facilitated the return of the OECS Supreme Court and also restored the. jurisdiction of
the Privy. Council to Grenada. ;

However, the very Act 19 of 1991 that brought back the OECS Court and Privy Council t©
Grenada contained a provision—Section 7 (4)—preventing any case finally determined by the
unconstifuiional appeal court from being 1aken to the Privy Council: Put in simple terms, the case of the
Grenada 17 was to_go no further!

There is obviousiy no doubt that 57 {4) of Act 19 of 1991 was.aimed at stopping the Grenada 17
from getting an independent review of their matter. When this section is taken against the backgrount
of the aforementioned Compton letter of March 1988 that much is clear.
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The issue was put beyond doubt by events which unfolded at the end of July-early August 1991
Act 19 of 1?91 was due 1o take cffect ofi August 1% 1991, Five of the 17, among them former Depﬁ;v
Prime Minister Bernard Coard, were scheduled to be hanged' on July 30% 1991, The date for the
hangings Was posiponed following an international outery. On Juty 29" lavyers for the 17 filed an
action before the ur}cpnstlmnonaI Court of Appeal for a re-hearing of the appcgtls. It would have meant
that under the provisions of Act 19 of 1991, to wit $7 (3), this motion would have had to be heard b
+the OECS Court of Appealsince it would be pending in the defunct Court of Appeal on Auéust lgf

with this the 17 would get into the RN _ A | |
C(:uncil. ould get into the ‘constitutional §iream and be able to take their matter to the Privy

'I"he gov.;mmcm‘ reacted to this sifuation swiftly and in a2 most dubiously lawful manner By
executive action the date for the feturn of the. constitutional court was pushed Dack .T11E
mcomtfmtfonal court was hurriedly reconvened. The matier was heard and swiftly dismissed bw this
unconstzt.utxonal cm‘u‘t. And shortly thereafter the constitutionaj court was allowed back into Grenada

' This detet:mmation- to prevent the Grenada 17 from having their matter heard and}or
reviewed by an independent court (in this case the Privy* Couiicil) is a clear admission by these in
power that- thg case cannot stand up to scrutiny. That the only way they.could achieve 'tlieii'
pOlltlca_]. ob]egltxve of convicting the 17 for murder and having those convictions upheld was i
kangaroo coust system. T pregwe e
. It :’s there;fore not surpr.l.sing that to ﬂ}is day, almost 9 years after upholding the convictions

wrder and the sentences of death, the judges of the court of the defunct court of appeal have

not submitted a written judgement. For very ¢ !
 SUDL _ . v ‘good’ reason they are afraid of 7 if
their judgement(s) and exposing their bankruptcy. ﬂ%_ ¢ of anyone reading

The Jury

ﬁ;ndanl? c::tdacllittion to !.hc i351‘1c of the independence of the court the issus of an impartial jury was
el ) ‘; fair }marmg. As aforchnﬁoneti the Seventeen were extremely concerned and
pcwmivcai at(:u \: O?mﬂ:r Jt was at dz:lll possible to.empanel an impartial jury given the massive and afl

: ¢ propa i W ' iod '
A propaganda to which they were subjected over a period of 2 1/3 years by the
As such the Seventeen and their lawyers filed a matter in court alleging that by virtue of the

deliberate and massive pre-trial publicity i i i -
: : publicity it was impossible for them ¢t ir trial & :
they requested relicf for this violation of theif right Sp r them to get a fair trial in Grenada; and

chng:cuj ;1;2\0}::02:28 howfc;lcr L.rzstxm_t_cd wvithin the ux}constitutional court system. Counsel for the
e s hom \:ir g ajc view that-being a constitutional issue, by virtue of 316 of Grenada’s
o eaor ,S nstitutional Court was thc‘ proper court to hear and 'determine that issue, and that
. ;;112 3 uprctfne.Court,- was lmt.ier an cbligation to refer the issue to the Constitutional Court.
e i:;ﬁ:gt tgn tial however rejected the prt?hxmmry argumenis of counsel seeking referral’ and
¢ power to try, hear and determine the matter.
Whereupon counsel for the Seventeen: applied for a stay of proceedings to aliow them to appeal

‘h . E ! E . - f 1 t

- S'&‘mﬂh;nv- ¥ -
{4 SVUILEST [ ekt ths r=fu nl ef:‘ a sray

' a8 pmf of the nlat b the state to railroad ¢ 3
ttial withs il . > g PGt 5y u.u S WO TRIT0E0 them into a
thin_the unconstitutional court system. This development combined with a previous ominous
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development forced their hands. They decided that they were not going down like lambs The;

instructed their lawyers to withdraw from the trial and concentrate on taking the appeal.

. When the lawyers for the Seventeen, through the leader of the defense tearm, informed the coyy
of their instructions, and applied for leave of the court to withdraw, such leave was angrily denisd py,
the judge. He not only denied the.leave, he also threatened to cite all the lawyers for contempt of toyy
And he immediately adjourned for fifteen minutes.

This dramatic development sparked off an: uproar in the. court amongst the over 100 potentiy)
Jjurors who had been summoned. As the court rose, the array of -potential jurors clearly agitateq by
developments in the court fumed their attention on the 17 and in an unprecedenied display of angey,
hurled abuses at them calling them ‘criminals’ and ‘murderers’ ‘and vowing that ‘we go get alf you',
Not one word of evidence had been as yet adduced but already the jurors had convicted the Sevente en.

This drama confirmed the worst fears in the thinds of the 17 and the ominous developmen
aforesaid, came 1o the fore. )

Prosecution Lawyer/Registrar

©n March 3" 1986; the trial of the Seventeen had
array of jurors was present in court. That array of jurors
of Registrar,

On March 4% after a few preliminary matters had been dispensed with, the prosecution
complained that the array of jurors was not drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Jury Act,
On this basis they applied for the array to be dismissed.

The Registrar was brought before the court to explain. He insisted that the array was drawn up
according to law and that any apparent discrepancy could be easily explained.

The Seventeen would later learn that the real.bone of contention was the refusal of the Registrar
1o co-operate with the prosecution. The prosecution wanted the Registrar to provide them with a list of

Jurors’ weeks before so that they could do background checks. The Registrar refused, as lie was entitled
fo do under the faw.

Despite the insistence of the Registrar that the array. was pro
dismissed the array and ordered that 3 new array be struck.

Later the very March day,
appointed within 24 hours.

Who was the new Registrar? A member of the prosecution team! A person who had appeared for

the prosecution in several preliminary motions and who sat as a member of the proseculion team at the
opening of the trial on March 37 ¢

This whole development with the dismissal of the arr
speedy appointment of a prosscution lawyer to fill the positi
the Seventeen: The prosccution wanted to controf the jury

opened. On that day as was to be expected, ap
was drawn up by the person who held the post

perly drawn up, the trial judge

the Registrar was dismissed from his post. A new Registrar was

ay, the sacking of the Registrar and the
on sent one clear, frightening message to
' selection machinery. That this was clearly
the case was later confirmed by the fact that as soon as the trial of the Seventeen was completed, the
prosecution lawyer resigned as Registrar and My, St. Louis was reinstated.

So on Apnl 1% 198G, the date the.defensc lawyers informed the court of their intention to
withdraw from the trial, it was the new array .of jurars selected by the prosecution lawyer which was
involved in hurling abuses at the Seventeen, and calling them murderers and criminals®

iromeally, 1 wonld be later reveaicd to the court-that the prosecution lawyer violated the law in

the drawing up of the array of jurors — the very reason given for dismissing the onginal arrdy selected
by the original Registrar.

-3
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i Ve jurors ' could be
Grenadian law lays down a method for choosing prospective jurors so that no piry

4 iﬁxc . "

i i f the
jregistrar to follow the procedure set out in the law. Based on the law‘on jury se}l;:j;{i):&jrl % o
13WY‘1€f found the Seventeen guilty, were illegally sclected by the prosecution lf'zw_\fctH 101.(1 ;li*;missccl
o wf lt?\.is was clearlv demonstrated to the judge he still refused to dismiss the jury . Ai l‘How;\m o
ne anel of the fom;cr chls!rar on relatively minor gr‘omzds_ based on the same Jury Act. _
g}f}gf of overwhelming irregularities could not move him.

Selection And Empanellment Of Jury
Behind Backs Of Defendants

i i : “ had refused
i on April 15" 1986. The court ha
lawyers finally withdrew from the trial on . P
fgl;eﬂ?cct;zn;:crs‘g withdraw on April the: 1 1", Whereupon tl-lcre was a short adjt;um.mesnt gzlg -
lcfavemcmioned ‘1-1131‘031' in court. When the court resumed the judge decided that he was g
afore _ 1 : o
] o days to give everyone time 1o reconsider. _ o e
a(UONS:D;;EV;S“Ythc- j%xdgc ‘ascertained from each defendant that it was -their insttuctions for. th
lawyciftt: “;llxt:cgf?t:;quwal of the lawyers the Seventeen made it clcar‘to the judge that. thcyb:a:;.{::drzog
going to sw:bmit to the jurisdiction of the court or co-operate with the trial. They therefore embz

’ rotest action in the face of the court. ‘ , et on
i comgnoigm April 1986, the Seventeen continued their prptest. The court was, however,

i i action:
proceeding. The trial judge therefore took what can only be described as an amazing course of ac
(2) He cited the Seventeen for contempt of court;
(b) He tried them on.the spot and sentenced them to weekend prison terms; and then

(c) In the enforced absence of the Seventeen, he allawed the prosecutiop team to effectively
" dnstall a jury.

acti i F b ited and
The third aspect of the three-part course of action was truly astounding. For i;'r:ar;gd {: ;id e
convicted the Seventeen for contempt, and having sentenced them to wcekené l:nn;o 4 ; X tglgl "
alfow them to serve the sentences, or give them time to reconsider, to colol off tor igﬁx mggc;ﬁion
of thcii: ziétions and to purge themseives of their contempt; he immediately allowed the pros
-pick a jury. . . ' "
. tDI hlh"sqriitfty cblf]xsé of action must be compared and.contrastcc? with tht; _cpnductfof th?} _1:ciga§ew1}1£5
he was informed by the lawyers of the instructions thcy._had received to withdraw LrtorTl q(il‘oumc& i
immediate rcaction: was to threaten to cite the lawyers for conbcmpt...Howc};m ltn;: '1(;2;5‘1( i}cr net e
coutt for a weekend and a Monday to allow the lawyers and the Seventeen time to rf 1l 'mey o
open court he sought and received confirmation from each member of the Seventeen
I d the lawyers to withdraw o .. B . N
msm{l“\t]ﬁv whcnvy faced with the even more essential issuc of the scicvthn of a :]‘U.l“}; :ihz ﬁgfmhmg
prepared tc; allow the prosecution team to select that jury by themselves, without gtving th
any time to reconsider or o cool off or 1o ‘come to their senses’.

PRS S  ~ TO, St _rn.e'm_,n{)t
M er. thie absence of the Seventesn fJom coust was ai the thne of the setechion 9; mo n;e io o
Vioreover ) o iy
due t(; ;ny misc,onduct on their part. When they were brought back before the court one by
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tried for contempt, except in two cases, there was no misconduct from them. The trials for Contemp
took place and theywere peacefully led away from court dfier sentences.

Thus when the Seventeen returmed to court on Monday 21* April, the jury was in place and ready
to proceed. Even at that time the judge did not see it fit or necessary to allow the Seventeen g
opportunity to challenge the jury. Under the law, the 18 defendants, as they were then, would have
been entitied cumulatively to 72 peremptory challenges, plus challenges for cause. :

Hand-picking of the Jury

It was stated above that the judge allowed the prosecution to hand-pick the jury. Prima facie the
term may appear to be too sirong. But this is exactly what happened.

The process of handpicking was facilitated by a law which was passed clearly for the putpose of
.the Maurice'Bishop Murder Trial. The law gave the prosecution, the ‘right to standby’ jurors. And this
right was used in a very vulgar and abusive marnner by the prosecution.

The selection of each juror is done by balioting. All the names are put in a box then a dipping
process much like the lotio is carried out. However, in the case of the Grenada 17, each time a name
came up which the prosecution was not satisfied with, clearly based on intelligence reports, they would
simply have the person ‘standby’. In the selection of the jury, there were 66 dippings. Five persons
asked 1o be and were excused mostly because-they stated that they were opposed to the' death penaity
and would have difficulties deciding the case impartially as a result. Eighteen were accepted to form
the pane]_fof_iurors (12 jurors and 6 reserve jurors). And the prosecution exercised the right to standby
43 times!

While the prosecution was hand-picking the 18 jurors in this way, (from an-array, it should be
recalled, drawn up by a prosecution lawyer) the judge did not see it fit to question the 18 selected so as
to be satisfied that they were not biased, and therefore fit to try the case.

At the appeal the lawyers for the Seventeen submitted that the judge should have taken thal
course, because the court was on notice by way of the interlocutory motion which was not acgued, that
there existed widespredd all pervasive prejudice in the community against the Seventeen. Indeed, the
defense lawyers argued that such screening by the court should have taken place even if all the
defendants and their lawyers were in court. The fact that they were not in court compounded the error
of omission 1000 times.

Indeed, the court was not only on notice by way of the motion filed before it. A few days after the
selection of the jury, one juror had to be distnissed Decause it was discovered by the prosecution, that
he was the father of someone who had died in the October 19" Tragedy, the*very event from which the
charges against the 17 arose. Even after this discovery the judge still did not see it as prudent to camy
out some kind of screening with a view to determining impartiality.®

In the face of this development of selection of the jury behind their backs, coming’on top of all
that went before, the Seventeen decided to continue their protest in the face of the court. The protest
also took the form of their refusal to cross-examine any witness.

However, within days of the commencement of the trial, the Seventeen indicated to the court that
they were minded to change their stance, and Would co-operate with the court if the process was
restaried. They therefore moved the court to declare what had taken place so far a mistrial and restert
the process ab initio (from the beginning). The prosecution objected very strohgly to this motion on the
ground that the defendants were trying to get *a second bite of the cherry’. The judge declined 10
terminate the trial, then in it's carly stages, as a mistrial.” The most he was prepared to offer was (¢

'Y

. -
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recall those witnesses the defendants had previously refused fo cross examine so as to allow {hem to do
0. He was not prepared to dismiss the jury and select a new one. )

In the context the Seventeen felt locked in. They felt their backs were up against the wall and
they had to hold their ground. They decided to continue their protest and effectively they took no part
in the trial. They did not cross-examine any of the witnesses presented by the prosecution. However,

some of the Seventeen made unsworn statements from the dack, which they termed indicative defense
gtatements.

The Jury Shaken

Over a period of several weeks those of the Seventeen who addressed the court, demolished the
prosecution case. They unravelled it thread by thread, and laid it bare as a tissue of lies, contradictions
and inconsistencies. The jury that was installed by the prosecution and came to cowrt, hostile, was
shaken. The chemistry of their interaction with the defendants underwent a sea-change in a matter of
those weeks. The impact was obvious to anyone. People in court started to whisper and thén speak
what woluld have been unthinkable a few months before: the Seventeen would be freed.

When defendants are unrepresented before a court, it 13 the practice for the prosecution to refrain
from making a final address to the jury. And this is whether ar not the defendant exercises his right to a
fina address.

Not so in the case of the Grenada 17. When informed of their right to a final address to the jury,
the Seventeen declined. They then argued that the prosecutjon should not make or not be allowed to

make a final address, given that they were unrepresented; that the judge should' move to summing up
the case arid then hand the matier over to the jury.

However, the court allowed the prosecution a final address. The chicf prosecutor spent 3weeks
addressing the jury to try to picce their case back together. Then the judge summed up. This summing-
up was heavily criticised by defense lawyers at the appeal, as being unfair. Some described it as a
prosecution swmming up.

The Jury Intimidated

One day before the jury was to retire, in a public display, hundreds of foreign troops, helicopters,
and all, were brought back into Grenada. It was a clear act of.intimidation.

But the intimidation. did not.end there. As the jury was about 1o yetire, the judge pulled out what
some have termed the masterstroke to finally nail the 17. The jury was handed a verdict shest. Each
Juror had to state on the sheet the verdict he came to on-each of the 164 counts and sign his/her name
next to it. This was like putting a gun to the heads of the jurors to ensure they did what those in power
wanted them to do." Never before in the hundreds of years 6f jury trial and in the millions of such
trials in the British Commonwealth had such 2 jury sheet been used. It meant that anyone who wished
to find the defendants ‘not guilty’ would be known by name. This smashed totally the confidentiality of
the jury deliberation and decision process. Everyone would know who voted for whom to be found
guilty or not guilty. This guaranteed for the foreign invaders and occupiers of the country the placing of
the triai verdicts beyond doubt: they would achieve victory in stage one of the plan for the judicial
murder of the Grenada 17. They would get the guilty verdicts they needed.
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Noies

! The OAS Inter-American Commission for Human Rights has ruled that the United States violated the righty of
the Grenada 17 when they detained them and held them ncommunicado following the invasion. The Uriteg
States claimed that they were responsible for holding members of the Grenada 17 only for a peried of nine (g
days or so and thereafter they were handed over to local authorities. This is untrue because several of the
prisoners were hald in 2 U.S. run Prisoner of War camp at Point Salines in SL. George’s, near Grenada’s airpary,
up until November 14% 1983.

In & response to questions from the ICHR asking for comments on the allegation of the Grenada 17 that
they were denied access to iawyers, despite repeated requests for such access, for a period of SIX weeks
following their detention, the U.S. conceded that the Grenada 17 were denied access to lawyers but justified such
denial on the grounds that it was unreasonable for such access to be granted during the 6 weeks period when
{here were still seriqus security implications. Yet it was during those same six weeks that all of the “confessions’,
which were used against the Grenada 17, were obtained. . '
cf: Organisation of American States Inter-American Commission on Human Rights Report: No. 14794 of
February 7, 1994; Report No. 13/95 of September 21, 1995, and Report No. 109/99 of CASE 10.951 COARD
ET AL. vs UNITED STATES, September 29; 1999,

2 A sample of propaganda material used against the Grenada 17 listing posters, pamphlets, newspaper articles,
- songs, etc., was presented to the court along with supporting affidavits from several Grenadians, 1n support of an
interlocutory motion which was filed before the court of irial.

3 Rased on the OECS Treaty, decisions of the Authority require unanimous agreement. So it must have meant
that the government of Grenada concurred in the decision to keep the court out despite having previously
undertaken to return the court to Grenada by 1% Januery 1987,

4 The trial record reveals that Ms. Denise Campbell appeared in Court on March 3"', 4% and 5% 1986 as a
member of the Prosecution team of lawyers. [Ms Campbell’s appointment as Registrar was pazetted on March
5% 1986. She was, therefore, both a prosecution lawyer and Registrar on March &% a point which was made
by defense counse] Mr Howard Hamilton: Q C. during the appeal hearings.} On March 6™ 1986 the court was
informed that she no longer appeared for the Crown. On March 1 1% 1986 Ms. Campbell tums up in court as the
newly appointed Registrar and subsequently selects the panel from which the final jury was drawn.

cf: pp 1. 6, 10, 24, and 25, Trial Record, Vol. 1, Patt 1.

5 This incident was attested to by five lawyers, two of them Queens Counsel. A third of the five is currently the
Attoney-General of Jamaica. These lawyers all issued affidavits detailing what they witnessed on that April 1°
1986, day. Subsequently they gave evidence and faced cross-examination during the hearing of Civil Suit 191 of
1986. Yet, the Kangarco Court rejected their clear and uncontroverted evidence and held that no prejudice had
resulted to the Grenada 17, This judgement was upheld by the Kangaroo Court of Appeal during ths last days of

1ts existence.
& ¢F pp 84-129, Trial Record, Vol. 2, Part 1.The arguments contained in that section of the Court Record were
-extended on by the defence lawyers on appeal. No one knows what response the Court of Appeal had to tnose
arguments since to this date no written judgement has been issued.
7 of pp 243-247, Trial Record, Vol. 1, Part 2.

¥ ¢f: p 248, Trial Record, Vol. |, Part 2

¥ cf. pp 541-547, Trial Record, Vol. 1, Part 3

0 of: p 5487, Trial Recard, Vol 4, Part 4.
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NOT FOR PUBLICATION

THE GRENADA 17 AND THE TRC:
YET ANOTHER ‘BROKEN PROMISE’ IN THE MAKING?

[

THE CONTEXT

We the members of the Grenada 17 are aware that the impending government-instituted Ty,
and Reconciliation Commission is being touted in some quarters of the Grenada media as a moye "
the government of Grenada to frec us. The fact that the commission appears 10 be authorigeq 4
recommend amnesty to the Grenada 17 is being interpreted by that sector of the media as a promjge 0{1}'
freedom if we provide truthful information to the Commission. .

We wish to make it abundantly clear that we have no such interpretation of the situation. Severy
of us have stated that we have no problem with a South African style TRC in Grenada though others of
us believe that the time for that has long passed and that such a process now would be of no benef 4
Grenada or to us and that in fact it would just reopen old wounds and result in more pain and suffering
for our people.

However, if is clear to all of us that the TRC being set up in Grenada is similar to that in Soug
Aftica in name only.

In South Africa the TRC took place on a level playing field. All the principal participants were
freed and came from their homes 1o provide evidence and then they retumed to their homes thereafter,
In Grenada the government has made it clear that with regard 1o the TRC there will be no such level
playing field.

In South Africa the Commission had the power to grant immunities and pardons. In Grenada the
Commission is invested with discriminatory powers. It can grant immunities to people coming off the
streets regardless of what offense(s) they may have commitied and regardless as to whether they spent
time in prison or not. But with regard to the 17 the Commission can only recommend amnesty, The
final decision as regards if and when the recommendations are mmplemented wolld be left up 1o the
governument.

This refusal to provide the Commission with the power to grant ammesties we find deeply
worrying. We view it against the background of the refusal of the governmment to amend the
discriminatory law which prohibits us from taking our case before the Privy Council so that it can be
decided according to law.

The government of Grenada has stated over and over again that it would like to resoive the matler
of the seventeen but that it fecls politically unable to act given the controversial and divisive nature of
the issue. Yet it continues 0 refuse to allow Grenada’s highest court to decide the issue according 10
principles of law. And it refuses to provide the TRC with the power to decide the issue. It continues

insist in practice that it, and it alone, must decide even though it has stated over and over again that itis
unable to decide.

OUR EFFORTS AT NATIONAL RECONCILIATION IN RECENT YEARS

For some considerable time we were of the view that the government was serious about its oft
expressed desire 10 reconcile Grenadians. We took the government at its word and by our deeds
demonstrated our willingness to participate in this process. The record of our efforts in this regard =

1o ses. In October 1996, without prior notice, we participated in an interview within the pasth
walls in which we bared our souls. Months later we published in the press an apology to the detainees
of the Revolution and to all those who suffered on account of the actions of the Revolution and 0%
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N during the 4 Y2 year process. In September 1959 ff)lll" of us bared our souls on r}zttional radio and
;'\/';nd 3pologiscd to the relatives of those who lost t_heLr lives in t_he Oct_obcr .1983 Tragedy and to ail

i repadian people. During the period we also refrained from taking actions in the court to sscure oue
[hs’G'rv sreferring to give the government the full opportunity to deal with our matter in the spirit of
" iliiation which would allow our people to leave the past behind and go into the new millennium

d to being fully reconciled.

reconc
on the 102

THE VIEW OF OTHERS WE RESPECT...

! le, including persons who had supported us for the entire period we have
behind bars, kept saying (o us that the government was not serious about rcconmiiat}on_, that we
eing taken for a nde and that the government had absolutely no intention of ever freeing vs.

Given all that ha¥ taken place and what we now see, we can no longer disregard the opinion of
now say to us that the TRC has nothing to do with Truth and Reconciliation buf it is an
device fo mamaguy the-world while stalling on the issue of allowing our case to go before
il so that we can obtain justice according fo law. Those who hold that opinion say to us
2.t the government is fully aware that the “TRC’ process will open Up a lot of old wounds, _wo'uld
leave our people cven more divided than they are now and hence at the end of it the govemment_wouid
2. loft with the perfect excuse as to why it is politically unable to implement any recomuuendation the

- ommission may make regarding our freedom.

All along many peep

pere b
0se Who
Expensive d
g Pﬁ\f}' Counc

A LITANY OF BROKEN PROMISES AND DASHED EXPECTATIONS...

However, our profound-distrust.of the government’s position is nat just based on our analysis. It
< based on the bitter experience of 16 V5 years: the bitter experience of broken promises; of the dasi}ing
of legitimate expectations, and of our matter being handled in a nakedly political ahd discriminatory
B manner at every twist and tum. Our experiences go back alt the way to 1684 and.as recently as March

$12000.
i

RESTORATION OF FULL CONSTITUTIONAL RULE...

(1) Following the US invasion of Grenada in October 1982, executive power was assumed by the
Govemnor General, Sir Paut Scoon. In a series of statements and proclamations the GG made it clear
fhat it was intended to return Grenada to full constitutional rule. This promise was kept save and-except
as it related to us. All aspects of the Independence Congtitution were restored by November 1984
except those sections dealing with the Courts Order. The Court's Order was kept suspended so as to
allow the Grenada 17 1o be tried in a court other than the constitutional court; in a special court which
was highty vulnerable to political control and manipulation. [See Genesis And Development OfF The
Unconstitutional Court Systen (And The Jury Seléction Procedures) Used To Try The Grenada 17.]

RETURN OF CONSTITUTIONAL COURT #1...

2) In 1985 the Court of Appedl ruled that the. special court was uncohstitutional and only
tetporarily valid. The Court.of Appeal declared that it expected the government of Grenada-to act with
reasonable dispatch to return to a constitutional court system. That was May 1985, This c-rcated the
legitimate expectation on our part that despite the plans of the politicians we would be tried by -_tht:
sonstitutional court. However, our sxpectation was dashed. In aarch 1086, nine months after the ruling

of the Court of Appeal, the trial of the Grenada 17 commenced in the unconstitutional court.




RETURN OF CONSTITUTIONAL COURT #2...

(3) Inl986 the Court of Appeal again called on the government to restore the constitutional court (o
Grenada. In response the government gave an undertaking to the Court of Appeal that the constitutional
court would be restored to Grenada from 1% January 1987. Based on this promise the Grenada 17 again

harboured the expectation that our appeal would be heard and.decided by the constitutional court. Yet
once again our legitimate expectation was dashed.

Instead of honouring the 1% January promise, in 1988 the govemnment of Grenada. connived witl
the other governments of the OECS, and the OECS heads decided that the-constitutional court would
not be allowed o operate in Grenada until the “Maurice Bishop Murder Case” (the case of the
Grenada :17) was disposed with. [Note carefully: They made disposal of the case of the Grenada 17
in the Unconstitutional Court (where they could hand-pick and control the judges) A
PRECONDITION for permitting the return of the Constitutional Court to Grenada. /bid. See also

P.M. Compton’s letter to PM Blaize of March 22°, 1988, entered into the Appeal Court record in April
1988.]

A GENUINE APPEAL COURT PROCESS...

(&) In March 1988, at the beginning of arguments in the appeal, thieh President of the Court of
Appeals, J.OF. Haynes, decided that he would summon the three key witnesses who testified against
us at the trial so that he could question them himgelf. President Haynes expressed serious disquiet about
the evidence that those witnesses gave at the trial. He was especially concerned about the evidence
given by one witness, Cletus St. Paul, whose evidence was the sole evidence used to convict the 10
NIM leaders among the 17 defendants. President Haynes said that he could not understand how the
same person could have given the five different statements that St. Paul gave, given the material
differences in them; and he ordered that St. Paul’s three police statements be produced and made part
of the court’s record. What Haynes’ ruling did was to create in us the expectation that ouwr lawyers
would get the opportunity to demonstrate to the court the fabricated nature of the evidence used to
scure our convictions. Once again our legitimate expectation was dashed,

In December 1988 President Haynes died. The appeal proceeded. The threé witnssses were not
questioned by the court; and St. Paul’s police statements were not produced. Indeed, the newly

constituted (unconstitutional) court rejected a request from- our legal counsel that they be produced for
both the defendants and the Court itseif.

THE RETURN OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL COURT #3...

(3) In July 1991 this newly constituted (unconstifutional) Court of Appeal upheld the convictions
against us. In that same month the government passed a law to restore the OECS Court to Grenada. The
1" of  August 1991 was set as the date of return. In late, July 1991 the Grenada 17 filed an action in
court with the expectation that that action would be transferred to the constitutional court in keeping
with the provisions of Act Neo. 19 of 1991. That was not to be. Once again the government acted 10
dash our legitimate expectations. The date for retumn of the court was hastily revoked so as to allow the
kangaroo cowt to hear and of course disruss our motion.

)

A WRITTEN.-JUDGEMENT IN THREE MONTHS —
NO, SEVEN MONTHS -— NO, TEN YEARS — NO...

6) In August 1990 arguments in the appeal of the Grenada |7 were gompleted. The Court _of Agpeal
proinised that it would give judgement within three months. Three months passed and no judgement
-ven. N r n . )

e giThe Court-of Appeal then promised that it would give a Wwritien judgement by March 1991
arch 1991 came and went. No written judgement. _ .
M In July 1991 the court gave an oral judgement. Up fo thts.day,‘ciose to 10 years after ;he
completion of arguments, the Grenada. 17 are still awaititig the written judgement so as to see whal
reasons the Court of Appeal could have had for upholding the convictions and to enable us to challenge

them.
RESTORATION OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL — FOR ALL EXCEPT...

() In July 1991 the jurisdiction of the OECS Count axf'd that of tpa E_’n’vy Council were rdestored :;
Grenada. Given the public importance of our case, and given the promise of those who ha 'assufmi
authority in Grenada to establish the rule of law, it was reasonable 1o expect that the case oidt 1::
Grenadz‘: 17 would be one of the cases which the Privy Council,.Grenada's highest court, wou
called on to determine authoritatively and once and for ali. Ti_us was -ncI)t to be. The government
included two discriminatory clauses in the law restoring the Privy Council so as to-ensure that the
Grenada 17 could never have access to the Privy Council.

FREEING TWO OF THE GRENADA 17
ON THE BASIS OF INDEPENDENT MEDICAL EVIDENCE...

(8) In 1995 the NNP government came {0 power promising to reconcile the people of Grenada, "

In January 1997 the Grenada Conference of Churches rec!ucs.tcd the government of. Grenada to
fres two of the 17 on health and humanitarian grounds. The application was backed up bx« mdcg;ndcnt
medical evidence establishing the precarious health situatio_n of the two. In ons case, 1 Iad‘dl'tlog k:Or
local medical experts, one of the Caribbean’s leading Urologists had been brought up from _Tn:mr.ffaﬁ 3
the government of Grenada to examine the individual, and in tll.ls other case, three Psyoluzurlsgs orr;
three different continents, two of them government-appointed, independently of ea_ch other zmw?d a
the same diagnosis and recommendation. The government nevertheless tl}ought it wise to put 11_15 issue
of the freedom of the two fo a national debate; to in essence allow the issue of clemency on m‘schcai
grounds for the prisoners 10 be decided on radio call-in- PrOgrarmes. At the end of the exercise ?In
March 11, 1997, the Mercy Committes, clearly swayed by adverse sentiments as expressed on the call-
in programmes, rejected the appeal of the GCC.

FREEDOM THROUGH A TRC #1...

(9) Responding two days after his government’s Mercy Committee’s unmerciful decxszt;m;grm;i_
Minister Mitchell expressed regret at the unforgiving nature o-f our peoPle and he thrc_w ouF _ 1:;3 1t e:;r .
setting up 2 TRC as the process throngh which to both r_ccorltcdc the tnz}‘t}on afti_l m;t};.e‘ li.?.,c.’:sii .‘?,.:0 u«e,. r
the Grenada 17. Bowever, Wis idea of a TRC was 1ol Mnpiemented. he I_’m_w;}um later v.-qm.int Of
his government had-been advised that it was too late for 2 TRC and that it would give rise to lots
legal problems.



o
IN LIGHT OF ALL THE ABOVE, QUESTIONS WE ARE FORCED TO ASK:

What reliel would a_government which feels unable to free an ailing woman be capable of

»

12_111.‘11@_*99 the other 16 of us?

s about the need to reconcile gy
did not go inte the gew millennjyyy,

carrying the baggage of the 1979-83 period.

In the latter half of 1999 we were led .to believe that
consideration to our matter. In June of 1999 the government set y
The Board is provided for in the Prison Rules (SRO 14 of 1980).

about the government’s determination to ensure that the country

I the government is unable to provide relief, why is it refusing to allow the case of the

- Grenada 17 to be decided by the Privy Council according to law?
the government -wag ZIVInNg serioy,

. _— . oy -elief
p the Prison Sentence Review Boarg, Why s It refusing to invest its own appointed Commission with the power to grant the relic

) : , 9

The Board is charged with the task of it, the government, is clearly unabie to grant? : ried
perodically reviewing the scntences of the long-term and young prisoners with a view to What guarantee do we have that any recommendations made by the TRC would be carriet
recommending their freedom. The Board had never been. set up before. Later in 1999, in speaking og e out? ©
the iSSllt? of ﬁrgemg the Grenada 17,. the Prime Ministgr said that thel issue of freeing the 17 fequired 4 Given our experience with the aborting of the legal process by blocking any appeal to the
process mvolving the Sentence Review Board and the Meroy ommitiee. Based on al IPPEATARCES e ‘b C il, and given our recent experience with the aborting of the Sentence Review
process was on. The level of personnel Cabinet selected for the board was read by us as a signal that Privy Council, & is 1] that the TRC process would be allowed to 2o to its
the maiier was beines aken seriously. The board was headed by Cabinet Mmistc:-; Mrs Brenda Hood, Board process, What guarantee is there

. iy ? -
And the other members were: Colonel Nestor Ogilvie, Nationai Security Advisor: Ms Lana Mc Phaif logical conclusion?

Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Health; Dr Obikoya, Consultant Pgychiatrist to the Government of

Grenada; and Mr Dhan Lalsee an evangelist, who is also an expetienced lawyer, Not only was this

all of us were also done by prison -officials for forwarding 10
one} was individually summoned before the Board 1o he

- : o i ' ent to his
me cases lasting up to severa) hours, we-were asked a range Prime Minister is on record as saying repeatedly - including once recently, subsequ
of questions, including sensitive questions surrounding the eventy of October 19" 1983, f

setting up the TRC — that not he as PM, not even his entire Cabinet, can decide on the

+ What guarantee is there that the TRC process would not ju.:st give rise to yet ano}her pr_(]}mcegls;
say for example, the appoiniment of a cabinet comzn{ttee 't‘o stut'iy the lssz'xtei 0 e
implementation of the recommendations of the TRC, with Uns.cnbmet cgmmi f!(:‘.“ﬂ th.e

i several months recommending that vet another process, a referenduimn, be held? [After all,

freedom of the Grenada 17. Only the people as a whole can decide the issu}e. f}k l:;}an 31‘;;’;’?
S N . , r the Grenadiar
At the end of this heartrending process our cxpectations have been dashed once again. Now we say, after the TRC has completed lts work, that he ahmy:i ﬂﬂltﬂegsih;te T:; 1':1(3 ;ay or paved
are hearing that all along the process was irrelevant and that it requires yet another process, the TRC, to people as a whole could decide- f‘llf‘-_ issue. The TRC began the pr ‘_;)c » leted i;y ’ho!ding .
deal with the question of making recommendations regarding our freedom, the way, for national reconciliation. The process must now be compleled
referendum on the issue!]
FREEDOM THROUGH A TRC#2...
(11)  Given all our experiences, how can we in all conscience buy the talk of ‘TRC’ when already e CONCLUSION AND COMPROMISE PROPQOSAL
s¢e a back-pedailing from some of the

promises made and CXpectations aroused. regarding this? Over
and over again it was said that the Commission would be a South Africa style one. Yet when it comes

to us the Commission is deprived of the South Africa-style powers. It can grant relief to everyone

to remain the preserve of the political directorate.

Given all of the above, we simply do not and cannot trust the government’s dangled promise of
except the 17. The granting of relief for The 17 15

t freedom through the TRC as it is presently structured. We call upon 'thc Gmna.da gov'emm_eq‘t t.(:l allow
' s to take our case before Grenada’s highest court, the Privy Council, s0 thc\ 1ssue of our free dqm or
i tentinned incarceration can be decided once and for all according to law. Fvery other Grenadian is

UNCONDITIONAL RELEASE FOR entitled to that. We are prepared 1o accept the decision of the Privy Council on this mater as final,

ONE OF THE GRENADA 17 WITH TERMINAL ILLNESS. .

: Such 2 determination of our matter is not inconsistent with the holdi_ng of a TRC. Indeed, as :i'c
(12} Recently we had a very good'example of the kind of relief the government feels able to grant fo have argued elsewhere, it would pave the way for a genuine TRC process smce’ cve_rygne T.:r::kiit; ?; ) de
the 17. Thiee years aftor thc =) vermment rejected the appeal of the-Grenada Conference of Churches to Y address the period without the issue ‘to free or not to free the Grenada 17" taking centre stage
graat clemency to Mrs Coard on health grounds, Mrs Coard was diagnosed as suffering from a life distorging the process.
threatening situation, to wit cancer, which had already spread. There is in Grenada a well established |

practice of unconditionally releasing prisoners suffering from lLife threatening ilinesses. There are

We theréfore concretely propose that the government amend Act #19 of 1991 so as io allow
-several precedents of such releases being ordered in the |

ast few years, including by the present US to take our case (i.e. our criminal appeal) to the .Px:iv)’ CO}mcil. If the pr(t)tcesstls ;fc::s;l::g :i
government. Indeed, in one case, an inmate ont 2 Death Sentence was unconditionally released when he this amendment, and if the state cooperates, .then it is possible for the m,ame: tl?e staging of the
was diagnosed with caricer. It would have been logical] therefore, for Mre Coard and her family 1o | the Privy Council in a matter of months. This w-?uld then cleaf‘.the- wa{ termined by the Privy
expect her unconditional release, to spend whatever time rémained of her [ife with her children. : Cin a short period thereafter. Indeed, even while sur app?f:lum ,t.}e:l:gqf e:;:;bla 1 13-;1 !;ﬁtwsm
However, in the case of My Codrd, despite the fact that she had already served a prison term of ; ouncil, preparations for the TRC could continue so that as little time = posEivle it
approximately 25 years, and disregarding the established practice and precedents, the onlv relief the b the twg events.

government felt able to grant Mrs Coard was six-honths respite fr

om her fermn of imprisonment. After
that she is to retum to prison unless an extension i5 granted,

-— el A
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Richmond Hill Prig, °
St. George's
T August op
Mr. Roy Raymond
Commissioner of Prisons
St. George's

Dear Commissioner Raymond,

We crave your indulgence to raise the following matters with you:

1. Wec would like to make a request for permission to meet and hofd consultations
with a representative, or representatives, of the legal firm of Augustine &
Augustine, as well as other legal representatives within and without ths
jurisdiction, on a periodic basis.

2. The purpose of these consultations would be:

| _ _ - | APPENDIX 12

(a) To discuss some broad preliminary legal and constitutional issues relative to
the case of the Grenada 17; and

(b) To discuss legal and constitutional issues, and legal representation, in relation

to the upcoming Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC}).

3.  Although we make this request (n our own right, we would be gratetul if

"17, who may wish l

permission could be extended to other members of the Grenada
to participate in the above.

We trust that you would use your good office to give due consideration to this impostan!
request.

Thanks for your understanding and cooperation,

Yours respectfully,

o A

elwyn H. Strachan

S et doe

Ewart J. Layne




c/o Mr. Ruggles Ferguson,
Augustine & Augustine,
Chambers,

Green Streel,

St. George's,

Grenada.

September 12, 2000.

The Comrnissioners,

The Truth and Reconciliation Commission, .
¢/0 The Chairman,

Justice Carl Rattray, QC.

Dear Sirs,
Re: Suggested List of Witnesses And Documents, infer alia,

To Be Subpoenaed/Examjned/Obtained By The Truth And Reconciliation Conmunission
In Order To Facilitate The Commission In The Carrving Out Of Jts Mandate

Please find enclosed a list of witnesses and documents which we the undersigned would like you
to subpoena and/or otherwise scek to have access to once hearings of your Commisston commence. We
attach a narrative to each witness and document explaining the nature and importance of the
information to be obtained from each source.

We do recognise that there would be certain difficulties in gaining access to some of the
witnesses and documents. However, we are of the view that the Commission should seek the
diplomatic and other assistance from the state to facilitate the examination of the various witnesses and
documents. We make this submission since, in our view, the lack of availability of the aforementioned
sources of information could seriously affcct our ability to discharge our burden of proving that we
have given truthful information to the Commission. We also note that unavailability of the sources
would make it virtually impossible for the commission to fulfil its mandate particularly under Para. 4
{a), (b) and (c) of the Terms of Reference.

1t may require, as part of such diplomatic ‘negotiations’, the willingness (and resource capability}
of the Commission to go to the US, UK, Jamaica, St. Lucia and Dominica to take ecvidence and
examine relevant documents.

We wish to inform you that as far back as October 1996 (long before any talk of a TRC was in
the air) persons in the US, acting with our concurrence, have been secking to obtain all of the
documents to which we refer in this communication. In this regard, legal action was instituted in the
Courts of the United States under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) (o have the documents
released. A court order was granted ingiructing various US government agencies to co-operate with the
request for the documents. However, the US agencies have invoked a range of exemptions under the
FOIA and they have been able to eroploy a range of devices to ensure that the process is slow and
costly.

Even sg, the documents so f
beyond reasonable doubt that th
various events in Grenads from
upheld the death.seniences agains

1979 onwards, up ¢ i i
7 P to and inclyding the appesl process which

We undertake to have deltvered to you the officjal

possession of our supporters, within fourtecn (14) days

Ommissi of commence ;
C sion. ment of hearings of your

Yours sincerely, v

Sighed:M

Bermard Coard

Signed: %ﬁ_

Ewart Layne

Signed: @w&

Leon ComWa.ﬂ‘

Signed: o JRCYR e Roy.

Selwyn. Strachap

Signed: L(M QM@ 2

Liam James

US government documents 0 far in the
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Attachment to Letter of September 12, 2000 to the Commissioners of the TRC,
Jrom Bernard Coard and Qthers, re List of Witnesses and Documents

LIST OF WITNESSES AND DOCUMENTS

Witnesses/Documents
and Relevance

Narrative

Relevant to Terms of Reference
Para. 2 (¢} and 4 {a), (b} and (c).

« US Qffjcials
(a) George Shultz (Former Secretary of State)

{b) Admiral John Pointdexter (Former National
Security Advisor)

{c) Col. Oliver North (Former officer in the
NSC)

(d) Casper Weinberger (Former Secretary of
Defence)

{e) George Bush (Vice-Presidént, Jan. 1981-
Jan. 1985)

= Documents held by the U.S. Administration
concerning the Invasion of Grenada.

These witnesses and documents can provide mlommaliog
which would show that the U.S. always wanted to invade
Grenada to put an end to the revolutionary process, and
that the Invasion on October 25, 1983 had more to dy
with U.S. strategic objectives and little lo do with any
pereeived threat to the lives of U.S. citizens.

-

—|

Caribbean Leaders.

{a) Ms. Eugenta Charles
(o) M. Edward Seaga
(c) Sir John Compton

These witnesses could provide information relating to )
decision of some CARICOM countries to join the U.S. &
the Invasion. This would also address allegations that the,

1U.8. Administration actually bribed the head of om

regional government to obtain the support of that head fof
the invasion. [See Edward Woodward, Veil: The Secré
Wars of The CIA...]

_.—r—'-"/

Sir Paul Scoon

“outline discussions with PRA leaders, the Trinidad
“Tobago government and the Commonwealth Secret¥|

He can provide information on the efforts of the PRA
Jeaders to resolve the situation peacefully betwee
October 19 and October 25, 1983. Specificaliy, he ¥

General, ete., re this. He can also address the issue 25 o
whether he invited the U.S. Administration to invade (1" !
if so, exactly when) and if any pressure was puf oft bt
following the U.S. Invasion to adopt that position.

g

ld‘

'(")'" Dr. Geoffiey Bourne, then Vice Chancellor of

Attachment {o Letter of September 12, 2000 16 the Commissioners af the TRC,
from Bernard Coard and Others, re List of Witnesses and Documents

"Mrs. Margaret Thatcher and
UK. representative in Grepada in October |
1983.

They would confirm the fact that no UIS. or any other
foreign citizens were in any danger between. October 19
and Ostober 25, 1983: They would also confirm the UK
Government’s .opposition to the Invasion and the reasons
for such, and therefore the deliberate failure of the U.S.
Administration to inform their closest ally, the UK
government, of its intention to invade.

the St
Medicine.

George’s University School of

He could provide information re:

() assurances given him by PRA Officers belween
October 19-25, 1983; his assessment then, and that of
his students, re any threat to them from PRARMC.

(b) discussions with U.S. officials pressuring him to
claim that his stadents were in danger so as to provide !
the basis for the Invasion; and

.(c) his University’s handling of the bodies of Maurice
Bishop, et al.

o

L

Transcripts of messages exchanged between:

fa) the govermnment of Trinidad & Tobago and
the military leaders in Grenada via Sir Paul
Scoon (between October 19-25, 1983)
aimed at resolving (he situation peacefully.
(See also, Hansard of the T&T parliament
for PM George Chambers’ speech on all of
this);

resolution to the Qctober ’83 crisis; That they were
prepared to allow into the country an infernational
commission ta investigate the events of Qctober 19, 1983

(b} Sir Paul Scoon and the Queen & Her aides

{c) Sir Paul Scoon and Commonwealth
Secretariat re 2 Commission of Inquiry into
the October 19, 1983 events.

{d) the fate PM Cato (and-one of his Ministers,
Burns Bonadie, acting.on.his behalf)y of St.
Vincent and General Hudson Austin (or

(between October 19-25, 1983); '

“Military Leaders in Grenada”) in the
period October 19-25, 1983 [aimed at

reputable figures from outside Grenadal.

instituting: a Commission of Inguiry of |




Attachment 1o Lettez of September 12, 2000 io the Commissioners of the IRC,
Jrom Bernard Coard and Others, re List of Witnesses and Documents

{a) Fidel Castro (Cuba’s President)

(b) Mz, Julian Rizo (Cuba’s Ambassador to
 Grenada, 1973-19%83)

(c) Mr. Gaston Diaz (Deputy Ambassador at |

the Cuban Embassy in Grenada. 1979-1983)

directly involved in the October 1983 crisis from as e’
as October 8, 1983. President Castro is on public yecar’
as acknowledging that PM Bishop requested Cub¥
military intervention in Grenada on October 19, 198°
from his locaion at Fort Rupen upon taking over fh
Fort with a civilian crowd; I is our submission that
events of October 1885 be undersiood withowt f’;

L7602 Cannot
insight into' the Cuban activities.

7

Attachmeny to Letter of September 12, 2000 10 the Commissioners of the TRC,
from Bernard Coard and Others, re List of Witnesses and Documents

il Relevant to Para. 1 (). 4 @), () & () 7 T ' Relevant to Para. 2 (b)
: : 3l _
) { Members of the leadership of the Grenada { The GDM was an organisation of Grenadiang bageq and 4 @), D& ()
Democratic Movement (GDM) during the | cutside of Grenada which was reportedly bent o 1 . ——
period 1979-1983 bxmvmg zbout the downfall of the Revolutioy bl 0 @ Capt. Forde of the.U.S. Military;
violence. The GDM had close finks with the CIA gy {(6) Former Cpl. Earl Browne of the JDF;
(a) Dr. Francis Alexis — Barhados based. worked together with the CIA in pursuit of 1ts objectives | (c) Sir Paul.Scoon;
(b) Dr. Keith I»iitci1c§"— Washington, DJ'C._,iT GDM/Barretie activiﬁcs throughout the 1979-83 period, | {4y Dr. Geoffrey Boume;
U.S.A. based !
. N .. ' 112} | Records of the St. George’s University Medical
(¢} Ms. Denise Campbell — Trinidad &Tobago: ) @ Schaol and the U.S. rﬁm tary relati?:g to the
based - | | recovery and disposal of bodies in Grenada
(d) Mr. Ragn.oig Bepjamin -~ Trnidad & (3) i Records of all US agencies related to the
Tobago base | recovery and disposal of the bodies of Maurice
: Bishop and any other bodies recovered together
, 2} | M. Leonard Barretie He was the CIA case officer based in the U.S. embassy n with his: v
' Trinidad who co-ordinated with the GDM members based |/ ’
- 3 in Trinidad (during the 19791983 Grenada Revalution). ! gy | At the St George's  University
- 3) | ClA documents deah'ng with the CIA relations | ’ ‘Professor/Doctor (Dr. Jordan) who cxam_incil
Wlt.h _ﬂ_le G[_)Mj and with regm:d to US covert i the bodies on behalf of the U.S. Military, '
activities within Grenada during 1979-1983, fg '
and outside Grenada but, directed at the (5) | Also; the two Grenadians who assisted in that
Grenada government, the state and ifs 't | process: Anita Parke and one Mr. Belgrave;
personnel. !
_ ' . ’ 6) | Clinton Bailey, the Undeitakér;
The data so far listed under this heading would | |
also provide the evidential basis for the :U) Bro. Robett Fanovich and the PBC FYounp
concemns of both the PRG (throughout the I | Leaders who investigated the entire matter
rovolution) and the Military Leaders in the é AND all the documents they collected and the
October 19-?“.3’ %983 period re externally- ' report they wrofe. Their extensive research is
?ase:? {!estabzlzsm:‘wn f cars, and its e:ff,cCTS/ role | also relevant to paragraph #2 (a) of the Terms
in driving/escalating the internal crisis in the of Reference.
Revolutionary Process.
s _ R
Cuban Officials There is evidence that the government of Cuba becat™

Each of these [#1 (a), (b), (¢}, (d)] played some role,

andUor possessed important information with regard to the

recovery and disposal of the remains of Mawice Bishop
and ofhers.




Attachment 10 Letter of September 12, 2000 to the Commissioners ¢f the TRC,
from Bernard Coard and Othars, re List of Witnesses and Documents

Relevant to the Legal Process
and to Para. 4 (a), {b), (¢) & (d)

Investigation of events of Oct. 19, 1983
(a) Jasper Watson (B'dos)

{b) Ashford Jones (B’dos)

(c) Colin Brathwaite (B’dos})

{d) Courcey Holder (B’dos)

{e) Darryl Weeks (B’dos)

(f) Phiilip Isaacs (Antigua)

4 This is the team of foreign police which catried oyt 4,
4 investigation which led to the prosecution of the Grengg, ¥

17. Several members of the 17 were tortured and forceq

to sign ‘confessions’ by this team of policemen, g

Inspecior John of the Police Force of
Dominica.

Grenada 17,
imvestigation.

Col. Nester Ogilvie

He was in charge of the Caribbean Peace Keeping Forc:s -
when the second round of tortures took place

February/March 1984. Complaints were made to him. He

was also wamed that Mis. Phyllis Coard was to be taken|
out to be tortured since the foreign police were boasting
about it in advance. He refused to intervene despite the
fact that the police team fell under his command. {

Then Capt. Saunders of the JTDF

et

Some of the complaints of tormurg were made to him ﬂii
the time. His actions in response need to be recorded.

(5)

The rank-and-file JDF  soldiers with
circumstantial evidence of the tortures, There
was one of East Indian background who,
having regard to the earlier round of tortures (in
November, 1983) refused to leave General
Austin with the above listed persomel {#1 (a)-
()] unless he-could see (though not hear) what
was going on. The foreign police refused to
guestion  General  Austin  under  this
arrangement, and the interview with him was
then aborted, They went to ‘higher authority’,
as they put it, and won the right to question
members of the Grenada 17 outside of both the

' sight and hearing of the soldiers guatding them. |

That's when the gecond round of tortures
resumed and continued, resulting in most
members of the NJM Central Committee being

tortured. This man, and the othery, would need

e

to be tracked down, with the help of the JDF.

i w!
_ | P
After complaints of torture were made by members of ! | ®
he was mandated to carry out an| o

Httachment to Letter of September 12, 2000 to the Commissioners of the IRC,
from Bernard Coard and Others, re List of Witnesses and LJocuments

. ’-_._____-——.'”—._ K
}Jrosﬂcutors

i | ) Ms. Velma Hylton

(b) Mr. Kas! Hudson-Phillips
" | () Mr. Michael Andrews

Tt is the submission of the Grenada 17 that evidence was
fabricated to secure convictions against us. In particular,
fabricated evidence was given by Bevetly Ann Charles,
Fabian Gabriel and Cletus St. Paul. It 1s a very feasonable
presumption that the first two named prosecutors must
have been aware of the fabricated evidence. '

What was Hudson-Phillips® role in recruiting Time
Kendall to replace J. O. F. Haynes as a member of the
Appeal Court, following the lattet’s death?

In light of recent declasgified US government documents,
what were all the discussions that these two (separately
and together) had with US officials about the Grenada 17,
case — and with the Trial and Appeal Court Judges -
while the Grenada 17 case was being heard?

Ms, Denise Carapbell

-She was the Registrar/Prosecution lawyer who drew up
“the Jury panel in clear violation of the law. [Note also her

| role referred to in IT (1) () above.]

She as well as Judee Denis Byron and Velma Hvlton will
need to be questioned re s possible conspiracy on their
part to dismiss the Registrar Mr. St. Louis and appoint her
as Registrar (in the period 1% _ 6% March, 1986). Re also
asking St. Louis weeks in advance for his list of selected
Jurors, etc.

{¢) Mr Rex NcKay

_I;Idgas The ndges who dealt with the matter of the Grcﬁéda 17

(a) Justice Dennis Byron al} did so on special appointment and all received special
) | emnoluments for so doing,

(b) Sir Frederick Smith

Tt is the submission of the Grenada 17 that the judges
should be uestioned as 1o the size of the smoluments, the
negotiations which took place with regard to them and the
disputes which arose over payment so as to assess the
propriety of such payments and whether the fact of these
payments was in breach of the principle that ‘ustice must
not only be done but manifestly be ssen to be done’.

They would also need to be questioned with regacd to all |
discussions they may have held with US officials winie
thev were trying the Case of the Grenada 17. [This, in |

light of recenfly declassified US government docurents,
re the US’ involvement in the judicial process of the
Grenada 17. Indeed, some of these documents — the ones

g0 far declassified ~ specificaliy refer to such discussions
‘ with some of the judges while our case was in progress.]

6




Attachment to Letter of September 12, 2000 to the Commissioners of the TRC,
Jrom Bernard Coard and Others, re Lrsr of Witnesses and Documents

Mrs. Celiz Clyne-Edwards

Zlnge

She would need to be questioned to ascertain her prec,
role: how much she did or did not know: who gave heg
hier instructions to take a statement from Gabriel for the
Prosecution to use; etc. I

Mr. Odel Adams (currcﬁily Justice Odel
Adams)

4 Phillips and Velma Hylton expressed their displeasure 4
| her answers, and demanded that Magjstrate St. Paul le
: them examine her again, in a few days’ time (after thc
it weekend). They did, and only then did she come with i

‘throat and finger of Maurice Bishop, etc. Adams ma

He 'qu"elstioned Beverly Ann Charles at the P.I On:
completing his examination-in-chief, Karl Hudsop.

hortific fabricated story about Redhead and cutting the

have something to say abt_mt what happened within th'
Prosecution t;am_ re this and other issues. and Rﬂ
statement(s) given to 1 everlv_Ann Charles. He !

. (".-.-‘
Re the chief prosecutors: this Attomey-at-Law playeg > +(12)
role in the recruitment of Fabian Gabriel to gty
‘testimony (which turned out to be subomed) in cxch

for his not being tried for murder.

Attachmeni lo Letier of Seprember 12, 2000 1o the Commissioners of the TRC,

from Bernard Coard and Others,

re List of Witnesses and Documents

Police statements of Beverly Ann Charles and
Cletus St. Paul, Chris Linton, Errol George

| testimony, at the P.L and at the ‘Trial’; especially in light

‘statements would also need to be compared with that of

All three statements gwen by Cletus St. Paul to the Police
need fo be examined, in conjunetion with lus swom

of President Haynes’ statement in open court on March 8,
1982, wondering how one person could have given five
(5) different statements of this kind, and ordering him to |
appear before the Appeal Coutt.-to be questioned. These

would have to also be questioned as to whether kis
departure from the prosecution shortly after was related o
any perception of pr osecutorial misconduct,

(1)

_—-—v“I

My, Ben Jones

1 tabulated, to nearly one million EC dollars each).

. with a former chancellor of the Judiciary in Guyana, “nd1
a former Chief Justice of Jamaica, re geiting one of thef,

10 be the trial judge in the case of the Grenada 17. l

"Also, re his role - and Karl Hudson-Phillips’ - ¥

He was the Attorney General dur ing the period when thtl
emelumenis for the judges wers negotiated and wmked
out. He also provided the answer to a question in ﬁ‘f
Senate from Senator Derck Knights QC, regarding el
emoluments paid to the judges -(amounting, whe:

He would also need to be questioned re his ncgotiationﬂ!

contracting Judge Byron to be the trial judge. [Hudso®
Phillips went fo Antigua personally, to recruit Byron fo
the - Grenada Government] What were all U°
‘anderstandings’/agreementsfierms and condl“"”s
entered into (or attempted) with these various pwi’le

[Should government ministers have been property playl®
any role re the Grenada 17 trial?? And should the C
Prosecutor for the cage have been the chief recruite! ofl

the Judges to lwear the case at various levels??] .~
. |

?

i

\ Erol George and Chris Linfon,
13) | Witnesses |
(a) Cletus St. Paul
(b) Beverly Ann Charles
{c) Fabian Gabriel
(d) Walter Charles
{e) Errol George
(f) Chris Linton ’
{g) Keith Roberts
(14) | Brigadier Lewis of the Barbados Defense Force | Secret US government documents reveal that he was
involved in discussions with US Embassy officials as to
which of the 14 condemned prisoners of the Grenada 17
shonld hang. Such discussions took place in 1988, three
years before the completion of the appeal hearings. He
would also need to be questioned as to  his
role/relationship to the Judges hearing the case of the
Grenada 17 and/or the Prosecutors in the case and/or the
Government of Grenada, given the detailed, ‘decision-
making’ character of the discussions recorded m these
official US documents. His testimony could, in other
words, shed light on precisely who was making both
judicial and executive decisions with respect to the
Grenada 17.
[r——
(15) [Tetter of 22°° March, 1988 from PM John | This letter from the then Head of the OECS Authority to

Compton of St. Lucia to PM H.A. Blaize of
Grenada re the return of the Constitutional
Court to Grenada in the context of the case of
the Grenada 17.

Also, other cotrespondence between Grenadian
and other QECS Leaders, between January

the then PM of Grenada makes clear the political nature
of the decision re the return of the Constitutional Couri to
Grenada, and that its retumn was being consciously and
deliberately timed to prevent the Grenada 17 having, their
case go before the Constitultenal Court system - with its
right of appeal to the Privy Council.

uﬁd, and August 1991, re the Grenada 17 and
re the return of the Constitutional Court system.




Attachment to Letter of September 12, 2000 to the Commissioners of the TRC,
from Bernard Coard and Others, re List of Witnesses and Docisnents

#

Dr. Richard Gibson of Wiyne State University, { He is the chief person who has been making éﬂ"orm i!
Michigan, U.S.A. US to obtain documents related to the Grenada evenls.

expert witness,

He spent approximatety nine months in Grenada in 1996 |
as a Fulbright Scholar. He did research as to the
psychological effect and impact of the work of the Ug
Psychological Warfare Battalion which participated in the
US Invasion and occupation of Grenada, He can be ap

APPENDIX 13
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Source(s) of

Into The Breakdown Of Law And
Order In Grenada, 1973-1 974,
Government of Grenada, St.
George’s, 1974

Revelution, by Ewart Layne.
unpubtished Manuscript, 1988.

| making of the 1979 Grenada Revolution; and (¢)
conflict with some elements: Strachan Phillip, the Bu

the basis for the March 13

M .
Documents, ‘an uscripls, The Signtificance of the Information for the TRC’s Mandate Obtaining the
Books, Articles, etc. !
Documents/items
Although it describes events which oocurred before 1976, this definitive and | Governor General’s
thoroughly objective and impartial report is indispensable for__an | Office;
understandine of what led fo-the events described in the next document. and | Govertunent
" 1979 Grenada Revolution, - | Printery,
o Public Library.

Written by Lt. Col. Ewart Layne, it i§ an eyewi
(a) the circumstances leading to and the actial pro
Gairy regime; (b) the defacto genesis. of’
decision ever taken by the Party, NIM, was taken (involving as it did bfe
death): the decision to ovesthrow
various persons ceniral (on both

including Youssef, Habib Ali and Ayub (the ones who died at Mt. Ric

1980).

iness ‘insiders’ account into:
cess of the overthrow of the
Joint Leadership within the New

jewel Movement (NIM); (¢) the manner in which the single most important

Gairy by ammed means; (d) the roles of
sides) to the October 1983 crisis in the
the roots of thg future
dlhall brothers™ grouping,

and

h in

We will endeavour
to have .gomgone
deliver a copy io the
Commission.

The Minutes of all meetings of the
Ceniral Committee, Potitical
Burearn, Economic Bureau,

Organising Committee, and
General Meetings of the New
Jewel Movement, from March 1 979
to October 1983,

Particularly important are:,

=th

'(a) 5™ April, 1981 CC Meeting,

These ate records taken by fulltime Party Secret
were in piogress, and circulated and approved at the following meetings.
. A careful stody of them will help answer many questions: .

(2) Was there an ideological split in the leadership of NIM?

+

() Was there a genuin'e
personal power stroggle?

(c) Was there a conspiracy by a small clique
removing PN Bishop from power and replacing him with Deputy

Bernard Coard?

{b) October 1982 CC Meeting

| These documents would also reveal the following:

e alteapgamia .

FL

aries while these meetings

in the leadership .aiined at

orisis in the Party and Revolution, or simply 2 "

PN

United States
. govemnment
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Attached List of Dacumentation

. e
The U.S. Invasion Of Grenada In

The Context Of Cuba-Grenada
979-1983, unpublished
by Lt Col Ewart

October 1983:

December 1989.

Bishop's

London. 1984

e
The Missing Link,

‘Booklet by John ‘Chalky” Ventour,

- I
tn Nobody’s Backyard: Maurice

speeches,
Chris Searle (ed.),

EE P

FEEE B 5 -

1e Letter of Septembet 11, 2000 to TRC

C OIMIMISSIONET 5, T oM Bernard, Coar

0o T0 ISTTT Payoeny

D
This work is vital for the un erstanding of?

(a) The Cuban rofe in
detailed insider’s account of the totality

before March 13, 1979, io the atrival
following March, i3, 1979, to the nature and extent’
polifical links established and devéloped over the 4%
leading up to and inciuding the crisis and tragedy
secret negotiations between the Cuban and US Gov

before the landing of US troops,

(b) The Cuban role in the days just be
Grenada.

This paper focusses on thie Cuban role in the inte

in October 1983 It was written originally as
and later publisted without authorisation, by
been given a copy. This document sheds critical' light on:

‘Amv The reasons_for the catastrophically wrong) decision
ander ‘House Argest’; :
(b) Why.the s tem of d

(c) The ‘deal’ struck by Cuba and the
1983 to facilitate the U5 Invasion.

fo.

US between October 19

ut especially the ones exXpr

fears, concerns, etc., OVer foreign
the anthentic-context of the outside

for invasiof, ¢ _
:ﬁ.mmomﬁmmzm under throughout its 414 years of existence.

of:
(a) 118 political detentions, militaris
indeed, paranoia;

the fact that four-jifths of all members_o

were_in illhealth (many

-

1979-1983.
7ed -Books,

ation, constant stale of

0]

el meia, =

the October 1983 crisis and Tragedy. It gives 2} g _
of Cuba-Grenada relations, from overnmen,
of the first Cubans in Gremada

UWwWlIl,
1 Mona Campus,
of the :&.&Q and | yinoston,
years, 8...@5 events | Jamaica.

of October 1983; and the
ernments in the days

fore and during the US Invasion of

1 Party and aational crisis | Copy enclosed.

a confidéntial letter
an ‘American academic who had

efacto Homm:_.ﬁnmmm.armm within the NIM. broke dovn;

The, speeches taken as-a totality, b
(ie: US) interferenc® and even preparations
regsure the PRG felt-
This js the-contést

£ the Leadership (PB._and o
hospitalised for brief p epiods_on_and off)

Dr. Brian Meeks,
Depariment of

to a'friend,

ot P.ME wmwwm,.

and Qctober 23,

S
The Publishers

ossing the PRG’s

alert psychology:

and |
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Attached Iist of Documentation re I etter of Septernber 11, 2000 to TRC Commissioners, from Bernard Coard

chronically exhausted, physically and mentaily, by the time of September-, |
October, 1983. [All of the above comes out of a combination of studying
some ‘'of the key specches in this book, plus several of the ‘minufes. of Party |.
meetings at all levels of the Party.]

Ronald Redgait’s Speech of March
10, 1983, and ‘the:'speeches of 'the
other US Administration officials

In this and the other speeches p(éccding and following it (atmed at prepaiing
the American public for an mvasion of Grenada later in the year) Reagan
declares to the US nalion on Radio and TV that ‘Grenada is a threat 10 the

The ﬂ’:mshingtan!
Post and The New

{Defence _and _ State Depariment,

York Times of
National Securityof the United States’.

etc.) in the weeks bclforc' and after
that speech.

March 11, 1983, and
other issues of these
papers for the period
January to August,;

:Thcse speeches are also_important in considering_ that sense of enormous
extemal pressure and threat that the PRG felt under, in 1983.

1983.

- *The Invasion of Grenada: A Pre No fitend of the Grenada Revelution, the author of this article was the head of | This ~ Article '“ is
and Post-Mortem’ by Robert the Latin American & QCaribbean Section of the National Security Council | enclosed. ‘
Pastor, in The Caribbean After (NSC) under President Carter, and one of his closest Sevurity Advisors, when
Grenada: Revolution, Conflict and | the Grenada Revolution occurred on March 13, 1979, He remained in this
Democracy, edited by Scoti B. Mc  (“position for_the first 22! months, or over forty percent. of the life of the
Donald, Herald M. Sandstrom, and { Grenada Revolution. He later headed (until recently) the Carter Centre, and
Paul B. Goodwin, JR., Praeger, was, Carter’s chief negoiiator for political seitlements in Haiti, Guyana,
New York, 1588 Indonesid, Sudan-Uganda (border problems), and many other parts of the

world. He has had full access to 1.8, documents on Grenada, and to all of the

PRG’s and NIM’s documents seized and still held by the TUS. The author

examings with the help of all the relevant documentation, cach and every one |

. 4 of the arguments put forward by the Reagan Administration (and others) for
o the Invasion of Grenada, and critically assesses each.
— - : _ - ¥ e . — = = g
The Preliminary Inquiry  (P.L) { This court record contains the sworn testimony of witnesses: Supreme Court
t Court Record {(March-Angust, 1984) . ) ) ) Registry
(a) not called by the Prosecution at the *Trial’ because their testimony would

. | - have been embarrassing to its casg;

(b) witnesses who provided vital information in their festimony at the P.L but
. did not repeat this information at the “Trial’;
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Attached List of Documentation e Letter of September 11, 2000 to TRC, Cornissioners, from Bermayd Coard
[ o o . courts, and presently

in the possession of,
associates in the
Us.]

15. | Cletus-St. Paul’s: These are vital documents for understanding the personal role and contribution | United States
_ ] . o of Maurice Bishop to the crisis, and of Cletus St. Paul in facilitating matters. It | govemment

(a) Signed Confession, W0 | also establishes the perjured nature of his P.L and “Trial’ .am:w:mm:w on the
,w@%ﬁ:_a to his and Maurice.| qyestioni of the rumour and his role in it.

Bishop’s 1ole in gpreading the! -
Rumour of Qctober. 12, 1983 |
(which turned an internal Party
crisis into a national crisis and
led ultimately to the tragedy);

[They seized copies
of these from the
homes of PRG
Security officials
and police files.]

(b) Handwritten lefter of apology'to’
the Party Leadership regarding
the sarme matier;

(¢) Tape-recorded confession
regarding the same matier. .

On March 8, 1988, President of the Grenada Court of Appeal, Géoff Hayries, | #  Karl Hudson-
thonths he had studied all 34 volithes of the Philtips, QC,

Girt that be found Cletus St. Paul’s évidence | *  Velma “Hylton,
(among others) ‘fishy’; “too pat’. Because of this, he had requesied St. Paul’s- QC,

Police statemnent, only to discover then that St. Paul gave three (3) to the | * Office of the
he found each different from the others in DPP, Grenada,

16. | Cletus St. Paul: His nﬁao._..ﬁw .On :
different Police Statements on_the | stated that, aver the previous four
events of Oclober 1983. Court Record. He informed the co

Police. Upon studying them, ]
important ways, and feom his sworn P.L and ‘Trial’ testimony. He could not | # Police HQ,
understand how one person coiild have given five (5) different statements on Gréfada, :
the same matter. He ordered St. Paul's appearance before his Court to be | * United =~ States
questioned. Soon after, President Haynes died. Sir Frederick Smith was made |  Government

President, the order cancelled, and all requests by the défence to see-these | Ary, THE ABOVE.
thiee siatements rejected. SHOULD _ HAVE

COPIES.
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Antached List of Documentation re Ledcr of September 11, 2000 to TRC Commissioners, friom Bernard Coard

These are eyewitnesses to the activities of those NIM CC members who were | We will seck to ge\‘)
at Fort Fredenick on October 19, 1983. They contrast with the perjured | these from lawyers
testimony of the ‘star’ prosecution wiiness, Cletus St. Paul. in the United
Kmgdom and
Canada, and have
them delivered to the
Commisstofi.

Affidavits of Errol Geprge, Keith
Roberts, and -some others who
* weré at Fort Frederick at the time
of the CC members, on October 19,
1983.

Sworn to in 1991-1992,

The Publishers

18.

Fidel Castro, Nething Capn Stop the
Conrse Of History, Interview with
Jeffrey M. Eliot and Meryyn
Dymally, Pathfinder, New York,
1985.

Here, Castro reveals that Maurice Bish'op contacted him -from Fort Rupert |
(after taking it over with the civilian crowd) on October 19, 1983, through the-
Cuban ambassador in Grenada, Julian Rizo, to ask for Cuba’s Military’

interveution to crush the NJM CC and the PRG’s Army. The implications
of this, had it occurred, are mindboggling.

'
t

19

The Thirty-Eight (38) Grounds of

Appeal of the Grenada 17 from the
“Trial’

This provides a condensed examination of the major irregularities of the
“Trial’.

M.
QC=
Chambers,
Kingston,
Jamaica,

Ian Ramsay,

Prime Minister Chambers’
statements to the Trinidad and
Tobago Parliament on negotiations
between the Trinidad .government
and the RMC in Grenada, between
October 19 and 25, 1983.

The Wiitten Judeement of .the |

Grenada Court of Appeal .{March
1988-July 1991)

Presentation Boys® College (PBC)
Young Teaders Project Report on

the disposal of the bodies of thase

who died at Fort Rupert on October

15, 1583.

This would reveal the attitude of General Anstin and the others to a
Commission of Inquiry (appointed by the Sccretary General of the
Commonwealth and/or by CARICOM) into the October 19™ Events. See also
the Article by Bob Pastor (referred fo earlier: # 10) on this matter.

 Trinidad and Tobago
Parliament’s
Hansard.

Hopefully, the TRC Commissioners will have greater luck in extracting this

document from:the Judges, than the Appellants and their Lawyers?!!

1 President of this
1 defonet court.

Sir Frederick Smiih,

This Report, laboriously compiled over many wmonths, and im:oivinér

interviews with several key persons and the examination of pertinent
documents, covers the following:

Brother Robert
Fanovich,
PBC,

St. George’s.

L
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The Missing Link




I

Copyright © 1999

Ocrober 1953 The Missing Link

. This "Missing Link" none. of us have ever publicly
exposed; notwithstg;_i‘d_i'ng -our very strong feelings over
Cuba’s interference in, our intetnal’ affairs] and, ouripredica-
ment —— that we are facing death. We do_not want to-give
US Imperialigm any ammunition to-use against the Cuban
Revoliitienary’ Process, *Party and . Goversminent) givens the
overail tremendous role. Cuba has‘_xpl‘ayed'wit_h‘in_,the World
Progressive arid Revolutionary Maveme;mi Also;: e do, not
want to be accused of using this information to save our
lives (or to give anyone any excuse to say so).

I'd requested my friend not to even reveal to anyone
the fact that Fidel played a decisive role in causing the Octo-
ber 1983 Tragedy. And she has respected. my confidence.
We —- surviving NIM Leaders — had instructed others that
in the event we are dead — murdered under the guise of the
Judicial process — all (the full) details of Cuba's relation-

_ship to the NJM and Grenada Revolution over the 4Y; years

should be made public. [This is, of course, contained in a far
larger, more detailed, indeed comprehensive document on
Cuba-Grenada Relations.] We felt that such information
should only be exposed = and in the correct fora, only
among Revolutionary, Progressive, ftaternal friends — at a
time when there would be no personal motive to be gained
from so doing, but that of establishing the TRUTH, for the
historical record. So that this could be lessons for the future,
that National Liberation Movements and Revolutionary/
Progressive Parties would be aware of what -had transpired,
and would be on guard against making similar (and possibly
fatal} errors.

Only a few months ago I was able to read, for the
first time, an interview Fidel held (sometime in 1986, 1 be-
lieve) with US Congressman, Mervyn M. Dymally, Chair-
man of the Congressional Black Caucus in the USA. It is

OCTOBER 1983: The Missing Link

The enclosed document was written by me in Sep-
tember 1988, as part of a lefter to a close friend in an at-
tempt to expiain to her some aspects of what happened in
the NJM and Grenada Revolution in October 1983 which
are completely unknown outside of those intimately in-
volved in that crisis.

This was motivated by the fact that after 5 years of
US propaganda, and even after 2 9 month kangaroo Show
Trial which pronounced me and the 'Grenada 17 "guilty of
murder,” the majority of Grenadian people are still con-
fused: they do not understand how and wity October 19,
1983 occurred in Grenada. And to add to their confusion has
been Fidel Castro's loud protestations of Cuba’s "honourable
role [in the Grenada events}” and his vehement, virulent and
hysterical attacks on the surviving Leadership of NJM and
the Grenada Revolution; his calls for "exemplary punish-
ment" for us Grenadian Revolutionaries. As some persons
have told me, at times Cuba's propaganda against us ap-
pears to be indistinguishable from that of the US Reagan
Administration; that it sometimes seems as though Fidel
wants us dead more than US Imperialism. They are not far
from the truth.-But they don't know why.

I know, too, that many fraternals, trade unionists,
etc. who have been engaged in solidarity work on my (and
the 'Grenada 17°) behalf are also confused. As one
Grenadian patriot and MBPM member has . told me:
"Chalky, there is something wrong. I don't believe this
[October 19* Tragedy] could just occur so. There is some-
thing else. But I can't find the missing link."

3

John ‘Chalky’ Ventour

contained in a booklet Nothing Can Stop The Course Of
History. *

Then only recently [ have become aware of a "mind-
blowing" act: Cuba's efforts — through the Head of the
Americas and Caribbean Department of the World Federa-
tion of Trade Unions, who is a Cuban — to block assis-
tance to me, a frade unionist, to help me in my struggle to
expose the Kangaroo Show Trial through which | was rail-
roaded by the US Reagan Administration and its local pup-
pets, and for my human and constitutional right to receive a
free and fair trial. And more than that: six years after their
interference which greatly contributed to the Great Tragedy
they still continue their "Isle of Youth™ policy towards Gre-
nada; not only blocking W.F.T.U. assistance to me, but also
to the two largest Trade Unions in Grenada on the ground
that they "need a clean bill of health." They want to now de-
cide for the workers of Grenada who should be their Trade
Union leaders?! It is clear that they have leamed nothing
from the Grenada Tragedy of 1983, nor even from the pro-
found changes unfolding not only inside the Soviet Union
but, just as significantly, in the qualitative development in
the Soviet Union's relations with other fraternal parties and
countries, in recent years.

This has convinced me that the position of not re-,
vealing to our friends "The Missing Link," before the final
outcome of our ('The Grenada 17") case, is no longer correct.

This document, therefore, is for your personal infor-
mation. It is NOT TO BE PUBLISHED.

__(signed) — o
John Anthony Ventour

December 21st, 1989




October 1983: The Missing Link

I am convinced, Wendy, that there's no way people,
particularly the Grenadian People, would be able f0 really
understand — to come to grips with — what happened. in
October 1983 without their knowledge of the decisive role
Fidel played in the crisis. Notwithstanding the US role in
spurring on the crisis and manipulating the October 19
1983 demonstration, using their agent provocateurs, 1 am
also convinced, Wendy, that without FC's interférence in our
party's affairs the dark clouds of wagedy which descended
over and engulfed our country on October 19, 1983, would

not have occurred. The Grenada Revolution would probably
be alive today.

Many people have said, Wendy, that they just cannot
understand how one or two differences among comrades
who were always so united, who experienced so much ad-
versities together, could rapidly lead to such an enormous
Tragedy in one week! Why — and how could Maurice lead
a mob of people to overrun and seize the Army's H.Q.? This
isn't done anywhere in the World. [In the entire history of
our Party's struggle against the Gairy Dictatorship, never
once did we ever encourage the people to march on even a
small police station.in an outlying rural area, much less the
Army H.Q. Many persons [eft the.demonstration on October
19, when they realised that it had been diverted from the
route to the Market Square and was heading to Fort
Rupert.]

Notwithstanding -the role that George Louison,
Cletus St. Paul, Shahiba Strong, Don' Rojas, etc. played in
manipuiating Maurice, surrounding and saturating him with
"conspiracy” theories and gossip, etc. (while- in Eastern
Europe) to get him to reverse his support for Joint Leader-
ship of the Party, | believe that Maurice would not have
violated such a Party decision (he never did 'b_efore), or

6
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Ocrober 1983: The Missing Link

catastrophic dimensions would occur? That the Leader of
the Grenada Revolution would be dead? Eh, Wendy, who

could?

September 26, 1983, a General Meeting of Can-
didate n?:mbelzs of the P also supported and endorsed the Ec;
membership's decision on JL of the P, aniid on the \f\reekcn
of Friday Sept. 30% — Sunday October 2 , @ special Party
Conference of all levels of the P mf:-mbersh:p — full z;lem(;
bers, Candidate members and Applicants — discussed aq .
decided on the implementation (of J.L and) of 2 nmnbe;r(:
other reorganisational measures designed to pull the Party.

out of its crisis.

Now, Maurice and the P and State Delegation to
Czechoslovakia and Hungary were scheduled to return 0
Grenada via London; that was their travel plan. Obvmusg,
therefore, we were all very surprised to leam tl}at opf t}
night of October 7" Cletus St. Paul teiephoz}ed his chief o
Personal Security (P.S.), Lt. Ashley ‘R'am Eolkes, from
Cuba. Nomally, Wendy, whenever Mauncc-wen.t on a state
visit abroad he would (as is expected) establish contact

fhome — with Bernard and/or Selwyn Strachan —fo letthem

know where he was (phone no., etc.), ho'w the visit was \;:ro-
gressing, and also 10 be apprised of things at home. ::ry
surprisingly, and unprecedentedly, Wendy, fiunng the- cnllr;
Eastern European trip abroad — from the time Maunce le
and returmed home — no such contact was_macie. No one
knew where he was at various stages of the trip.

Wendy, several party members and members of the
P.S. umt were part of the delegation to Eastern E;g%pcé
They were, therefore, not present at the. September 2
General Meeting or the weekend Party C?Eference. d.as
on their accounts, given at the October 13" Extraordinary

g.

John ‘Chalky’ Ventour

spread the October 12" grave rumour (which brought the
Party Crisis into the open and sparked off the National po-
litical crisis), were it not for the interference of FC in our
Parly’s internal affairs. If, for whatever reason, Maurice no
longer felt that Joint Leadership was correct he would have
sought dialogue (as usual) rather than do what he did.

{Joint Leadership (JL), as part of a number of reor- -
ganisational measures, was a purely internal Party matter
aimed at pulling the Party (P) out of its crisis {and eventu-
ally to strengthen the P). ¥t did not affect — had nothing to
do with — any State positions as Prime Minister, etc.;
Maurice would still have been PM, and Bernard — Deputy
P.M]

Wendy, when Maurice left Grenada on Monday Sep-
tember 26, 1983, for Eastem Europe, there was total agree-
ment among all of us (except George Louison who was out
of Grenada and who, incidentally, was the ONLY member
of the Central Committee (CC) of the P to vote against the
JL proposal at the Extraordinary NJM CC Meeting, Septem-
ber 14-16, 1983). At the end of the I5-hour Extraordinary
General Meeting of the P, held the previous day, Sunday
September 25, 1983, the entire full Party membership
(including Maurice and the rest of the CC) voted for JL of
the Party. That is when JL was decided on, Wendy, and
NOT by "a clique" (as George Louison, Rojas et al have
peddled to the world).but by the entire P membership. I'l
never forget the great joy that suffused all of us, Wendy —
all comrades singing and embracing one another (every P
member embraced Maurice and Bernard at about 12:00 mid-
night). Who could then expect and foresee that in"the next 3
weeks our country would be plunged into a National/
Political crisis? Who could by -the greatest stretch of the

imagination, Wendy, ever think that in 24 days a Tragedy of

4

John ‘Chalky' Ventour m

General Meeting of all levels of t.h.e P's pi.e:{tbershtill ‘cr\:\d

1o discuss the new P crisis and ;?ohucal‘ crisis in our c:i oun rai-
George Louison was engaged in all kinds of scsm s 2
tacks on Bemard Coard and other NIM CC members. o

in Hungary, he held a meeting of al} P members (c;;i: o th%
Maurice), told thém that Maurice did n'ot support T s o
P, and words to the effect that the CC's vote for L was &
conspirdcy against Maurice, €tc., etc,,.ctc.; attcmptu;g s ;gie-
those-P members to go against the entire P members ta_p o
cision. At no time, Wendy, did Louison tgll that mc:zfI mgti !

truth: that Maurice, at the September 25 General Meeting,

voted together with the P members for JL of the P.

bly so) that
Wendy, [ can only speculate (reasonabl

George Louis):m {aidéd by the influence of Shal'pba Stropg,
Don Rojas and Cletus St. Paul) and possibly {-jr.uson thtc-
man, persuaded Maurice to raise the JL decision with FC
and hence return to Grenada via Cuba.

Maurice spent an entire day (October 7™ withmF Cin
Cuba. and returned home on the evening of October 8.

Now, Wendy, you should know that FC.had greal
love for Maurice. The first time he met Maunce-,, in Szpte:;x-
ber 1979, at the UN, 1 was told FC touched him un 1cr Z
heart after embracing him. And 1 understand, as thch.;g;ln
goes, whenever FC does that to someone — touches 1d thex;
ander the heart — it means that he has total%y ar:ceptt:1 ; :d
person as someone {0 protect. So, .in practice, he adop

Maurice as his "son.”

i ice's closeness with

Therefore, Wendy, given Maurice's closeness
FC. and all that transpired in Eastern Europe (the decision {0
ret:u'n via Cuba, etc.), it is inconceivable that.he would not
have raised (and did not raise) the JL issue with FC, In any

=




event, after their return, from October 9™, George Louison
began telling P members living in the West Coast of the is-
land (St. John, St. Mark and St. Patrick) that "FC is support-
ing us" and that Maurice should "take the issue to the
masses."”

The JL of the P issue was indeed taken to the masses
via the fateful rumour on October 12* (which Maurice gave
to two (2) members of the P.S. unit — Cletus St. Paul and
Errol George — to go and spread) that "Phyllis Coard and
Bernard Coard want to kill Maurice Bishop.”

On June 28, 1984, at the Preliminary Inquiry into the deaths
of Maurice et al, Erol George, the Deputy Chief of
Maurice's personal security unit, was the first prosecution
witness to testify, He told Prosecuting Counse! that.on Octo-
ber 12 1983 he had a conversation with Cletus St. Paul, the
Chief of Maurice's P.S. unit and that

During that conversation he [St. Paul] gave me
a pen and a piece of paper, On that paper I
wrote people's names. After writing the names 1
and Cletus St. Paul went to Maurice Bishop’'s
room, there a conversation took place,

After that conversation I went to one Theresa
who is Maurice Bishop's cook After Theresa I
went fo the chief of security who was Ashley
Folkes and made a report to him...

He said that the next day he went to Butler House and spoke
at a-meeting at which full members of the NJM and Central
Committee members, including Maurice Bishop, were pres-
ent. t

1O

Ocrober 1983 The Missing Link

This rumour, Wendy, plunged the entire country into
a state of deep crisis and confusion — rumours were run-
ning wild (and George Louison, Kendrick Radix, Don Rojas
et al did their best to fuel them and sow more confusion
among our people) — sparking off a fateful chain of events
which led to the grave tragedy.

Now, Wendy, I'm not saying that the issue could
not -— or should not — have been taken to the masses.
What ] am saying most distressfully — what is wrong — is
the deceitful, dishonourable and unprincipled manner the
masses were manipulated on the basis of deliberately false
information — a rumour. In the case where the issue of
Joint Leadership of the Party could not be satisfactorily set-
tled in the P, the masses, as organised in the organs of Popu-
lar Democracy — Workers' Parish Councils, and .Zonal
Councils throughout the country — should have been con-
sulted, presented with all the facts, hear all sides, all. argu-
ments, debate i, then decide. Isn't this reai and genuine par-
ticipatory democracy? Many of the so-called “experts" on
the 1983 Grenada crisis are quite loud with their allegations
and charges that we were against the masses’ involvement in
deciding the JL (of the Party) issue, and that Maurice was
for their involvement. How far is this from the truth!
Wendy, if Maurice wished for the peoples’ involvement why
didn't he propose it or take the issue to the Organs of Popu-
lar Democracy? He knew that he was immensely popular
among the masses —that they would support him, so why
didn't he? Is manipulating the masses by a rumour, which is
maliciously fabricated, the thing that is becoming of a revo-
lutionary? Or does democracy entail bringing the facts in a
structured way to the masses? Just in passing, Wendy, you
would be interested to know that Maurice, Uni (Whiteman)
and George Louison all voted against a Resolution to give
the minutes of the Extraordinary NJM CC. Sept. 14-16
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1 spoke about the rumour that was given to me

lo go and tell some people. I told the meeting
what the rumour was.

The rumour was Phyllis Coard and Bernard
Coard want to kill Maurice Bishop.

PRELIMINARY INQUIRY DEPQSITION:

Unde_r cross-examination by Defence Counsel, Mr. Howard
Hamilton QG, Errol George said: |

I remember speaking of a rumour. When it was
given to me it was given 1o ine as a rumour. I
was told I'had a Fumour o spread. No one told
me it was not true. Prior to St. Paul giving me
that rumour 1 had never heard it before. I was
also given a list of names of the persons fo
whom those (sic) rumour should go to. There
were about fifteen (15) names on the list.

Errol George further said

At the conversation in Maurice Bishop's bed-
room on 12" October, 1983, Bishop gave me
mstructions about the rumounr. He told me I
must remember to say Phyllis Coard first and
then Bernard Coard. [Emphasis added]

o -

[2.I. DEPOSITION: Page 13, Lines 444-80]
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Meeting to the party members so that they could see ail the
discussion re that meeting and the CC members' reasons for
the JL Proposal.

After the rumour had been spread I held several
meetings with workers on different workplaces, on October
13, 14, 15, 17 and 18" (including a large meeting with repre-
sentatives of many workplaces and companies, on the even-
ing of Friday October 14} trying to explain to them the na-
ture of the political crisis — the rumour ~— and what the JL
of the Party really entailed. However, Wendy, because of the
hysterical, virulent propaganda campaign unleashed by the
US in the media, and by George Louison, Kendrick Radix,
Don Rojas, etc., on the ground in Grenada, coming on the
heels of the rumour, passions and emotions were inflamed
and only a minority of workers fully grasped — really un-
derstood — the issue.

In addition, Wendy, there are several other incidents
which occurred to support — and lead one to reasonably
conclude — that there were discussions on our P internal
affairs with FC, who you rmay know, is a very emotional
man; and rather than be impartial he probably decided to
"protect his son" from the "JL Conspiracy” {or whatever he
was told), and certain decisions were made. Among these
incidents:

(i) The Cuban Ambassador, Julian Rizo, who was in Cuba
while Maurice was there returned on the same flight with
Maurice; George Louison, Uni, Don Rojas, et al. He (Rizo)
immediately went fo live permanently (up to the Invasion)
in the Cuban Embassy (where he could be in 24-hour daily
direct contact with Cuba) instéad of his residence. Unex-
pectedly and unprecedentedly (because PRA soldiers
guarded the Embassy, like: Cuban soldiers guard Grenada's
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Embassy in Havana, Cuba)} about thirty (30) Cubans were
armed and placed to guard the Cuban Embassy, in addition
to the Grenadian soldiers there. Grenadian Security Forces
were advised by Cubans and trained in Cuba; they could
therefore interpret such action. So, Wendy, from tite nigit
of October 8" Rizo set up a command post with 30 armed
Cubans at the Cuban Embassy. What was all of this for?
What was being planned? Was this preparation for an armed
conflict to resolve the internal Party differences?

(ii) Then, Wendy, on the night of October 18" when discus-
sions were held between Maurice and four (4) other CC
members, aimed at resolving the Crisis, he organised to
meet with the Cuban Ambassador on the following momn-
ing — October 19" — before discussions continued that
day. Why was this necessary, Wendy? Ambassador Rizo
was not a Grenadian much less a member of the NJM. This
was also unprecedented, {The meeting, however, failed to
come off before the crowd reached Maurice's residence at
Mt. Wheldale and took him away.]

(iif) 1 understand, Wendy, that on October 19", immediately
after the seizure of Fort Rupert by the crowd, Maurice et al
were trying to get in contact with the Cuban Embassy, and
also directly with Cuba. For what?

(iv) Cuban Military Advisors, without any explanation,
failed to report to work at the different PRA camps, from
around October 14", and the Cuban Military Battalion based
at Point Salines, which comprised Cuban Army officers and
airport constructions workers, were placed on alert from
around October 13-14, 1983, :

(v) And Cuban construction workers at Point Salines, doc-
tors, teachers, etc. went on strike (in practice) in Grenada

14
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(i) FC and Cuba had absolutely no role in making the Gre-
nada Revolution. Indeed, they did not provide any assistance
in making the Revolution, despite requests for assistance by
our P, and despite pre-1979 visits to Cuba by Maurice and
Unison on one occasion, Bernard on another, and Selwyn
Strachan in 1979. Basically, they did not believe our claims
about being in a position to remove the neo-fascist Gairy.
They were obviously wary of us and our claims since they
knew little or nothing about our P. So FC and Cuba were as
surprised as the rest of the world when the Grenada Revolu-
tion was made on March 13, 1979. After that they came for-
ward with massive assistance, and a hot love-relationship

developed between Grenada and Cuba.

(ii) From the very early days of the Revolution Cuba at-
tempted to influence our Process in Grenada by getting in-
volved into matters they ought not to have been involved in.
Consistently, throughout the 44 years, they tried to, in im-
proper ways, influence the placement and changing of per-
sonnel in the PRA, for example. This began as early as
1980. Then, to the annoyance of many in our P Leadership,
including many Grenadian Army officers, Ambassador Rizo
used to impose himself on meetings of Maurice and-the.
High Command of the Army. It was a disgusting form of in-:

terference.

I remember a personal experience in September
1981. I had arrived in Cuba on a brief (4-day) visit re co-
ordination of a Caribbean Trade Union Conference which-
was to be held in Grenada two months later — in November
that same year. Just weeks prior to my visit the NJM CC had
unanimously removed Cde. Vince Noel from the Party

Leadership.- For-almost one year before, Vince, who was

also a member of the Political Bureau of the Central Com--

mittee at the time, had been criticised on several occasions
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from around October 17%. They actually agitated Grenadian
workers at the International Alrport Project, etc. to go on
strike and to demonstrate. They also provided transport for
Grenadians to go and demonstrate. Cuban teachers, too, agi-
tated students 1o leave school to join demonstrations. Would
the Cubans in Grenada have done all that if they did not
have official support?

Why was Cuba so central in all of this, Wendy?

{One. piece of significant information I completely
forgot when I wrote the letter to my friend in 1988, and
which I was only reminded of recently — years later: When
Cletus St. Paul telephoned Ram Folkes from Cuba on the
night of October 7, 1983 (see The Missing Link P.4), he
told him, "Ah hear all yuh trying to fuck up the Chief, but
blood goin' flow".

Was this a 'wild' statement by St. Paul on his own?
Or, was he aware of such plans in Cuba for 'blood to flow'?
And did he unwittingly let it out?

And, was Cuban Ambassador Rizo's action, on his
retum to Grenada, linked to St. Paul's statement?)

There is another critical/key aspect of Cuba's rela-
tionship to the NJM and the Grenada Revolution, which, in
my view, Wendy, reflects what I would call their petty
hegemonic aspirations/designs re our process and attempts
to make us very dependent on them.

I think it is also necessary to give and share with you
some background information on FC's and Cuba's relation-
ship to our P.and the Grenada Revolution.

15

John ‘Chalky ™ Venfour !ﬂtﬁ

for serious short-comings re his work — failure to carry out

Party tasks, etc. Rank and file P members were now Opf?nly
complaining about his poor work performance and question-
ing his leadership. It had indeed become very c'mbarrassmg
to the NJM Leadership. As a result, George Loulson tal_)lcd a
resolution to remove Vince. It was supported b)‘f all in the
¢C, including Maurice, Uni and Kendrick Radix. As was
normal protocol, the Cuban and other fraternal parties had
been informed of this development.

Now, here I was in the José Marti International Ai‘r-

port's VIP lounge, having arrived only minutes before, in
discussion with a Cuban official who came t.;o meet me. .l}f-
ter I had politely answered some of his questions — explain-
ing our P Leadership's rationale/reasons for Vince's removal,
the official of the Cuban Communist Party had the gall to
tell me that they (the Cuban Party) "did not agree!"
(i) In very improper ways, z?lso, chdy_, -thf:y tried to
change the way in which decisions were hlStOII'ICE.ﬁIY m_ade
by our P Leadership. Our P -had always, fx_-om its 1fxcept19n,
Wendy, stressed Collective Leadership, with Maurice being
the first among equals. In that context the strcngt_h of all our
leaders came to bear; and the weakness of Man'm_ce in mak-
ing decisions, in strategy and tactics, and-in gmdmg and su-
perﬁising the work of the P, and later the Revolution, were
overcome. [Maurice himself, on more than one occasion,
openly admitted to all these weaknesses.] In that context (of
our Collective Leadership), while Maurice was clearly per-
ceived as the Leader, the first among equals, Ber'nard, l?c-
cause of his particular strengths in -the areas in whlcfh
Maurice was weak was looked toward for lcadcrs:hxp, and in
practice, therefore, it was Bemnard who led the P in Ehose ar-
eas, before anc'l,du:i,ng the Revolution. So it was an mt?ormai
arrangement; one based on the years of experience in our
struggle; and an arrangement which led our P to glory. -
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subjective factors, and with the objective difficulties inher-
ent in the task of transforming a poor backward underdevel-
oped country, and especially having to do so in the face of
the most hawkish US Administration since the gun-boat di-

plomacy days of President Theodore Roosevelt, led to a pro-
found internal crisis in the P and Revolution by August-
September, 1983.

(x) 'The JL decision-(which as I stated before was part of a
package of measures to overcome our P crisis), however,
went against the form of leadership Cuba had tried to pro-
mote and impose on us for the better part of 4 4 years. And
they were hell-bent on quashing it, Wendy.

(xi) So Maurice, obviously convinced by those around him
that the JL decision was some kind of "conspiracy” to ulti-
mately remove him as leader, was therefore in the correct
psychological state to make a complete break with the his-
torically based collective leadership, and to place himself
above the Leadership and Gerneral Meeting of the Party's
decision. Qutside of Cuba’s interference, Wendy, there was
absolutely no way he would have done that. Given his per-
sonality he would have taken that step only under strong en-
couragement. Indeed, even if he wanted to, the balance of
forces within the P and the Revolution would not have per-
mitted it — he would have recognised that the P and its or-
gans were decisive for the future of the Revolution. But with

. Cuba's backing and, indeed, encouragement, he had an alter-

EN

native manpower and material resource base outside of our
P to fall back on,

There is another critical/key aspect of Cuba's rela-

tionship to the NJM and Grenada Revolution — and how it
directly affected the QOctober '83 crisis — that I should share
with you, Wendy.
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In 1981 Cuba requested and received permission
from the Party and People's Revolutionary Government 10
organise their construction workers at the Point Salines In-
ternational Airport project-into a reserve military battalion.
Over fifty (50) officers from the Cuban Armed forces (FAR)
arrived in Grenada to lead them. Our P Leadership was only
too happy to accede to this request because we were in-
formed that this reserve battalion would assist our young
PRA in the defence of Grenada, in the event of any inva-

sion.

Months later, quite accidentally, while working to-
gether with Cuban Military Advisers, preparing defence
plans for our country to be able to repel any military aggres-
sion, Lt. Col. Layne — the day to day Commander of the
PRA -— was told by the leader of the Cuban military mis-
sion in Grenada that the Cuban battalion would only re-
spond to a request for assistance from the Commander-in-
Chief (a position they imposed on us in 1981); not the P
Leadership, not the PRG; but one man! However, it was
only years later, when the crisis unfolded, that the signifi-
cance of this statement was fully realised.

Cuba's interference in NJM and Grenada's internal
affairs is not unique. I have heard of several instances of
their interference in the internal affairs of other Revolution-
ary Parties and Countries. Among them: -

(1) In the 1960's the Algenian Party removed Ben Bela as
leader of their party. I don't know the reasons or the details;
but [ understand that Cuba objected t6 this and interfered,
and this led to a strain in relations between the Algerian and
Cuban Parties/Revolutionaries. Co

(2) In the 1960's, also, Wendy, there was a debate on The
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(iv} In Cuba, however, the form leadership takes in their P is
obviously different: Their. circumstances are different; their.
history is different; and FC is FC..In Cuba, FC is the. Maxi-
mum Leader in @/f areas. And this seems to have always
been the case in their struggle. 1t is their history.

{v) In short, Wendy, Leadership in Cuba was always more
personalised, more individualistic, it appears, and to a great
extent this is due to the incredible ability of FC. But in Gre-.
nada, Leadership had always been more collective. This was
due to the tremendous qualities of Maurice and Bernard in
different areas; and also due to their specific weaknesses. So
the emphasis on collective leadership was based on our his-
tory, and rooted in our history. It developed and took root on
the anti-Gairy battlefields, and in the unforgettable days in
laying the basis for the Revolution, planning the Revolution,
and then its glorious execution.

(vi) But that history, Wendy, (our history) Cuba did not-
know of because they did not know our P in any real way
until after March 13, 1979,

(vii) Yet from 1979 and onwards, with ever-greater inten-
sity, they attempted to influence Maurice into adopting FC's
style of leadership; into becoming an FC. But Maurice was’
never, and could never have been, FC. They were different
persons, Wendy. :

(viii) That interference by Cuba, again in many improper
ways, for example FC sending down persons to Grenada to
tell Maurice that certain' decisions are his prerogative; and
that the NJM CC could not take certain decisions, etc., etc.,
made for and naturally did lead to friction. -

(ix) This friction and its by-products, combined with other
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Way Forward in the Venezuelan Communist Party. [ under-
stand that debate was centred around the issue of whether or
not the party shouid pursue the path of anmed struggle. FC
publicly condemned the leadership of the PCV, accusing
them of "sitting on their doorstep watching the corpse of Im-
perialism pass by [rather than take up arms and make the
Revolution]."

(3) In the mid-late 1970's, I also understand that the Ethio-
pian Leader, Mengisthu, threatened to expel Cuba's Ambas-
sador to Ethippia if Cuba did not withdraw him. The Am-
bassador was accused of interference in the Ethiopian party
and country's affairs.

(4) Then, Wendy, there is Angola. In 1976 or 77, | remem-
ber hearing and reading news reports that the number two
leader of the MPLA (the Ruling Revolutionary Party in An-
gola) was killed because he was a CIA agent, and also be-
cause of some counter-revolutionary plot.

Several years later I learnt that a problem had arisen
within the MPLA Leadership and the Cuban Military Forces
in Angola intervened on behalf of the then, late MPLA
Leader, Agostino Neto, crushing a "rebellion" against him.
As a result, Neto Alvis, the number two person in the Ango-
lan Leadership, together with many of the MPLA members,
several Angolan Army leaders and soldiers, had been killed
by the Cubans.

Wendy, I don't know the details of any of these in-
cidents. And [ am not concerned here with which side was
wrong or right. Whatever, that did not give FC, or anybody
else for that matter, any right of interfére in other People's/
Party's affairs.
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‘So with this history, on the night of October 14,
1983, Bernard Coard and Selwyn Strachan held a meeting
with Cuba's Ambassador Julian Rizo and 1¥ Secretary Gas-
ton Diaz. In the meeting, I understand, they asked Rizo and
Diaz for clarification re the Angolan situation in 1976/77.
All Rizo would say was that Cuban Forces intervened in
Angola "upon a request from the Angolan- Commander-in-
Chief." When asked how would Cuba respond if a similar
request were to be made by Grenada's "Commander-in-
Chief,” Rizo refused to answer. An answer though was
forthcoming.

Two days later, Wendy, the NJM CC received a re-
ply — from FC. He complained (in that letter) that we were
impugning the integrity of Cuba, etc. When Ambassador
Rizo delivered FC's letter he refused to shake hands, as was
normal, with the CC Comrades present. I was not present.
However, I understand that when he finished reading the lét-
ter Rizo informed the CC Comrades that he had instructions
from FC to give a copy to George Louison "for him to use in
whatever way" he wished! Can you imagine that, Wendy?
The Cuban Party was informed of his expulsion from the
NJM CC. But here was FC refusing to recognise it. So that
letter addressed fo the NJM CC was given to George
Louison — someone who was no longer a member of the
NIM Leadership.

But that is not all, Wendy. That letter from FC to the
NIM CC was signed: "Commandef-in-Chief'! Highly sig-
nificant, eh? Not 1* Secretary of the PCC. Not as President
of the Republic of Cuba. Not as Prime Minister of Cuba.
Not even as Commander-in-Chief of the Cuban Revolution;
but just CICt Commander-in-Chief of Grenada? Anyone in
the circumstances, then, would naturally have seen this as a
deliberate insult to NJM and Grenada and, also, as a warn-

ing.
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se. It was a very sad one. 1 chaired 1t.
podium. When be arrived the
date members and Applicants,
stood in ovation, as usual,

Meeting at Butler Hou
Maurice sat next.to me on the
entire hall of Members, Candi
and CC members present, €tc.,
clapping — welcoming him.

The same happened when he rose to address the
meeting. He did so for about 45 rpmutes. He accepted ;e-t
sponsibility for the political erisis 1n 'thc P and cc-m-ntryf : }l:e
stated categorically that he knew nothing of the origin ?b'l'l
October 12* Rumour — he could not accept responsibi 1h y
for it, he said. At the end of his speech _he stated that the.
would speak later on in the meeting. [He cl1fi not know atai e
time that Errol George, his deputy P.S. Chief, who was ais0
a Candidate member of NJM, would also.speak at the meet-

ing.]

Wendy, I'll never forget how Maurice's countenance
changed when, at the end of his address, as the appl::msrl
from the ovation died down, Errol George cntqfcd the ha;1
following my announcement that he would now address the

meeting.

A thunderous silence pervaded the largf:_packed hall.

One could hear a pin drop as Errol George vividly recounted
. how he was given the rumour by Mauflce and C}etus St
Paul in Maurice's bedroom on the previous mormxtg; how
Maurice told him to remember to call Phyllis Coard's name
first: how a list of 15 or so names of persons who_ were 10 ble
given the rumour to spread, was drawn up. Maurice kept his
head down, writinig — taking detailed notes — in hx§ note-
book throughout Emol George's testimony. A sad stillness
permeated the air. When Errol George l'cﬁ:t_hi: hall, I (as
chairman) turned to Maurice and asked him if hie wanted to
speak now. He said no. It was indeed s_ad, W_cndy. Com-
rade"s —~ students, young-workers, women, teachers, etc.,
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. So, Wendy, given this background, and Cuba's inter-
ference in our P affairs: FC's support and active assistance
to Maurice; Ambassador Rizo's. movement of 30 Cubans to
guard the Cuban Embassy; the placing of their Military Ad-
visors and their. workers at Point Salines airport site "on
alert” from around October 13™ [the workers comprised their
Reserve Military Battalion; and "alert”, in the military lexi-
con, is the first stage before a call to action]; their continu-
ing to recognise George Louison as a member of the NJM
Leadership, even after he was expelled from the Party
Leadership by the CC and the October 3™ Extraordinary
NJM General Meeting; our Security Forces were naturally
gravely concemned about Cuba's intentions.

The combination of this and Maurice's role in origi-
nating and organising the spreading of the Rumour, and the
consequent near-violence of the rumour that same night
(October 12%) at a Militia Station in St. Paul's (a suburb in
St. George's) was discussed by the Security Forces with
Maurice-in a frank manner on October 14 thereabouts; and
he was strongly advised to stay home for a_féw days and let
things calm down in the country, and return to normal,
while.attempts were being made to resolve the crisis. The
objective also, I understand; was to deny Maurice access to
the Cubans (until after we had resolved our internal Crisis),
about whom the Grenada Security Forces were obviously
very concerned. Maurice's moral position, Wendy, was ex-
tremely weak for at the October 13™ Extraordinary P Gen-
eral Meeting at which he and Errol George (deputy chief of
his P.S. unit)-and other spoke, he was exposed red-handed
by the entire P membership present, as the person behind
the fateful rumour that "Phyllis Coard and Bemard Coard
{were] planning to kill Maurice Bishop."

Wendy, I can never forget that October 13" General
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etc. — cried at the meeting.

During tﬁe. break, about 9:00 p.m. — the meeting be-
gan at 5:00 p.m. and ended after midnight — sgverai P
members checked Maurice asking him to speak again, to de-

fend himself. Later on [ also asked
He sat throughout listening to member after member speak.

: So, Wendy, Maurice was morally on the defensi}fe
inside the party. That is why he went along with the Security

and Defence Committee's recommend:
he decided not to, there is little that could reaily have been

done by security to stop him.

Bernard was given the same advice,. I understand,
and also did not leave his home until after the crowd over-

ran Mt. Wheldale and took Maurice away on October 19™.

This act was translated to ithe world as "House Arrest:' and a
* by George Louison, Kendrick Radix, etc.

"Palace Coup : $
(and further magnified by the US orchestrated’ propagan a)

and raised the crises t0 a new p
retrospect how what happened cou .
preted (i.e. as "House Arrest™) to the outside world.

s

adopting Maurice as his "som," an '
1eadpership, Cuba's control over the Grenada Revolution

would have been complete.

Wendj;'., I and all others here have the greatest re-
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him again. He never did.

ation. Otherwise, had

lafie. One can easily see in
1d have been so inter-

Wend'y, [ believe that FC and Cubafs attempts 'to im-
pose their form of leadership on us: (2) is & I'CﬂB.Ctl?n of
their genuinely held view that FC-type of iead.ershlg'a is the
best — at least the best for this region; and (b).m thgu‘ view,
provided the best mechanism for Cuba to wield influence

i control over the Grenada process. with FC
e i d with Cuba's form of
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pect and admiration for the man FC, as a Leader, and for
he immense unquestionable contribution he (and his Party
ind Country) has made to the World Revolutionary Process.
[remendous advances have been made under his great lead-
rship for the peopie of Cuba. However, [ would not be hu-
nan if [ don't feel angered — to put it mildly — over what I
vill describe as Cuba's act of great treachery of the Gre-
ada Revolution. After all these years, Wendy, honestly, |
vant to sound dispassionate; but I'm sure you know that
here are some things in life that one cannot forgive or for-
set. Despite its catastrophic consequences, it is still possible
for me to forgive (but not forger) FC for his interference in
yur affairs. After all, one may argue that he thought he was
Joing the best thing and his decisions were based on incor-
ect information of the situation in our Party, etc., etc., ¢fc.
But let me tell you; I try to avoid thinking (and speaking)
about this for it really hurts; 1 become passionately furious
hen! How could one ever forgive this, Wendy? Can you
magine that while the Cuban Ambassador and Military Ad-
visors were discussing with PRA Officers and reviewing
Military plans for the defence of our country against the im-
minent US Invasion, af the same time, in Cuba, the Cuban
Government was privately telling and assuring the US Inter-
:sts Section in Havana that the US could send forces into
Grenada (come into Grenada) to evacuate its citizens, and
hat the Cuban forces ify Grenada would only fire on them if
fired upon? Can you imagine that, Wendy?? As if they
owned Grenada — as if Grenada were a province of Cuba?!
As if Grenada were an Isle of Youth?!

The People's Revolutionary Army (PRA) was very
small — only 500 strong, but notwithstanding the Army
Command wanted to locate PRA soldiers at Point Salines to

iefend the International” Airport site. Its Military logic told
hem that the Airport would be the first target (or "beach~
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Our officers said: Well, if that scenario turns out 1o
be true and the Americans began landing in Point Salines
unimpeded by Cuban Forces, then the Grenadian Army
would have a responsibility to resist the enemy with force —
— with fire.

Ambassador Rizo then responded that if this hap-
pened Cuban forces would be placed in danger. The
Grenadian officers insisted that they would have the respon-
sibility to resist the invading force.

At that point, Wendy, Cuba — through Ambassador
Rizo — played the card of blackmail. Rizo then said that if
this were to be the case, his Government's instructions were
that they would have to evacuate all their personnel onto a
boat they had in St George's harbour before the (imminent)
invasion commenced, starting immediately. That was it.

In the face of this, Wendy, the Grenadian Army had
to back down. The implications of maintaining their posi-
tion were too dire: both from the military standpoint if the
invasion did come; and if for some reason it did not come,
then from the economic standpoint. The US, the Grenadian
Army Leaders felt (not knowing of the secret agreement)
would hesitate re invasion and landing of their oops, be-
cause they would not be sure whether or not Cuban Forces
would fight and kill many of their "boys", etc. It was clear
that if Cuba Wwithdrew their personnel to a boat in the bar-
bour they would not have remained there; they would have
retumed to Cuba, and FC would have blamed the
“intransigence” of the Grenadian side for the collapse in re-
lations.

Cuba, therefore, imposed an agreement on the Gre-
nada Revolution, forcing the PRA troops to remain behind a
certain line, out of effective firing range of the US soldiers
it their point of disembark — at their "most vulnerable mo-
ment”.
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the scenario raised by the Grenadian Officers was "purely
hypothetical” and, therefore, decisions could not be made on
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head") of the Invaders. In defence plans drawn up with the
Cuban Advisors before 1983, the critical importance of the
Airport to site was noted. The PRA had held many military
exercises in that area to repulse.any enemy attempt to seize
the Airport. And the understanding, as stipulated in our
couniry's Defence Plans, was that the Defence of the Airport
would be in conjunction with the Cuban Reserve Military
Battalion.

However, Wendy, the Cuban Military Advisors (and

Ambassador Rizo) basically blackmailed our coumry's
Armed Forces into allowing them afone to maintain their
{Cuban) Forces on the Airport site. The Cubans tried to get
our.Army Command to agree that their forces would remain
in Point Salines but that they would only resist if the Ameri-
cans fired on them. Qur officers objected to this on the
grounds that Point Salines was likely to be a principal sector
for the Invaders (as outlined in Defence Plans which they
had advised) and it would be madness to have located in a
principal sector, troops who were not prepared to give un-
conditional resistance to any atternpts by thé' enemy to land
there. The Cubans knew that such a position was unaccept-
able. Further, the Grenadian Officers (unaware that Cuba
had already communicated their position to the Reagan Ad-
ministration that they would not resist if not fired upon) said
to the Cuban Officials in Grenada: Suppose the US had in-
tercepted communications from Cuba. to them in Grenada,
instructing them along lines they proposed, then the enemy
would know that they had free accessi— free way into Gre-
nada through the International Airport.

To this Ambassador Rizo responded by saying that
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Wendy, I wonder if you can imagine the rage of our
soldiers on the early morning of October 25, 1983 when
they saw US troops freely paratrooping over Point Salines?

The landing of paratroopers at Point Salines was a
very risky adventure. The US Military Specialists. must have
been aware of that. They must have had their concerns. And
it is not beyond probability that the knowledge that they
were 10 act in a certain way would mean lack of resistance at
their most vulnerable moment, could have tipped the scale
in favour of such an action. If serious resistance was offered
to the paratroopers then, it is more than possible — almost
certain that — they would have been repulsed. The whole
form the invasion took would have had to be different; and
while this may not have made a difference to the final out-
come, given the American's overwhelming superiority in
men and equipment, the price paid by Reagan for his out-
rage would have been much higher; and this may have had
consequences for history.

The Cubans allowed paratroopers of the US 82nd
Airborne Division to seize the International Airport. The
Yankees would not have been in a position to land unob--
structed at the International Airport; scores of Military
Transport aircrafts with tons of military equipment and
thousands of troops in several hours on October 25" if PRA
soldiers were located at Point Salines. How could one forget

this, Wendy?

On the afterncon of October 25" Ambassador Rizo
called our Wartime Command H.Q. requesting assistance
from the .Army's APC's (Amoured Cars) for the Cuban
Forces at Point Salines. The US -superior technology had
jammed the PRA’s communication ¢quipment so there was
no precise knowledge of what was happening. at/on the
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front, near Point Salines. Because of this lack of communi-
cation, the Wartime Command thought that the Cubans
were now fighting. Two (2) APC's had to be taken from an-
other Defence point and sent to Point Salines. They drove
into an ambush there leading to the destruction of the APC's
and the deaths of several young soldiers.

Then to crown it all, on October 25" a formal re-
quest was made to the Cuban Government for military assis-
tance to repel the invading forces. FC replied that this was
"unthinkable" and "[we] should all fight to the last man!"
We should all die so that no one would ever know the
truth?! FC's message, Wendy, devastated some of Grenada's
most selfless Army commanders, To hear that it was
"morally impossible” for a “friend" to come to your assis-
tance when Imperialist Forces overwhelmed one's side, was
a bit too much for them. "Practically impossible” — yes,
Wendy, that was understood, but "morally impossible" when
the understanding was that they would come to the assis-
tance of the Grenada Revolution — not a particular individ-
ual — in her hour of need? Too much, Wendy!

How do you think our soldiers and the Grenadian
youth and women in the People's Militia felt.(and still feel)
about all this (especially those- who were located in Grand
Anse — near to Point Salines — and on their own pinned
down the US Forces at Point Salines for a couple of days)
when the world has the impression that it was Cuba's Forces
in Grenada which resisted the US Invaders, defending Gre-
nada's Independence and sovereignty? 1 (and all the others
here), however, must pay tribute to the memory of those Cu-
‘bans who {(acting in accordance with FC's instructions had
no choice but to allow US forces to freely land and capture
Point Salines) died resisting the Yankees after they were di-
rectly attacked in their camp sites at Point Salines.
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overwhelmingly, by standing ovation, to endorse his re-
moval from the party leadership — that the only reason why
he voted against Joint Leadership of the party was because
he knew that Maurice would not agree with it.(!). But hav-
ing lost out, politically, inside the party, George ijomson de-
cided to go "for broke" —a military/violent solution.}

It is not surprising, Wendy, that after 5 years George
Louison, Kendrick Radix and co. in the Ivﬂ?:PM (who have
opportunistically used Maurice's name to fry and win the
support of our people) have not been able to get NJM merm-
bers, much less the people, 10 support them. That is reality
as opposed to wishful thinking. They have not been able to
translate the overwhelming "support and yeaming of _the
masses for the Revolution into support for their organisa-
tion. They have no organised party machinery. They have
gone from bad to worse since 1984. No wonder that George
Touison and Kendrick Radix have resigned from the top

leadership of the MBPM. They miscalculated greatly: They
thought that we would have been killed long ago aflri that
they would get away with their lies and slander against us.
But as our peoples' emotions (and the effects of tl}elr great
trauma) wane, their (George Louison et al) roles will be ex-
posed. The overwhelming majority of the NJM membership
and soldiers of the PRA have shunned them (the MBPM)
and continue to firmly support the Party and Army Leader-
ship behind bars; for they know what happened in S.eptem-
ber-October 1983; of the key role George {.ouison, in par-

ticular, played in intensifying the party and national crisis.

September, 1988

32

Ll mile d lcite

.
i a2 i smw

John ‘Chalky’ Ventour

How can anyone cver forgive, much less forget, this
immense act of betrayal of the Grenada Revolution; Wendy?
True, it was our (Grenada) responsibility to defend Grenada.
But a vital element of the defence plans the-Cuban Military
Advisors had drawn up for our Armed Forces, to repel any
invasion, was the assistance of the Cuban Reserve Miiitary
Battalion. So, isn't that berrayal when those you have to rely
on — who have made you rely on them; who have prom-
ised, and who you expect to assist you — do not honour
their agreement? Isn't that freachiery when they blackmailed
us into not focating any PRA forces at Point Salines and
then allowed the Yankees to seize the International Airport?

I'm sure that you can empathise with me, Wendy. I
hope that I have succeeded in trying to give you a much bet-
ter appreciation for the reasons for FC's vehement and hys-
terical attacks on us in October/November 1983, and subse-
quently Cuba's propaganda against us which they have dis-
seminated within the World Revolutionary Movement. For-
tunately, several Revolutionary Parties and Governments in
the "Third World" have had their own experiences of Cuba's
interference in their internal affairs and, therefore, have
never believed Cuba's propaganda lines on us.

Wendy, I have no doubt that privately FC is filied
with remorse; he certainly must deeply regret his interfer-
ence in our affairs, which led to the death of the Grenada
Revolution. I also believe that George Louison, too, deeply
regrets his opportunist and divisive role in September-
October 1983. [I'll never forget him telling comrades during
the break at the October 13® party General Meeting — after
he was exposed by Party members for his dishonest and di-
visive conduct, and when he realised that his appeal against
his expulsion from the CC (on the previous day) was re-
jected by the Party membership, the meeting having voted
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Only a few days ago we were discussing the trial of
Cuban hero, General Ochoa, and others in Cuba. This
o sparked off-.some discussion, once again, on Cuba's role in
the October ‘83 crisi$ and tragedy. Chris (Major Stroude}
was making a certain point, speculating on the intentions of
the Cuban Military Advisors when they had turned up to
work at Fort Rupert on the morning (around 9.00 am) of Oc¢-
tober 19%. Chris was assuming that we knew this and told us
he tumed them away, telling them that there,would be no
work on that day. That was news to me (and most of us).
Why did the Cuban Military Advisors suddenly tum up "to
work" at the Fort Rupert Amy HQ when they had not done
so {or visited any Army Camp) from October 147 Was it
part of the plan to-be on hand, i advance, knowing that
Maurice et al would attempt 10 seize Fort Rupert, and hence
be able to assist them by "neutralising” officers at the
Amy's HQ?.Or, was it purely an "intelligence” function?

These, Wendy, cannot be wild and crazy questions
because it is only a few months ago I learnt about a certain
article in a Barbados Nation, December 1986 Special Issue
on The Maurice Bishop Murder Trial. I'm yet to see that
paper and article. I'm sure you've seen it. I understand that
the article reported on a meeting" FC held with some US
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Congressmen after the US Invasion. I (we) had never known
before that Maurice had actually centacted FC/Cuba on Oc-
tober 19%, FC apparently said that a request for assistance
(Translate: use of Cuba's Reserve Military Battalion at
Point Salines 3-la-Angola, 1976] from Maurice did reach
Cuba, but by then the Fort Rupert Tragedy bad already oc-
curred. He, however, added: in any event Cuba would not
have acceded to the request (!).

But, Wendy, that was clearly #of Maurice's calcula-
tion. And Maurice was nobody's fool, Wendy. If he had any
doubts as to whether Cuba would intervene militarily; if he
did not have a firm guarantee/assurance that Cuba would
intervene on his behalf he would have told the crowd which
burst into the Mt. Wheldale Security compound on October
19: "Look, wait a while, me and the fellas having a meeting
to settle this thing.” He would have continued the discus-
sions, as agreed, from the previous night, with a view to ar-
riving at a compromise solution. Or, he would have given
the people his side of the story, then lead them through the
streets, call a general strike, cripple the country and force
the Party and Armed Forces to, capitulate. Instead, he chose
none of these. When one recalls George Louison's 2-hour
meeting with him on the moming of Qctober 19%, and
Louison and Unison Whiteman's meeting the afternoon be-
fore with Ambassador Rizo, etc. it is clear that George
Louison. told Maurice that Cuba would respond positively to
his "request for assistance."

So Maurice chose a (path of) military solution to the
crisis which provoked the grearest tragedy in the history of

the Caribbean, and paved the way for the defeat of the Gre-
nada Revolution.

August 25, 1990
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About The Author

John ‘Chalky' Ventour was the General
Secretary of the Grenada Commercial & In-
dustrial Workers' Union (CIWLU) from August
1977 to August 1982, and its President from
August 1982 up to the US Invasion in October
1983, From August 1977, he was also an ex-
ecutive member of Grenada's trade union um-
brella organisation, the Trade Union Council
(TUC). He was elected its General Secretary
in March. of 1980, a. position which he aiso
held at the time of the US Invasion.

_ As a direct consequence of his. being
the Party's leading member within the trade
union movement, John Ventour became a
member of the Central-Committee of the New
Jewe! Movement (NJM) — which led Grenada
from March 1979 to the October 1983 US In-
vasion. It is also the reason for his detention
and Kangaroo Trial & conviction by the US In-
vaders and their Regional puppets.

Ventour has spent the past more-than-16
years in prison along with his sixteen fellow
political prisoners. By means of a special, dis-
criminatory law passed in July 1891, he, along
with the other menibers of the Grenada 17,
centinues to be denied access to Grenada's
highest (and only independent} court, the
Privy Council; an access which ail other
Grenadians, in practice, have.
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International Law

On October 31, 1983, shorly afier U.S, wroops landed in Grenacla,
Ambassador $61 M. Linowitz pused whit hic called the “threshold™ ques-
tion: Is there a sound legal basis for U.S. action?” )

While the Reagan administration was carrect in its assumption thia
none of the mini-states in the Eastern Caribibean were signatories to the
Rio Pact (the [nier-Ameriéan Treaty of Recipracal Assistance signed in
Rio, August 15-Sepiember 2, 1947), the United Sta-lcs wiLs & party to
that agreement, and U.S. action appeared to have violated the nonin-
icivention principle (Articles 15 and 17), which is the hieart of that 1reaty
as well as the charters of the United Nations and Organization of Amer-
ican States. The administration based its action in part on the request
for assistance from the Organization of Eastern Caribbean States, i
article B of the 1981 Treaty establishing that organization required that
collective action only be undertaken by unanimous decision of all seven
parties and only in response 1o external aggression against one of the
member states. Neither condition was met. Quly four countries {Dom-
inica, 5t Vincent, St. Lucia, and Antigua} voted 1o request intervention;
St. Kitts=Nevis and Monwserrat ibstained, and of course Grenada clid
not participate. Mircover, the United States was not a party to the Lreaty,
and indeed, she Treaty itseif was not registercd with the Unitec! Nations,
which would have given it the status of international Jaw.

There remains the question as to whether the request for assistance
by Grenada's governor-general, Sir Paul Scoon preceded or followed
the decision to invade Grenada? Why did President Reagan not reler 1o
the request in his address on Ociober twenty-seventh, even though Don-
inica's’ Prime Minister Eugenia Charles had already mentioned it and
Sir Paul Scoon was alrcady safe? The confusion coacerning this paint
decpened when in March 1984, the British lousec : Commaons released
a report which included an analysis of Scoon’s alicged request. According
to the report, "Both the timing and the nature ol the request, which is
said by the U.S, government 10 have been u critical factor in providing
a legal justification for their decision to ad, remain shrowded in some
mystery, and it is evidently the intention of the parties directly involved
that the mystery should not be displaced.” The written request was ob-
tained afler the invasion: the only question that restaing i whether an
otal request preceded it

Safety of U.S. Citizens

Even if the legaf grounds were wenuous, the action might be justlfied
il there were extenuating circumstances. Were U8, citizens in damgrer
on the island of Grenada? -
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The Invasion of Grenada: A Pre- qlmd
Post-Mortem

Robert A. Pastor

INTRODUCTION

The invasion of Grenada by the United Siates and six Guribbean gov-
-ernments on Oclober 25, 1983 raised numerous siguificant questions.

Was the action legal? Were U.S. medical students in Grenada in danger

ful'lcr the murder of Prime Minister Bishop? Were there alteruatives to
intervention, and were these seriously considered by the United States?

Did 1he Grenadan revolutionary government constitute 2 strategic
l‘llI'Citl—"il Soviet beachhead”—to U.S. intercsis? I'hese queslions sur-
{aced at the beginning of the invasion, but like a submarine afier it
spfrucd a df:s{.ruyel'-; the questions descended again to the depths.

Ihe adlplmsl.ration answered these questions either openly or in back-
ground briefings 10 the press, but there was little information at the time
to judge whether their answers were accurate. Nonetheless, nine days
after the invasion, the House Foreign Alfairs Committee a;kcd me to
Jjudge the credibility of the administration’s answers, With the infor-
uation available, 1 concluded (entatively that the administration’s an.
swers were cither misleading or wrong,! '

During the invasion, U.S. wwoops captured and sent to Washington
roaghly 35,000 pounds of documents of the New Jewel Movement (NJM)
and the People’s Revolutionary Govermment of Grenada.® These doce
uwents andl other information permit firmer answers 1o the central qucs-
tinns about the justification for the invasion, and the principal purpose

ol this chapter is to reexamine those questions. At the end of the chapter

[ will also cvaluate the cosis ind the benefits of the invasion, and assess

whethes the benefits might have heen attainable at less cost

THE INVASION OF GREMADA BS

In his speech to the naticn on October 27, 1983, President Reagan
stuted thal his “everriding™ and “paramount” concern was “10 prolecl
innocent lives, including up tn 1,000 Americans.” Prior to his decision
ou Sunday, October twenty-third, the president said that he had “re-
ceived reports that a large number of vur cilizens were seeking to escape
the istand, thereby exposing themselves to great danger.” In his press
conlerence an Ociober twenty-filth, the day of the invasion, Secretary
of State George Shuliz said that the president had made a “tentative
decision” that previous Sunday night (October twenty-third) because of
a "violent situation threatening our citizens." On November second, Dep-
uty Secrctary Kenncth Dam confirmed an earlier State Department re-
port that the administration’s concern over the safety of U.S. citizens
was due in part to its belief that the Grenadan sirport was closed.

“T'hirty hours after the invasion, some of the Americans said that they
were [vightened. However, 1here was considerable evidence that the vast
majority of the Americans were not fearful before the invasion, and that
they were not at risk. The only regular contact between U.S. citizens on
the island and the United States was a telex at the Mcdical School, but
many students also cammunicaied with their parents by telephone. That
Sundiy evening when the president indicated lis concern about the
salety of the Americans, purents of five hundred students were meeting
in New York, Though the meeting had been scheduled months belore
{ur anuther reason, the discussion shifted to the recent events in Gren-
acla—~the murder of Prime Minister Maurice Bishop and several other
Cabinet officials and the takeover of the government by the Revolution-
ary Military Council (RMC). The group heard from parents who had.
heen in touch with their children, and they discussed a telex, which had
just arrived, summarizing a mecting that day al the school whiere only
10 percent of the studenis expressed a desire 1o leave! The parents then.
senta cable to President Reagan informing him that their children were
safe and asking him “not 1o move oo quickly or to take any precipitous -
actions at Uiis time,"™ Did the president receive this cuble, part of which
was publishied in the New York Times the next day, and did he weigh it
against othet evidence?

Belare the imeeting, Charles Modica, the chancellor of the university,
had received a phone call from U.S. Ambassador o Barbados Milan
Bish, as well as from others in the Siate Department. The call was de-
signed (o elicit a statement from him that the students were in danger.
Based on his own con.acts, he knew this was not the case, and heréfused’
tor miake the statement. Were these calls aimed 21 ohiaining pretext for’
intervention?* '

Whatled the United States to believe that its citizens were in special
dunyger? In answer to questions from the U.S, House ol Representatives
torcign AlTairs Comnmitiee on November 2, 1983, Depruuy Secretary of
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State Kcnnclg Dam admitted that he had “no information™ that any
Amcricans were hurmed or threatened afier the murder of Maurice
Bishop. (Later, the State Department confirmed that no American wis
harmed or threatened by the Grenadan military government.}

During the emergency, the Grenadan government went out of jts wily
to assure hoth the U.S. cilizens and the 1L.S. government. ‘Two U.S,
diplomats flew in and out during the weekend, and there were four or
five flights (which included severai Americans) on Monday, Octaber
twenty-fourth. Moreover, bath the British and the Canadians had s
ranged cvacuation flights, which were prevemted not by the Grenadan
authorities but by the other Caribhean governments. Moreover, General
Hudsorr Ausiin himsell calledt Gealfrey Bourne, vice chancellor of the
Medical School, offering jeeps and transportation and arranging o have
the supermarket open just for the students, He also sent one of lis
officers ta check that everything was in order and gave Bourne his home
number if there were any problems.” '

One of the moasc effective poinis made by Secretary of State Shulez in
his press conference on October 1wenty-fifih, the day of the invasion,
was that one of the concerns of the administraiion was to anticipate and
preciude a hostage-taking situation like that of Iran, The U.S. goveru-
ment Jater suggested that it had nbtained secret dlocumencs purparling
10 show that the Grenadan government considered taking U.S. citizens
as hostages. That evidence was never provided. None of the Grenadin
documents captured by the U.S. government after the invasion pravide
any substantiation of (ke churge the CGrenadins were planning 16 ke
hostages at that time., Common scnse woukd suggest that the Grenadan
government knew that the United States was cager 1o find a pretext foy,
an invasion, and taking hostages would huve provided a reasons, nat u
pretext,

The Grenadan government would be mare likely to (ake hostages i
there was aa imminent or probable invasion than if the U.S. governineat
was in direct contact trying Lo gain assurances of safety for U.S. citizens.
In that sense, an invasion would have endangered the lives of U.S.
citizens rather than have protecied them, Actually, the Grenadun gov-
cramentand the Cubans had literally hundreds of apportunities to take
U.S. citizens hostage after the Marines landed, and eapecially during the
fighting at the Medicat School; this never happened. Of course, Bosiages
could have heen taken—just i it is possible in K1 Salvador by cithier leltis
or rightist thugs, Iran, Turkey, Colombia, aud a dozen other countrics.

Was there an“atmosphere of violent uncertainty” much different From
other countries expericncing a vialent change in governmen? {f ane

tooks at military takeovers in Latin America over the last two decades,
lthe Crenadan coup was not nearly as vislent, wncertiin, or dangerous
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heightened fears among the medical students, and a much larger num-

ber requested evacuation, At the same time, the Caribbean governmeits
decided 1o stap commercial flights into Grenada. )

When the consular officials approached the Grenadans again to ask
1o evacuate 2000 Americans by U.S. military aircraft, the Grenadans
changed their toac, fearing that the U.S. Air Force flights were intended
10 bring in Marines rather than take out medical students, They there-
fore stalied, and tried to get the Americans to talk about fewer numbess
and commercial rather than mifitary flights. 'The consular officers, scem-
ingly unaware of the preparations by the Uniled States, viewed the Gren-
adan response as uncooperative, whether for a specific purpose or not.

‘The congressional delegation that fiew to Grenada after the interven-
tion was told of the stalling by the Revolutionary Military Council, but
not the reason why. Without the enlire story, several congressmen con-
cluded that te lack of cooperation by the RMC was deliberate, that it

put the U.S. students in danger, and that it justified the action.

First Option or Last Resort?

If one considers military intervention a grave act with considerable
human and political risks and costs, then the presumption ought Le be
that all other aliernarives should be explored and exhausted before turn-
ing 10 the military option as a last resort. Was military-intervention 4
first option or a fast resort? What was the nature of the relationship
between the Reagan administration and the QECS governments? Did
the United States stimulate a request from these goveraments or respond
to one? ) .

Two points seem pertinent, A New York Times report on (?cwber 30,
1988, indicated that the OECS request was drafted in Washington and
conveyed to the Caribbean leaders by special U5, emissaries. Secondly.
U.S. ships were diverted to the region on Octaber u:vcnuell'f. even bﬁl’nrc
the Caribbean leacers met. The administration said that it was a "pre-
cautionary measure,” and Prime Minister "Tom Adams of Barbados said
that he had already had conversations with the United States about the
possibility of intervention. . )

In considering these guestions, it is imporiant to.recognize that the
nations of the Fastern Carilibean ave democracies with stravg and articulute
leaders, They are no one's “fupfrels.” All of the govermmnents were uf:scul‘ccl
hy the Bishep coup in Marcl 1979, but they were prcp_arcd to vac with
that government provided Bishop did not inlcl:&rc in t!lcu' internl
affairs. Afier thut coup, the feaders of these nutions met in Barhadlos,
and after obtaining assurances from Bishoyp that he wo'uld.lmid early
clections, they recognized his government. Over dme, as it l)en:unc clzf:nr
that he did not intend 10 Wl Bis initial pledge. the gnverminenis -
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to"U.5. citizens as most others. The military coup in Chile and the rev-
olution in Nicaragua were much more violent, and indeed Americans
were killed in both. Mareover, as of November 2, 1983, Deéputy Secretary
Dum still did know whether anybody—Grenadans or Americans—had
heen shot or killed in the period after the murder of Bishop on October
nineteenth and before the invasion. There were none.

IT events were so uncertain, why then did the United States not try to
seek out General Hudson Austin and others an the RMC 10 find out
whiat was happening and to further increase the safety of U.S. citizens?"
"Two udministrators of the Medical. Sck ol, Dr. Geoffrey Bourne and
Gary Solin, bath agreed at the time and in retrospect that the safety of
the melical students, in Solin's words, “was never in danger.” In Bourne's
words, “From the point of view of saving our students, the invasion was
unnecessary,” Indecd, with the fighting near the Medical School, and
the fear that hostages could be taken, one could argue that their safety
was endungered, not protected, by the invasion. And, of course, as a
result of the invasion, ciglhieen Americans did dic and 116 were
wottnded; 24 Cubans were kilted and 59 were wounded: and 45 Gren-
adians were killed ancl 337 were wounded.,

It abmost appears as if the United States did nat want to receive any
information about the students from their parents, or from the Gren-
adan government unless that informaltion reinforced their own assess-
mend thai they were in danger, The U.S. government, incredibly, did
not seek assurances fron the RMC that the safety of U.S. citizens would
he protected.

[f the invasion had occurred o day later, British and Canadian citizens
would probibly have heen evacuated. bs it possible that the *Marines got
there just in time,” in President Reagan’s phrase, before the new Gren-
adin govermnent could prove to the iaternational community that it
wis @ goverament, and that it could assure the salety of LLS, citizens?

Unquestionably, thiere were sume U.S. citizens on the island who were
afraid, and others who were not. But the question for U.S. policymakers
was whether the “atmosphere of violent uncertainty” in Grenada'from
Qcluber niricteenth was worse than in E Salvador during the last decade,
or in GCuatemala in 1981, ar in Balivia for two-thirds of the ast decades?
Did U.S. citizens have more or less 10 fear Mrom the Crenadan govern-
tient than they had from an invasion? The available evidence suggests
that U.S, citizens had less to Tear from the RMC than Fram the invasion.

U.S. consular officials did try (o negotiate an evacuation of the students
wned initially received soine cooperation from the Grenadins for evac-
watiing several hundred medical students by commercial aircraft. How-
ever, aver the weekend before the invasion, Duarbadian radio Teports
were received in Grenada alot the possibility of an invasion. These i

THE INVASION OF QRENADA b2

creased their pressure on Bishop, and it may be that these countrics

i influence on Grenada.
were the mest imporiant source of in ; . -
“I'he murders on-Ociober nineteenth horrified the entire English

i ibbean, and several of the OECS governments met in emer-
;ﬁ?:fsﬁz:ﬁ?mndemn the killing and break relations. The icaders
probably came to an'indepeadent judgment that a Marxist md:;ary gov-
ernment in the Eastern Caribbean was unaccepiable. It woul »appca;
that the United States had come to that judgment long before, but ha
recognized that it could not take acti?n without the acqmesccnc: or
suppon of the Eastern Ciribbean nations. The mauacre in Gmmdah (Kn
Octaber nineteenth led to a convergence of thinking. It is unlikely that the
United States forced the OECS to make the request, but the diversion
of the U.S. fleet provided a dr’amatic demonsiration of U.8. seriousness

f the availability of a military option. . ]
ang':l t;:]c Uaniatcd StaZes discourage consideration of otllct:opIIOf:s? Right
after 1hie establishment of the RMC, Milton Cato, the prime minister of
S0 Vincent, offered to meet with Hudson Austin, and Ausu-n immedi-
ately accepted, but the meeting was never heid. Cato was dlscou.ragcd
from holding the meeting with Austin by almost everyone—Dby V;:!Ccl:l-
tians primarily, by his Caribbean colleagues sccopdiy. and Iastl)lf. rﬂt_. e
Unitedt States. His constituents had the greatest influence on him.”

. What were the other aliernatives, and d'm_i they stand a chance aof
restoring peace to Grenada? The killing of Bishop left the RMC weak-
ened, divided, and totally isolated from the rest of the Canl?bcan. !u‘an
unprecedented move, both the OECS and CARICOM decided during
the weekend before the invasion to condemn the new government, break
refations, suspend Grenada from CARICOM, and impose tr?dc sanc-:
tions. Even Fidel Castro issued a strong condemnation of the regime,
and Michael Manley pledged publidy to seck the fxpulsaon of the ?\.lcw
Jewel Movement from the Socialist International. The Grenadan regime ‘
was totally isolated. )
CARICOM also decided to contact Grenada's g(_}v'c_mor-gcncrag in or-
der tn have him: (1) establish a broadly based civilian government of
nazional reconciliation which would hold elections "at lhc.carlles_l. Pmmblc
date™; (2} receive “a factfinding mission compnsing eminent cmzcns_ of
CARICOM states™; (3) put in place evacuation measures for foreign
nutionats; and (4) accept the deployment in Grenada of a }?eacc-kccpmg
furce (rom Canbhbean countries. According to George '(,hambcrs, the
prime minister of Trinidad and Tobago. who summarized the results
of the CARICOM meeting, theie was complete agreement on these
measures; the only differences within CARICOM were ulriuen and how
to use (orce if the Grenudan-regime rejected these steps.” .
“I'he Grenadan leadership realized that it was in an impossible position
and tried through a numher of channels to find an exit. Austin spoke
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» with Geoffrey Bourne from the Medical Schonl, wha, in‘Bourne's wards,
“laoked as thuugh he wanted™ advice. Bourne spoke with his son, Dr.

Peter Dourne, wha was an adviser on health'issues (o President Carter.

Peter Bousne (who consulted briefly with the snbar and several nthers)
- sugpested that an approach to Anstin should he premised on skepticisin

and should aim to test Austin’s sincerity. Bishop had promised elections,
_ hut reneged. Austin should break with the past and announce lis in-
lention to serve 2y a transition figure toward reestablishing parliamentary
democracy. But even those steps would not be suflicient. In arder 1m
regain the confidence of CARICOM, he would have to prove his sincerily
with clear actions,

More importantly, Austin called ‘Trinidad’s president, Filis Clarke on
Friday befare the CARICOM meeting (o say that his government was
prepared (o accept a visit by an international group from CARLICOM 10
discuss eleciions and other items. Clarke informed Prime Minister Cham-
hers, who then began comacting senior staiesmen in the region.'* The
CARICOM decisions listed above would have provided such 2 test ol
Austin's intentions.

I is not known whether Anstin was sincerely seeking an exist or just
trying 10 buy time, because the Marines Lunled before Bourne evén
received the message [rom his sou let alone conveyed it (o Austin. “The
Marines also landed before the CARICOM decisions cuuld he imple-
menied.

I one believes that the killing of Rishop was a premeditated eflori o
seize control by an extreme leflist grobp ticdd even more tightly thun
Rishop to the Soviets wod Gubans, then one would properly judge Aus-
tin's effort as a ploy, and condude lie was not warth dealing with. 11,
ot the other hand, the evenis surrounding the murder of Bishop were
not premeditated, that Bishop forced the hand of the military by going
to Fort Rupert with his supporiers, and that the military reacted with
fear as well as anger, then one might conclude than eveunts had overtaken
the RMC. If this latter scenario iz more probahle, then one might coui-
clude that the guick reaction by CARICOM must have shocked the RMC,
and that they might scek some exit. -

‘Ihe evidence is by no means clear on which of these two scetavios is
more probable, hut il it is 1he latier, that the killings were not plnned
and cvents overtpok the Grenadan government, then it is possible thai
Austin was seeking an exit, and, atihe least, his purponed interest shoulkd
have been testedd. [t is worth noting 1hat the Trnidadian governmen
opposcd military action before the Grenadan cegime would have s ap-
portunily to respond o CARICOM.

Was the invasipn an auempi to forestall Tusther violence or an attemipu
tﬂ dislodge a group that might be preparcd in consider alternatives? Dicl

the 1.5, forces armive “just in tdime” hefore negotintions hetween CAR-
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deavored to prove their revolutionary credentials and mli(!nrity with
both. The Cubans were clearly more helpful and closer tothe Grena lans.
The Embassy of Grenada in Moscow rcpurtc‘d that “the Canhbc‘nn—-_ns
they {the Soviets) repeatedly state .. .is very distant frnfn them. TLis gquite
frankly, not one of their priorities.”!* The NJM considered :Ilerpsclvcs
a Cammunist party, and it tried hard 10 impress the S.nvtcls anl (.ulruns.
Indeed, 1he vote by Grenada to support the Soviet Union on Alghanistan
is one indication of this. (Even the Sandinistas abstained.) )

- In summary, the direction of influence appcars the oppasite ol whal
President Reagan alleged. Instead of the Saviets and Cubans trying (o
1ake over Grenada covertly, the problem—for the United States-—wus
that the Grenadan regime invited the Sovicts and (_'lubans L [?Ia): alarper
role in helping them Lo transform Grenada. Ironically, the Soviets were
refuctant t¢ do that. ) .

The Airport. Grenada's 9000-foot airfield is not large by P%rtllabcan
standards. Antigua, Aruba, the Bahamas, (Iuracau.‘the Dnmm.lc.u-l‘l’:c-
pubtic, Guadeloupe, Jamaica, Martinique, Puerto Rico, St. Lucia, “Ivin-
idad, and Barbados ali have airporls that are about the same size ar
larger. There is little guestion that Lrenada needed a new airport lor
tourism as the other was old, run-down, and small. The project was
supported hy many countries, including Venezuela, Canadla, and the
Europeans, and thie British government guargnteed a loan [‘ﬂl"l!lt: proj-
ect. If it were iatended for military wse, according to the British con-
tractor, it would have had protected fuel dumps, antiaireraft defenses,
and hardencd shelier for warplanes, whicl was notthe case, The airpont
was open [or viewing, and Canada reportedly intended o Liuitd 2 sixicen
millian doltar hotel within sight of it. ]

Though the airport’s principal purpnse was for tourism, that does not
mean that it could not have been used for wilitary purposes as well, In
a conversation with Bishop in October 1982, this writer askf:d whether
the Grenadan government would permit Soviet or Guban military planes
to land on the airfield, whether it would be used: lor transit of Guliaus
to Africa, or to bring in military equipient. The Qrcnadan leader saul
that it would not be used for any of those purposes, because o do sa
would jeopardize it for tourism. “Chis information was conveyed to a
high-level official of the State Depanment. Whether or noi Bishop was
telling the cruth, it would have nixle sense for our d'iphmmls to colirn
these poims privately and then try 1o elicit 4 public statcment o that
effect. Such sutements coukl not guarntee that Bishop wis niat lying
ar would not ehange his 1mind, but it would nutke it more costly fm"him
to do s0. The Stale Department did not follow up any of these points,

If one did not want to negotiale a cerious security concern like the
use of Geeamla's airficld, what were the altermatives for ic United
Stater—other than military force? Since e airficld is g0 open, verifying
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JCOM and the Austin régime might have produced z peaceful, ncgo-
tiated outcome? It seems clear that alternatives 10 military action were
quitkly ruled oul, if Ihey were even considered.

‘Ihe Grenadan documents reveal significant divisions within the New
Jewel Movement, but there is nothing at all that suggests that the Goard:;
[uction was planining to kill Bishop or the others. Indeed, the weight of
the evidence thus far confirms the author’s second scenario, thal the
Austin regime was overtaken by events. The ducuments show a high
{evel of tension and confusion among the NJM leadership in the days
preceding the killing, In the words of one of the leaders, “the Central
Committee was suffering [rom an overdose of parangia.”* '

Strategic Threat

President Reagan said on Qctober 25, 1983, thin “we got there just in
time” as Grenada was “a Soviet-Cuban colony being reaclied as a major
military bastion.” While the U.S. government did not publidy use this
strategic concern as a justilication for the invasion, it clearly played a
centval role in its view ol Grenada from the beginning, 1n 1982, President
Reagan publicly accused Grenada of anempring “tn spread the [Com.
munist| virus among its neiphbors.” On March 10 and 23, 1983, he
displayed aerial reconnaissance photographs of the constrtction” of
Grepada's new airficld and said it represented “the Soviet-Cuban mili-
wrization of Grenada” which “can ooly be scen as a power projection
inw the region™

Al the time of the invasion, the administration: claimed it had docu.
iments proving ihat the Soviets and Cubans were in the process of taking
aver the eountry and converting it into a base lor subversion.-But the
documents that it fater released do not prove either assertion. To the
coutriary, the documents show that the Cubans and the Soviets were at
least as confused and upset by the events of October 1983 as the United
States. ludeed, in a letier (o e Central Commiitee of the NJM on
October 15, 1088, the day alter the house arrest ol Bishop, Fidel Castro
himsell admitted that "everything which happened {the divisions within
the Grenadian government and the arrest of Bishop] wus for usa surprise
andl disagrecable,™* The documents also show that Castra tried hard to
preclude, not promote the coup iyrainst Bishop, whan he tater described
as having "very close and afiectionate links with our [Cubian Commnenist]
party’s leadership.™"™ It was a considerable embareassinent for Castro to
adhmit that he was so uninformed abourt such criticnl developments in
the alTairs of such a close lviend, but all available evidence sug:gcsts that
his almission was accurate.

On the other hand, the documents do make clear that shie NJM lead-
crship held the Soviet Uninn and Coba in the highest regard sl en-
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Bishop’s assurance did not appear an insurmountable obstacle, What
inuld one conclude from his failure 1o pursuc this serious securily
concern by conversations or ncgotiations? .

After the invasion, the U.S. government discovered the airport's Im-
portance to tousism and pledged $21 million to its completion. The
HEPOrL wis Open one year after the invasion and.a week or 30 before
the 1984 presidential elections in the United States.

Allhough the documents disclosed a number of military agreemeals
with ihe Soviet Union and Cuba, there are no references in those doc-
uments o possible military use of the airport. A barely legible, hand-
wrilten page [romi the notebook of Liam James, a member of}hc Palitical
Buresy, indicated: “The Revo has been able to crush counter-revolution
internationally. Airport will be used for Cuban and Soviet military.""’
T'his note, however, is not confirmed in any of the secret military agree-
ments between Grenacla and the Soviet Union or Cuba, or in any of the
minutes of the Political Bureaw or the Central Commitiee. However, the
minutes ol a Political Bureau ineeting on December 19, 1982, in which
Bishop, Austin, and a number of. other leaders were present, discussed
a specific request from Cuba for special refueling concessions o be
granted after the completion of the airport. The decision was to tell the
Cubans that “the request is to be studied.™ No further response was
given o the Cubans.™

1 shos, there is substmtial evidence that the Grenadan regime
wanted to use the airport for ourist purpases, and a single, compara-
tively weak and questionable suggestion to the contrary, Mare impor-
santly, il the Grenadan regime had already secretly arranged for the
Soviets and Cubans to use the airport for military purposes, ivis im-
possible 1o explain why they would put off the Cuban request, and
secondly, why they would permit a Canadian company to biild a hotel’
adjacent to the airport where U.S. agents could have monitored the air
uralhc.

The Size of the Cuban Presence, .5. estimates of the size of the Cuban
presence varied enormously, U.S. Navy Admiral McDonald first stated
that capiured documenis showed there were more than 1100 Cubans
andl that they were preparing a massive buildup. Subsequently, the num-
ber was revised to 1000, Later, State Department officials said that they
wouldl pot quarrel with Cuba’s own number of 784, having accused them
ol being completely untrusiworthy a lew days belore,

11 was subsequently couliimed by the U.S. government, and by the
daenments thomnselves, that the Cuban numbers svere accurale; there
were about 784 Cubans in Grenuda, of which more than 600 were con-
cruction workers. A military agreement between Cuba and Grenada
provided lor a maximum of 42 Cuban military advisors ta go to Grenada
1o teain andl organize the miliniry, of which twelve or thirieen woulkd he

am janw rcuptim fn iy
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stationerd for o two or four month period, and 29 would be staioned
fur longer periods."™ None of the documents released suggests that these
alvisers were either “accupying the cointry” or intending (o acenpy it.
Nor is there any evidence that these advisers gave instructions (o the
Grenadan governmenl.

Theze are large numbers for such a small country as Grenadit, andl a0
legitimate source of cuncern for the United States and the neighboring
stales in the Eastern Caribbean. The Cubans, of course, export lubor
ahroad, and 1his was their principal contribution 1o the construction of
-the airport—an ironic form of aid in 4 country of such high unemploy-
ment. But the fact that the Grenadan regime needed over 150 Cuban
military aclvisers—more than all U.S. military advisers in South America
and the Cariblwan——is an indicuion perhaps that they were aot as pop-
ular as they repeatedly claimed they were.

Platform for Insurgency, The various military agreements with the Soviet
Union, Cuba, North Korea, and Crechaslovakia indicate that Gremals
wauld have received by 1986 a very large quantity of military hardware,
induding approxiinately 10,000 rifles, 4500 machine guns, and 15,000
hand grenades. The U.S. Delense Uepatrtment estimated thiu tiiis arsenid
cauld equip a lighting Torce af rouglhly 10,000 men® Alternatively, 1t
could represent w Hive-year or longer stockpile for an acmed force of
about 2000-3300. '

None of the documenis released since the intervention show any evi-
dence that the Grenadiuns, the Soviets, or the Cubans intended that any
partof this arsenal would he transferredd 10 subversives in a third country,
Quite the nppasite. The secret military agreeinents hetween CGrenada,
Cuba, and the Soviet Union, which the Defense and State Depurtments
repeatedly cited to justify the invasion, explicidy prohibited any arms
transfers to third countries or w groups oufside of Grenada: There is
no evidenee that any of the arms were sent dutside of-Cienada. There
is substantial evidence of contacts with Comvmunists and “progressives”
from throughout the world for purposes of solidarity, and consuliation,
but nothing hetween Grenacdda and guerrilla groups, with one ironic
excepiion. The M-19 guerrilla gronp from Colombia wrate to the New

Jewel Mavement expressing grecungs and adesire ta establish links with
the party. However, the Paliical Rurean of the N[M decided aat ta reply
to the request.”

Insteacl ol a source of "infeciion,” Grenada bad provedt 1o be the

opposite, inoculiting the region (v Murkisuan Since the revatinion in

L1979, democrafic insticutions in the Faglish-speaking Caribhean grew

stronger; maoderates wan in almost a dozen elections.™ Geenacla's ea-

pacity to influence, let alone subveri its ncighborn, declined during the

revolution’s four years, Afier the deutls of Rishop, i turned negative,
Duriag the short duration of New jowel Movement’s revolution, ihe
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would become prisoner 1o its worst lears,
emarios and tien implement tham.
reasoning that brought U.5. forces mto

tioned preemplive sirikes, i
it would draw up worst cne 3¢

‘I'his i3, of course, the line of
Grenada.

A Question of Intelligence

How good was the collection and a.nalysis qf political l:;cﬂlcb;'f;::ea‘.::;
Grenada during the 1980s and especially during the wee
i ion? . i
arlfc\;lah:a;lvi?o?' U.S. background briefings to the press dur:ng ‘]h:::::;
of the invasion would suggest that the Un‘uc‘l States 1!-|tc’r.prztc;}cmard
in the following way: the Soviets and, @.ubans. r_nampu!.,tlc  Jernare
Coard and several ather extreme Marxlst-[.f:mmsts [} .u;_m},n _ ;m,.Es
against Bishop, who was too maderate for their las'lc[. One q‘ :,,::.—'gf,.-.,,wn
suggeated by U.S. governinent 50117ces 4s 16 ‘:vhy Bn's wl;lw:b verthrow:
was hecause he was intcrested in belter rcl:m_:ms with the Unitec ;-.:iuu-
"here is consuleruble evidence th::l_wuuhl impugn lln.v'. E"wrrm iu“‘“;
Rather than trying to overthrow Ihslllnp. ‘(I.uban Amhassac ur(.: ,m-:;‘;
Torres Rizo was instructed. o meet wiih (.n.ard and cxprcssl .(‘:om-(l
strong views that Bisliop should be released from cnnﬁne_menA .m;“u <
who was supposed to be close to Cuba, rc}'uscd Lo see Tnlr!-eil.' " -um;fl
Coard was perceived 10 be more communist than Bishap, lﬁl al ‘I;. ldin,:
been criticized a few months before by many, reportedly "']jl‘]ln“ ’;,1
Bishop, for driwing too liberal a f:ucle for fure:gn.mves'trlnenl. ; v m’;,k
.the Cubans were alleged 10 be Ischml‘l the coup against Rishop, : f-‘{mll
the unprecedented step af condemning itinthe stron‘gdc.f.l tcrrr:. ;1_, .m:i
the entire Grenadian leadership wantct[-—nr’ rather said it ;.c‘au € !; ol
relations with the United States; lhc.quesunn was, on what fezms .
evidence has been presenied that Bishop and Coard differed on the
ansB‘:::;:J;h:t:l!:;?r::l?nns with Bishop ;_lnd (.'-uard: this wri.lcr (}{ucs uu:
believe that there were any impertant .thffercnccs ul‘mlnglcdllx ’uletwcr:r
them. Hawever, they difTered greatly in style, and (.n'nrd w;:s'_];:.t lml: f-.|
Bishap's papularity and Imwcr.'As a rule, ;u'uc_mpls n:):mpnsc it :::‘:?I?:u
prisms on peuy personility jrolitics n the (.;fnl)lmin mcu-rt:s 1 ore! g.}.c
it illaminates, and the case of the Iilshnpv—(_.__unr(l rivalry su.msl t’(-l the
rule. Tt is conceivable that there were difterences hetween the Cubi
and Soviet strategics, bul that alsp reikuny 14 be proven. N
This is just one of miuy exunples ’nI wllcn‘: 'l'lc fnlm[nusu jmlq::m; ;_"
ology forced disparate in{'urm:.uim] into :lll.ll!-flllll:lg fl‘.)lnp;lr"l et
_order to try to justily the invasion. 't le :uhmms_traum: s ns\.wfrul:r_“_wel;,
gested a massive intelligence Failure at the am:l.l)'llf.‘ level, or a ;cr ;{ vel y;
a deliberate effart 10 misinform the Anzerican peaple, The Reagan
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rest of the Caribbean was on guard 10 find any evidence of Crenadan
suppaort for subversion. If any evidence were laund, it would have pro-
voked collective action, which would have been lcgal and justifiable. And
the United States would have been on much firmer fonting in responding
{0 A requesi (o counter agpression or subversion than it was jin under-
tuking a preemptive strike. Bishop understoad this, and was sensitive to
it. He told the writer that after the incident in 1980 involving the training:
ol badyguards of George Oldum, who was then deputy prime minister
of St Lucia, he would never again permit any training #f Caribbean
secarity officials in Grenatla without the express permission of the ap-
propriate head of state.™ Bishop also quickly extradited Bumba Charles,
the leader of a group that had tried to seize neighboring Union Island
{31, Vincent), but fiedd 10 Grenada alter he failed.

‘The United States knew that the Saviets were supplying arms. There
were grounds for concern about the ties of Grenada 1o the Soviet Union
aml Cuba. The US. government knew within one month of the coup
of March 1979 that Cuban advisers and arms had arrived in Grenada,
although there is sill no evidence of Cuban involvement in the 1979
coup.* Siace 1979, the rest of the Caribbean was very wary of Grenada,
and any sign that the Grenadans were trying (o subvert their neighbors
would have brought a quick response. .

Alter Bishop’s murder, the Grenadan government lost all credibility
in the Caribbean. Rather than being i threat to the region, it had become
athreat only 1o itself. Indeed, the armed fiorces, which Bishop created,
devoured him in the end. That is really the Cuhan-Soviet legacy in the
‘Third World—militarized revolution—and that peint is clearly under-
stood in the region, .

Why did the Grenadan regime need so many arms and such a large
armed lorce? In a region where most nations did not have defense forces,
anel police forces were guite small, Grenada’s was disproportionately
large. OF course, as the invasion demonstrated, the Crenadan regime
may have had more reason to fear its neighbors than the other way

around. But it is unlikely that the Grenadan Armed Forces were large
either 1o auack or to defend their revolution. The armed forces in Grea-
acla—as in Cuba, Nicaragua, and other Marxist or quasi-Marxist states—
is one of the prineipal instruments for political mobilization—(or edu-
cation and convindng the youth of ihe legitimucy of (he revolution. fis
second purpose is imernal political coercion. The regimes build up their
urmies o make their revoluions and to preclude any political alternative
in the cownery, .
‘I'hie quesiion for U.S. policy was whether 10 intervene because of fears
rather than facts that Grenada was subventing its neighbors. The dis-

tinction between fears and facis is everything. International flaw permits
callective action after ngpression, sot before. I the United States sane-
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administeation contended that their problem was the tack o[ CIA op-

eratives in the region, and they Llamed previous adml’mstrauona fo.r

reducing assels. However, this transparent atlempt (o shift the blame is

wrong on two counts. First, President Reagan’s statements about Gren-
acla in 1981 and 1982 suggest that the administration gave the highest.
strategic priorily to the island. Why, nearly three years later, I.wd |f:te!-
ligence cupabilities not been mcreascd?bSecond_ly. ‘lh‘c adlmmst'rauons
response reflects a bias loward covert aCIIOI'.I,.WhICh is inappropriate and
Frankly unnecessary in the Caribbean, which is remarkably epen. S}t’fipl:,
open conversation can achieve what operatives cannot.'Thc administra-
tion did not know anything about Coard when the conflict starced simply
because it had never bothered to talk to him; officials probably read
intelligence repoits with a host of labels that missed the man and the
posint, This was the cost of the admiaistration’s pulicy not o communicate
with tlie Grenadan regime.

CONCLUSION

Benefits and Costs

Advocates of the intervention have tended {0 underestimate or not
sce the casts, while oppenents natarally tend to stress l.hc costs and
downptay the benefits. Any judgment of the invasion requires a system-
atic and dispassionate evaluation of both the costs and the benefits,

On the benefits, Grenada restored democracy and elections were held
in November 1984. Second, the Eastern Caribbean returned to being a
group of democratic states. “Third, the United States demonstrated that
it wus responsive to 2 serious request by them. Fourth, the use of force
by the United States lent credibility to U.S. threats. Fifth, Cuba lost a
Marxist ally in the Caribhean and found itself more isolated from the
rest of the Caribbean. These benelits are significant,

Whart of the costs, and is there any evidence they were weighed care-
Tully? First, thc human cosi—eighteen Americans killed and [I6
worded: 45 Grenadians dead and 337 wounded; and 24 Cubans killed
and 54 wounded, The U.S. bombing of the mental liospital was partic-
ularly tragic. Secondly, there were heavy international political costs.
‘I'he day alier the invasion, (itteen O.AS. members joined Grenada for
a severe condempation of the United States. The United Sties had o

« veto (11=1) a UN Security Coundil resolution condemning the action.

‘I'he UN General Assembly ulso condemned the United Stites by a‘vote
of 108=9~declaring the action “a flagrant violation ol international law.”
Finally, Cuba gained a powerful 1aiking point abaut “U.S. imperialism™
and a temporary alliance with many Latin American governments.
‘I'he United States’ clasest friends and allies not only eriticized 1he




FASTOR

102

i action, but questivned the judgment of the United Staies for taking it
The deployment of missilcs in Eurape was made more dilficult Iy this
action and the lack of consultation. e United States had, once aguin,
helped its adversarics in Western Furope by giving them good arguments
for why Europe should not trust the United Siates.

To Latin America, the invasion connated o relurn to the Big Siick,
harming efforts to demonstrate that U.S. interventionism was a thing ol’
the pasi, not the present, ar the (uture. It is not just that Gubans and
leftists condemn U.S. imperialism and intervention, but that some ol
Latin America’s youth would find their arguments compelling. This
makes it harder for the United Siates 1o pgain the cooperation of its
(riends in the region.

When the United States aces with scant legal basis it reduces the cred-
ibility of the rule of law internationally. Ambassador Sol Linawitz put it
so well: *“The United Stares is nojust xsuperpowers; 3 is also a democracy
that must hold itsell up to higher standards than the Soviet Union.”

Finally, there was 2 large economic cost of rebuilding Grenada and
helping 1o develop the rest of the Cariblean. In effect, e United States
replaced the British in the region, and 1his eant a larger economic
obligation than the United States had shouldered heflore.

In assessing the costs and benefits, the key question from the U.S,
perspeative is not whether they sumn to a net henelit or a net cost; i
will depend on the values attuched 1o each ol the costs or benelits. The
key quesiions are, first, whether there is agreement on the list of wlu
constitutes costs and benelits, and secondly, whether the benefits might
have been attainable witli a less casly stralegy.

With the impartant exception of those who died as a result of the
" invasion, most of the cosis are intangible. Ware these costs weighed in

making the decision? On “Mect the Press” on Qciober 30, 1983, then

11.S. Ambassacor 1o the United Nations Jeape Kirkpatrick said: “I'm

telling you that [ don’t think there's any moral rost to that action.” "This

insensitivity to inierpational public epinton—especially when so many of
the United States’ choest friends condemneed the action—is ill-suited to
the United States,
[n comparison to the almost casual way U8, leaders disaissed inter-
national criticism, tie late Prime Minister Tom Adaus of Barbados, with
"inuch more at stake in the invasion, deacribed the views of the workd
with much more detachment and perceptiveness. In a debute in the
Barbados House of Assembly, Adams liguratively toured the world,
rying Lo explain the positons of various countries that opposed the
dction. Pavsing at Latin America, he said:

-

Gengraphy hrings us together, and we are partacrs in many internatiouat
innitutions. But we o e Faglish-apeaking Gaoriblean are a filTercnt peaple,
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the action would have heen justified. But none of these conditions ex-
isted, ]
An important factor arguing for he
Marines—is the regional commuanity ol t
i j ic ires supy
cornmunity of natians, which requires s g
administration had pursued a strategy from 1981-1983 of glmtlerlxll:'f::ti,
that unity, thus undernining enc of its alleged reasons for intervention,
Nonctheless, supportiug those smull, vutnerable democracies is an Bn-
portant U.S, inlerest.
In examining the ac
istration's foreign policy.

Ip—though not necessarily, the
e OECS; thisis indeed a voique
»ort. lronicaily, the Reagan

tion and its relationship with the restof the adinin-
what was mast disturbing was its appareat

proclivity to think and act in military or covert1erms. The a?dmlm.qm:alum
1efi no room for diplomacy—lor ncgminn.ons-—for pursuing U.S. inter-
ests in anything but a military ar clandestine manner. In this caslc. :I: 1;:
many others, the administration never pursued its interests 'llrmlg_. !
sincere negotiations. Idcological barriers |‘in:€{| on twin premises I |¢|‘
\he Cihans and Soviets are behind all the instability in the region am‘
the world, and that Marxists are inherently llnlrtaslw?nhy. preventes
the United States from seeing opporiunitics oF reducing uncertuinties
1o its citizens ar its intevests. This left the United States in a pasition
where there was no allernative but o send in the Marines.
There were other altcrnatives.
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1, For my original testimony, : Cu
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with 4 different history and different traditions. ... The English-speaking Car-
ibbean has never beea threutened by the military power of the U.S. There has
never been any occasion where the U.S. has had a military occupation agamnsl
vur will in an English-speaking island.... We have never had any historical
veasm 10 [ear 1the U.S. This is not so in Latin America and. cherefore, 1 un-
devstnd their vote (condemning the invasion),™

What are the lessons of the action in Grenada? It shiould be stressed
that she available evidence still does not permit a definitive conclusion
bt here are some tentative conclusions. First, there is good reason to
question whether there is any legal basis for the action. Second, the
salety of U.S. citizens was endangered more by the invasion than b;( the
Imlmc'a‘l sityation that preceded it Third, (he adminisiration turned to
the .IIIIII’(EII’)' option as i first step rather than a lst resort. It showed no
Hliation te negotiate or even communicate with members of the new
Revolutionary Military Council,

. Fhe Eastern Caribbean leadcrs came 1o a similar, though independent
JN(!gI_l\ll’.’tll. ‘The United States clhose to respond to the request lor military
action hy the OECS rather than to the diplomatic-political stl"alcgy
agreed (o by the larger, ihirteen-nation CARICOM. Since the United
Slfllt‘ﬁ.w(ul!d hear the more significant milila}y cost, it was wholly ap-
propriate for it to question whether military action was the only or the
most appropriate means for dealing with the new political situation in
Grenada. Instead of asking such a question, the U.S. government seemed
([Felxgh:cd with the opportunity to change the Grenadun government by

arce.

. l"hc_rc were good reasons to be concerned with the Grenadan rela.
Lisnship with the Soviel Union and Cuba, but the Grenadan capacity Lo
influence developments in the rest of the Garibbean had heen rcdu)(’:c(i
in the Tour ycars since (he coup, and indeed; the rest of the Garibbean
had spparently increased its influence on Grenada. After Bishop’s mur-
der, Cuban, Soviet, and Grenadan influence sank 1o an uaprecedented
Iu.w levelin theregion; under those circumstances, it was hard to conceive
ol (;rm}:uln as a Saviet-Caban platform for insurgency. Any effore at
subversion by the Grenilans would have eusily elicited a collective se-
runity response, which would bave beea clearer ia its legality and jus-
fihcation than the “preemptive action™ that occurred. The United Stfxtcs
woukl have heen on much (irmer graund responding to such a request -
than 1n the one that led to the invasion. =

tFU.S. citizens had been put in danger by the new government, if the
legal hasis for intervention had existed, if Crenacda was a "Sovict—éuban
t'nlnny"‘ and a “bastion” of urins to be used.to subver: or overrun de-
niocracies i_n the area, and if sther alternatives were explored or the
achministrmion could make o vonvincing case why they were ant, then
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6. In several conversations al the time Mucica told me of his talks with Bish,
aned e sspected that the purpose was 10 elicit i excuse for intcrvention,

7. Sce Hearings, pp. 1M1,

4. luterview with State Depariment oflicial on Caribbean desk, July 1, 1985,
The official confirmed that nu Americans weee threatened or harmed during
the perind from the murster of DNishop 10 the invasion, and 1hatl the Stce De-
pariment had nat approached Austin directly,

0. Citeed in Edward Ceorly, “Medical School Dirccior Says He Backs lavasion,”
Waushington Pasf, November 1, 1443, p. A23. Bourne saitll he supporied the
invasion for political reasons, it in this interview, he acknowledyed it wasn't
ecessary to rescue e students.

10. Author's interview with Hon., Milion Cato and others an St. Vincent,
February 1984,

11. The CARICOM decisions and a stalcmiemt by Prime Minister George
Chambers can be faund in Appendix 2 ol Hearings, pp. 218-31

12. Aunthor's interview with one of the statesuen wha were omuactesdl by
Chambers. January 28, 1987, Atlania, Georgia.

14, Sealmry and McDuougall, The Grenadu Papers, p. 533,

14. Scabury and McDougall, p. 327.

15. “Farewell Address to the Funeral of the 24 Cubans Killed in Grenada,”
Nevessber 14, 1083, Published by the Center for Cuban Studies, Culvr Update,

16, Scabury and McBougall, The Grenada Papers, pp. 1982186,

17. The Department of State and of Defense, Grenada Documents #23.

IB. Grenade Documents #87-4.

19, Grenade Pocumenis #16,

20, Crenada Documents #16, p. 6.

21, Girenada Documents #87-3. .

22, For further discussion, see chapter 1 on the Fasiern Caribliean by Sally
Shelton-Colby and Chapter 11, *Heading ‘Voward 1 New Instability in 1he Car-
iblrean's Easiern Tier?” by Scou B. MacDonakl, Erik Kopp and Vicor Bonilla,

24, Author's interview with Maurice Bishop, 5t George's, Grenada, Octoher
25-27, 1942, Bishop also pullicly signed a CARICOM Cownnuniqué in Novem-
bor 19K2 which noted dun “where any member state considers Ui its aztionals
are heing trained without its consent lor ithe purpnse ol pursuing acis of aggres-
sion or destabilization against ir, it may consult with other member states with
a view la dediding what coardinated diplomatic action vy be taken by them,”
{rext of CARICOM 16=18 November 1982 Summit Communigué, Ocho Rios,
Jamaica, reprinted in Foreign Broadeasting Information Service, Carihbean,
November 22, 1982, p. §3.)

24. For a discussion of this periokt and U.S.—-Grenadian relations, sec Robert

sistor, “Deocs the United Sizines Push Revolutions to Cubia: "The Case of Grenada,”
Journal of Interamerican Studies and World Affairs (Spring 198G): 134,

95, Darhados, Meuse of Assembly Debate, November 15, L8R3, pp. 56-57. cited
in Robert Pastor, *The Tmpact of Grenada an the Caribhean: Ripples from a
Revalntion,™ in Jack W. Hopking (ed.) Leatin Avierica and the Cnribbean Contemporary
Record, Vol 111, 1983=84, {New Yerk; Holoes i Meicr, 1IR5). This chaprer
mnalyses (e aharte, medivme, el loager-teem dngrics of Gromda on thie wider
Caribbain arca. It was writlea i July 1984,
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_ c/o Mr. Ruggles FCfgusorg
Augustine & Augusting
Chambers, ’
Green Street,
3t. George's,
Grenada.
September 13, 2000.

The Commissioners,

The Truth and Reconciliation Commission.
o/o The Chaicman, '
Justice Carl Rattray, Q.C.

Sirs,

RE: Access to Lepal Counsel by Members of the ‘Grenada 17’ for, inter alia
arrangements for Participation in the Truth and Reconciliation Cnmmissi-(;:

1. Several weeks ago different ox;cs of us i
ent ¢ recerved reports from family memb
ie;v:fhysx.st-to -::Ic‘);nc and see us to discuss a number of legal matters, being nz'ncd (io::l (;)f;eti?:esﬁsgy
Tilies. 1hey were reportedly told by the prison authorities that any Tequest 1o se¢ any of uspmusi

come from us, not from them. The reports : i
. . we fece .
various ones of us without difficulty. P ived mentioned lawyers who have previously seen

2. Atno stage were we told by any official of the prison (a) that any lawyer was trying 1o see us

and (b) that we should therefo . . .
adopted by the prison. re make a request to see him, since this was the new procedure being

dCﬁi;iﬁomW; wish to cmphasi'zc that we cannot evaluate the accuracy of the reports we received, as, by
they allogs dlc-wcrz not hearing from the lawyers themselves or even necessarily from the pemo;(s)
Somerimgs ﬂ?ﬁ?;ai ;o Euifr;otly. In other words, our information was (and is) at best second hand, and
. - experience has taught us that second i F o
breeding ground for inaccuracies and misundcmtidings. secon and third hand information is the

. ;;v{ forlzzciz;usr:igtfi tlui, and because we had some time ago asked certain lawyers to undertake certain
e r us in relat. (gle fo twc? matters [i.e. (i) our pending constitutional motion in the High Court
reeponsils T ;rri[ t(%gl pmgraphm'? of page 6 of our letter to the Two-Man Committee
Commiseion] - s g the TRC, dated 5" February 2000} and (ii) the Truth and Reconciliation
not recetved any replies from them, we decided to write the prison authorities.

5. On “ isi
- conz:ﬁto ; g, “tf;v’; (:;f ;s motcmtg the Commissioner of Prisons secking permission ‘to meet
] presentative, or representatives, of the legal firm of Augustine and
gi%ﬁnﬁe’ 1:ts well as other [egai_ mprcscntativcs within and without this ?ﬁdsdiction, oig:pu;:iodic
1awy;-m :; :2::’0 th;nbw?nt c:n to .mdlcate. the two broad areas which we planned to discuss with these
, nd bemg ‘to discuss legal and constitutional issues, and legal representation, it

rc13ti0n t
etter is

2

o the upcoming Truth and Reconciliation Commissien (TRC)'. A copy of the full text of the
attached as an appendix to this Jetter.

¥ 5. Perhaps at this stage we should just indicate:

(a) that lawyers from the firm of Augustine and Augustine were retained by us, over the past
four years, to research and then prepare a draft Constitutional Motion in respect to our ¢ase,
Recently, based on their work and with the help of two other counsel, we retained a top civil
and constitutional lawyer from Jamaica to evaluate this work and prepare the final draft of the
Motion for filing. [We are still seeking to raise the funds to retain legal counsel to actually
arghe the Motion before the Court.] We have also, with the help of another local law firm
(who are the ones with the necessary links), established contact with a well known firm of
solicitors in Britain who might be willing, on a pro bono basis, to help with the case if and
when it reaches the Privy Council. This approach has been forced upon us because our
family’s financial resources have been fully exhausted over the past 17 years of legal battles,
first to save our lives and then to win our freedom;

(b) with respect to the TRC, we have asked the firm of Aupustine and Augustine to assist us
with securing a wide range of documents vital for our fullest possible participation in the TRC.
These documents are to be found inside Grenada, in the U.S., Canada, Brtain, and m some
fellow-CARICOM countries. This is work which we simply cannot do ourselves, from behind
bars. We have also asked them to assist us in locating witnesses, many of whom are scattered
as widely as the documents referred to above. Finally, we are seeking their help, as also that of
the Jamaican legal firm which represented us at our Preliminary Inquiry, “Tnial’, and ‘Appeal’,
in tecruiting our legal represeniation for the TRC, subject to the state paying their fees and
expenses [see paragraph 10 (ii) on pages 6 & 7 of our letter of 5 February, 2000, to the Two-
Man Committee; and paragraph 5 of page 4 of our letter to you of Apnil 20" 2000.]

7. About a week after submitting the letter of August 7% (referred to above) to the Commissioner
of Prisons, we raised with him, in person, his response, when he visited our section of the prison. He
replied, saying that he was ‘still studying’ our request. After a further ten or so days had passed without
a reply from him, we again raised the matter with him when he toured our section of the prison. He
responded this time by saying that he had passed along our request to the Ministry of National Security
with his recoramendations, and was awaiting their decision.

8. Prison Rules with respect to inmates’ access to legal counsel state as follows:
sp g

Rule 344  (1): Reasonable facilities shall be allowed for the
legal advisor af a prisoner who is party to legal proceedings,
civil or criminal to interview the prisoner with reference to
those proceedings in the sight but not the hearing of a prison

officer.

(2): The legal advisor of a prisoner may, with the
" permission of the Superintendent, interview the prisoner with
reference to any other legal business in the sight and hearing

of a prison gfficer.
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9.  Inlight of the above, we are mystified — and more than a little frustrated — by the present
situation which we face with respect to access to legal counsel to pursue our legitimate lega|
interests. It has thrown back our preparations for the TRC by two menths — and counting. We
recognise that you have no jurisdiction or authority in this matter. We are simply informing yoy
of the situation, since it has a direct bearing on both the quality and tinting of our participation in
the TRC proceedings. |

10. We are, however, becoming concerned that the curﬁulafi_vc effect of a number  of
developments are working towards the fiustration of our meaningful participation in the TRC. We say
this, in light of the following:

(d) Our failure to receive any formal acknowledgement from the Two-Man Committee of our
hand-delivered letter to them of 5t February, 2000 with its concrete proposals for the setting
up of the TRC:

»  Their refusal to meet with a three-person delegation from the Grenada 17 so that our
concerns as well as specific proposals could be elaborated on;

* Their decision, and that of Cabinet, fo ignore our comcerns and proposals, in the
formulation of the TRC’s terms of reference and in the composition of the TRC itseif.

Given the publicly stated objectives of the TRC, and given the centrajity of the role(s) of
several memibers of the Grenada 17 to several of the matters to be investigated, and to the very process

of secking ta achieve reconciliation, this above-stated response to our initiatives is, to say the least,
bewildering;

(b) A few months ago, the government of Grenada invited the Minister of Transport of South
Africa (who was the Minister of Justice at the time of South Africa’s TRC) Mr. Dullah Omar,
to visit Grenada and speak to and with all interested parties regarding the setting up of the
TRC. He met with chorch leaders, trade unionists, government officials, and so on. ‘At almost
every group he spoke with, he was advised to arrange to see members of the Grenada 17. As it
turned out, he had decided to do so independently of such entreaties. Indeed, on a particular
morning, officials of the prison came around to our cells to inform us that Minister Omar
would be visiting the prison at 9.00 a.m. that morning, and that he wished to meet with us.
[The prson authorities had actually begun a general cleaning up of the compound and,
preparing a special room for the meeting, from the day before.} Nine a.m. came and there was
no sign of Minister Omar. By the end of that day, and for the rest of his brief stay in Grenads,
there was no sign of hirn at the prison. We later discovered that his itinerary was changed for
him (not by him) at the last moment, on a pathetic pretext;

_{e) And now, in the two months leading up to the start of the TRC - and continuing - we find
ourselves for the first time since 1986 (when similar tactics were used to adversely affect our
trial preparations) unable to sec ANY lawyer for ANY purpose, including for the purpose of
preparing for the TRC.

We frankly find it difficult to believe that all the above ‘happenings’ are purely ‘accidental’
or coincidental. However, we remain determined to do our best to ensure our meaningful
participatiorn ire the TRC.

-

We remain,

Yours sincersly,

Signed: .

_Benrvard Coard

Signed: gw&;\' }4"‘4‘&

Ewart Layne

Signed: ‘@\’ﬂa/a//
p——

Leon Cornwall

Signed : %ﬁ-‘—ﬁ%
7

Selwyn Strachan

Signed: C@AA/ /QM

Liam James
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o/o-Mr. Ruggles Ferguson,
Augustine & Augusting,
Chambers,

Green Street,

St. George’s,

Grenada.

September 14, 2000.

The COMmmissIOners,

The Truth and Reconciliation Commission,
/o The Chatrman,

justice Carl Rattray, Q.C.

3irs,

L.

EQ

_ Turther to the above, we have been reliably informed that Father

RE: Suggested Recusal of One Member of the Commission

In recent times it has been drawn fo ou attention that a member of your Comumission, Father Mark
Haynes, has publicly expressed great hostility to the ‘Grenada 177; even to the point of reportedly
saying that we ‘should all rot in prison’, of words similar 1o these and 1o this effect.

What forced us to take this matter seriously was the initial source of the information: someone who
n this was said, and whom we consider of unimpeachable reputation, who

said he was present whe!
algo happens to be very nostile to us. ndeed, this person was one of several whose voice was heard
on radio stations opposing the release of Mr. Kamau Mc Bameite and Mrs. Phyllis Coard, three

and humanitarian grounds. This individual’s sense of fair play, according f©
him, could rot see him permit, without questioning if, someone sO decidedly biased be a member of
an impantial Commission which would be examining, nfer alia, the actions of some members of
the Grenadal7, and which was charged with deciding whether to make any recommendations With

respect to their release.

years ago, on medical

Mark has repeated his position of
extreme hostility to the ‘Grenadal?’ in very recent times, indeed, since having been appointed a
Commissiener of the TRC.

erstanding, we wish to make it clear that we do nof challenge Father

For the avoidance of misund
Mark’s right to hold any views he wishes about us. What we are challenging 1s hus membership of
the Truth and Reconciliation Commission, given the rationale behind such a pody’s establishment,

and given its maondate and powers under the law.

have to take affidavits and take the matter into court, and so on. We

Sirs, we would prefer not to
desire to embarrass no ons. We would rather the individual, acting In accordance with the dictates

of his conscience, quietly recuse himself without fanfare or publicity, Our objective is to achieve
fairness, not 1o embarrass anyone. :

LAY HE--1TE

ESPLY I Yo I 1§




We deeply regret-having to raise this unpleasant matter with you, but I am sure you woyy

appreciate that, in the light of the information in our possession, we had no altemnative.

We remain,

Yours sincerely,

Signedw

e _/
Bemnard Coard
Signed: g— ‘-‘-‘ﬁ;\_ E-G'juv-*
Ewart Layne ’

Signed: @/Mo/[/
——

L eon Cornwall

Siened: W"“—
& V4

Selwyn Strachan

(ison Dpuuec

Liat James

Signed:
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Richmond Hill Prison
St. George's
29 November, 2000

Mr. Roy Raymond
Commissioner of Prisons
St. George's

Dear Commissioner, -

As you are aware, we submitted a formal application (dated 7 August 2000) to you
requesting permission to meet and consult with legal counsel re the case of the Grenada
17. We have not yet received an official response to application/request. As you have
stated, in response to our verbal inquiries, a decision is yet fo be made and
communicated to you by the Office of the Prime Minister.

Notwithstanding the above reference, we are taking this opportunity to inform you that
Mr. Keith Scotland, an Attorney-at-Law 1n the jurisdiction of Trinidad & Tobago;: would
be coming to this jurisdiction during the period December 18-22, 2000, specifically to
deal with legal and constitutional matters related to our case. Mr. Scotland has indicated
that he would need to consult with the Grenada 17 as often as possible for the duration
of his stay in Grenada. E

In the circumstances, therefore, we would greatly appreciate the cooperation of the
prison authorities in granting Mr. Scotland the necessary facilities to meet with the
Grenada 17, in accordance with the issue outlined in paragraph 2 above.

Please permit us to emphasise the enormous importance of Mr. Scotland's visit to
Grenada, and his legal consultations with us. Our families and friends have made, and

are making, tremendous financial sacrifices to ensure that Mr. Scotland'’s trip is
successful.

Thanls for your assistance.

Yours truly,

%{W D
eiwyn H. Strachan
Sk b

Ewart J. Layne
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[ |||a| '! Ir i
I,,m,,'ﬁ,}; | _ Monday 4" February, 2002

Mr. Roy Raymond,

Commissioner of Prisons, |
Her Majesty’s Prisons, |
St. George’s.

Dear Sir,

In light of your verbal communication to us this morning, purportedly from the
Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC), we wish to advise you that our lawyer 1s
Mr. Keith Scotland, Attorney-at-Law of the jurisdiction of Trinidad and Tobago, and
we request that any and all further communication on this matter be directed to him. Mr.
Scotland’s address is: 112-114 Duke Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad & Tobago; | APPENDIX 20
Tel/fax: (868) 625-1911.

ak We ask you to please use your good offices to advise the TRC accordingly-* )
Signed: | ' |
Ao 232 FoerK b
VINCENT JOSEPH S ALL
Lo lictbnt [’ R SN

JOHN [ANTHONY VENTOUR
- me )
DAVE BARTHOLOMEW

LESTER REDHEAD EWART LA
b CHwil Clale [sRacth ]

" CHRISTOP ,WI}LOUDE COLVILLE McBARNETTE

- -
HUDSON AU SEL HAN ‘
sl BERNARD COARD : CECIL PRIME |
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ANALYSIS

THE PRIME MINISTER OF GRENADA SPEAKS—AGAIN--ABOUT
THE FREEING OF THE GRENADA 17. o

gan® 4 RS

When you take the two recent s . h E e P i N
peeches of the Prime - Minister, D '
together, the following things stand out: er, Dr. Keith Mitche]],

1.

L 1

"'.Fhe ane Minister is expressing his views, not once but twice, on a matter which
15 st}ll before the courts for determination. In other words, the matter is stiil Szb
Judice, but .that does.not deter the Prime Minister. His s,peeches on this matt

have been aired repeatedly on Radio and TV, and printed.i'n;the press. e

The Pnrne Minister is clearly aiming to intimidate the judiciary:. 'l repeat...the
judiciary cannot ‘operate againstithe interest of the. society. And it cannot find

excuses in Jaw to destioV the sociéty. The Prime Minister, in Mugabe-style, uses.

the carrot and the stick’ approach ‘to the judiciary:*He prai ]
_ | the - approach 1o the judiciary:*He 'praises those judges who
rule the way he wishes them'ts fllé 48d°publicly attacks those who don't, hinting

that he will only obey those orders that he agrees with:

H? repeats atlllle position he has éi{ﬁl’jesséd'sé{'réfdl times in recent times: the freeing
of any or all members of the Grenada 17 Ts_a_decisi .
e o et ada 17 1s a decision to be made bv the

In other w01:ds: not tl_le courts. n_of the law, but ' The people as a whciié' — 1.€.. 3
rcf_‘erendum'i‘hv;nll decide the question of the freedom of the Grenada 17 political
prisoners. This is a very strange doctrine in an alleged d

allegedly by THE RULE OR-LAW!! ged democracy, govemed

g’hat the Prime Minister's repeated interventions ir; a matter before the courts {1.¢.
e_freedom o_f the Grenada 17 bv the courts) demonstrates conclusively, for - the
few who still had any doubts, IS THAT THE DETENTION—AND
CONTINUED DETENTION—OF THE GRENADA 17, IS A POLITICAL, T\I__di

LEGAL., QUESTION. THAT THE
PRISONERS!! .‘ GRENADA 17 ARE POLITICAL

. *"And the Prime Minis

ON FEBRUARY 24" 2002

Foarried on the Grenada Broadcasting Network (GBN) radio

B -, 1° March 2002 on the 12 noon and 6:00 p.m. news broadcasts,
B .d on GBN TV at 7:00 p.m.

2 Anchor: Tony Julien.

ter was very firm: when he spoke about the freeing of [the

Grenada 17] inmates from the Richmond Hill Prison. He says this is 2 decision_to be
made by the Grenadianpéople. - .

R Ty L ,r*i-.-r\.“ .
2o the peoﬁlé

witist be-involved.in any serious. decision that you male

. that involves the fiure of the couniry; particularly when it is an issue
. ihvolving national security it becomes even niore important... You cannot

-have forgiveness

if you do not learn to mend your ways and leamn to behave

yourselves.”. {This part was carried on both GBN TV and MTV as part of
an NPR_ programme on the General Council Mesting]

“_we did not go to the people for vote to make decisions against the
interest of the people. Let me repeat that.. I don't take it on myself 10

release anybody. This a decision for the Grenadian pedple, Sisters and

Brothers. The Grenadian people would have to be satisfied that whatever

happens in that particular area {freeing the Grenada 17] has to be in their
interests. And it-is only then, sisters and Brothers, that I would do what the
people say. Lét us be very clear that no man, no smart men, o bright boys,
- no godless men who refuse to stand up and pray to the Lord in Parijament,

no smart men,

would be able to force the hand of this government [re

freeing the Grenada 17].

“I want to make it clear, the constitution is clear, that there are wo
-branches of government. There is the Executive; there is also the Judicial
[sic}. No one is supposed to impose s will on the other one without—
without due reason. I repeat, the ju... the judiciary cannot operate against
the interest of the society. And it cannot find excuses in law to destroy the
society. Because the society IS..Is import. is important pillar of the

constitution. So
Ah speaking In

no smart man can use the judiciary fo destroy the society.
tongues. [ am not saying Peter, I am not saying Paul. Who

could understand, understand.”
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THE KEITH MITCHELL GOVERNMENT AND THE COURT ORDER
TO FREE "FORTHWITH" THREE MEMBERS OF THE GRENADA 17

Below, vou will read.a newsbroadcast from a pro-government radio station, WEE/FM. You
will observe the unprofessionalism of the broadcasters, referring to the Grenada Seventeen a5
the "Coard Gang' twice in the news item; and to the three ordered released by the High Court ag
“The October 1983 Three-Member Firing Squad’ based solely on a Kangaroo trial with
demonstratively cookéd-up evidence and statements signed under exireme torture.

However, our focus is on the implications of some of what Prime Mimister Mitchell said, which
was broadcast {in his own voice) on WEE/FM’s noon and 5:43 p.m. newscasts on February
21%,2002.

Note, firstly, the Prime Minister’s praise for the action of the Eastern Caribbean (OECS)
Appeal Couirt in staying the execution of the High Court’s order to inumediately free the
three men, That this action by the Appeal Court Judges was patently illegal can be appreciated
by readmg the ‘Statement from Bernard Coard’ of 18/02/02; and the Letter from Bernard Coard
to Prime Minister Anthony of' St. Lucia of 19" February, 2002; both dealing with this matter in
some detail. [Both of which you can read right after the WEE/FM broadcast transcript.]

Note, secondly, that Privne Minister Mitchell not only praises the illegal stay sranted by
two Appeal Court Judges of the Eactern Caribbean (OECS) Supreme Court, but goes on
to publicly attack (without calling names but with evervone clear as to the target) the

High Court Judge, Justice Brian Ailevne, who gave the order to free the men after eight

months of the exchange of written arguments by both sides and the constderation of all
evidence submitted by both sides plus studying the relevant precedents or case law.

Let us focus on the Prime Minister’s own words with respect to both the above points:

..thank God we have the OECS Supreme Court still there functioning effectively. So no one
person can make decisions that could affect the whole country and not be concemed about that
particular decision,”

Note, thirdly, that P.M. Mitchell’s ire is aimed at the High Court Judge for (implicitly
ruling on the basis of Grenadian Law and the Constitution, rather than ruling, as the
P.M. thought he ought to (and as he got the Appeal Court Judges to do, in open violation of
the law!) on the basis of political considerations.

He accused Justice Brian Alleyne of making a decision to free the three members of the
Grenada Seventeen; a decision ‘that could affect the whole country and not be concerned
about that particular decision’!! '

2
&

[ 1 other words, the judge should have gone outside the law and taken public reaction and the
political impact of freeing the men into consideration, and on that basis not order their liberty!!!

% rinallv, readers can appreciate for themselves the fact that P.M. Mitchell’s concerns are
'g,'i?ireiy political, and aimed at the outcome of the next general election. and net reallv his
1 excuse of “National Securitv”® and “Stability of the Country”. This can be seen from how
# e links the freeing of the three men by the High Court-Judge to a certain (unnamed) political

party competing for office against him in the upcoming general election. Read again the last

aragmph of WEE/FM’s broadcast-transcript, where the actual words of P.M. Mltcheil re this
are tecorded. Note cavefully that he does not accuse any of the people referved {o as ‘the

plotters for the freedom of the Coard Gang’ as seeking.to overthrow his sovernment bv
)jlegal or unconstitutional means, but rather of (implicitly} seeking to oust him at the
apco eneral elections. Thus, he tells his supporters at the public gathering: ‘I hope vou
ready to deal with their heads with your votes when the time comes.’-

Thus he feels that High Court Judge, Justice Brian Alleyne, owed a duty to his (Mitchell’s)
reelection chances of refusing to free the three members of the Grenada 17— regardless of
what Grenada’s Law and Constitution have to say. At the same time, he expresses satisfaction
that he can still rely on the Appeal Court judges to do his political bidding. What a sad day for
the Rule of Law in Grenada! Let us now read-the WEE/FM broadcast-transcript.

Prime Minister Mitchell's Response
Re: Court's order to free three of the "Grenada 17"
Place: Grand Roy, St. John's, during the government’s "Face to Face” Programme

Date: 21® February 2002
Carried on WEE/FM Radio (93.3 FM)
Anchor: Calistra Farrier

'‘Grenada’s Prime Minister and National Security Minister has reacted strongly to suggestions that his
government may be linked to current moves to free the Coard Gang. Dr. Mitchell says the people of the
country will have to be involved in such a major decision, especially since it involves a security nisk.

WEEFM News caught up with the Prime Minister in the village of Grand Roy at a ‘Face to Face’
Wednesday night, following the Appeal Coust decision earlier in the day to continue the stay of
execution of the judge’s order to release the October 1983 three-member firing squad.

Dr. Mitchell says his government will not support a situation that threatens the national security and
Stability of Grenada. He says there are individuals using the situation to fry and discredit lus
Zovernment by lisiking it to such an unpopular idea that could throw the country mto -an uproar.

L128 nll T P Fe LSS ISR




3

“...all games that have been played and you heard all kinds of
nonsense being said by some people how the government is
doing this, and the government is doing this, the government

has done nothing so far that has undermined the security of this
country”. |

While the state did not defend the action brough
Richardson and Vincent Joseph, Dr. Mitchell says the fact that an appe
clear indication of where his government and the state stands on the ssue.

“It moved to have stay of execution of any order to release

anybody at this time. And clearly, that must be the

. government’s position. If it wasn’t the government position you

. would not have seen that. So I think that is sufficient (applause).

If the state had not Wanted to do this then clearly you would not

have seen it, because the order was given. The.state had to move

fo counter that order. And thank God we have the OECS

Supreme Court still there functioning effectively. So no one
person can make decisions that could affect the whole country

and not be concerned about that particular decision. So then it

) is the judicial system and I am not supposed to make comments
on judicial actions. But I think I have said enough to send a
message to where this government stands. Nothing that affects
the stability of this country will be done ‘by this government”.

The state is appealing on the grounds that Justice Brian Alleyne's interpretation of the law under
Section 80 of the Criminal Code is wrong and that the men had already appealed against their
sentencing and conviction for manslanghter in the 1983 Fort Rupert ragedy.

In 1988 [sic) the OECS Appeal Court [sic] upheld the conviction and sentencing of the 1984 [sic] trial
Jjudge of 30 and 45 year jail sentences for the thyee tormer PRA soldiers.

Trinidad and Tobago attorney Keith Scotl

and says his clients will take their matter to the Privy Council
if it becomes necessary. '

Dr. Mitchell is suggesting that the public look to

another political party, which he did not name, for the
plotters for the freedom of the Coard Gang.

“The Revolution came, people spent their time in destroying even
what they say that they believe in. That’s what happened. And

don’t forget the same people are still around. Some of them may

forget that some of the same people who destroyed what they

supposed to believe around. Don’t forget the thing about the

t in the High Court to free Andy Mitchell, Cosmug
al has been filed by the state is 4

. cimmt

o

4

Gairy ticket; don’t forget. The people who did printed. that:cl;e;.
in the name of Eric Gairy is still arou_nfi and theij a;l e u;;:;n ’tosa
serious political party today—of a certain part S of 5 my
serious, | made a mistake, forgive me. They are part.o t;i <:<::and
political party, not a serious poliucz}l ptz:’x;]tyiu;ls'l;gg nz: eTh :;- and

m are emerging now m 1
;‘i);:zkgfi tzl: eparty and thg;; are involved in -t?;.) posmon.? ::; ‘:
political organization. Now they want real pohnc;ﬂ p::i)w;;l the.u.'
They not behind the scene anymore; they have sur ace' d L their
heads are above water now, today. But I hop? you rea yThat !
with their heads with your votes when the t:m:e- com:st. r H.ke
how you have to deal with their heads. You don’t want to do
them to execute people.”
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APPENDIX C

Weekly address by Prime Minister Keith Mitchell
April 7, 2000 -

ask you to join me in preparing for an act of purification of ourselves —as a people and as
a Nation. R e
The process of reconciliation, with respect to the experiences of the period 1976

to 1991 is not merely an exercise in politics. Nor is it sole.y Wt _

of justice. _
There are many among us who continue to be deeply hurt, deeply confused and

mystified by-the absence of clarity and knowledge of the events of that period. Many -

people continue to suffer in silence. Many yearn for reconciliation.
_Grenada needs to purify its spiritual self. Sisters and bothers, the process of unity

 and reconciliation is the best way of purging pent-up emotions and repressed thoughts.

I, as a Grenadian and as your Prime Minister, am part of this process. I, too, need
to be involved at the deepest level of my consciousness. '

[ am asking everyone — no matter what your political persuasion, no matter what
your religious beliefs, to join in this spiritual exercise, We will need prayers at the
personal and national level, we will need deep meditation and we will need the goodwill
of everyone in ordet to be successful in this undertalkang. -.

Fellow Grenadians, unity and reconciliation have been the cornerstone of the New
National Party Government for the past five years. We have been unwavering in our
commitment to this noble cause. Indeed, we have endeavoured to be guided by this
process in all that we say and, more importantly, in all that we do.

Further, we have encouraged you, the citizens of this beloved Nation, to embrace
unity and reconciliation in your daily lives.

In this regard, I believe that the majority of our citizens have accepted unity and
reconciliation as an ideal - something to aspire to in your workplace, at home, at school
and in the commugity in general. Naturally, many of us have fallen short on occasion;
however I'am convinced we are on the correct path to genuine unity and reconciliation.

You may recall that when I attended the Commonwealth Heads of Government:
Meeting in South Africa last October, I met with-President Thabo Mbeki to seek advice
on the establishment of a Truth and Reconciliation Commission‘for Grenada. This proved

. to be a most fimitful meeting. In addition to the impending State visit to Grenada by
. President Mbeki, the former Justice Minister in the Nelson Mandela administration, the

Hon. Dullar Omar, is scheduled to arrive in Grenada later this month. He will meet with
church groups, human rights organisations and lawyers, non. governmental organisations
and: Government officials, among others, to offer advice and guidance as we embark on
this important phase of the reconciliation process..

As you are aware, South Africa has first hand experience with the process of
Truth and Reconciliation through its own Commission. We are most fortunate to be able
to share in this leamning process with our South African brothers and sisters.

A two-person committee comprising Attamey General Senator Lawrence Joseph
and Father Mark Haynes was appointed late last year to conduct consultations regarding
the Terms of Reference for our proposed Truth and Reconciliation Commission.

Fellow Grenadians, this evening I would like to bear my spiritual self to you and
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These Terms were sibsequently prcéehicd-f to Céi:inet-, and it was agreed that 4

three person.Commission will. ba appoitited, Before I announce the ident of the
Commissioners, I would like to deal with the details of the Terms that will guige the
Commission, which is a legaily binding body. . .

Firstly, the Commission will operate within a time frame of sfﬁ:‘ months from the
date of its first sitting. If necessary, this six-month period could be extended; however v,

felt that a time frame should be specified to serve as a guide, as weil as limit the financia
costs of aperating the Commission. . S

‘ e Ly F .
The Commission will inquire into and recolitAi;jaI events between the -

period January 1%, 1976 and December 31st; 1991. Inifially the time frame was limited 1,
1976, however it was felt that the pre-trial, trial and post-trial periods should be included.

The Commission, in addressing this 15-year period in our Nation’s political history, is

mandated to deal with the following: |
1. The events leading up to- and mcluding those of March 13, 1979 and the
i es and gentlemen, if we are to reconcile ourselves

Patrick’s and in St. Paul’s. This will cover the period March 13, 1979 to December
31, 1983. There are many unanswered questions about these deaths and it is our |
)Sfiél_firj@p;_mm the truth will prevail. '
3. The events leading up to and including those of October 19, 1983. Sisters and
brothers, this aspect encompasses a number of issues and that have never been fully
understood or examined. These include:
(8) The root causes of the general political turmoi in the State;.

{b) The circumstances surrounding the deaths of varioys persons, including the late
Prime Minister and. other Min; ' ort €
referred to then Fort Rupert;

(¢) To ascertain; as far as possible, the identities
died at the Fort and other locations; and

(d)

The disposal of the bodies of those’ who lost thej
will b

and total number of persons who

r lives. I realise that this process
e a painful one for many Grenadian families; however, I firmly believe that
in seeking the truth, we shall ail’ find: peace. ‘

: The fourth area that the Commission will address is that of military intervention
by the armed forces of the United States and the Caribbean in October, 1983 '

I want to make it perfectly clear, sisters ang bmthez‘sﬁa_t_anmh‘? gives

_evidénee to th; ommission will ba indemnify fom prosecution. We are not
seeking to punish anyone, We are seeking the . We are seeking reconciliation. This

will not be accomplished if people have"any fears whatsoever about negative
repercussions from their testimony to the Commission, )
Fellow Grenadians, after the Commissioners have heaid all the testimonies and
evidence, they will have three months to report and make recommendations to
Government. Again, ifa longer period is required, this will be considered.
_The Terms of Reference have identified” the following objectives for the
Commission with respect to the final outcome of the exercise:

-

To-seek to uncaver the truth behind the events that occurred between Jamaary 1,
76 and December 31, 1991; - - .
‘;‘i pmvide the Nation with a proper and comprehensive understanding of thos:e
consider this to be extremely impartant., The key word here is

“enderstanding”) (N - .

, sisters and brathers, if we fail to understand why, then we will not
be able to reconcile ourselves — as individuals and as a Natio_{l ="to the events that took
place between 1976 and 1951, This 'eads me to the third objective, namely:

To provide the Nation with an opportunity to become genuinely reconcjled and be

ermanently healed. - N .
’ The key word here, ladies and gentlemen, is “healed”. -With healing comes peace

— peace of mind for all of us. - .
Qur history, as you know, is our own. We cannot change it, nor can we continue

‘to ignore it or distort it What we can do, is understand our history and léarn from it, Yes,

learn from it and ook ahead to the future a fisture with much hope.
T The fourth objective of the Commission, as identified in the Terms of Reference,
deals with amnesty. ‘The Conimission has the mandate to recommend generﬂ.mnnwtx to
certain persons who, in the opinion of the Commission, present truthful information
during the-hearing of evidence, o . |
Ladies and gentlemen, if we are to achieve reconciliation and unity, then
forgiveness must be part of the procéss. Otherwise, -the entire exercise will have been in
vain.

Fellow Grenadians, the establishment of the Trith and Reconciixatmn
Commission, as we enter the twenty-first century, is very timely indeed. We canpot leave
the unanswered questions of the last century in limbo. The Truth and Reconciliation
Commission has the potential to close this chapter in the Grenadian hxstory book with an
acceptable degree of certainty, provided you — the people of Grenada, Carriacou and Petit
Martinique — come forward and speak the truth without fear or favour. '
In other words, the success of the exercise depends solely on you. _(j'm\_fernment is
doing its part to provide the vehicle by which the process of reconciliation can be
facilitated, but your genuine participation is absojutely essential. ]
Finally, I am, indeed, honoured to announce this evening the three highly respected
individuals who will comprise the Commission. They are: ‘ .
o Father Mark Haynes, a Roman Catholic Priest fiom the parish area of Beaulieau, and
member of the Committee appointed to formulate the Terms of Reference;. -
» Anglican Bishop Sehon Goodridge of the Windward Istands, who is stationed in St.
Vincent and the Grenadines and who, at one time, taught at the Grenada Boys
Secondary School.

W\ + and the Chairman of the Commission - the esteemed Carl Rattray, retired President of

the Court of Appeal of Jamaica, o

With the appointment of the Commissioners now completed, it w;l} only ?e.a matter
of weelks before further details about the schedule and locations of hearings will be made
available,

In this regard, I urge all Grenadians to take this exercise very seriously. Let us look
back in order that we can look forward.
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As T stated. earlxer the future holds so nmch for Grenada, Camacou and Petxt
Martinique.

Sisters and brothers, permit me to turn to one of the very bright spots in our future -

our National Stadium. I encourage all Grenadians to support the three day match this
weekend when Zimbabwe plays the West Indies Board XI-at the National. Stadium, as
well as the Trangular Series when Pakistan plays Zimbabwe on Apnf 15 and West Indies
plays Pakistan on April 16.

Grenada is, indeed, honoured to host these three matches. I encourage all our cricket

fans to give the teams a warm Grenadian welcome and demonstrate our love for the game

with enttysiasm and sportsmanship.

Additionally, I am very happy to make special mention of our young Wes: Indies
player Camilus Alexander of St. Andrew’s, who played for the West Indies Urnder 19
Teamn in the Youth World Cup in Sri Lanka earlier this year and who will be playing in

"the match this weekend.
. In closing, on behaif of the Government and on my own.behalf, I also take this
opportudity to extend best wishes to all the members of our National Youth Team as you
prepare for the Windward Islands Under 19 Tournament in St. Vincent and the
Grenadines next week.

We are very pleased with the National Youth Team and trust that you will make us all
proud in the championships as you strive for excellence. .

Thank you and good night.

-1
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~ ADDRESS GIVEN BY SEN. THE HON, LAWRENCE A. .IOSEPH, MINISTER FOR
LABOUR AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, AT THE FORMAL LAUNCHING OF THE
TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION COMMISSION AT GOVERNMENT HOUSE, ST.

GEORGE’S ON TUESDAY 4™ SEPTEMBER 2001.

His Excellency, the Govemor General, Sir Daniel Williams, has just (ofﬁcial'lyj“

appointed the Truth and Reconciliation Commission. We are gathered  here now, to officially
launch the Commission and to wish God’s speed to the members as they tab(e their leave to fulfil
their mandate. s U

The Commission is expected to inquire and record nolitical events which occurred
in Grenada during the period 1 January 1976 to 31% December 1991 and make
recommendations.

Since the dxscovery {or shoutd I say socalled discovery) of Grenada by the European,
Christopher Columbus in 1498, Grenada has had its checkered history of conflicts.
The French and British fought battle after battle in order to gain hegemony over this tiny state.

It was only by the Treaty of Versailles which was executed by those countries in 1763,
that Grenada was finally ceded by the French to the British. During this time, the use of slave
jabour was the main engine of production for sugar, tobacco and other tropical products which
were prepared for the European Markets.

The Slave Trade from West Africa to the West Indies was the source of labour supply
until the abolition of slavery in 1838.

Even as we are- gathered here today, 4* September 2001, a major conference on Racism
is taking place in South Africa where one of the items that is being considered is the proposal to
have substantial compensation payable to the descendants of slaves from the slave trade.

In the early 2oth Century, Grenada had the status of being a Crown Colony, then it
became an Associated State and eventually became an Independent State on 7% February 1974.

Just prior to Independence in 1974, a significant section of the populace expressed
serious concems over the proposal for Grenada to become independent at that time especially
under the leadership of Eric Gairy.

As a result of those concemns, turmoil ensued which gave rise to «ivil strive, looting and
general chaos. The political tension in the state remained and uitimately surfaced in what some
considered to be a Revolution, and yet others say was a coup d’tat on March 13% 1979.

From that period the Peoples” Revolutionary Government ruled the country under the
leadersinp of Prime Minister Maurice Bishop until 1983. On 19* Qctober 1983, a sad day was
created in Grenada’s history when the Prime Minister Maurice Bishop, other Cabinet colleagues
and many civilian lost their lives on what was then réferred to as Foit Riipert, (now Fort George).

No one seems to know exactly how many people altogether who died on that fateful day.
Many of those dead bodies were never seen by relatives or fiends. The trauma of that homific
pen-ud is deeply implanted on the minds of many of us. It was a period when brother fought
against brother, sister against sister, fiiend against fiiend.

questions pertaining to that perod 1979 to 1983 still remain unanswered. It is

Many
i hoped that the Commission will be able to find some answers to those questions. Careful note

must be taken of the main objectives of the proposed exercise of the Commission.
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The Commissioners are being mandated to:-
(2)  seek to uncover the truth
(b)  to provide the nation with a proper and .comprehensive understanding of 1,
political events so that any mistakes made in the past may not be repeated
{¢) - to provide the nation with an opportunity to become genuinely reconciled and 1,
permanently healed. 3 :

!

- |
This seemingly Herculean Task has been entrusted to three illustrious individuals: ¥

Fr. Mark Haynes, parish priest of the Roman Catholic Church, based in the village
Beaulieu here in Grenada; a highly respected, firm acd responsible son of the soil.

His Lordship, Bishop Sehon Goodridge, Bishop of the Windward Islands Anglicy
Diocease, based in St: Vincent; yet another of the Holy Cloth, who is also higly
respected and an intellectual in his own right.

Hon. Donald A. B. Trotman, retired Judge of Guyana, now a legal consuitant. Hoq '
Donald Trotman, had been the Attorney General and acted as Governor General in the
British Virgin Islands and Solicitor General and Director of Public Prosecutions in $t
Vincent and the Grenadines. s |

He is a United Nattonal Human Rzghts Fellow and was Chairman of the Human Rxghis|

Section of World Peace through Law Centre and was President of the Caribbean Human
Rights Institute. |

On_behalf of the Bustamante Institute of Public and International Affairs based i

Jamaica, he conducted a survey of Political and Civil Rights in Grenada during the pemd
1970 1983, ;

In Grenada Hon. Donald A. B. Trotman conducted three significant assignments:

]
|
As executive Director of the Caribbean Institute of Human Rights, he organised a Humat

Rights Symposium in Grenada to mark the 10™ Anniversary of the American Convem’ﬂf‘
on Human Rights on behalf of the Orgamsat:on of American States. ,
It was at this convention on 18% July 1988 that Greuada took the historic initiative 10 |
ratify the relevant instruments to launch the Inter American Convention on Huma?

Rights.
Hon. Trotman was also Chairman of the' Cargo Handling Investigative Comlmf[ee!

established by the Government of Grenada in 1989 to investigate and report on Carg?
Handimg operations on the St. George s Pier.

=
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As can be seen, Hon. Donald Trotmadn is highly suited to be a member and be the
Chairman of this most important Truth and Reconciliation Commission.

Hon. Carl Rattray of Jamaica, aiso a retired Judge was yet another noble candidate to be
Chairman of the Commission but he was forced to decline the appomtmem for health reasons. 1
take the opportunity to wish Hon. Carl Rattray, all the best for the future. ~

Ladies and Gentlemen, the world today is vastly different from the world of just 20 years.

ago. The phe:mmenon of globalisation, by way of trade Iliberalisation, technological
advancement and the integration of financial markets, has had a tremendous influence on the
world economic arder.

Gone are the days when small under developed and developing countries like ours, can
rely on any significant protected markets, grants and technical assistance from developed
countries.

As a-result of this change in the world economic order, most of our economies have
become stagnated. We therefore have to rely heavily on our human resource for greater
efficiency in order to become more competitive. If the attention of our human resource is
diverted towards civil insurrection and political turmol, then opportunities are lost for enhancing
our productive effort. ,

Over the years we have seen civil insurrection and political turmoil from Jamaica at the
upper end of the Caribbean Chain to Guyana to the South. There is no doubt that more
economic and social progress could have been made in ail of those countries, had it not been for

these unnecessary distractions. We now have an opportunity today to make an assessment of our
“Tecent history, comprehend the events of that period, so that any mistakes which had been made
in the past may not be repeated,

-1 now takeé the opportunity, on behalf of the Government and people of Grenada to

oﬁcmily launch the Truth and Reconciliation Commission and. ‘wish it s members God’s speed
in their deliberations. I thank you.
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Maurice Bishop murder aand others (PBC Young Leaders Project 1999-2000)

Extracts from hewspapers
Trinidad Express

Thursday, Nov 10”1983 h

Army soldiers carry a body from a'mass grave here. Three badly burned bodie§ were
removed from a former PRA camp. Officials suspect it may be the body of the former Prime
Minister, Mauricé Bishop may be in the mass grave stemming from the massacre.

Cana Reuter

A U.S Official said today that the remains of three males and one female appeared tobe ina
grave...

Wed Nov 9™ 1983
Trinidad Express

The body of slain Prime Minister Maurice Bishop may be among four corpses unearthed
today in a common grave in Grenada. US troops ona tip from a man who reported seeing 4
bodies, one of them Bishop's buried by Grenadian soldiers in a shallow pitat a military camp
near St. George's, the officials said. The recovered bodies could not be immediately
identified, but Bishop's dental records will be matched apainst them, and the results should be
known within a few days they said. US army captain, Henry Fore, Head of the Army Graves
Registration team in Grenada, told reporters that a cook who used to work at camp Caliylgny
reported seeing Grenadian troops drag 4 bodies to a trash pit at the rear of the camp which
was the main ammunition storage depot for the Grenadian Peoples Revolutionary Army
(PRA). According to the cook, the soldiers first tried to burn the bodies then filled the pit
with earth. Ferris told reporters it was important to the Grenadian people that Bishop's body
be found.

Excerpt from "Urgent Fury" by Mark Adkin. Page 81.

The job was not completed until around midday on October 202  Abdullah worked alone and
was short of wood and old tires, which he used to line the grave. The only known witness
was a camp cook, Private Christopher Bowen, who described seeing the bodies, including
those of Bishop, Whiteman, Creft, and both Bains, "frying as if you frying eggs in a {rying’

pan.

Thursday, Nov 10™ 1983
Trinidad Express

US army soldiers carry a body from a mass grave here. 3 to 4 badly burned bodies were
removed near 2 former PRA military camp. Officials suspect that the remains of former
Prime Minister Maurice Bishop may be in the mass grave stemming from the massacre.

.-

Thursday, November 10" 1983
Trinidad Express

A US official said today the remains of 3 males and'1 female appear to be in a.grave on
Grenada where other officials have said former Prime Minister Maurice Bishop may have
been buried. State Department spokesman Allan Rumberg said forensic evidence would be
required for any positive identification. Officials in Grenada said yesterday the grave may
contain the remains of Bishop who was killed in a military takeover on October 19* along
with 3 of his Ministers.

Tuesday, Oct 2 1984
Trinidad Express

Grenadian Magistrate Jerome Forde, today began hearing in a preliminary enquiry, into
charges brought against former Police Commissioner lant St. Bernard in connection with
political unest here, nearly 2 year ago. St. Bernard, a leading member of the left wing NIM is
charged with other unnamed persons with preparing by the show of armed forced to procure
an alteration in Government of Grenada last October. The charge is related to the overthrow
of the PRG formed by the NJM by a radical faction in a bloedy military coup in which Prime
Minister Maurice Bishop and several others were killed. At today's court sitting, the
prosecution, which is led by Jamaican Queen'’s Council, Velma Hilton called Robert Evans, a
cousin of the tate Prinre Minister, as the first witness to give evidence. Evans the former
Project Coordinator at the International Airport at Point Salines in the south of the island, was
among those detained by the military during the October events.

Thursday Oct 4 1984
Cana Reuter

A leftist political party, dedicated to the ideals of slain Grenadian Prime Minister Maurice
Bishop, has called on the authorities to state the "true facts” concerning the whereabouts of
the remains of the late revolutionary leader and colleagues killed with him, in last year’s
bloody coup. The MBPM in a statement, also ¢laimed, that the US Government among
others was withholding information on the matter. Bishop and three Gavernment Ministers
were gunned down in the coup that climaxed fierce fighting between moderate and hardline
factions of his ousted administration. A US invasior followed The party said it is cailing on
Caribbean Governments and heads of International Organisations including the UN to assist
in this fundamental human rights matter so that the families of the deceased and our whole
nation will have the chance to bury the remains of our heroes in keeping with our national
tradition. MBPM said it was in possession of a swom affidavit by a person who said he led
US forces to a spot where he saw Bishop and his colleagues burned and buried shortly after
they were killed. The party said the remains were recovered from a pit in the Calivigny
military camp Southern Grenada by US forces on or about Oct 26" last year. The Grenada
authorities have denied knowledge of where the bodies are.
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Saturday Oct 6™ 1984

Grenadian magistrate Jerome Forde has begun an inquiry into torture related charges brought
against 4 former officials of the PRG which was deposed last October. The 4 are former
commissioner of prisons, Justin Roberts, ex army liéutenant colonel Liam James, Victor
Husbands, the general secretary of the Grenadian Peace Council, and Trade Unionist, John
Ventour. Roberts, Husbands and James have been charged by the Police of causing grievous
harm and Ventour in causing harm to a number of persons held as political prisoners by the
PRG during its 1979-83 rule. At yesterday’s court sitting, the only witness called by the
defense, was Roland Budhlall a former political detainee. Budhlall, along with two brothers
and two others, was sentenced in 1982 to be hanged in connection with a bomb blastata
Government rally two years earlier, in which three persons were killed. The five appealed
against the sentence, were given a pardon by Governor General Sir Paul Scoon after last
October's US led tnvasion.

Wednesday Oct 10™ 1984

The prosecution team retains the five member team led by former Attomey General Karl
Hudson Phillips. The others are Jamaican Queen's Council Velma Hilton, Attorneys Odel
Adams and Doodnauth Singh of Guyana and Ulric Dougan of Trinidad and Tobago.

Tuesday October 16™ 1984 ;
Grenada Trial starts today.

Authorities mount rigid security. Grenadian authorities were mounting one the biggest
security operations ever seen here as 19 army and political ieaders of the former leftist
administration prepared 10 go on trial for the murder of Prime Minister Maurice Bishop, m a
bloody coup a year ago.

Wednesday, Oct 17 1984

The 19 accused in the Manrice Bishop murder trial which began in a specially arranged
chamber of the Supreme Court of Grenada yesterday refused to plead on any of the-11 counts
of murder of which they were charged. "I will not recognize this court” said Andy Mitchell,
the first named accused in the trial for the Murder of former Prime Minister Maurice Bishop,
3 cabinet Ministers, 2 top trade unjonists and five other people on October 19® 1983,

The 19 accused are;

Hudson Austin
Bernard Coard
Phyllis Coard
Lester Redhead
Leon Comwall
Colville McBarnette
Dave Bartholomew
John Ventour

Liam James

Ewart Layne

|
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‘Vincent Noel and Gemma Belmar.

Andy Mitchell - jailed for 30 years

Vincent Joseph- jailed for 45 years

Callistus Bernard

Cosmos Richardson - jailed for 45 years - freed
Christopher.Stroude

Fabian Gabriel turned state witness and acquitted
Raebum Nelson - turned state witness and acquitted
Cecil Prime

They are accused.of murdering, Maurice Bishop, Jacklene Creft, Unison Whiteman, Norris
Bain, Fitzroy Bain, Keith Hayling, Evelyn Grant Bullen, Evelyn Maland, Avis Ferguson,

Wednesday October, 24* 1984

A Grenadian worker finishes the base of a bronze monument, erected at the St. George's
school of medicine campus. The memorial inscribed with the names of the 19 US
servicemen killed in the 1983 invasion will be unveiled later this week.

Saturday Oct 27 1984

The lone left wing political party contesting the December 3™ general elections in Grenada
used the first annivemaxy of the US led invasion of the Caribbean island to condemn those
who took part in the act. Kendrick Radix of the MBPM described the invasion to topple a
Marxist junta that had seized power in a bloody coup killing Maurice Bishop and several
others, as a savage American attack. The ex-PRG Minister, also lashed out at Governor
General Sir Paul Scoon and his American advisors accusing them of trying to hide the spot
where Bishop and three cabinet colleagues, killed in the coup were allegedly buried. Bishop's
body has never been found. '
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He was addressing about 50 people attending a graveside ceremony to pay respect to 13

soldiers of the now disbanded killed in combat, against US troops. Radix who served as

Industrialization Minister in Bishop's PRG, said that if Bishop had not died in such a brutal

manner, the Americans would have met another Vietnam on their artival because the men,

women and children would have resisted the enemy. i

Maurice Bishop trial officially opens.

Thursday, April 24™ 1986

Chief Prosecution Karl Hudson Phillips today formally opened the much delayed Maurice
Bishop murder trial with a lengthy speech to the High court He told the court that the
prosecution planned to call in more than 30 witnesses to give evidence against the defendants

who are without council after instructing their lawyers nearly two weeks ago to withdraw ‘
from the case. |




In a typical incident, an Irish priest, Father Sean Doggett, discovered the bodies of three
young militiamen who had died defending the RFG transmission station and been left to rot
in the building for six days. Having dug a grave but finding no protective clothing with
which to make the burial, Father Doggett approached a US colonel for assistance. The
officer replied that he and his men had come to kill the enemy, not to bury them. Sucha
response meant that a great many bodies were finally interred by the civilian population after
they had been located by the smell. At the end of the year, the State department announced
that 45 Grenadians had been killed and 337 wounded. These figures were not immediately
ratified by local sources, some of which remarked upon the cursory manner in which the US

forces searched the rubble of Richmond Hill hospital before having it bulldozed in.

Name of Deceased Place and Date of Death Does Family know of "
: ) Burial Site?
Maurice Bishop Fort Rupert 19 0ct,1983 [No = ’
Jacqueline Creft Fort Rupert 19™ Oct,1983 [ No
Unison Whiteman Fort Rupert 19 Oct,1983 [ No
Fitzrov Bain Fort Rupert 19" Oct,1983 | No
Norris Bain Fort Rupert 19" Oct, 1983 | No
Keith Hayling Fort Rupert 19® Oct,1983 | No
Evelvn Maitland Fort Rupert 19" Oct,1983 | No
Simon Alexander Fort Rupert 19% 0ct,1983 | No
Evelyn Bullen _ | Fort Rupert 19 Oct,1983 | No
Andy Sebastian Alexander | Fort Rupert 19® Oct,1983 | No
Gemma Belmar Fort Rupert 19° Oct, 1983
Eri¢ Dumont Fort Rupert 19® Oct,1983 | No
Avis Ferguson Fort Rupert 19" Oct, 1983 | Yes
Vince Noel Fort Rupert 19% Oct,1983 | No
Alleyne Romain Fort Rupert 19% Oct,1983 Yes
Raphael Mason Fort Rupert 19 Oct, 1983 Not sure, Check Mr and:
Mrs. Victor 444-6273
Franklyn James Fort Rupert 19™ Oct,1983 | Not sure. Check Joe at.
Pablo
Nelson Steele Fort Rupert 19" Oct,1983 | Not sure, Check Gary Paul
for DJ Rocky who might
also know of Raphael
Mason.
0. Cadet Conrad Mayers Fort Rupert 19% Oct, 1983 | Yes. - They were all
WO.2 Raphael Dawson soldiers. Confirm this with
Sargeant Dorset Peters Raeburn Nelson. Is
Lieutenant Corporal Martin Raphael Dawson same as
Simon Raphael Mason?
Godwin McQueen Beausejour October 25° Not sure. In book Urgent
1983 Fury, five PRM soldiers

- ﬁ - - - -

were ambushed heading
south in an armoured car.
444-8612
Daniel Holder Beausejour October 254 Not sure.
1983
Cleveland Phillip Beausejour October 25 Not sure
1983
A Beausejour Cctober 25 Not sure In book Urgent
1983 Fury, five PRM soldiers
were ambushed heading
south in an armoured Car.
Hence B,C.D.E
B Beausejour October 25° Not sure
_ 1683 '
C "Beausejour October 25 Not sure
1983 _
D Beausejour October 25 Not sure
Lo 1983
E Beausejour October 25 Not sure
1983
Blondel Church Morne Rouge Oct 25 1983 | Not sure

Interview with Gravedigger Mr. Andre Andail 440 6225.

M. Andall is the gate man at the hospital and also a part time gravedigg_cr. He worked
together with two others in October and November 1983 collecting bodies, Cubans and
Grenadians, and burying them on the spot. When the Cubans demanded the return of thmr
dead, the bodies were hastily dug up. All of them were shipped to Cuba for idennﬁcguon and
separation. The 13 Grenadian soldiers were sent back in wooden coffins lined with tin.

He made the following points:

1. Leslie Bailey (now deceased) told Andre that two disaster pouches they received from the
medical school{confirm this) were body parts found at the Fort in drums. They were not
under the impression that they might have contained the remains of Maurice Bishop. When
Nadia Bishop came over,a Back hoe was employed to assist with the search for these
pouches. Since they were deemed insignificant at the time, the site of burial could notlbc .
found. Also, fresh graves were either built on or around the site, making exhuming tricky if
not impossible.

2. Afier the Americans went to Calivigny and took out the bodies, the following was found.
a) A set of mandibles (with 4 teeth)

b) Rings

¢) A lady's purse

d) 2 set of key rings (for a Volkswagen)
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In picking up the bodies in Beausejour, two were found in the canefield and two were found
in the house. (Try to get from reports who was in the house and who was in the canefield)
They were buried in Beausejour and then in the cemetery. This does not agree with Father
Sean's account of three being found in the house.

e) Andre does not think that all the bodies came on the same day. He believes that the
thirteen who 1 shall call the unnamed soldiers, were alt who were unaccounted for.

f) Two mass graves were dug for the mental patients.

The following soldiers died at Beausejour. Only nicknames known.

Name Nickname Location of body when
. found
Eugene Roberts
Peck La
Peckvman
The following died in St. George's
Nickname Name Where did he die?
Noel . Government House. Oliver
La Crete, working in
Breweries can confirm this.
Gittens In Morne Rouge while
trying to launch a grenade.
Jackson He was from Pomme Rose
in St. David's. Died in
Tanteen. Was decapitated.
Soldiers who died in South
Nickname of Soldier Name of Soldier Details
Saitfish
Inculcate

Interview with Galbo (grave digger)
He remembers putting four brown body bags in hole. This is different from Andre's story,

because he mentioned two body bags. He remembered Mr. Clinton Bailey asking him to bury
them.

Bus driver Natural Mistic, Nevel Marryshow was in armoured car in south. Used to drive a
BTR when two men died.
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Yesterday, murder charges were conditionally dropped against one of the 19 defendants
Fabian Gabriel when he agreed to turn in state evidence. The court be said, would hear how
Bishop was gunned down , then had his throat slashed to make sure he was dead and also
how his finger was cut oﬁ‘ so that a ring could be removed. Among key prosecution
witnesses.would be George Louison, the former Agriculture Minister in Bishop's PRG, Cletus
St. Paul, a former body guard to the late Prime Minister, and soldier Fabian Gabriel, who
defected yesterday from the ranks of the defendants to become a state witness. Ex soldier
Beverly and Walter Charles would also appear for the prosecution.

Sunday April 27" 1986
Leslie Pierre

Jacqueline Creft, former Education Minister ;pleaded wit her slayers for her life, telling them
she was pregnant, but was told, "No f. .. ing problems now, before being murdered on the
afternoon of October 19™ 1983. In his opening presentation, chief prosecutor Karl Hudson
Phillips, told the jury witnesses would relate how one Avis Fergiison has her buttocks shot off
and her body cut in two by gun fire, how Education Minister Jacqueline Creft pleaded for
mercy as she was pregnant and was told, " No {... ing problems now" and how Captain Lester

Redhead cut a ring off the finger of Maurice Bishop and slit his throat with a knife after he
was shot.

Friday April 25™ 1986

St. George's General Hospital Matron, Agnes Grant, spoke of a frightening experience, when
in the company of Bishop and others, a room at Army Headquaners at Fort Rupert, came
under fire. Grant was the first prosecution witness to give evidence in the trial of 18 former
Government and Military officers charged with murdering Bishop and 10 associates
including 3 Ministers. Grant indicated that as soon as the first volley of shots hit the
building, the late Prime Minister ordered all the occupants to lay flat on the floor. She said
however, that before the building came under attack, Whiteman complained of not feeling
well and she gave him a small bottle of smelling saits to sniff. The matron said at least one
woman had her buttocks blown off, Bain was bleeding from an apparent wound on the
shoulder and Gemina Belmar who died weeks after in the Hospital, was lying on the table in
the room, bleeding from a wound on her head after the firing had totally died down. She said
the Prime Minister ordered everyone to leave.the room, with the children leading the way,
followed by the women and then the male occupants. The prosecution is contending that
after Bishop emerged from the room, he and 8 colleagues were taken to the top square at Fort

Rupert and executed on the orders of the Central Committee of the then ruling Marxist
onented NIM.

Saturday April 26™ 1986

For the third straight day, the Maurice Bishop murder trial was disrupted by chanting
defendants, seventeen of whom were sentenced to two weeks in jail for cantempt of court.
Mrs. Lynn Creft, Pamela Builen Cherubin whose father died during the coup, told the court
about the injuries and deaths resulting from the heavy hail of automatic gun fire which ripped
through a building at army headquaters at Fort Rupert in which Bishop and supporters had
sought refuge after they had freed him from house arrest.
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Creft said she saw one woman whom she identified as Avis Ferguson having her buttocks
and mtestines blown away by gunfire. ‘Bullen Cherubin, a nurse, also reported seeing schoof
girl Gemma Belmar with a hole in her head inside the room as soldjers pounded the building
fo_r several minutes, before the late Prime Minister surrendered. Creft told the court that she
witnessed her daughter being taken away at gun point by a soldier she identified only as
"goat" when the two of them tried to leave the fort afier it was taken over by soldiers loyal 10
Bxghop's opponents of the PRG. " When we, Mrs. Creft and J acqueline, one of the officers
pointed the gun at her and he said, stand up there with your hands up and I just looked at her

and she said, Mammy go on." She told the court. The mother of the slain Educati ini
( ‘ 3 cation Mi
said that that was the last time she saw her danghter alive. e

Both_BuHen Cherubin and Creft stated that as soon as the building at Fort Rupert came under
fire, its occupants were ordered by Bishop to-lie flat to the ground. The former said during
the siege the late Prime Minister asked one of the soldiers int the toom for a gun, but Bisho
was told hf: c_ou!d pot fire from inside the butiding because there was no m'ndox;v and P
everyone ’mlde would_ get hurt. She spoke of someone in the room shouting out, "We
surrender” after the firing had ceased and that the reply from outside the building was that
they should all come out with their hands in the air. She said the women were carrying the

injured schoolgid and on reaching the verandah of the buildipg there th fes t
looked dead and in the yard trucks and cars were on fire, 5 were three bodies that

Wednesday, April 30™ 1986
Day 5 of the irial

Mrs. AnmemBam, widow of Norris Bain, who was slain along with Maurice Bishop on
Of:tober 197 1983, broke down in tears twice yesterday as she gave evidence in the Maurice
Bls_hop murder trial_ in Grenada. Norris Bain was Minister of Housing in the PRG and Mrs
Bain spent an hour in the witness box telling the court her version of the killings which hav-e
been described as the Fort Rupert massacre. She told the Judge that when the shooting
stopped and she left the room, she Jlooked back and saw her husband being marched out alive
in a line wnt?: others with their hands in the air. She told of not being aware that she had
hersgif recerved a bullet wound in her right arm and had a bullet lodged in her right hip which
Is still there until a nurse drew her attention to her condition. She also identified a' ring which
was broken and had obviously becn burnt as the one her husband was wearing when she last

saw him. It was when she was i dentifying the ring wi i
: $1 g with the compass square of th
lodge that Mrs. Bain broke down in tears for the second time. P e mechanics

Thursday May 1* 1986

An eighteen year old Grenadian student who lost her left leg during the

here today told the I_-Iigh Court of her ordeal and the army slgaying ff th;e*;}:ggli ﬁg o
supported the ex-Prime Minister Maurice Bishop. Anne Neptune was one of two prosecution
witnesses giving CV.ldEBC-C in the long delayed trial of 18 former army and Government
officials charged with the murdering Bishop and some members of his Cabinet during the
palace coup. Nepume hobbled into court on crutches to take the withess stand after fonn:.-r
PM nurse, Merhq Rullow had told the court of secing Bishop, foreign Minister Unison
Wh‘itgnan,. Educahqn Minister Jacqueline Creft; Housing Minister Norris Bain, and Trade
Unionist Fitzroy Bain, lying on the ground at Fort Rupert, looking dead.

i ————— i -
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Lieutenant Abdullah who asked him for some board and tyres and he told him he had none.
Abdullah drove away in a brown jeep and returned again and he talked about wanting to put
the bodies in a large hole near the training school toilet. I asked him why, said Bowen and he
said they line them up the major staff to kill them and he will line up their ass to bury them.
Hudson Phillips then asked, "After he made those remarks to you, what happened?”
Bowen:. Afier he made those remarks to me, he took up a spade and started putting the
bodies in the hole. After he put the bodies in the hole, I asked Licutenant Abc}uliah why he
throw the bodies in the hole, and he turned and told me you cannot question any military
things.
Hudson Phillips: /After he spoke like that to you, what did you do?
Bowen: I left and went to the barracks, crying.
Hudson Phillips: Why were you crying?
Bowen: Because my leader dead.
Hudson Phillips: You went back to the barracks. What else did you do?
Bowen: 1took a kerchief flom my pocket wiping my face with it, and while wiping my face [
looked up from the training school toilet and I saw smoke coming from the hole.
Hudson Phillips: After you saw the smoke, what ¢lse did you see?
Bowen: Isaw Licutenant Abdullah coming from the bushes by the fire.
Charles, who was in the witness box when the court was adjoumned on Monday, told the court
that she saw when Bishop and six others were shot and fell to the ground. She aiso saw:
Lester Redhead cut a finger with a ring off the hand of Maunce Bishop and slit his throat
with a kmife. She also helped to carry Bishop's body away in a blanket. Charles under
questioning by DPP Velma Hilton said the following:
“I saw Lester Redhead leave where he was. He went across to Maurice Bishop took a knife
from his pocket and cut a finger off of Maurice's hand and also his neck. Charles went onto
say that she saw a ring on the finger which Redhead cut off but she did not see what became
of the ring. At about 3:00pm Charles said she saw Lieutenant Abduliah put his rifle to the
temple of Vincent Noe! but Lieutenant Raebum Nelson called out and told him to stop. Later
at about 9:00 p.m she saw soldiers loading the seven bodies inte a public works truck with
tyres and buckets containing something and they drove away. She also saw Lieutenant
Abdullah drive away in a brown jeep about half an hour later.

Friday 9" May,1986.

Acting Chief Justice, Byron agreed to a request from the prosecution, for presentation of a
deposition arising out of the 1984 preliminary inquiry into the case. The deposition was from
Jamaican soldier Errol Brown who said PRA member; Christopher Bowen took him to a hole
where Bishop's and other bodies were burnt. According to the deposition read out by
registrar Raphael Baptiste, the Jamaican soldier said that he saw pieces of bones, flesh and
flies on his first visit to the site.

Saturday May, 10™ 1986

Eric La Qua, undertaker told the court through Karl Hudson Phillips that as a result of a
telephone he received at about 10:00pm on October, 19 he went to Fort Rupert led by a
Dashatsu van with soldiers in it. There he collected five dead bodies, some of which were
dressed in soldiers uniform. About 45 minutes afier returning to the funeral agency, he got
another call to retumn to the fort, again led by the Daihatsu van.
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Neptune said she was shot near the entrance to Fort Rupert. It happened while she was trying
to elude approaching armoured cars which stormed Fort Rupert where Bishop and his
colleagues had taken refuge.

"I saw the armoured cars coming up towards the fort and hear gun shots cothing from the
direction of the armoured cars. I started to run towards the building but fell. Before I fell,
my left leg was paining she told the court. While I was on the ground and couldn't move,
many people were munning all about and a boy came and pulled me away to the comer of the
building she added.

Saturday May 3™ 1986

Former soldier and PRA yesterday told the special court in Richmond Hill, he saw Lieutenant
Abdullah shoot Prime Minister Maurice Bishop on October 19% 1983. He then issued the
orders to corporal Joe and Richardson to shoot the other Ministers who were lined up against
the wall. Licutenant Abdullah has already been identified as Callistus Bemard and the
witness Walter Charles said he also knew corporal Joe as Vincent. Bemard, Vincent Joseph,
Cosmo Richardson, and fifteen others including former deputy Prime Minister Berard
Coard, his wife Phyllis and former Brigadier Hudson Austin are on trial before acting chief
judge Dennis Byron, charged with the murder of Maurice Bishop, three of his Ministers and
seven other persons.

A

Tuesday May 6™ 1986

Policemar Errol Agard told the Maurice Bishop murder trial today he saw about 60 bodies at
Army Headquarters, Fort Rupert after it was stormed in an October 1983 coup by soldiers
using armoured cars. Agard was the ninth prosecution witness to give evidence against 18
leftist accused of murdering Maurice Bishop Prime Minister of the il fated PRG and 10
associates at the fort. He said he saw the bodies lying on the ground or in a public works
truck in the yard of the fort when he arrived there on a fire appliance called in to clean up the
area in the aftermath of the massacre. Agard said the bodies were being loaded unto the truck
which he said was about three quarters filled by two soldiers, including one he named as
Elton Thomas. Thomas is not on trial

Thursday, May, 8 1986
Day 10 of the Maurice Bishop trial

A former cook at the Calivigny army camp testified yesterday that the bodies of Maurice
Bishop and others and four others were burnt. Christopher Bowen told the court that he saw
five bodies, including Bishop's were burnt and that he cied. Bowen followed Beverley Ann
Marie Charles to the witness stand as the case against the 18 former members of the PRG for
the murder of Maurice Bishop and others continued in the Richmond Hill court yesterday.
He is questioned by lead prosecutor Karl Hudson Phillips. He said that he was a cook in the
PRA forces that was stationed at the camp at Calivigny, known as camp Fedon. On the
momming of October 19® 1983, he saw Officer Cadet Myers who was in charge of the camp
handing out civilian clothes to the soldiers at about 9:00 p.m. Later he saw the soldiers drive
away in a truck. Coming almost to the moming of the next day, he was awakened by a
youngster named Kent, the son of Lieutenant Francis who was in Cuba who spoke to him.
As a result he went to the training school toilet and saw some bodies lving there.

There were five bodies; those of Mavrice Bishop, Jacqueline Creft, Unison Whiteman, Norris
Bain and Fitzroy Bain. There appeared to be well shot up and cut up. He also saw

This titee he coliected three bodies, and he recognized one of them to be Miss Ferguson. He
said he did not know the driver of the Daihatsu van or any of the other persons he saw and
dealt with at the fort which was dark that night. He testified that he buried the bodies.

Wednesday 14® May, 1986
Day 14 of the Maurice Bishop murder trial

The bodies of Maurice Bishop and other Cabinet Ministers were sprinkled with gas and set
afire. Former PRA sergeant Vemon Gabriel told the Richmond Hill Court that yesterday,
that the bodies were put in a hole and Lieutenant Abdullah gave some soldiers a white plastic
bucket with gas to sprinkle the bodies, after putting wood and some old crates and old tyres
and then Abdullah lit a match and set the bodies on fire. After that, he gave instructions for
the men to be returned to base while he remained and watch the bodies burn.

Tuesday, May 27" 1986
The following is an excerpt from a statement made by Callistus Abdullah Bernard.

Whilst at Fort Rupert, after the crowd had dispersed, 1 heard Captain Redhead say hait and [
looked and saw Maunce Bishop, Jacqueline Creft, Unison Whiteman and Norris Bain
walking away from Fort Rupert. They haited and went and told them to march with their
hands up onto the square. They marched onto the square. Maurice had his hands behind his
back. 1lined them up facing the wall. Major Stroude and Captain Redhead were behind me
and we all had weapons. Captain Redhead then told Brat Bullen and Maitland to go and join
Maurice and the others and they went. 1 then told Fitzroy Bain to go and join the others on
the square and he went and lined up facing the wall. Some person also sent Keith Hayling
and he joined them. Itold them about turn and they all turned around. Major Stroude was
there with me, Captain Redhead was also there and a machine gunner who I don't know by
name and another soldier who had an AK. There were alsp two machine gunners on the top
of the wall of the square. I told Maurice Bishop and the rest of the people with him, that the
Central Committee had decided that they should be executed by fire. Itold them about tum.
I gave the command, soldiers prepare to fire and fire. On or about the time I was giving the
command, Jacqueline Creft was saying Comrade wait, wait, hold on. The machine gunner on
the square with me and the soldier with the AK on the square with me and I all fired together.
The bodies fell backward, some fell down slow and some fell down fast

Fitzroy Bain's body was moving and afier we stopped firing, Officer Gabriel fired one shot in
his head of Fitzroy Bain and the body stopped moving. I then went and examined the bodies
and made sure they were dead. 1told Gabnel to get some biankets, wrap up the bodies and
put them on a truck until further instructions. [ then left the square and went to join a2 meeting
that was in progress in the mess hall at Fort Rupert chaired by Major Stroude. About 100
people atiended that meeting and at the end of the meeting I said, "Long live the revolution,
long live Socialism." I then left and along with the other personnel of my armoured car, went
back to Fort Frederick on the armoured car. 1 went back to Fort Rupert on the night of 19™
October, around 11:00pm and the bodies were on a truck. 1drove my van there and then the
truck driven by a man whom I don't know and about 7 soldiers on it left for Camp Fedon,
Calivigny, with the bodies to be buried. I drove my van and followed them. When they
reached a road in Calivigny, the truck stuck, so I had to transport the bodies in my van.
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Wheg we reached Camp Fedon, a grave was already dug, 6 we put in the bodies, poured
gasoline, lit it and let them burn until the next day and then I covered the grave. When I
covered the grave, only bones, little pieces of skull, and stuff was in the grave.

Interview with Callistus Bernard. How come only five bodies were burnt. How come when-
the grave was excavated by the Americans only 4 skeletal remains were found? The cook

said. that he saw five bodies vet you say that on your instructions, Gabrie! loaded the eight
bodies onto the truck. What happened to the rest?

Saturday May 24" 1986

f& sworn declaration given to Barbados Police Sergeant Ronald Bowen who was in the
invasion said the following: Co.

It said that Fabian Gabriel and fellow soldiers Richardson and Andy Mitc}-leil finished off

those persons who apparently survived the first hail of bullets from the firi
. ¢ finl d on th
orders from Lieutenant Callistus Abduliah Bernard. ng squad on the

Rich;::dson, Mitchell, I:?»emard and fifteen other former army members and Government
officials are charged with murdering Bishop and ten associates.

._Ioseph said'AbduHah ordered him and another soldier P.C Noel who is believed to have.died
In the invasion, to cock their weapons and fire on the late Prime Minister.

Wednesday, 11™ June, 1986

Barbadian Police Inspector Jasper Watson, today gave the High Court hearing of the Maurice
Bishop murder trial a description of the grave in which the late Grenadian leader was buried
_aﬂer i%e was execu-ted 1n the 1983 Palace coup. Watson, who headed the team of officers who
investigated the crime, said the grave located at Camp Fedon, in southern Grenada was 20
feet Iong,_exght feet wide and some five feet at its deepest point. The hole was stink, there
were particles, burnt matter and cloth inside and outside the hole, the court was told,

Wednesday May. 14™ 1986.
Daily Nation (Barbadian newspaper)

Early the fo%low‘ing day about 1:30am Gabrie! said he went to Camp Fedon on Grepada's
south coastina Jeep.with Bernard where he saw a truck with the bodies of Bishop and his
coilf:agues stucl'c mmud. He said Bemard ordered he and nine other soldiers to remove the
bodies, _Following which they were taken to a targe hole at the army headquarters. He said
the bodies gave off an awful stench and the case of disinfectant had to be used. A'number of

wooden crates and truck tyres were then placed in the hole wi i
' with the bodies before Bernard
threw a bucket of gasoline on them and set the hole on fire with a match. .

Barbadian Newspapers
Daily Nation
May 9" and 10" 1986

The court heard yesterday how the charred remains of Maurice Bi '
_ _ urice Bishop and those kilied wi
him were dug up after the United States led intervention. ® e led i

| _u_i‘
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The evidence was related from the deposition of a Jamaican soldier which was toughly
resisted by the accused through a spokesman Ewart Layne who objected to its admittance.
However acting chief Judge, Dennis Byron ruled it admissible after two prosecution
witnesses, court clerk Denise Garcia and immigration officer Lasley Williams gave evidence
in support of the deposition. Garcia said she was the clerk in charge when the soldier Earl
Browne gave evidence in the preliminary inquiry while Williams testified seeing him board a
flight out of Pearls Airport on August 1 1984. The deposition related how Brown and other
members of the Peace Keeping Force accompanied PRA cook Christopher Bowen to a hole at
Calivigny. It said gravediggersrlater went to the site and discovered wallets, billfolds, coins,
a burnt ring, pieces of human bones and some fragments of burnt flesh.

Trinidad Guardian
Monday, October 7 1996

Court: You are not saying you are sorry for what you have done, you are saying you are
sorry that you were part of the system,” said Noel who was attorney General under the PRG
prior to the October crisis. If they want to be pardoned, they have to show that they are in
fact sorry and repentani. Unless that happens, [ cannot see how they can be entitled to some
form of mercy,” Noel said.

This was in response to a statement by Bemnard Coard who said he would accept moral and
political responsibility for the killings which came at the tail end of an internal party split.
Attorney Lloyd Noel was the one making the statements. )

Excerpts from the boeok Urgent Fury by Mark Adkin

Page 308.

The sledgehammer had crushed the nut. At what cost? The Cubans had 24 killed in combat,
another 59 wounded, and 602 unwounded prisoners repatriated to Cuba over a peniod of 4
days, starting on November 4® The Grenadians suffered the most. Their military casualties
have never been separated accurately from civilian ones. An estimated 67 died, including 17
in the bombing of the mental hospital and another boy accidentally shot by a U.S serviceman
with his pistol sometime later. It was aonounced that 18 U.S servicemen had been killed ane
way or another, but this was increased to 19 with the death of Luketina in hospital. The two
Ranger pathfinders' deaths, when their parachutes failed to open, have never been officially
acknowledged.

Page 315

After hostilities ceased, there was a lot of wrangling among the U.S authonities, the Cubans
and the International Red Cross concerning the repatriation of Cuban personnel and dead
bodies. With American prompting, Sir Paul Scoon announced that all Cuban dipiomanc staff
must leave Grenada within 24 hours. -Their embassy was surrounded by U.S troops on the
evening of November 1%, with nobody permitted to enter or leave. At a meeting on the
following moming between Rizo (Torres Rizo was the Cuban Ambassador in Grepada under
Bishop and at the time of Urgent Fury) and Gillespie, who had been designated the U.S
Ambassador on the island, the Cubans refused to leave until the repatriation of ail their
citizens had been completed - a not unreasonable attitude. Their note stated that the only way
the United States couid get them out was with the use of force. They also sought information
on the number of prisoners, wounded, and'dead. )

} |




.Rizo wanted to Yisit captives together with the graves of those killed for identification
purposes. At th_xs stage, the U.S officials were unwilling or unable to answer the Queﬁcs and
they were permitted no visits, ] ,

Questions and Exercises

One of the problen}s was that the Cubans killed in the fighting had been buried hastily in a
mak_eslnﬂ grave with no proper registration or attempt at identification. Some bodies were
put in plastic bags and some were not, and they shared the grave with a number of PRA dead.
It was not until November 10™ that exhumation began in the presence of the Red Cross and a
Cubax-x official. The task was most unpleasant; more than two weeks had passed since they
had died. The thans were not allowed to make identifications in Grenada, As the corpses
were bropght up, the Cuban representative protested that several bodies were in PRA olive
green umfo;'ms and therefore must be Grenadians because the Cubans had fought in civilian
clothes. It made no difference; all thirty-seven were flown to Barbados the next day.
Arrangements that had been made to carty out proper identification in Barbados fell through

sd;en the Government there refused permission. A Cuban plane took them: home the next
ay.

A decree announcing five days of national mournin was iss :

Rg(olution on No_vcmber IB‘Z. This was for the Cutg)an dead,usvig {v)\lrgr::ht?;a;i;i:; %El
mzhtary_ honours,‘ including a lying in state of the coffins in Havana. Flags were at half-mast:
all public entertalgment was suspended. Before any ceremonies couid begin, however, the
Cl_lbaps had to be identified and separated from the Grenadians. To permit thi 5, the ﬂiéht

provided with coffins, draped in the Grenadian 1 .
’ ag, and placed under guard ft
see before arrangements were made to return them to theg own countryg.uar or the public to

Page 372

3d/325" battalion was under the command of licutenant colonel J i ‘

day, a PRA informant told Raines that Bishop had been buried at (g:ﬂv?;;es'z&?eaurg %vt;se
later gmdeq to the spot and excavations carried out There was not much lcﬁ to put in the
i:{lack piaan bags; Abdullah had done his gruesome task thoroughly. Charred bones, some
tissue, clothing associated with Crefl, and personal effects of the Bains and Méitland’were
sifted from the soil. Of Bishop, nothing could be identified: indeed the investigators claimed
that none of the remains was consistent with a man well over six feet tall. More mysterious

still, no traces of heads or hands could be found. 2, d th .
bodics in the pit, not e d, and there appeared to have been only five

2

Fore said the report that led his grave's registration unit to the site cdame from a Grenadian
civilian who had cooked for the Grenadian and Cuban troops who used the site as a training
camp. The army captain said the witness had recognized Bishop's body as it was burnt with
three others at the camp.

As reporters watched, a U.S army Graves Registration team began digging this aflernoonina
3 foot deep pit. Skeletal remains were visible, which Captain Henry Fore said were definitely
human.

"We are not certain that the remains are those of Bishop's,” Fore said. The one body awe are
looking at now 15 basically skeletal remains. 'We are relatively sure these are the remains of
Bishop, but we wouldn't be sure until we get the forensic team to look at them, Fore said. A
temporary morgue was sef up to store the bodies. Fore said the identification process would
take 2 or 3 days.

General Jack Farris who commands the U.S troops here said, "I think it is kind of important
to find the body. He was a hero to some people here.

Trinidad Guardian
Thursday November 10 1983

U.S army soldiers carry a body from a mass burial grave in Calivigny, Grenada on Tuesday,
November 8 1983, Four badly burned bodies were removed from a former PRA military
camp. Officials suspect that the remains of former Prime Minister Maurice Bishop may be in
the mass grave, stemming from the October 19" massacre. (UPI photo)

Daily Nation Wednesday, November 4™ 1983

The remains of 4 bodies suspected to be those of slain Prime Minister, Maurice Bishop and
three Cabinet Colleagues were found in a pit about 4 feet deep, on the site of the PRA camp
at Calivigny vesterday. The bodies, one positively identified as that of 2 woman were taken
from a shallow grave in a decomposed state by 2 Grave Registration team of the U.S army
The leader of the team Captain Henry Fore told pressmen on the site that the lead to search
the area had come from a civilian who claimed to be on the site during the burial and who
had passed on the information to a member of the Caribbean Peace Keeping forces. However
he stressed that it had not been confirmed that Bishop's body was among the corpses, it was
only suspected he said. Fore said that the grave was in fact a pit which had been dug by the
prior occupant of the compound to dispose of refuse. He said the walls of the grave had been
bumnt, which would indicate that the bodies were burnt after they were put into the pit

Along with the remains, there were a few rings, watches, and wallet as well as charred bits of
clothing and papers which appeared to be receipts. The bodies were removed to a temporary
mortuary and will be given over for identification to a forensic team expected to arrive on the
island today. Bishop's dentist will also be called in

Taken from the book ,"Grenada, whose freedom?" by the Latin American Bureau

Page 92 _
....For over a-week; no senous effort was made by the invasion force to locate, count or bury

the bodies of local people.
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When the Americans excavated the grave, no Grenadian or Caribbean Peacekeeping Force
representatives were allowed near; the plastic bags were filled and flown out immediately.
Until somebody who was actually involved reveals what happened, the probability is that the
United States deliberately kept Bishop's remains and put out the story to explain their not

handing them back to Grenada or Bishop's relatives, who clamoured for them for a long time
afterward. '

Casualties were inflicted on both sides at the Beausejour action, but it has proved difficult to
obtain precise details. Including the ambush, at least five or six PRA soldiers, and possibly
more died. Twelve or so were wounded, which included some of the PRA captives in the
transmitter building when it came under fire from the APC, Fear of repercussions prevented
former PRA participants from beirig more forthright in their accounts to me. It is quite
possible that there were no US deaths at Beausejour. ( page 369)

Photocopy pages 63 to 81( Baitle at Fort Rupert)
Photocopy pages 181 to 183

Trinidad Gaardian
Saturday, Nov 19™ 1983

U.S Unable To Name Bodies
{(Washington, Friday Cana Reuter)

1.5 specialists have not been able to identify 4 bodies thought possibly to include that of
former Prime Minister Maurice Bishop, found in a common grave on Grenada an official said
today.

"Our forensic team had to give up," said the U.S official who asked not to be named. There
was nothing to work with," be said. The state department said last week, the remains of 3
males'and 1 female were found buried pear the Calivigny military base on Grenada's south
coast. There had been reports that witnesseés saw the bodies of Bishop and other leaders
buried there after they were killed in a military takeover on October 19®. There were reports
in Grenada that the bodies were burnt and then buried, but the official from Washington had
few details today other than that a U.S forensic team had been unable to identify the bodtes.

Wednesday, Nov 9 1983

Trinidad Guardian .
U. S soldiers today found burnt and decomposed bodies of 3 people including what may be
the skeleton remains of slain Prime Minister, Maurice Bishop. An army official said the
soldiers dug up the bones in a garbage pit after receiving a report that Bishop's body had been
dumped and burnt there with three others.

Army Captain Henry Fore said one of the scorched skeletal remains was that of a woman.
Fore said the remains were burnt and decomposed beyond recognition. He said forensic
experts and Bishop's dentist would be called in to try to identify them. Badly scorched rings
and watches were found along with the bones. Despite efforts to clean them up, no
dentifying marks were immediately found.
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Have The Grenada Documents Been Returned to Grenada?

by Ann Wilder

“The original Grenada documents have been returned to the Grenadan (sic)
government.”

News of this nature roused the interest again of my efforts since 1983 to wage.a
campaign to have the original documents of the People’s Revolutionary Army
returned to Grenada in an environmentally-controlied building [donated by the
US Government] with multiple microfiche films and readers. The details of how
this news was revealed is detailed at the end of this article.

On my recent visit to St. George's, following the receipt of this information about
the documents being retumed to Grenada, I had on my mind something similar
to & brief passage from Chris Searle’s book Grenada Morning. Searle
commented’in this way about Maurice Bishop: .

"I remember him once saying to me whiern { was trying to convince him to set up
some kind of archive of the revolution because so much historic material was
being lost:

You know, Bernard only thinks of one thing, and that.is the revolution. His mind
is so much on the problems of the economy that he doesn't keep or file
anything. I'm trying to get the comrades to hold on to important things so we
can keep them, otherwise in a few years time we'll have nothing to build our
history with. You know Bermard ent even- have one single copy of-his own book
from the days in London? I keep it for us; like I try to keep safe alf our things.’

"Then he Jeft the room and came back with a large cardboard box of
photographs and mementos, all mixéd up, family, friends, comrades, England,
N.JM., anti-Gairy struggles — this was his archive. Amongst them was a set of
snaps of he and Fidel drinking and talking together in Cuba, and another of him
as a young-man in London with sideburns and what looked aimost fike teddy boy
gear.”

It is ironic how these things unfold.

Herbert Romerstein, one editor of the 1984 US Government publication The
Grenada Documents, wrote that “tens of thousands aocuments” from Grenada
were taken to the United States; 38,000 pounds. Mark D. Hill, staff reporter of
The Bérkeley Review, Volume 3, Issue 13 of October 31, 1984, summed it up:




"Most of the 35,000 documents captured (over 5 tons in weight) were recovered

from the home of the Prime Minister of Grenada, Maurice C. Bishop.” There is a bibliographic note: “Web version based on “Guide to Federal
\ Records in the National Archives of the United States. Compiled by Robert
The archivist, Maurice Bishop. B. Matchette et al. Washington, DC: National Archives and Records
Administration, 1995.” There is ordering information for this title and this note:
1 discovered [ater-in a conversation with 3 Grenadian historian that military | “This Web version is updated from time to time to include records processed
equipment was brought back to the US, induding one of the 3 armored since 1995.” And another note at the bottom “Last modified [meaning the Web
personnel carriers that went to Fort Rupert from Fort Frederick. This BTR60 is | page] on December 6, 1999.”

currently in the State of Maryland in the US, My concem, though, is centered on
paper documentation of the Peoples Revolutionary Government.

Who has the original documents?

I wrote letters on August 21¥ to Leslie Pierre, Editor, of The Grenadian Voice;
to Beveriey Steele, Resident Tutor/Senior Lecturer and Grenada bibliographical
specialist at the University of the West Indies Extension Campus, Grenada; Meg
Conlon, spedial assistant to Mary King, St. George's University Deputy Director of
the Institute for Caribbean and International Studies; Grenada Public Library
Librarian Deon David following up on my meetings with them when I was in
Grenada. I sent the NARA report with my letter.

I copied Lucifer who first found the National Archives site. He is a young,
intelligent Grenadian living in the United States. He is a fellow of strong opinion
and passion who visited Talkshop for a spate of time.

The letter was also copied to bBr. Honorable Prime Minister Keith Mitchell.

It is doubtful the original documents are in Grenada, nor do the peopie I
interviewed believe this either. The originals could possible be in the Ministerial
Complex in Grenada. The NARA information may be in error. I left it with the
recipients of my letter to help solve this mystery. As the Caribbean Newsletter
goes to press there has been no response to inquiries.

Details: On July 13,.a feliow nicknamed Lucifer on
http://www.spiceisle.com/messages/59732.htm, posted the above quotation
from the site of Records of the Defense Intelligence Agency [DIA] at
hitp://www.nara.gov/quide.rg373.html,

———— e a —— e — s s W P

The quotation came from a Table of Contents for a publication titled “"Guide to
Federal Records in the National Archives of the United States.” Under
373.2 General Records, 1920-50, 1984, 50 lin. ft. is the subsection -

“Related Records: The original Grenada documents have been retumed to the
Grenadan (sic) government.”
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September 16, 2061

Vincent Roberts

P.O. Box 1477

Grand Anse

St. George’s, Grenada -
West Indies

Dear Vincent -

I will run through the sequence of my tesearch, in general. I include document copies
for most of each of these numbers:

1. A fellow [Lucifer} on Grenada’s Spicelsle Talkshop posted a U.S. National
Archives page that said the original Grenada documents were teturned to Grenada,

2. T went to Grenada in August 2000 and met with SGU Founder’s Library people
(Meg Conlon and the brand new librarian), the National Archives Librarian at the
Grenada Public Library (Deon David), the Grenadian Voice editor Leslie Pierre and
the Marryshow House Library’s Beverey Steele. I asked them if they had or knew of
the location of the original Grenada Documents in Grenada. The answer was no. I
wrote each of them a letter when I returned home thanking them for meeting with me
and sending them the original National Archives notice that the document had been
returned. T also copied the Prime Minister. None of those people have contacted me.

3. I submitted the information up to this time to Cartbbean Newsletter where it Was
published.

4. I emailed a contact staff pesson at the National Archives in College Park, MD.

5. He researched the situation. He, Eric Chaskes, did 2 lot of wotk. He suggested I
contact the National Archives in Grenada (which I had just done) and gave me 2
name at the Defense Intelligence Agency. DIA had received the documents first.

6. I wrote a letter to the Defense Intelligence Agency person. She did not respond.
7. I mailed a second registered retum receipt letter to the DIA person.

8. She emailed me, saying the ongunal Grenada Documents were at the National
Archives and perhaps [ should speak with another researcher.

9. I emailed Eric Chaskes at the National Archives and attached the DIA response.

05/16/0% 1 of 4
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10. He [staffperson at NARA] did not respond.

11. He [staffperson at NARA]J emailed me back wiFh apfalogy fOF the delay; saying at;:y
correspondence by writing should go to his supervisor, if I so wish. He sa.t-d ... the
accession dossier states the documents were returned to Granada (sic) before
they came into NARA’s legal custody, then NARA dPCS not and cannot h.ave
any information about their current location.” He ‘saxd he_could‘only remind
me that he provided me with a contact for the National Library in Grenada,

Ruth John.

12. ] emailed the Head Librarian [Ruth John] of the Grenada Libraty. She did not
tespond.

13. I emailed a reminder to Head Librarian [Ruth John] of the Grenada Library 2
month later. She did not respond.

14, I followed up that ematl two days later with a letter to Head Libraz?an [Rutl'{ John]
of the Grenada Library copied to the National Archives contact and his supervisor. 1
did not recerve any response from anyone.

15. 1 prefer not to close the doors to the Grenada Public Libraty so that I_.can. do
further research there. Because of fear of becoming persona non grata, 1 am wiling to
have someone else take over the story to lessen my real name in the matter. My aim is
not to be known. And here [ turned to Caldwell Taylor for (1) advice and (2} possible

acton.

16. Caldwell Taylor responded with the difficulty of drawiz?g people to the cause of
the returned documents. He wrote about how any Grenadian newspaper stoty was

not going to do much. He wrote about a possibility of legal action in Grenada, but

this would take funds and on-the-scene action.

17. I sent Davon Baker [Kawika from Carriacou] an over?'iew, shor'ter, but similar, t?
this page. He was going to present the matter to Keith l\/'ﬁtcheil while he waf at P:;SD
n May of 2000. Davon never did thank me nor did he give me any feedback on the
meeting. I will not fotget ths.

18. I dropped the matter. | didn’t have the extra funds to come to Grenada, the
summer of 2001.

I had waited a month for a response from Ruth John,:H?ad:ﬁbmﬁan, Grf‘.nadb. Putlﬁic
Library, from my letter. My next plan was to send mail, like registered .mad, Wher; e
recipient signs a receipt and the notice is returned to me. [ suppose this can also be
09/16/01; 2of 4
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done with International Federal Express or something. I felt this gets into an area of
overkill. I could have also sent the request to the Miruster of Education, Augustine
John. I did neither of these things. ‘

My purpose is to find those onginal Grenada Documents and to help campaign for
those onginal Grenada documents [plus, Loxdy, all the other original documents I
WAS ABLE TO FINGER in the Grenada Public Library] to be placed in a secure,
environmentally.safe place in Grenada forall to read, including a complete microfiche
set and reader.

I know about librasies in the U.S. T am a former Children's Librarian at the 125th St
NYPL Branch and the old Countee Cullen Branch attached to the Schomburg
Collection. It was beyond me how the Grenada Public Library, even with limsted
funding, could be so inhospitable and put important documents at risk. I won’t go
into this matter, which is a potential project for a Grenadian crusader to wotk on.

T want to write into my will where all these research materials I have are going to go
when I die. I would Jike them to be shipped to Grenada. From what I saw, »
Marryshow House looks to be the best bet.

There ate others in the US who have been following on Grenada — they are fed up
with Talkshop and busy with other things —and they, I am sure, would like to know
what their heirs can do with their paperwork. Some.of us have discussed this matter.
Sure, we can send it to the great Schomburg Collection or Moreland-Spingarn or
University of Texas at Austin or wherever, but once again, like Grenada Colonial
material being in UK and French archives, Grenada’s history is dispersed all over the
wortld. Maybe that is OK what with the Internet and travel, but I do think it is asad
commentary. Another issue to be wotked on.

Looks like I need an investigator in Grenada to actually find these documents. I have
not checked Tanteen University (anything air-conditioned there? is this a place?) or
the Ministerial Complex. The documents could be just thrown in some basement
room ~ like at the librasy, if it has a basement. |

I want to lgt you know that I place myself outside a finely drawn division between
opposites in reference to the Grenada Revolution. I am on the periphery, in the US,
of people on both sides, as it were, in order to collect documents.

As you know, there is a so-tight knot of people trying to get ‘missing’ documents 1
relation to the case of the prisoners up the hill. I am not an insider in this network. In
fact, Vince, [ am sure Peter David is angry with me because I fired ‘back when he

attacked Maurice Paterson on Taikshop_.
09/16/01: 3 of 4 B

[ had, at one time [before it became hopeless between Maurice and myself], been in
letter contact with Maurice after I met him in Grenada the surnmer of 2000. Maurice
was/is a touchy personal matter with-me and I want to leave it alone, I can sce his
weaknesses, but 1 have an intense loyalty and respect for him. I could see, though, that
i 1 fed Maurice any information, and I did about the documents, he would run with 1t
_ kind of like a loose cannon. I held back on it after he got a little information and
something published. Maurice and I are no longer in communication. The sweet
rescuer of this genius was defeated by fearful pride. I tned. I was compelled by my gut
feeling. 1 had to set boundades for my own preservation and it did not wo tk

[ was the archivist and collector of information when I began my obsession with the
Grenada Revolution in those first days of 1980 with the Boston Grenada Solidanty
Committee. | kept away from the Socialist Worker Party aspect of it and the group
was dissolvihg when strong feelings came towards support of the MBPM.

I remain obsessed with archiving and collecting information on the Grenada
Revolution, but now I am processing information from all over into one place;
hopefully a book. I see myself, in my arrogant moments, with a goal to have a volume,
or several volumes, on the Grenada Revolution similar to the ones written about the
Civil Rights Movement with so many details as to make a grand summary. [ think of «t
more as 'administrative history; ie. gathering together all these attributed sources into
2 kind of order in one place. I fully realize my shortcoming of not being Grenadian.

Because of this obsession with documents on this matter, [ am especially keen on
being in the pipeline for information relating to the defense of those on the hil and
with the Truth and Recondiliation operation. If there is any way you can be of help in
this, please drop my bustuess card [some are enclosed] with the appropriate people.

I sign off with my real name. I trust you will keep confidences so that those who don't
have all their brain cylinders firing in some sort of cootdination will not come and
attack me. Speaking as someone of the generation before yours and on the periphery
of the Grenada Revolution during the time of October, 1983, I observe[d] enough

fear, grief and hatred to keep me always wary o potentialiies. ,
Ann Wilder \j%/ /@d

29 Austin Avenue
Asheville, NC 28801-1309
Home: (828) 254-1379

email: annew@buncombe. main.nc.us

09/16/01; dof 4
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NARA Grenada Documents Collection — June/July 1988

Rick Blondo, User Services ~ rick. blondoi@arch2.nara gov

242.24 GRENADAN RECORDS
1979-83

4 lip, ft. and 13,220 microfiche

d

Textual Records:

Seized by U.S. Army and Marine Corps units during militarv gperations on the Caribbean island of
Grenada (October 1983), documenting activities of Grenadan government ministries, the New Jewel
Movement (Commurist Party), and prominent political and military leaders, 1979-83; with name and
subject index, on paper, prepared by the Defense Intellipence Agency prior to transfer of records.

Finding aids:

Original machine-readable index used to prepare paper copy described above in RG 373, Records of the
Defense Imtelligence Agency. Seized motion picture from the Soviet Embassy in Grenada in RG 366,
Records of the United States Information Agency. SEE ALSO Michae! Ledeen and Herbert Romerstein,
comp., Grenada Documents: An Overview and Selection (Washington, DC: Department of State and
Department of Defense, Sept. 1984).

-

Subject Access Termis: Bishop, Maurice; Coard. Bernard.
Self-service microfiche available during hours Monday through Saturday

Can order microfiche copies once vou arrive.
$2.10x 13,220 = $27,762

Paper copies
51.75 x 13220 = $23,135

If you’d like to purchase copies of all the microfiche without coming in persen I have forwarded your
message 10 a staff specialist; Niels Cordes, who will notify you what the cost will be. {never notified Ann
Wilder]. Should there be a problem with the e-mail his voice number is 301.713.6785

NARA Grenada Documents Collection — June/July 1988

Eric Chaskes, Archivist, National Archives, Coilege Park — echaskes@arch2.nara.gov

The Grenada Documents Collection {T1280)
12,000 (approximately) microfiche card

Cost of $2.10/card duplication x 12,000 = $25,250
Hours and location at www.nara.gov

Fiche available self-service

Photo to get new research card

Fiche arange in numerical erder - no finding aids

Military reference (301-713-7250) may be 2ble to give more information about the collection

To order documents, you would need o provide the specific number of the fiche card
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21 August 2000

29 Austin Avenue

Asheville, NC 28801-1309

Tele: (828) 254-1379
emai]:annew@buncombe.main.nc.us

ggeg C?‘rgﬁo’n i _ Leslie Pierre
- George’s University The Grenadian Vo;
Founder’s Library, Trye Blue P.C. Box 633 e

St. George’s, Grenada St. George’s, Grenada
Deon C. David, Librarian

Sheila Buckmire Memorig] Library
St. George’s, Grenada

Beverley Steele

Marryshow House/UW]I
P.O. Box 439

St. George’s, Grenada

Dear Grenada Document-Related People:
Good of all of you to have met with me. T appreciate our visit,

Enclosed is the information I said | would send vou ab
Documents being returned to Grenads. You about the Grenada

Kind regards,

Ann Elizabeth Wilder

c: Prime Minister Honorable Keith Mitchell
Lucifer (email) .

[P S

October 10, 2000 {email copy}
Dear Eric Chaskes:

| visited Grenada pre-Camival this year to discover the location of the original Grenada documents as
referenced helow. | checked out the National Archives, Marryshow/UW! Library, the new St. George's
University Founder's Library and the Grenadian Voice newspaper. None of these references had seen or
heard about the retum of these documents.

Below is the Nafional Archives posting with the information that the Grenadian Documents had been
returned to Grenada (see the third paragraph down).

From the site of éecords of the Defense Intelligence Agency (DIA) at http://www._nara.guide.rg373.itml.

The quotation came from a Table of Contents for a publication titled "Guide to Federal Records in the

National Archives of the United States." Under 373.2 General Recards, 1920-50, 1984, 5¢ iin. . is
the subsection —

"Related Records: The original Grenada documents have
been returned to the Grenadan (sic) government.”

A bibliographic note: "Web version based on "Guide to Federal Records in the Kational Archives of
the United States. Compiled by Robert 5. Matchette et a. Washington, DC: National Archives and

‘Records Administration, 1995." Ordering information for this title is provided and this note: "This Web

version is updated from time to time to include records processed since 1995." And another note at the
bottom "Last modified {meaning the Web paga] on December 6, 1996."

Wouid you please let me know the location of the original {not the microfiche) Grenada documents seized
by the U.S. Govemment in 1983, If you wish to do this formally in writing, please mait to:
Ann Elzabeth Wilder

29 Austin Avenue
Asheville, NC 28801-1309

Thank you.
Ann Wilder
"If the Gods had meant us to vote,

They would have given us candidates.”
Jim Higitower

e w g

B F Bt f "N E FE s el

o i a
e

id xa d
e LI
P

—




T

F
=i

N

ey ]

Cctober 11, 2000

Ann Wilder

29 Austin Avenue

Asheville, NC 28801-1309
Home: (328) 254-1179

email: annew@huncombe. main. ne.ug

Melissa L. Foiz

Department of Defense

Defense imelligence Agency

ATTN:SV-Y \
Washington, DC 20340-3299 '

Dear Ms. Folz:

Piease read the response from NARA about the return of the Grenada Documents and my original

email. What is the answer to this question -

Where are the criginal Grenada Documents?

(START EMAIL QUOTE] Wednesday, October 11, 2000 5:23 PM .
Dear Ann Wilder,

After looking at the reference in our _Guide to the National Archives_ and the set of docurnents
published by the State Department (Michacl Ledeen and Herbert Romerstein, comps., Grenada
Documents: An Overview and Selection. Washington, DC: Department of State and Department
of Defense, 1984), I suspected that NARA had never had the original documents in our custody,
only the copies. This was confirmed by a staff member who was able to check the paperwork
("accession dossier”) we created when we received the microfiche. I will quote directty from her
email to me:

"The accession dossier (NC3-373-84-2) shows that NARA accessioned the microfiche copy of the
documents from the Defense Intelligence Agency. NARA had nothing 1o do with the return of the
originals 1o Grenadan custody, and there is no information in the dossier showing who returned
the docnments—DIA? State?—or to wham in the Grenadan Government.”

Here is what probably happened, Afler the documents weare captared and assembled by the
military, they were given to the Defense Intelligence Agency for analysis. The State Departinent:
was also allowed to come in and examine the documents. This possibly toak place at a building
we operate in Suitland, Maryland. Records in this building, however, remain in the legal custody
of the agency, even if they are in our physical custody. This is why the State Department
publication mentioned above would say they were "in” the National Archives. The State
Departmeni reviewers were probably in our building, but did not undarstand the distinction
between legal and physical custody of the records.

In other words, the National Archives may have temporarily stored the documents but had no
other control over them. The originals were then returned by DIA to Grenada before the
microfiche copies were formally accessioned into our holdings. As you can see from the above,
the accession dossier has no information on what had happened to the originals other than that
they were retumed to Grenada.

Page I of 3; 0/07/01; 3:04 M

would you please let me know the location of the original (not the microfiche) Grepada
documents seized by the U.S. Government in 1983. If you wish (o do this formally in writing,
please mail to:

Ann Elizabeth Wilder

29 Austin Avenue

Asheville, NC 28801-1309

Thank you.

Ann Wilder

[END EMAIL QUOTE]

[ would appreciate heanng from you as soon as possible. In anticipation of a response, [ am
thanking you for looking into this matter for me.

Sincerely,

Agn Wilder

Page 1 of 3; 09/07/01; 3:04 PM
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As far as I can tell, the Granada Public Library serves as their National Archives (source: 1997
World of Learning). They can be reached at:

Grenada Public Library
Librarian : Ruth John

Carenage. St. Georges, Grenada

Tel 473440-2506 : Fax 473-440-6650

e-mail: glsAcaribsurf.com

The records officer for the DIA js:

Melissa L. Folz

Department of Defense

Defense Intelligence Agency )
ATTN: §V-1

Washington DC 20340-3299

202-231-4291

That office may be able to Pprovide more information.

Sincerely,

Eric Chaskes

Archivist

National Archives at College Park

>>> " Ann Wilder* <amnew@buncombe, main.ne. us> 10/10 8:44 PM >>>

Dear Eri¢c Chaskes:

T visited Grenada pre-Camival this year to discover the location of the original Grenada documents
as rcf'ercnceq bclqw. I checked out the National Archives, Marryshow/UWI Library, the new St

Below is the National Archives posting with the information that the Grenadian Documents had
been returned to Grenada (see the third paragraph down),
>Fram the site of Records of the Defense Intelligence Agency (DIA) at

http:/f'www nara. govigide rp373 hrmi,

The Quotation came from a Table of Contents for a publication titled "Guide to Federal Records in
th.e. National Archives of the United States.” Under 373.2 General Records, 1920-30, 1984, 50 lin.
1. is the subsection -

"Related Records: The original Grenada documents have been returned to the Grenadan (sic)
government " '

A bibliographic note: "Wab version based on "Guide to Federal Records it the National Archives
of the United States, Compited by Robert B. Matchette et al. Washington, DC: National Archives
and Records Administration, 1995, Ordering information for this title is provided and this note;
"This Web version is updated from time to time to inchude records processed since 1995." And
another nots at the bottom *Last modified [meaning the Web page} on December 6, 1999."

Page 2 of 3, 09/07/01: 3:04 PM

November 11, 2000

Ann Wilder

29 Austin Avenue

Asheville, NC 28801-1309

Home: (828) 254-137%

email; annew/@buncombe. mamn.nc.ns

Melissa L, Folz

Department of Defense
Defense [nfelligence Agency

ATTN:SV-1
Washington, DC 20340-32%9

Dear Ms. Folz:

i i ipt of ray letter of inquiry of
8 { have not received any response or acknowledg_m_ent of receipt of my lett ; ¢
C;:t?ber 11, I am, one month later, sending you the original letter and enciosures via USPS First
Class Certified Mail - Retum Receipt requested as of November 13, 20600.

Please inform me about this mattcr ASAP.

Sincerely,

Ann Wilder
Encl:

Hard copy of letter to Melissa Folz of 10/11/00
Hard copy of http://www.nara.gov/guide/rg373.html

Page 1 of |; 69/07/01; 3:04 PM B

i

LEE L N
e g

A A P S R e A AX
- —

b
3




11721/2000 {emai! copy]

Ms. Wilder,

Hello. This is in response to your request for the location

onginal documents from Grenada...upen doing some‘::se:fch L have
d;scov_ered that the original documents from Grenada and the microfiche
were, 1n fact, go'oessjt_mcd permanently to the Nationa! Archives and
Records Administration (NARA) in May 1984 by the Defense Intelligence
Agency (DIA). Thus, these documents no longer remaip in the custody of
DiA a{:d are, Lhcrcfpre, in the permanent custody of NARA. Upon their
accession to NARA in 1984, DIA no longer has any control of these
records or their whereabonts. I'm sure this must be a frustrating

situation, bug 1 would recommend contacting NARA again, speaking with
another archivist. I'm sorry 1 could not be of more service to you.

Metissa Folz
Records Management Officer
Defense Intelligence Agency

11/21/00 {email copy]

Dear Egic Chaskes -

I finally got a response to my letter of October 11, 2000 to Ms. Folz at

DIA_ 1 have attached that correspondence to her to this email. She responded
1o me today afier having to send a certified return receipt letter on
November 13, 2000.

I do indeeg feel frustrated. NARA is a repository of the original Grenadian

documents which have been filmed on microfiche, The microfiche are available

to the public in the College Park facility. Here is a situation where your
WHEBsite states the original Grenadian documents have been returned to
Grenadia The archivist Grenada Public Library Librarian Deon David {the
Sheila Buckmire Memorial Library in St George's) said she knew nothing
about the return of the original documents when I visited there July/August
2000,

1 email vou and you kindly email me back with your report of the research
you have done. You refer me to DIA's Ms. Folz. And then she retums the
email of today, November 21, 2000, referring me back to "another archivist”
What do you make of that?

] am going to keep pushing until I get to the bottem of this. Will you help
me with this effort? ’

Sincerely,

Ann Wilder

~ Original Message ——

From: "Melissa L. Folz" <AFfolinli@dia osis gov>
To: <annmew(@buncymbe. main.nc s>

Sent; Tuesday, November 21, 2000 11:23 AM
Subject: Docoments from Grenada

>Ms, Wilder,

>

> Hello. This is in response to your request for the location of

> original documents from Grenada. . upon doing some research I have

> discavered that the original documents from Grenada and the microficke
> were, in fact, accessioned permanently to the National Aschives and

> Records Administration (NARA) in May 1984 by the Defense Inteliigence
> Agency (DIA). Thus, these doctments no longer remain in the custody of
> DIA and are, therefore, in the permanent custody of NARA. Upon their

> accession to NARA in 1984, DIA no longer has any control of these

> records of their whereabonts. I'm sure this must be a frustrating

> situation, but [ would recommend contacting NARA again, speaking with
> another archivist. I'm sorry T counld aot be of more service fo you.

>

> Melissa Folz

> Records Management Officer

i
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12/07/00 [emai] copy}
" Eric -

Do you have no response to the email befow? Or, ] hope. you are checking
into it further.

Please let me know. I am sericus about finding the location of the ‘original
Grenada documents.’ | hope you can find something about this matter by the
new year,

[ don't like the way the buck was passed from DIA back to NARA, Asa
citizen, my government has no stand in making it difficult for me to
discover information. My next step will be to contact my local congressional
representative, but I am boping you, or your supervisor, can sort this cut.

Please let me know - even acknowledgement you have received my email of
today, December 7, 2000, and November 21, 2000, would be helpful. Thanks,

Arm Wilder

— Orniginal Message —

From: *Ann Wilder* <amnmew@buncombe. main ne.us™>
To: <gchaskes@arch? para gov>

Sent; Tuesday, November 21, 2000 2:08 PM

Subject: Fw: Original Documents from Grenada

> Dear Eric Chaskes -

>

> | finally got a response to my letter of October 11, 2000 10 Ms. Folz at

> DIA. [ have attached that correspondence to her to this email. She
responded

> to me today after having to send a certified refurn receipt letter on

> November 13, 2000.

-

> I do indeed feel frustrated. NARA is a repository of the original
Grenadian

> documents which have been filmed on microfiche. The microfiche are
available

> to the public in the College Park facility. Here is a situation where your

> WEBsite states the origina] Grenadian documents have been retirned to

> Grenada, The archivist Grenada Public Library Librarian Deon David (the
> Sheila Buclonire Memorial Library in St. George’s) said she knew nothing
> about the return of the original documents when I visited there
July/August

> 2000.

>

> 1 email yon and you kindly email me back with your report of the research
> you have done. You refer me to DIA's Ms. Folz. And then she returns the
> email of today, November 21, 2000, referring me back 10 ‘another
archivist.!

> What do you make of that?

>

> | am going to keep pushing until I get fo the bottom of this. Will you

__A—

help

> me with this effort?

-

> Sincerely,

>

>

> Ann Wilder

>

>

> -

» --—- Qriginal Message ——

> From: "Melissa L. Folz" <AFfolml@dia.osis gov>

> To: <amew/@buncombe. main oc. us>

> Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2000 11:23 AM

> Subject: Documents from Grenada

-

-

> > Ms, Wilder,

>>

> > Hello. This is in response to your request for the jocation of

>> original documents from Grenada...upon doing some research I have

> > discovered that the otiginal documents from Grenada and the microfiche
> > were, in fact, accessioned permanently to the National Archives and

> > Records Administration (NARA) in May 1984 by the Defense Intelligence
>> Agency (DIA). Thus, these documents no longer remain in the custody of
> > DIA and are, therefore, in the permanent custody of NARA. Upon their
> > accession to NARA in 1984, DIA no longef has any contro} of these

> > records or their whercabouts, Fm sure this must be a frustrating

>> sityation, but ] would recommend contacting NARA again, speaking with
> > another archivist. I'm sorry [ could not be of more service 10 you.

>

> > Melissa Folz

> > Records Management Officer

> > Defense Intelligence Agency

>

>>

>>

>>

-
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12/08/00 [email copy]
To Ann Wilder

1 apologize for not replving to your earlier email, Tt was not infentional. I was mexpectediy out for more thana
week following the holiday.

1 did check with my supervisor the same day [ received your emai). He agreed with me that if the accession dossier
states the documents were retumed to Granada before they came into NARA's legal custody, then NARA does not
and cannot have any information about their curreat location.

If you would like to contact my supervisor, it is best to do so in a letter:

Robert Coren. Chief NWC(C2
8601 Adeiphi Rd
College Park, MD 20740

1 am somry that NARA cannot help you further in this matter. I can only remind you that [ provided you with the
contact for the National Library in Grenada.

Sincerely,

Eric Chaskes :
=
National Archives at College Park

>»> "Ann Wilder" <annew(@buncombe main nc,us> 12/07/00 07.53PM >>>
Enc -

Do you have no response to the eroail below? Or, | hope, you are checking
into it further.

Pleass let me know. I am serious about finding the location of the 'original
Grenada documents.’ I hope you can find something about this mattes by the
oew year.

I don't like the way the buck was passed from DIA back to NARA. Asa
citizen, my government has no stand in making it difficuit for me to
discover information. My next step will be to contact my local congressional
representative, but [ am hoping you, or your supervisor, can sort this out.

Pleass let me know - even acknowledgement you have received my ernail of
today, Dacember 7, 2000, and November 21, 2000, would be helpful. Thanks.

Amm Wilder

e Original Message -----

From: "Ann Wilder” <annew@buncombe. main ne.us™>
To: <gchaskes@arch? nars. gov>

Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2000 2:08 PM

Subject: Fw: Original Documents from Grenada

> Dear Exic Chaskes -
-2

——— ——

-

> ] fimally got a response to oty letter of October 11, 2000 to Ms. Folz at

> DIA. ] have attached that correspondence to het to this email. She
respondad

> to me today after having to send a certified return receipt letter on

> November 13, 2600

>

> 1 do indeed feel frustrated. NARA is a repository of the original
Grenadian

> documents which have been filmed on microfiche. The microfiche are
availabie .

> to the public in-the Coltege Park facility. Here is a situation where your

> WERBsite states the original Grenadian documents have been returned to

> Grenada. The archivist Grenada Public Library Librarian Deon David (the
> Sheila Buckmire Memorial Library in St George's) said she knew nothing
> about the return of the original documents when I visited there
haly/August

> 2000.

>

> ] email you and you kindly email me back with your report of the research
> you have done. You refer me to DIA's Ms. Folz. And then she retumns the
> email of today, November 21, 2000, referring me back 10 ‘aother
archivist.’

> What do you make of that?

Y

> ] am going to keep pushing until I get to the bottom of this. Will you

heip

" > me with this effort?

>

> Sincerely,

>

-

> Ann Wilder

-

>

>

> — Original Méssage ——

> From: "Melissa L. Folz" <AFfolml{@dia.gsis. gov>

> To: <annew@buncombe. main nc.us>

> Sent’ Tuesday, November 21, 2060 11:23 AM

> Subject: Documents from Grenada

>

=

> > Ms. Wilder,

>>

> > Hello. This is in respanse to your request for the location of

> > priginal documpents from Grenagda...upon doing some research have

> > discovered that the original documents from Grenada and the microfiche
> > wers, in fact, accessianed permanestly to the Nafional Archives and

»> Records Administration (NARA) in May 1984 by the Defense Intelligence
> > Agency (DIA). Thus, these documents 00 longer remain in the custody of
> > DIA and are, therefore, in the permanent custody of NARA. Upon their

> > accession 10 NARA in 1984, DIA no longer has any control of these

» > records or their whereabouts. I'm sure this roust be a frustrating

> gituation, but I would recommend contacting NARA again, speaking with
> > another archivist. I'm sorry I could not be of miare service to you.

>>
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01/06/01 {email copy] |

08 January 2001
Dear Ms. John:

i ibrarian Ruth John
Since | have not received g reply from | Head Lib ]

_ you and the email betow was not bounced back and the hol ila Buckmire Memorial Libra
are aver,  am resending my emait of 08 December 2000 for your consideration, ¢ fhe holdays ?‘,‘l:‘:mada National Archives i

| : ili o
yng also mailing a letter, dated 08 Januaw_‘m. and copying it to the NARA people who referred me to | The Carenagz 4
' St George’s, Grenada
I'hope to receive'a response. Thank you, ! West Ingies
Ann Wilder ' Ann Wilder
.. “ 29 Austin Avenue
December 08, 3000 sy o o A Wilder To: ls@earibsurtcom Sent: Fridey, Ashevile, NC 28801-1309
er 08, 2:38 PM Subject: Original Grenada Documents Home: {828) 254-1379
Dear Head Librarian Ruth John: email: annew@buncombe main.nc.us
All my research about the current location of the origi 3
Grenada in 1983, points to their retum to Grt*:nem'a]jlg"ml Grenada Documents, taken out of D Ms. John:
ear Ms. Johmn:
When | was in Gre j T o : : :
nothing e, rr;?g; !:;sm s:sn;ngg;rr:’cé rt:;ked with Librarian Deon David, she said she knew ]' Followi ails to f 08 December 2000 and 06 January 01, I am wnhng this
' oliowing my emails to you o e s Lam : :
! followed this question up with a fetter dated August 21, 2000 of which one of the recipients was confirming letter. Since | had not received 2 e the hoag e et :

Ms. David. ! have received No response {o that {etter.

December 2000 and it was not bounced back and the holidays are over, I resent the ;
original on 06 January 01 for your consideration. The text of the original message is as f
below: g

{ hiave the documentation of this search fro i
m the US Na i
Agency and my Grenadian contacts, If youn e oy

_ es, the Defense Intelfigence
eed this matenial, | can send yau that. i

Needless 1o say, this search is frustratin i i
' g, but I aim to get to the bont i i | . . : ;
country from December 13 through December 27 if, pe?- chance, YOUO;;: éde f;. :;:;L ?’tes g?rto?; tgz I —-- Original Message — From: Ann Wilder To: gis@caribsurf.com Sent: Friday,
i
f
|

during that period. December 08, 2000 2:38 PM Subject: Original Grenada Documents

A SR )

t am hoping you will

be s0 kind as to givemea response, even if you dony know the location of.

these documents, Dear Head Librarian Ruth John:
' Thank you. All my research about the current location of the original Grenada Documents,
Ann Wider taken out of Grenada in 1983, points to their return to Grenada.

When I was in Grenada this summer and talked with Librarian Deon David, she
{ said she knew nothing about the return of these documents.

! I followed this question up with a letter dated August 21, 2000 of which one of
the recipients was Ms. David. I have received no response to that lefter.

I have the documentation of this search from the US National Archives, the
‘ Defense Intelligence Agency and my Grenadian contacts. If you need this
material, I can send you that.

" -i _ Needless to say, this search is frustrating, but I aim to get to the bottom of it. |
' ' will be out of the country from December 13 through December 27 if, per chance,
i you need a response from me during that period.




letter referred you to me.

Kind regards,

Ann Wilder

110V 1 (R0IAEC]

3

I am hoping you will be so kind as to give me a response, even if you don't kngw
the location of these documents.

Thank you.

Ann Wilder

Researcher Eric Chaskes and his supervisor Robert Coren who are copied on this

Eric Chaskes, National Archives, 8601 Adelphi Road, College Park. MD l APPENDIX D
20740-6001

Robert Coren, Chief NWCC2, 8601 Adelphi Road, College Park, MD 20740-6001 t




VENUE

Norton’s Hall#1
~ St. George's

Gouyave
St. John's

Mt. Rich

St. Patrick’s

Tivolt

St. Andrew’s

Grenville

St. Andrew’s

St. David’s

St. Paul’s

St. Gearge’s

Norton’s Hall #2
St. George’s

Hillsborough
Carmiacou

List of Public Qutreach Meetings

PLACE

Norton’s Hall

St. Rose Modern
Secondary School

Mt. Rich Community
Centre

Tivoli R.C. School

Grenville Secondary
School

St. David’s R.C. School

St. Paul’s Government
School

Norton’s Hall

Hillsborough
Community Centre
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DATE

Thursday 13% Dec. 2001
Thursday 17% January, 2002
Tuesday 26% February, 2002

Tuesday 12%® March, 2002

Tuesday 9t April, 2002

Thursday 11% April, 2002

Tuesday 23 Aprii, 2002
Thursday 25% April, 2002

Friday 30t August, 2002
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Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC)
Questionnaire

The TRC has been mandated to inquire into and report on certain
political events that occurred in Grenada during the period 1st January
1976 to 31st December 1991. The goal of the TRC is to find out as far as
possible the truth about these events so as to aid in the process of
national healing and reconciliation.

We invite you to participate by filling out this Questionnaire.

1. Do you think a TRC is needed in Grenada? Yes No

2. How do you think the TRC should function?

.......................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................

.......................................................................................................

3. Do you have any information for the TRC? Yes No

4. If yes, you can share this information with the TRC:
(a) By personal appearance (b} By telephone
{c} In writing by way of fax or mail (Please tick off your choice),

S. What are some of the things that you feel should be done to bring
about reconciliation in Grenada?

.......................................................................................................
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

.......................................................................................................

6. Do you think it is possible to get {a} The truth (b} Reconciliation?

Yes No

7. Please tick off your age group.

15-20 yrs. 21-30 31-40 | | 41 and over

SUMMARY
Questionnaire Analysis
Amount questiohed 111
Amount agreeing with formation of Commission: 91
Amount disagreeing with formation of Commission: 20

0 Breakdown of those against the Commission’s formation:

e e o T

e o —— -

Age Group ' Number corresponding to age
21-30 4
31-40 ' _ 7
’ | .41 and gver : ' _ 6

Note well: there were thres persons whose ages were not identified.

Amount with information offer the TRC: i2
Amount not sure: 1

Note well:  one person re-directed the TRC to Mr. Paul Scoon.

Summary:

In general, the Grenadian population appears very much in favour of the work and
direction of the Truth and Reconciliation Council. However, it must be noted that there
are still those who do not see the point of having such a commission. These individuals
believe the commmission to be a waste of taxpayers money, thai it’s doing too little too
late, is a political puppet and that it should simply forget the past and move on.

As it relates to question two, that is, “how do you believe the TRC should function?” The
general public seems to demand that the Commission in cafrying out its duties, act
confidentially and independently, free from bias and political affiliation as well as fear or
favour.




There is also a desire for the TRC to act as social body, encouraging worthwhile

- discussions on the relevant issues. It is recommended that this be done by holding

meetings with: those directly involved such as the PRG, families of victims, the
seventeen, old soldiers and village-folk throughout the enmtire state. “One on one”
interviews are also encouraged.

From a legal standpoint, there seems to be a desire for the TRC to retrieve and search the
documentary records of the then authority in the hope of retnieving any relevant
information. A:request has also been made for security to be granted to those who have

information as well as immunity for those who posses such .information that may be

incriminating to their person.

Even further, there is a request for the identification of oppressors, both past and present
as well as their promoters.

More than anything else though, there seems to be a call for greater publicity and media
involvement. Call-in programmes-and Television interviews as well as panel discussions
are strongly encouraged.

Of course, there are those that wish the TRC fo be dissolved. However, these individuals
amass the minority opinion, which when compared to the majority, falls sharply in
comparison.

Question five of the questionpaire, “what things should be done to bring about
reconciliation?” Solicited quite a number of usefil, interesting responses. Most
prominent of these is the need for discussions without fear of victimization not just
between common folk but also with the seventeen and those from opposing standpoints,
These discussions it is believed, should be publicly done.

Also too, is the suggestion of paying homage and proper tribute to those who suffered
throughout the period under review. Many think that institutions and places should be
named in both Bishop and Gairy’s memory. One such suggestion is that the Point
Saline’s International Airport be repamed “Mawrice Bishop International Airport.”
Furthermore, there is also a request for a week of awareness as well as a war museum or
memorial built in commemoration. This museum it is suggested, should be built in
pearls, St. Andrew. But more than the museum, is the belief that reconciliation cannot be

achieved without proper recovery and burial of the bodies or at least of the remains of ™

those who perished.

From a political viewpoint, the general public it appears, seems to believe that there first
needs to be closer association between the Government and the Opposition and the
general public. Parties must be-encourage to reconcile and must begin to function in an
honest manner. Even still, there’s a request for the refocusing of attention from
politicians and politics to what’s considered truly important - that is — the issues of those
affected.

In order to move on, there is also a call for public apologies. It i rcquestec} that the
three, apologize to the

seventeen, as well as the present administration and the previous © that
families of those who were victimized. There needs to be ack‘nowledgemen 4
mistakes were made and acceptance by wrongdoers of their wrong doings.

There also seems to be a request that proper compensation be given to the families of the

victims, especially since some have suffered dearly since the time.

In order to assist the process of reconciliation further, there also seems t0 be a belief that
the help of Psychologists should be enlisted. It is believed that these professionals might
be able to help those affected come to terms with their loss and reach closer to
reconciliation.

Legally, there seems to a request that the constitution be revisited and redone. In

addition, there is a further request for new laws to help govern the state.

Of course, there is the belief that the state will never reconcile without the help of GO‘%‘
As such, there is a call for greater prayers and ecumenical church services. The people, it
is suggested, must learn to live with one another. Those affected must gIve forgiveness
in order for there to be closure,

There are those who believe that the past should be forgotten and left alope. However, as
with everything there are two sides. Similarly, there are those who su:ongiy believe that
the issue should not be atlowed to die but should be dredged up continuously until it is
understood and the truth is known. Attitudes need to be changed. There is need for
redemption.

Finaily, many Grenadians, seem to believe that in order for there ever to be nge Z(c)in i’f
reconciliation in the country, the seventeen, including Phyllis Coard, must ?dnzl e.ﬂo;
confess. As to whether or not they should be released, the answer 1S still divided, wi

the majority siding against the notion.
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Press Release from the Secretariat of the Truth and Reconcjliation Commission.

The Truth and Rcconcmatlon Commission has commenced sittings at its Scott Street
Secretariat. The first smmgs of the Commission took place from Qctober 8- 11* 2001.

The second scheduled sittings of the Commission will take place at the Secretariat
from 29" October 2001 to 2™ November 2001.

The Terms of Reference of the Truth and Reconciliation are as follows:

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. Within six (6) months from the date of the first sitting of the Commissjon, or within a
reasonable period thereafter, to inquire into and record certain palitical events which
occurred in Grenada during the period of 1* January, 1976 to 31% December, 1991
with particular refcrence to the following:

(a)  the events jeading up to and including those of 13™ March, 1979 and
- repercussions;

{b)  the shooting deaths of various persons at Plains, Mount Rose and Mount Rich
* in St Patrick’s during the period 13" March, 1979 to 31 December, 1983;

~

(¢}  the events leadmg up to-and including those of 19" October 1983 with
paticufar reference to the following:

@ ;l;g'-;Ppt_‘.;_;;ujsgs of the general potitical turmoil in the State;
- (i) the circumstances surrounding the deaths of various persons including
the Prime Minister and other Ministers of Government, on what was
then referred to as Fort Rupert (now Fort George).

(ili)  to ascertain as far as it is practicabie the identities and total number of
persons who lost their lives on Fort Rupert;

(iv)  the disposal of the bodies of thase who lost their lives on Fort Rupert;

(d)  foreign intervention by armed forces of the United States and the Caribbean in
QGctaber, 1983,

2. To recommend indemnity to various persons who give what is considered 1o be
truthful evidence at the inquiry.




3. Within three (3) months from the date of the ldst sitting of the Commission for the
hearing of evidence or within a reasonable period thereafier, to feport and make
recommendations on matters relating to the above with particular attention being
given to the following objectives:

(a) io seek to uncover the truth behind certain political events which oceurred in
Grenada during the period 1% January 1976 to 31% December, 1991;

(b) to provide: the nation with a proper and comprehensive understanding of those

political events as referred to above, so that any mistakes made in the past may
not be repeated;

{c) o p__ro.vide the nation with an opportunity to become genuinely reconciled and
be permanently healed; '

(d) | generally to make such recommendations as the Commission may find fit in
all the circumstances.

The Chairman of the Commission is Hon. Donald A.B. Trotman, retired High Court Judge.

The other Commissioners are Bishop Sehon Goodridge, Anglican Bishop of the Windward
Istands apd Fr. Mark Haynes, Local Roman Catholic Priest.

[T

The Secretary of the Commission is Ms. Claudette Joseph, Attorney at Law.

The Inquiry shall be held in public, however, the Commissioners shall be entitled to exclude

any particular person or persons for the preservation of order for the due conduct of the
inquiry or for any other reason.

The Commission urges all persons who may have information relevant to ev;pts which
took place during the periods under consideration to come forward and to share this

information. :

' it wri linin
The Commission also wishes to advise that persons may submit written memoranda outlining
any relevant evidence which such persons might have.

. £ 3

nours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Monday to Friday.
Phone numbers are: 435-2962 or 2963
Fax: 435-2964

Dated the 12" day of October 2001.
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PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT

FROM THE SECRETAR IAT OF THE TRUTH AND RECORCILIATION COMMISSION

The Chairman and the Commissioners of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission inviie lhie
public to the first of a series of public symposium organized by the Commission.

Date: ©  Thursday 13* December 2001
Venue: Norton Hall, Cathedral House
Time:  6:30pm - 8:30pm

Moderator: Rev. Fr. Peter Clarke

The public is invited to attend and to make comments and give statements on events that
occurred during the period under consideration by the Commission,

(The period under consideration is January 1™ 1976 to December 31% 1991),

-4

Dars "

NEWS RELEASE

FROM THE SECRERARIAT OF THE TRUTH AND
RECONCILIATION COMMISSION

The second in a series of Public Symposia hosted by the Commissioners of
the Truth & Reconciliation takes place on Thursday 17", January 2002, in
Gouyave, St. john’s at the St. Rose Modem Secondary School.

These Public Symposia organised by the TRC are aimed at enhancing public
interest in the Commission and its work. It is the view of the TRC that for
Grenadians to become truly reconciled and permanently healed there must
be full public participation in the process. As such the event will give the
members of the St. John’s community and surrounding areas, an.opportunity
to air their views on ‘the importance and work of the Commission. Also,
persons attending will be given the opportunity to make statements on
various political events that occurred during the period under consideration
by the Commission (January 1% 1976 to December 31 1991.)

The everit starts at 6_.30'p.m, and the moderator will be Mr. Carlyle Glean.



Date T

Truth and Reconciliition Commission - Press Release

Interest is definitely picking up in the work of the TRC as over a hundred
people turned out at the Mt. Rich Community Centre Tuesday 26 February

It_ was another‘oun‘each' programme where the Commission goes to the peopie-to
give ﬂl@l}l the opportunity to interact with the Chairman and the Commissioners
as they find out more about its mandate. - o

A cross section of people turch out giving information mostly about their
experience during the revolutionary period, and in one case the anger and
emotions just could not be controlled. 1

March‘IZ is‘the datc_ _se_t'for the next Outreach Programme at the Roman

Cath.ohc- school at Tivoli in St. Andrew’s. This is organized as a result of a

?femal req;lxest made by the people of that area, |

owever the TRC ' ] ' '

Mamniqugfc hc?cs to cover the entire state including Carriacou and Petit

The next Sit‘ting-is scheduled for 11% to 14™ March,

}ﬁmyqne having m{tonnatxon about political events that took place in Grenada 1%

Tzi;zumy 1976 - 31 -De_cembcr-l991, is invited to seek an appointment with the
C. The Secretariat is located at Scott Street in St. George’s. They can also

be contacted by telephone 435 2962 or 435 2963.

-~

STATEMENT FROM THE TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION COMMISSION

We the members of the Truth and Reconciliation reaffirm our commitment to pursue the
mandate of our Terms of Reference " to inguire into and record certain political events
which occurred in Grenada during the period of 17 January, 1976 to 31* December 1991,

The Commission wishes to express regret on the interpretation given in two commentaries
published in the Grenadian Voice Newspaper on February 14 2002 and February 23" 2002
respectively, to certain statements made by members on “To The Point” programme aired on
GBN radio an 6™ February 2002.

Al
The Commission wishes to reassure the public that it continues to maintain its

independence; impartially and objectivity in the interest of national healing and
reconciliation.

e

Dated the 26th day of February 2002.

Justice Donald A.B Trotman

Chairman
Truth and Reconcifiation Commission
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The People of St. Andrew’s and St. David's will be given a chance to become more

. acquainted with the wark of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC).

Dates set for other public meetings in the outreach programme are Tuesday 9 April at
the Grenville Secondary School at 6pm and Thursday 11® April at 6pm. The Chainnan
Justice Donald Trotman along with the Commissioners Rev. Bishop Sehon Goodridge
and Father Mark Haynes will be on hand to answer any questions and explain the TRC’s

mandate.

So far public meetings were held in St. George’s, Gouyave, Mt. Rich and Tivoli. Overa
hundred people turned out at the Mt. Rich Community Centre all with great interest in the
work of the TRC.. At the Tivoli R.C. School the highlight was a delivery from Kennedy
Budhial who spoke a little on his experience during the Revolution.

The Commission will be sitting at the Scott Street office from April 9. People having
valid information about political events that eccurred here between 1% January 1976 - 31™
December 1991 are encouraged to call the Secretariat at 435 2962/2963. For people
outside of Grenada inforiation can be sent via fax 435 2964 or by mail to the Scoft
Street office. ‘

NOTICE

Froni the Secretariat of the Truth and Reconciliation Continission

The Truth and Reconciliation Commission shall be sitting from the 22 to 26™ April
2002. Sittings will take place at the Secretariat of the Commission commencing Samn daily.

Persons having relevant evidence concering political events that eccurred during the
period under consideration (January 1% 1976 to December 31" 1991) are invited to appear
vefore the Commission and to render such evidence or such persons may submit written
memotanda to: The Chafrman, Truth and Reconciliation Commission, Scoit Street, St.
George's.

3

The Secretariat is opened Monday ta Friday from 8:30am to4:30pm. *

Phone numbers - 435-2962/2963
Fax - 435-2964




Claudette Joseph

From: Josaphins Mc Guire <jojome@caribsurf.com>
To: <claudio@caribsurf.com> _

Sant: Monday, February 18, 2002 2:54 PM
Subject: TRC press relagse

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT

.. {CILIATION COMMISSION
Truth and reconciliation Commission-Press Release - FROM THE SECRETARAT OF THE TRV AR ToL T

. . .. . | ‘oat *thye T conciliation Commmission invite the
In keeping with it’s mandate to-inquire into and report on certaip The Chairman and the Commtssz.oncr;l?f g;;{ijg: ;an[fji i:{ g;“iihcacomzissiom
political events that occurred in Grenada between the period 1% public to the seventh of a series of publi

January 1976 and 31% December 1991,the TRC has set 25t Feb.-1% March Date:  Tuesday 23" April 2002
as the date for the next sitting, The public is invited to seek appointments to make _ . t School
their contribution and also to witness the hearings at the Scott Street office in St Venue: St Faul's G e

Georges.

Time: 6:00pm - 8:30pm

Over thirty people have given evidence to date touching on Police brutality and Moderator:

beatings and disappearances during the Gairy period, the death of Innocent ] ive stalements on events (hat
Belmar, desths a2nd disposal of thie bodies during the 1983 unrest, compensation The public isinvited to .at;cnd df:‘:: ;t; ;?;jri Ef}’meﬂfi g‘;if;’é:i:nf" !

for victims, aud other interesting events prior to the revolution. All these persons oceurred during the period un

have expressed the view that they believe the Commission to be worthwhile and
relevant to the process of nationaj healing and reconciliation,

|

r:';ge%eg
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(The period under consideration is January 1% 1976 to December 317 1991).

oy

It is hoped that the information given will help to determine the root causes of
those events 30 as to ensure that past mistakes will not be repeated. Speaking on
GBN’s ‘To the point’ program Wednesday6th, F ebruary Chairman Hon. Justice
Donald Trotman said he gained a Jot from the meeting with visiting members of
the South African TRC held here recently, Secretary Clandette Joseph whq
accompanied him on the program, explained that contrary to popular belief, the
TRC is not on a witch hunt, She also hiopes that one day the fallen members of

the PRG will get the much needed official recoguition, as they were killed in their
line of duty.

AL
i

AL
- €.

B |
ol B ey

The TRC has started a pubiic outreach program where the members travel

around the country holding discussions with people giving them a better chance
to understand the work of the Commission,

~The next public discussion is scheduled for 26'°. Feb. at Mt Rich commenity
ceutre starting at 6pm.




NOTICE

From the Secretariat of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission

TAKE NOTICE THAT The Chairman, Hon. Mr. Justice Donald A.B. Trotiman and the
Commissioners of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission, invite persons who may have
been injured and families of persons who may have been injured or who may have died
during any event that occurred in Grenada as a result of political unrest during the period 1™
January 1976 to 31% December 1983, to appear before the Commission with any information
which they may have regarding the event or events that resulted in the injury of them or their
loved ones, or in the death of their loved ones.

Phone numbers: 435-2962/2963
Fax number: 435-2964




To The Point morning programme

- February Wednesday 6, 2002

: _ nquire into and record certain
Grenada during the period of 1" January, 1976 and 31*

root causes of those events so as to ensure past mistakes

am pleased to have in the studio with me Justice T
as well as Miss Joseph, the Secretary. o
Geod moming,

Judge Trotman: Good moming,
Claudette Joseph: Good morning.
Lou Smith: 1’s nice meeting with you again, Mr, Trotmar,

Judge Trotman: It is a] ways nice meeti i
7. ng with
thinking more clearly. (a// laugh) & Wil yon. You belp us to help me to formulate my

Lou Smith: I'm glad to hear that. Probably we conid begin

- The Commission we said earljer
sorry, was established in September.
W you have been holding a number of

on was established on the 1™ of Jan ’

uary, correctio
Cou}d you tell us what’s the status of things? [ kn::,
Sessions, generally speaking,

Claudette Joseph: In addition to what Justice Trotman has said I must point out of the
persons who have come to the Commission so far these people have been very positive and
they believe that we need a Truth and Reconciliation Commission in Grenada and also they
have been those persons who have not come but have express that they will come and that
they believe that the Truth and Reconciliation Commission is a necessary and good thing so it
15 not that we have had an overwhelming amount of negativity towards the Commission we
have quite a number of persons including key persons, persons who we consider key who
would have key information have expressed that they are going to come to the Cammission
and that they think it’s necessary,

Lou Smith: You have anything any body coming and saying look this commission doesn’t
make sense? :

Claudette Joseph: Yes we have actually had a few people even some people who come to
testify while they would have testified they said they think to testify is the correct thing to do
but that they have their own reservations, not that it doesn’t make sense but they have thelr
reservations for instance as to the motive for the establishment of the Commission and things
like that. So we have had persons who have expressed those sentiments but by and large the
persons who have come think that we need a Truth and Reconciliation Commission.

Lou Smith: This moving into the community, you all intend to go to Carriacou and Petite
Martinique as well, would that be part of the cutreach programme?

" Judge Trotman: Yes, this is very much integral to our outreach programme because this is
for the people of Grenada, not just for a few persons, net just for the Commission’s knowing
and for authorities which have set up and established the Commission. We want to get the
truth from the people of Grenada and we also have to get the truth to the people of Grenada
and 1 think it is more the latter aspect that we are seeking to getting the truth which we may
find out from others to the people of Grenada even though we do want the tnsth to come from
the people themselves. It’s a two-way journey, an action, and we fes} that this going out to
meet the people is going to be very, very important. As a matter of fact we are seeking,
we're hoping.and we expect, by putting it more positively, that this going out would be
greatly enhanced by the recent bringing on stream a P.R. team comprised of the P.R.O - Miss
Josephine McGuire ~---

Claudette Joseph: -----and two Field Officers - Mrs. Eleanor Glasgow, she is from the St
Patrick’s area and Mr. Julius St Clair from the Go!f Course area. These people had prior
training in field work and Miss McGuire’s experience in Public Relations preceeds her; so |
need not say more about that. So we hope that this P.R team would help to bring forth the
objectives of the Commission and to educate people more on what the Commission is doing,
to bring the population on board with the work of the Commission. -

Lou Smith: Let’s see if we can talk about the Commission itself now for as many people to
state what you are, what is the Commtission, what if is and what it is not, if you might do that.

Judge Trotman; The Commission, I think Lou, let’s say first of ail what it is not because in
order to meet some of the skeptics who seem to think very wrongly but I believe innocently
in many cases what the Commission is. The Commission is not a court that’s the first thing.
We are not out, it’s neither a court of trial nor a court of appeal.
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be siich that actions will be iti
taken, positive i
upon them and that is really what ch;)re and iﬂi:?;l ::: :gf bes

Lou Smith: There will be no recommendation against any

to the Commission ing ik A
saying? or any thing like that, no action is goi

one based on what have been sa- |
_ id
ng to be taken that is what you're

peoplc 1o kug ' : g to use the | 1 1
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of victimization or penalties or puttishment. elings without any kind of expectation of fear

Lou Smith: There are g number of Grenadiang who would

which concems you most
and : ..
people can submit would have been now livi

'hgve been here during the period.
g overseas, is there anyway these

Lou Smith: You of course would be hoping that whoever appears before you or writes any
memorandum/memoranda wouid be speaking the truth.

Judge Trotman: Yes.

Claudette Joseph: Yes, what we do as well, like for instance in one case we received a
written memoranda you may after receiving the written memorandum nvite the writer
especially if the person is injured, ipvite the writer to come in {and we have done that in a
number of cases) and taik to the Commission we may find that there is something we need to
know further so we either invite them to write an expansion or to come in so we can ask them

some questions on what they have written.

Judge Trotman: And also the pitch of the level of the truth Lou as I know that is important
because we want to emphasize again this is not a court of law and while of course we would
want to have the-same level of truth which a court demands that is the truth, the whole truth

and nothing but the truth

Lou Smith: I wanted to use that term but seeming as you said you're not a court (ail laugh)

Judge Trotman: [ think because even that conceptual framework of what the truth should be
in courts as very many of us know is not attained because truth is not an answer. It’sTelative
and what maybe the whole truth to you may not be the same to me or to Miss Joseph and to
many people so we feef that the truth we want to get at would be once people purge their
consciences and say what they feel is enough to be said in order to purge their consciences
and to give a good measure of indication of how they feel and-how they want that, the content
of that purging 10 be used in a helpfill way for the Commission and for it’s results that 13
really what we intend so we don't again want to pin people down to say I'm not coming
before the Commission because I know something but 1 don’t want to tell all, come and say
how much you want to say while we would want you to say all but you come and say how
much you want to say and we can use that sufficient part of it and accept it as the truth.

Lou Smith: [ bring it up because somewhere along the line you always find that you may
have conflicting views one event seen by two different people may not go the same way. On
Monday evening we had a television program On the road to independence and we had two
persons from the program which was saying some of the events ——

Judge Trotman: - well of course Miss Joseph will tell you, you can have two witnesses both
of them come, they’re eye witnesses. They’re not lying saying that I was there when I was
not there both of them were there you're satisfied and you asked how was the man dressed
one would say he had a white shirt he had a blue paats, he had on a cap the other one who
was there and is truthful in saying he or she was there will tell you the man was wearing 2 red
cap and 2 blue shirt and a white pants, on.the day in question and this event. could of
happened say a year ago or even three months ago and yet both of them are there speaking
about the same man they saw but describing him differently. .

Claudette Joseph: But Lou another thing is that the Chairman of the Commission is a retired
judge so I guest what you getting at is where people would come and blatantly distort what
happened or 5o but Mr. Trotman, Justice Trotman is a man of experience in these things
being former DPP in St. Vincent and all of that, so he is very well experience and would
together with the other Commissioners His Lordship Bishop Goodridge and Fr. Mark Haynes
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rights and reparation and rehabilitation in essence. We are looking generally at those things
too but of course reparation is not one of our direct concemns even though quite a lot of the
testimonies which we have been-receiving so far as Miss Joseph well tell you do relate to
reparation but in Grenada as you know there has been a Claims Commission which has dealt
with reparations though some people who come before us fee! that it has not done, dealt with

that aspect sufficiently.

Clandette Joseph: Not the Claims Commission itself but the implementation of the
recommendations which the Commission made has not been dealt with.

Lou Smith: You're sure they're saying, what we need more money?

Claudette Joseph: Recommendations have been made for instance for them to get a certain
amount of money, in some instances they got none of it, in some instances they got some and
cannot be told when they would get the balance or if they would get the balance, that kind of

thing,
Lou Smith: Oh, but, you can’t handle that.

Judge Trotman: Well to the extent to which we don’t want, as I said because we’re not even
going to review the Claims Commission findings, but to the extent to which people-are not
satisfied then, they have received their due, to that extent we are prepared to listen to them
and to make recommendations, even if is to say look let those people who the Claims
Commission found should have been given money let them be given the rest of the money or.
all the money that the Commission recommended, rather than have them dissatisfied and say
well we don’t know the Commission did recommend but we haven’t got the money or we
only got some, this is part of the dissatisfaction and we have to deal with it within the terms

of our mandate of people becoming reconciled.

-

Claudette Joseph: Exactly, that is what I was about to say. It's all part of the process of
Reconciliation and when you have unhappy, dissatisfied persons because, well the
Commission say | should get $30,000:00 and I only get $5,000.00, how could we really have
reconciliation in those circumstances, so to that extent I think this Commission would have to
make some recommendation because after all we have quite a number of persons coming on
the question of reparation and you can’t ignore those persons, so 1 think this Commission
would have to say something about that.

Lou Smith: Let’s talk about the Terms of Reference of the Truth and Reconciliation
Commission . Claudette you want to take it.

Judge Trotman: Yes, Claudette will take it.

Claudette Joseph: Okay the Temms of Reference, broadly speaking mandates the Commission
to within six months from the date of its establishment, conduct an enquiry into certain
political events that occurred in Grenada between January 1% 1976 and December 31% 1991
and to determine their root causes so that mistakes made in the past would not be repeated.
The Terms of Reference particularizes certain events which include events leading up to and
including those of 13% March 1979 and the repercussions, we all know what happened on

13® March 1979.




Also it particularizes the shooting deaths of various persons at Plains, Mt. Rose and Mt. Rich
in St. Patrick’s, that is during the period-13™ March 1979 to 31 December 1983 and also the
events leading up to and including What happened on Fort Rupert on 19® October 1983 in
" particular the root causes of the general political turmoil in the state, the circumstances
surrouading the deaths of various persons including Primé Minister Maurice Bishop and
other Ministers of Government and also other persons who lost their lives on Fort Rupert and

the Commission must ascertain as far as it is practicable the identities and the total number of

persons who lost their lives on Fort Rupert.  You know that 1s a question even 20 years or so
after people are still asking-how many died on Fort Rupert, how many of those people who
were not given funeral, we have never been able to get an official count of how many died
and the ticklish, the most burning question for most Grenadians, the disposal of the bodies of
those persons, because some had funerals but quite a number of those persons, their bodies
were pever recovered and [ think if the Commission could assist in some way saying what
happened, finding out the-truth as to the disposal of the bodies, I think a lot of families wounld
have achieved some peace of mind, because 2 lot of families are still in pain and suffering
because in Grenada we’re & Christian society and the burial of your loved one is a very
important thing so and basically also to recommend indemnity or amnesty to persons who the
Commission considers t0 have given truthful evidence at the enquiry so these
recommendations could be made and within 3 months after the last hearing to report on the
findings and that is basically it. The overal]l objective is so that the nation could’ become
genuinely reconciled not a surface thing and permanently healed because we Have for
instance persons coming before the Commission saying, for instance, political detainees, ex-
political detainees coming and saying well | have reconciled, I have forgiven the guys on the
hill, but in the process of giving their testimony the amount of anger that comes out you
really wonder whether they are serious or whether they know what reconciliation really is,
whether they are serfous about having been reconciled so the Commission is going to attempt’
to give the nation an opportunity to become genuinely reconciled and permanently healed,
that’s basically what the Terms of Reference are.

Lou Smith: Is there any fear that something or things may come out which could get
someone who didn’t know that before if they know it now could develop something, a great
anger or something like that? :

Judge Trotman: That of course is always to be considered possible. We hope again and we
look very much to the South African situation there. We hope for that sort of resction we
would recommend that there be some well organized counseling programmes established by
government authorities, we can’t ourselves implement that but that seems to be because some
of the, some of what you have pointed out Lou has arisen, much of it, that both people who
are actually grieved by not knowing now and people who maybe traumatized when they
know, some of these things which they do not now know and we, counseling and the South
African experience tells us that they've had a special counseling program to deal with that
kind of reaction because it is necessary as part.of the healing

Just setting up Commissions and maling findings and paying money out as reparations could
not be enough in this situation, much of it is emotional and that has to be done with
psychiatric approaches, counseling and making people healed in that way.

Lou Smith: You would know here in Grenada we’ve had , if it’s the Cldims Commission or
whatever Commission but they were supposed to look and try to find out how many people
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who would have lost their lives. I'm not asking to give me any numbers but the testament
you're gefting does that lead into the direction as to getting an idea, all sorts of things were
called.

Claudette Joseph: On the Fort whatever ideology these people maybe have had at the time
and whatever, some people may feel about it the bottom:line is that these people felt that they
were fighting in defense of their country and I think those soldiers who died during the
invasion we should properly respect them as Grenadian service men and we should get a
proper count so these are some of the things,

Lou Smith: Well I do sincerely hope we will one day get that Sometimes I wonder, yoi
know you listen to the news and you hear fighting taking place and they always teil vou
quickly how many people died and I would say how you know that.

Judge Trotman: Things were revealed 2,500 something and they said that’s the final count,
they think they’ve got the final count now.

Claudette Joseph: We really, that is part of the Commission work, we reaily need to handle
that.

Judge Trotman: But of course Lou, just coming on, on what you initiated and on what
Claundette said, we also want to put the numbers and the persons who have disappeared and
the deaths or the uncounted deaths into the wider period in which we’re dealing. We're
dealing with 1976 - 1991, xt s mot just, it is true there is a lot of emotional concentration on
October 19% and 19™ to 25 but our Terms of Reference is a wider picture, 1976 - 1991 and
of course some people feel, some in the Commission sometimes feel that we should even go a
little beyond 1976, say from 1973 because people were known to have disappeared or died
and no account has been given so--  +

Lou Smith: --- 50 we know all of 1974 January 21"

Claudette Joseph: Yes, that one come up a lot before the Commission, unfortunately the
Commission was not necessarily involved in the drafting of the Terms of Reference.

Judge Trotman: So we want to look at that wider picture and we want others also to look at
that wider picture and it seems and we come back again to the earfier reference to Grenada
being a Christian society which it is and one of the things locking at this wider picture
between 1973 and 1991, is that it is becoming noticeable to the Commission that the Church
ought to be saying more to the Commission about some of these things and we’re- not
pointing it, we’re only saying the church include the ecumenical environment of the church
is to be placed and described.

Lou Smith: Why you say that?

Judge Trotman: Well, we feel that it seems from some of the testimonies we have been
getting from individuals that there are certain matters which are now unknown, which may
have been within the knowledge of the church between the period 1973 to 1991, let us put it

|




into a wider context so as not to specify or give undue concentration or undué burden on the
churches (@l Jaugh). The church in general; we feel, and even the whole process of healing
_is a Christian thing, it’s not just for lay Commissioners or judicial Commission and political
authorities. The church knows more this is how it appears, it is beginning to appear to us
that the church knows more than the church has so far revealed and we feel that if the church
could be a little more confessional, to use one of their own terms, it will be of much benefit t
this whole process of truth and reconciliation and healing, -

Lou Smith: So you have had some evidence from the church, church people have come to
you.

Claudette Joseph: Yes, yes,

Lou Smith: The churches as a body —-

Judge Trotman: --— they have not said enough or let us put it, et us put it they could say
more.

Lou Smith: A number of times they have been accused of being too quiet, now is the time.

Claudette Joseph: Well yes, yes.

Lou Smith: The church is not as vecal today say as it was, even before 1974 the church is
also known for the Committee of Twenty two, it is very vocal.

Judge Trotman: They must stand up like Christian soldiers, stand up, stand up for Jesus and
stand up for the truth.

Lou Smith: You listen to a lot of these preaching, you know you—-
Judge Trotman; ---- Well I'm a Christian myself (Jaughs)

Lou Smith: The way you say it you know this i1s also not only a Christian who is staying
home and read. You know oue of the things I reaily like and I hoping that the Commission,
you mentioned earlier on the Terms of Reference, you know, I am sure that there are people
who know about the disposal of the bodies. '

Clandette Joseph: Oh ves, oh yes. We believe that, somebody must know and [ think that,
you see one.of the reasons why I think that we still have all this pain and anger and I think
that Grepadians are as you say we are Christian people and we are generally willing to
forgive and all of that but you will hardly get forgiveness if people cannot be told, even if
they can’t recover the bodiés, but people need to be told what happened to the bodies. For
instance in South Africa, coming cut of the meeting we had, what we were told by a member
of the delegation is that there were instances where people said that there would never
forgive, and you now there are the atrocities that went on in South Africa on that part cannot
be compared with want happened in Grenada and there are those victims who said they
would never forgive these people for what they did, and when the perpetrators came before
the Commission and testified they, and open up, we found this guy, we did this, we bumt
him, then we throw his body in this river and that kind of thing and people at that stage, they
forgave, because what one of the persons on the delegation said is that some people just
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needed to identify a spot for instance where they can go annually and place a flower, or
something like. that so we would not get forgiveness if families are not told what happened to
their loved ones and 1 think it's as simple as that and you know.

Lou Smith: Earlier on I was talking about if you did any preaching before, but I remember
now that you have with you, the Bishop and you have Father. (afl laugh)

Judge Trotman: Yes, yes we are twice blessed. (all laugh)
B R E A K

Lou Smith: We’ll take a break here and when we come back we’ll invite your calls 435-2041
or 435-2768, this is To The Point once again. Okay welcome back we have 13 and a half
minutes before the hour of ten o’clock and already there is one caller and just get ready to put
on the headsets, I think we have one from the back Claudette, and Justice Trotman you put on
you headphones so you can hear what the caller is saying. Hello, good morning.

Caller #1: Hello good morning Lou and good moming to you guests.

Lou S;nith: Good morning, _

Caller #1° The Truth and Reconciliation, first of all T want to say South Africa events- and the
Grenada events is two different. In South Africa we had a racial apartheid system dah we
had, we didn’t have no apartheid system in Grenada here. Now the Truth and Reconciliation

Commission is ah exercise in futility, ah waste of scarce resources. What truth do we want,.

we already know the truth that Bernard Coard and he gang massacre Grenadians on the Fort
and dey bury dem, we know dat already so we doh ha to know notbing else again, we know
dat already. Ah first this thing going ahead dey have PRO now, more waste money. I find
that is a shame in a time of when dey say belt tightening and thing in this country, we have all
this money wasting for nothing. In the first instant the Commission is, well as far as the
Comumission is a trap, the advisory body, what dat mean? If you go and give any, any
statement or any information in this Commission, in de first place no matter what evidence
you give dem, they can’t do nothing to it because dey already give a blanket, a blanket
amnesty to everybody already so you get a blanket amnesty already.

Lou Smith: Yea, because the idea is to getat the truth. " .
Caller #1: So -~
Lou Smith: We are sure to take any action against the public.

Caller #1: Well you see now, that is a waste- of time because we know the truth already so
why wasting millions ah dollars going all in Africa.

Lou Smith: You may know the truth but that doesn’t say everybody else knows the truth.

Caller #1: The amount of Grenadians who were in Grenada know the truth because, Lou, you
wasn’t in Grenada but we who was in Grenada will know the truth.

Lou Smith: Ok so I wouldn’t know the truth because I wasn’t in Grenada.
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X s in Grenada was on the finng point, we know .what hap;‘Jen S0 .ah
gaeg;rj; ‘lm:::: t‘lj: ?ruwﬂ? already, so why wasting this_money 1o go to all in Aﬁ19a for alece
“all kind ah thing. The lady say about the Chairman is a retired Judge and all kind ah' thing,
we know all dat, but right now even them Judge nowadays_ they maklpg’ some hnd.ah
judgment you does wonder what kind ah judgment they making so dat ain’t mean r.lgth%ng
and he say dat they want Grenada to be truly recfmc;ied, t_baszrut‘h ar;d .Reconcz iation
Commission could get Grenada to reconcile? The kind ah pain we have inside of we guts
here, this waste of pappy show thing going around the country and haV{ng meeting, tl.ns thing
could get Grenada reconciled? As far as I see al! you getting Grenadians more uptight and
this whole thing, 1 don’t know who give this, th{s Comngszon thlS. authority to taii_c abou;
amnesty, recommend amnesty, where all you going out with that, just behave all you sel

with dat for me please.

Lou Smith: Ok caller thank you very much for your contribution there. Care to respond?

| . Yes well, I think of course, I know the caller seems to be quite, to be very
f#ti%:s'ferc? ﬁﬁle. situation and I think we’re glad to h‘car t:rom him and others like hu.n, even if
they think is a waste of time I think well at least he is being truthful, that he thinks is a wzaste
of time and that’s the kind of spint we need but [ think if he' comes to discuss with us an :e
would want to invite the gentleman to come and speak W‘lth us and we maybg al?ie to, he
maybe able to persuade us or we maybe able to mwdc him differently s0 we mwte. him ;10-
come to us, he is free to come o us and we will be very, very happy just come to the
Secretariat in Scott Street or phone in and make an appointment and please lets talk to olxllie
another man, not let’s talk against one another and in absence; let us sit down and work this

thing out together.

Claudette Joseph: He said he know the truth.
Judge Trotman: He have a lot in him, it would be very helpful to us.

ith: ) 1 i #} we say oh I’ve been in
Smith: And there is also the sdying you know that (Jaug _ '
-Lé?';laclina at the time so [ know everything, but there are those who say you are outside 0;'
Grenada, people know more than those in Grenada. Anyhow lets take another caller. Goo

morning, welcome,

Caller #2: Good morning Loy, and good morning to you guest

Commissioners: Morning

Caller #2: You know [ beg to differ with your first cailer act.ually but | k:novy in hfe ;ve dC:
have negative people really oh T just wanted a couple of points agtuaily. First of f?j not:;
something he said-and which has being banded about, i‘ibout I thmk it actually c:amc omt
administration that over two million dollars'is been pald for this process and T just want you
to make it quite clear that the judges are not been paid any substantial sum as such you knpw
because 1 was told so before it’s just that expenses and so forth and secondly we are ta}la:igl
about the truth really I would think that it is necessary, as the old saying goes the tnith szi 1
set you free, why is it so many people are against hearing the truth and thirdly I wonder really

at the end of it, how sincere the people who set up the Commission is really about following

the advise of and when given to the administration, is it a genuine process or is just an

exercise really and at the end of it you’re going to say well the people doesn’t want this and
doesn’t want that to bappen, you don’t hide behind that blanket?
In closing I would say I do appreciate the attempt which is been made by the Commission to

get 1o the truth of the period, we need it, fo close the period, it’s the only healing process we
can have,

Lou Smith: Alright, thank you very much,

Judge Trotman: Yes, that’s a very constructive view, and we will hope that even before we
submit our findings and make recommendations that those findings and recommendations
will have been served and will have been helped to be formulated by many a wide
representation of individuals and organizations. For instance we want and we would like to
see all political parties take part in this process, Trade Unions, NGO’s, we wonld like them
to, we would like to receive ecither memoranda from them or to appear before the
Coramission so that our finds and our recommendations will not been seen just as four
persons on the Commission giving their opinions and findings but we’ll be an arm and arm of
the combined or, and the essence of the combined views and opinions of this wide
representational cross section of the Grenadian people, individual and organizations so that
the Government to whom maybe making these, submitting these findings will have not just as
I said before the findings of four people, but the thoughts and opinions of structural
representational persons and organizations of the Grenadian society.

Lou Smith: Another caller, hello good morning,

Caller #3: Good moming, good morning to the Commissioners.

Commissioners: Good morning,

Caller #3: Would the Commission consider or recommend in view of the fact that the bodies
of the people who died on October 19" on Fort Rupert, Fort George were never identified or
found, would you recommend that some sort of monument be erected, giving the names, just
stating the names who helped without status or regard, Grenadians there are, all how many of
them whatever number is finally decided, give their names and have it as a prominent place
in the St. George’s Cemetery where those who wish to consider them as beroes may go on
whatever day they may want to worship their heroes and those who consider them as viilains
regard them as villains because there are two sides and there would always be two sides it
seems and that is for the people who died at Fort Rupert s0 we may lay that to rest. We can
have a Christian ceremony and that sort of thing to when you are establishing or unveiling
this monument. The other side of the coin is that misguided as though they may well have
been, some number unknown of young Grenadian men pitted their strength against the
mighty American forces, the most powerful nation in the world. They went out there to fight
against them, I think they deserve to be honoured for their bravery at least and there should
be some monument somewhere when and if we can discover their nares, listing their names
or if they don’t know their names, just in the memory of the brave Grenadians who piited

their strength against the mighty America. Would the Commissioners think of recommending
something like this?

Judge Trotman: Well Sir, it is good to hear from persons like you. Those are words of, many
words of much wisdom and the Commission has. given thought to some of What you have
said, you have of course given us more to think about and we certainly would take them on




recoramendations.
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stream and certainly as [ said they are wise and the Commuission is of course wise and useful
and the Commission will be, will find it very relevant to have such proposais included in their

-

Lou Smith: Well, thank you. A number of people have been mentioning particularly as you
have on Grenadian soil a plaque in honour of the Americans who were here, irrespective of
the guys who were there I mean there were Grenadians. .

Judge Trotman: They must be commemorated.

Lou Smith: I don’t think that should come from the Commission [ think that is something
that should have been done 2 long time ago.

Claudette Joseph: that should have been done a long time ago.

Judge Trotman: Of course we are hoping that things couid be done even before it submits its
findings because the process of healing and reconciliation should be a gradual thing,

We don’t want of course to wait until the Commission’s findings have been submitted and
then the next day ‘cause this is not an ovemnight thing, it should be a concurrent process and
we could start doing some of the things even now, before we have completed our report.

Lou Smith: There’s a minute remaining, any closing comments, Claudette you first, I leave
the last words for Justice. )

Claudette Joseph: Ok, I would like to thank you very much for having us on this programme
and we hope that we have, some what dispelled some of the misconceptions that persons may
have about the Commission, we hope that persons would come before the Commission with
the information that they have relevant information, we have to keep in mind our young
people as well. We have a group of young people, a generation, who know almoét nothing
about that period in our history. The 17 is'right up, and this is our history. “Grenada, I-always
say has the most colourfu} history in the Caribbean perhaps apart from Haiti and what we see
as young people we don’t even-get the Grenada Revélution on the CXC syllabus and the
Commuission would also play a role in writing the history truthfully about Grenada so we
would really like Grenadians to cooperate with this Commission. We are not concerned with
whatever political motivation there is, what ever the Commission is not interested in that and
not concerned. Iam convinced that the Commissioners are men of integrity and they should
be seen as such by the public, so thank you very much.

Judge Trotman: Yes Lou I am just trying 1o end in on the note that you said that the truth
shall make you free. Now that is what we hope will happen. Those who learn and_ know
about the truth, they will be free. They will feel that they have got something that would help
them to be satisfied even more, content and those who speak the truth will again purge their
consciences and they will be free and we hope that this entire process will culminate not only
in making the people of Grenada feel free but also it wili become a model for the rest of the
Caribbean because many of our territories in the Caribbean do need this finding the truth, this
reconciliation and healing process, Thank you.

Lou Smith; Thank you very much; you have been speaking with the Chairman of the Truth
and Reconciliation Commission, Justice Donald Trotman, and the Secretary to the

-

Commission, Claudette Joseph, Once again, thank you very much and this completes our
programme for today.
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Text of what Ms. Joseph said; \ ] L
“...what ever idecingy these people may have had at the time and whatever some people
may feel about it, the bottom line is that they were fighting in defence of ihoir country :
T uird I think those soldiers who died during the invasion we shoyld properly respect them !
;‘f'j as (renadjan service men ... so we shovld get  proper count...”
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NOTES OF MEiTING- BETWEEN THE TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION

.‘ - COMMISSION AND SOUTH AFRICAN DELEGATION HELD TUESDAY 29™

JANUARY AT SPICE ISLAND INN CONFERENCE ROOM

Present were: Justice Donald AB Trotman — Chairman, TRC Grenada
Father Mark Haynes — Commissioner, TRC Grenada
Ms. Claudette Joseph — Secretary, TRC Granada

Also present was a South African delegation comprising:
Hon. Dullah Omar, Minister of Transport and former Minister of Justice

Prof. M.R. Rwelamira — Special Advisor to Minister of Transport

His Excellency Thanduyise Henry Chiliza — South African High
Comumnissioner to Grenada

Mr. Shoppe-—-

Ms. Matse Ch.

Members of the South African delegation introduced themselves as did members of the
Grenada TRC.

The Honourable Minister informed the meeting that Professor Rwelamira was largely
responsible for drafting the legislation for the South African TRC and wis instrumental

in its establishment.

Minister Omar visited Granada in April 2000 when he was sent by President Mbeki. This
visit was as a result of interaction between Prime Minister Mitchell and President Mbeki.
At that time the Minister was asked to give an idea as to what happened with the South
\African TRC. He had meetings with various persops including Prime Minister Mitchell
and with different organisations. He then reported back to President Mbeki. Even though
he is no longer the Justice Minister, the Minister continues to serve on various groups and

committees dealing with TRC. This is a follow up visit to the April 2000 visit.

The South African TRC’s initial report was published in five volumes in 1998. The TRC
is now in the process of finalizing its report. This will be done in March this year. The
report will then go to cabinet and then to Parliament for debate. The recommendations
have helped in many ways with the healing of the nation. A number hof recommendations

have been implemented one of which is reparation for victims.

The Minister also indicated that he met with 16 of the 17 persons at pfison had lengthy
meeting with thém,

He would like to find out if there is anything that can be done to help the Grenadian TRC.
He suggested for instance, that the TRC ask the Government to allow its members to visit
South Africa to meet with various persons involved in the TRC there, and to visit the

office there which is still operational. He pointed out the following;

1. We need a sound administrative machinery.
{r 2" We need marketing and public relations campaign because the nation must be brougtit

on board.

He inquired as to what steps are/were taken to ensure this is done, and if we would like to
tell how the TRC here has been going so far.

Mr. Trotman expressed that he was not here first time around (when a South African
d'elegaﬁou visited.} He said that he was very happy to meet with the delegation and has
made every effort to be present. His frank opinion was that we are not on track, for
instance in the areas of public relations and counseling. He pointed out that we have
certain constraints here, for example, we cannot have extensive administrative machinery
as in South Africa.

In Grenada we have the problem of amnesty because of the legisiation under which we
were appointed. The TRC is not in a position to grant amnesty, unlike South Affica

where the act seems to be much clearer. He bowever noted that there was an aspect of




the South African legislation that said that persons responstble for serious crimes should

not expect amnesty. This he said we will have-to see how it works in South Africa and

- hopefully, learn from it.

He also expressed that we in Grenada would wish to learn a little more about the South

African approach to outreach visits so that we could get out of sitting at the office too

often for hearings.

Also, as regards informal conversations, Justice Trotman inquired of the Minister as to

whether and how these are to be used i the final report.

Justice Trotman tequested summaries of the South African report and information on

what has been done so far, particularly the aspects of the report on amnesty.

Father Mark expressed that one of his great concerns is that there are some very serious

misconceptions about the TRC. One of the most popular noes being that this is an

" instrument of the Government to free those in prison, the public sees us as a political tool.
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Also, people have.to be sure that when they come they will be granted amnesty

Minister Omar was of the view that these issues must be discussed, but first be said, the
South African TRC was different from others in that the amnesty task was combined with
the other tasks. Grenada should not necessarily follow suit.  He opined that the Grenada

TRC should not be burdened with the onerous task of -dealing with amnesty. If there is

some way this TRC can carry on its work of finding out the truth and not deal with the
issue of amnesty, then that should be considered. The amnesty Committee in South
!A_fn'ca operated much like a court. It may be that the 17 is a matter for the executive
and not the TRC. If in the case of Grenada the TRC is going to include amnesty, then
there should be some clear niles. At the very least he said the Commission should have
the authority to say that nothing which the Commission receives as evidence during its

hearings can be used as evidence in subsequent proceedings. It may very well be that the
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legisiation will have to be revisited, but then there would be the danger of highlighting

the issue.

The question was asked of the Minister whether or not perSpective witnesses were still

deterred from coming before the Commission even with the provision in legislation.

The dominant experience in South Africa was that once persons gave truthful evidence,
victims were willing to forgive. Before the Commission commenced its work, 2 number
of persons who were in prison for political crimes were released. So there was an
indemmity process before hand. There was no independent judiciary in the past so that the
South African TRC had to make sure of this before its work began.

The heanngs were in public and that helped to create transparency and therefore helped
to boost confidence in the TRC.

As regards the question of the use of information gotten during informal conversations,
this information was used in the report. The Commission was not over fechnical as to

how information was brought before it.

On the question of the documents in the possession of the United States State
Departiment, and whether the Minister had any jdea on how the TRC may retrieve these.
The Minister opined that this is 2 Government to Government matter and should be dealt

with as such.

One of the recommendations of the South African TRC is that some memerials can be.

erected. The Government is thinking of building several peace parks.

There was also a process for ipterim reparations. The position of the South Africa TRC
is to move away from the concept of compensation in favour of reparation which was
more all-inclusive. There was a special fund set up for this. Some of the funds came
from donations.




The South African TRC made recommendations which the Government did not always
agree but the Commission were allowed to do its work and to make its recommendations,
There were sometimes legal challenges to the recommendations, sometimes the TRC won

and sometimes it lost. The TRC did not use state lawyers it retained its own.
As regards field officers, they were used to secure statements from persons. Prior to
going out into the field, they were trained on how to approach, how to listen with dignity,

how to assure persons on the impartiality of the Commussion.

The TRC also videotaped some of the proceedings.

" 1t is important that the TRC should have its own budget.

There are instances where the TRC had special investigators to investigate certain cases:

Government here will be making a big mistake if it does not empower the Commission to
do its work. There are a number of things the Government must do. For one thing, the

Government should not burden the Commission with the issue of the 17.

Another point on public relations is that the Commission had a daily bulletin that sent out

news releases ete.
A status report on the Grenada TRC was presented to the visiting delegation.
Professor Rwelamira offered to assist and asked for the following: copy of our terms of

reference, copy of Grenada Constitution, appointing instruments for the TRC and any
regulations, Commission of Inquiry Act.
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: justice and truth in the way they live. Ido not know
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Meeting with delepation from the Conference of Churches Grenada

Wednesday December 12, 2001

_ Belegation:  Canon Leopoid Friday - Chairman

Fr, Sean Doggett - Catholic Priest
Fr. Peter Clarke - Catholic Priest
Cpt. Robert Ewart - Salvation Army

Before:; Hon. Judge Donald A.B. Trotman - Chairman
~ Bishop Sehon Goodridge - Commissioner
Fr. Mark Haynes - Commissioner
Miss Claudetie Joseph - Secretary

Time begun:  8:59am

" Hon. Judge Donald Trotman reads Terms of Reference.

Fr. Peter Clarke: 1 have a very strong gut feeling about the Commission that it is going to be
treated with any real feeling a future exercise sbout this particular period to what i bspp;q:hg
in our society and what I think is lacking is 4 serise of reconciliation. I think it will be a serious
issue if people are not living reconciliation in their liome ¢r in their society. We haw_.re had many
confrontations and people are not behaving us if they believe in it. Un!ess we act as if we believe
in it we would not make any sense. That is what I Find is happening at this moment. [am a_l§o
thinking of different levels of society from the domestic to the political. We have lost the will
and the ability to settle things peacefully.

Bishop Goodridge: Would you say Father that in all this below the sur't‘a,ce of things there are
deep-seated wounds in present situation, as there are some constraining factors. What the
Commission is trying to do is find if there are any underlying cases.

Fr. Peter Clarke: 1 would say with people under who the first loyalty is put undef, Grenada is a
politically polarized society. First allegiance has been towards political persuasions and the
chirrcli has had a difficult {ime to break through. Ti:f Church plays strong 1ole in 2 matter of
hether it is irrelevant or too relevant, # is
the political party it is not the Church and this is being passed OR, _thildrenva_rc rcally_fo'rwd to
accept political allegiances of their parents. When someone in political positions are in trouble
children are finding it out unless it becomes & national attitude we cannot get truth and
reconciliation. 1t is not the Commission to produce truth and reconciliation it is the people of
Gienada, o
Carmon Leopold Friday: 1 thik perhaps to a larger extent the peopie of Grenada have been
involved in the whole process of truth and reconciliation. If we give them a sense of openness to
come forward the whole process of truth and reconciliation could be very painful. I do not know
if there is any thing in piace to help persons who are in pain.

. Fr. Mark Haynes: 1am seeing two things here. One is we have specific dates at which we have

to look at. Of course I am hearing therc is need for healing of the Grenadian mentality_and to me
it is kind of an important thing to dea! with. We can never do so much in 2 particular time frame
so we woitld have to straighten out our thinking on that, We are here to create an atmosphere for
peaple o be reconciled and healed. We have to be realistic in terms of the Terms of Reference
of the Commission. This seems o go way back but we only have six months. The question is
could we do this? } i
' |
i Fr. Sean Doggett: 1 recalled when the South African Justice Leader visited there was 2 certain
"excitement and a cerain expectation thef this Commission today would help in the healing of
wounds He said the lack of knowledge and the suspicion for example some people who had felt
deep hurt would have the opportunity to be healed. The subsequent delay in getting the
Comummission off the ground cansed that expectancy to be dumped to the groand. The impression
that is around is that this is used to refer back to events of the past and the Terms of Reference
are in a sense too broad There is no way the Commission can produce that sense of
reconciliation. it is too vast. [ agree wilh Father Peter,

P

What is uppermost in the minds of people is the political difference and the hurts that are tifl
very deep a sort of tools and weapons that can aiso be used against people #s to who said this and
that, 1_\4}: hope is that the Conunissinn_is not too exhausted in deing jts work but that the

somewhere and some would come and some would not come out.  For the work of the
Commission to be successful [ believe that the Commission be proactive to £0 out and fook and
find information from other sources. Barbados, Radio Antilles and Trinidag newspapers were
-rcporting. There is a book which was published in Cuba giving an sccount of the events fromi
the Cuban prospective. There must be questions and [ do not know whether the Comemission can
find extracts of them or not. As concerning the bodies found there are others who were killed
and those bodies were not accounted for and am guite certain there are Grenadians who are
grieving. Perhaps some information can be received from the undertakers. What I would Jike to
say is the outcome with regards to the Commemoration of those who died. If you take for
example the American soldiers who died, in St. Georgé’s University and at the airport there dre

Jmonusents with the names of the soldiers and the Grenadians, they are forgotten. We may not

agree with the course of action that they took but we must remember they are human beings.
Places:or monuments should be identified where families can go to mourn. 1 remerber Mr.
Dollar from Africa saying that religiously it is important.

Bishop Sehon Goodridge: On the last point is there something'that the Conference can take on
their own?

Fr. Sean Doggent: 1 think it would make sense only if a Iot of underlying work has been done.

Fr. Peter Clarke: Maurice Bishop Patriotic Movement (MBPM) has taken up the cause of the
victims by going up to the Fort and moum. They have some kind of service with those who are
in sympathy of that canse and.it is a very small number in fact whe actually go there. They do
something significantly; they are remembering the day. They have taken over that sentiment.

We have Thanksgiving but not a day when the church could take that initiative,

Fr. Mark Haynes: One of the things worth considering, should October 19 he declared 4 national
holiday? What is the thinking of the church on that Jevél, should a recommendation be made that
the day take on a more national flavour because a Pri ¢ Minister was slain that day, members §ot‘
Cabinet were slain? '

Fr. Sean Doggen: 1 think it is premature and a lot of work has to be done and a lot of
information to be brought out. Take for example the events on the Fort on October 19% we that
certain people were killed, we know others were arrested, g trial has taken place, people have
been convicted, is the Commission looking into, is the Commission examining the documents af
the trial, the preliminary investigation, the evidence given, the prosecution evidence, particularly
the prosecution evidence becanse there are a lot of things 1 think the defense lawyers did not go
through but the evidence of those given at the enquiry and the evidence of those same witnesses
in the actual trial and then at the appeal. I don't know if any. people have come forward and
talked to the Commission but this is a matter.of records, the records are there. The Commission
shonld first fook at those record of the trial and examine them. We know a lot of people have
been killed and a lot of lives taken. Other people died on that day apart from the Government
Ministers and they did not die by accident, they were killed. The emphasis is all on those who
were killed on the Fort and there are others who probably might have died on the way to the Fort
but 1 have never heard any questions about prosecuting anybody on that side. Is there any
research or any attempt to find about these other deaths?

Bishop Goodridge: 1 think you're identifying the need for a Commission, trying to get some jof
this out. We have had some people here who have béen trying to help us and they have beken
very helpful. .
Ir. Peter Clarke: But to answer the question as to whether there should be 2 national day, I say
yes if the church initiates it and they are responsible for having a day of prayer and no if the
Govemnment in any way or whatever Government or party initiates it. It is very important that it
s disassociated with any party. It is very important if it sets out all the political divisions.
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If it something to bringing pedple together, then it should be something only the church does and
invite the nation and that includes all political parties.

Judge Trotman: On the day that Bishop died, the Americans have a ceretonial
commetnoration,what takes place, what is the common thing that happens?

" Fr. Sean Doggett: On the 25% of October there is a church service organized by the Conference

or by other parties involved in such action in the moming and what happened up until two years
ago there would be something in the night. In years viots to that it was only to comimemorhte

{the American soldiers who died and [ think it was last year Dr. Warden was the one who
1specifically mefitiofied that it would be appropriate {o have something to commemorate the

Grenadians or I think he made reference to the Grenadians who died.

Judge Trotman: 1s there a continuing unveiling of the plaque at the Airport? ‘
Fr. Sean Doggert: No, nothing takes place there. That was onty put there but T do. not think
anything takes place there.

Bishop Goodridge: Th rélation to this we also should thank God the American’s intervention.
Fr. Peter Clarke: | think there are & lot of coniradiction to this big celebmation.

Judge Trotman: Is that seen in gencral as having an offictal sanctioring of the American
intervention? How does the public generally see that? ‘

Fr. Sean Doggert: You find some people saying that is good for America. T do not know how
the public would deal with that.

Fr. Mark Haynes; One of the things we would have to deal with is the fact that different persons
died under. different circumstances, everybody did no:ljiie on the Fort, This is something I think
we need fo deal with because people died in Beauscjour, people died in Plains so we have to d?:al
with that before we could ever say anything else. Certainly when thg Amcn'cgns have th.etr thing
they are s'peaking in terms of theit men who died on or after the 257, then this has nothing to do
with October 19 They betieved their men died trying to liberate Grenada so we have to see the
difference, we have to pay attention to that.

Bishop Goodridge: ‘This is a contradiction becaitse all this is happening within a country n?t
America. It's happening in a country which does not commemorate its own dead. To me that’s
a major contradiction.

Judge Trotman: Does any significant sectioni of the society at that time when this was happening
resent the American presence by the Americans commemorating?

Fr. Sean Doggett: There is no public demonstration but there is definitely a feeling of
fesentfient by portions of the population.

Fr. Peter Clavke: The very language that the British use is significant - ‘invasion’,
‘intervention’, it’s all intensified ideotogies. :

Judge Trotman: The annual commemoration does not! help this? It's provacative, annually, jost
continuing like this, putting it more would it be & good thing in'the interest of healing and
reconiciliation that their particular event were t0 continue as an annual event?

Fr. Peter Clarke: Thanksgiving Day has lost its veracity. Originally, it was Thanksgiving for a
particular event; now, it has reached ear which is skeptical that there is no thanksgiving for ail
God’s blessings. Over the years within the Conference of Chutches, some thought we must put
this behind us instead of bringing it up again dnd let that rest just thanking God. Some insist that
we have a historical date for October 1983 and others they just want it be a Thanksgiving day.
Grenadians have been very ambiguious about this thing.

Bishop Goodridge: Tn the ltast service 1 heard a statement from the Aterican Embassy from the
Prime Minister and 1 think your question is very relevant as to why we are continuing to
celebrate as to the focus of what is going on, I need help. °

Fr. Sean Doggett: Some of the problems is that it is part of the political reality.

. . :

r. Mark Haynes: One of the things we niust be more focussed on whether things to be done
must be in the interest of Grenadians not just a patticular period or 8 particnlar party. It must be
of national inferest because in all that we must recognize that Grenada is to be first.

Fr. Sean Doggert: That brings us right back to the Terms of Reference of the Commission, 1
presume that, my undersianding is that the Commission would make its recommendations to the
Government so ultimately whatever problems that may occur at that time, what to do or what not

fo do and we're stifl back to square oue with regards to what that Govenmment considers
informative.

Judge Trotman: We should hope to make our recommendations public and the Goveriment
alone should not be the sofe arbiter of the findings.

Bishop Goodridge: We may:have to bring the Government before the Commission. 1 am
interested Mr. Chairman in the present political situation which concems a lot of things end we
must niot be seen fo be going over the grounds of any political party.

Fr. Peter Clarke: 1 would say polarization. i

.indga Tromman: We have here Captain Robert, new we woutld like to hear some of your 'vicwj.
oufd we hear separately or specifically now?

Cpt. Layne: With tegards to the TRC I must honestly say I do net know much about it and I
would prefer to listen rather than speak. 1am in a leamning process.

E

Judge Trotman: One of the things we want to get back to now is that we have frank and open
views. The church has found it difficult to get people to think objectively about truth and
reconciliation and so having said, has. the .church got any positive plan of dealing with that
difficulty or to reduce that difficulty rather than saying it is a difficult thing?

Fr. Sean Doggett: The Christian Prison Ministry Council planned a series of reconciliation
services. We had one in the Cathedral and one in the Methodist Church during the years 1999-
2000,

Judge Trotman: What nature did that take?
Fr. Seam Doggert: Tt was part of a matly for the Catholic church which tried to address the issues
to an extent.
Fr. Peter Clarke: A book was signed by persons who want fo thake reconciliation and 2 ca
s given. The first too names were the Governor Geteral and the Prime Minister. The boo

ras taken fo the prisons and they signed it. The heart of the Inrt and the division on the bne
hand released who were grieving loved ones who were killed, bodies were not found. Thete is
no real explanation that those people died. They ate grieving, Famitics and individuals who had
loved ones that is something very real and still very raw and it has never been addressed. It has
manifested itself when the Conference of Churches appealed. for the refease of two of the
prisoners which included Phyllis Coard on the grounds of medical purposes and while the Mercy
Commitlee was meeting; a demonstration was taking.place out in the streets and people
demonstrated against the release and what motivated them to come out into the sireets and
demovstrate was the pain that they are fecling, the pain that has not been addressed and that’s on
one side. On the other side, there is a fact that 17 are imprisoned for over 18 years and there is 2
deep feeling that their trial was not just and that they are not given the recourse to go through att
the legal processes, Others who have been convicted of similar offenses would bave sccording
to the Legal Constitution appealed to the Privy Council.

Judge Trotman: That is what I call a sore or technical difficuity in the sense that they could not

appenl to them because the appeal had been removed so tha they coutd not sit. That is why § say
itis a sore and technical difficulty because there ought tg have been some way of addressing that
difficuslty in order to reanifest that an appeal was not given. I myself aowever find thet it fooks
Yike if they did not approach the Inter-American Coust fo which I believe there is recoutse if:l}i

ther remedies have been used up. 1 don’t know if that bad been done. Did they move to the
Inter-American Couri?



Miss Joseph: Not as far as | know.

Judge Trotman: Grenada has access 10 that o if they had gone ahead and bridged out then they
could have approached the Inter-American Court:

" Fr. Sean Doggett: 1 have intended on pursuing that this evening. You -mentionéd that (he
recourse to the Privy Council has been removed to what were you referring, the Revolution or
the intervention? ) am understanding that a law was passed in Parliament in Grenadz in 199
preventing anybedy convicted of a capital offence from appealing to the Privy Council so that

- includes not only the 17 that has been convicted but also 10 others whe have been convicted of
murder before. Now if any of those 10 had been prominent people with access to prominent
lawyers and publicity, I am quite certain ant issue would have been made about it but the fact that
none of them are of that stature, none of them would; have gone through that process, nom:r of
them would have that recourse, none of them would even have the capacity to take up the issye
and fight from the support of the outside or their family whatever,

Judge Trotman: All of those 10 are still in prison?
Answer: All of them.
|
Judge Trotman: The other thing 1 am concerned about js the objective we may wish to feei ag
why havé them in prison without carrying out a sentence which is temporary imprisonment.

Fr. Sean Doggett: They were sentenced to death and that sentence was commated.

Judge Trotman: For alf of them?
Fr. Sean Doggett: Forall.

Judge Trotman: Not just the 10, the 18 of them?
Fr. Sean Doggert: Yes. All 27 in August of 1991 Prime Minister Nicholas Brathwaite
cominuted all cutstanding death scotence to life impriscfnment‘

Bishop Goodridge: Since they are now the 17, are t[hcy likely to feel that they may have|an
appeal?

“Fr. Peter Clarke: Yes, the issue is in the final repori as regards to the 17 their appeal was pever
submitted in writing and credibility of the process at stake until the final report comes out,
Litetnationally I think Grenada’s presence is out of the question precisely because of that ils

 previgus {ucident of a report that we have. It is a matter of denizl of justice to the people

" congertied who are in prison because their remaining there witl depend on only if a recourse was

"sranted and the feason why their appeal is denied is not in writing and is a malter of grave
conricern internationally and 1 fecl an appall of injustice might have been done and it would be
satisfying to be able to see the actual text 4nd that corcerns other people as welt, internationally
and regicnally. This is other prospect of an appall of injustice been done because the case was
not handled properiy.

Fr. Mark Haynes: Who will be the ones privy to the text of the trial, the Government, the Court
of Appeal? Suppose we were to pursue that to who should we go?
Fr. Sean Doggett: 1think the couri should have that.

Judge Trotmian: There was a decision that the appeal was atlowed to them.

 Miss Joseph: There was never a judgement. (

L Judge Troftman: My undérslanding of what I heard is thet they didn’t actually write their
feéasons. One has to try to appeal even if that is to bs made public; one has to distinguish between
whether they wrote their reason or they did write their reasons but these reasons are not yet out
and I think it would help if either one of them were known. It is the understending among legal
circles that the rezsons wete not writter so they are aot avaitabie.

Fr. Sean Doggcit: The popular assumption is that they were not prid.

Judge Trotman: 1 heard about that. The one to the Privy Council as I said was a sore and
difficult point because to the Privy Council as I said was technically right in saying that they
could not hear the appeal because the appeal to them was a repeal.

Miss Joseph: Before the Act of 1991, the 17 reprcsenteﬁy Andy Mitchell had gone to the Privy
Cbuneil on a constitutional mation which the Privy Coungeil dismissed on the grounds that thcﬁ"
no junisdiction.

Fr. Sean Doggett: The question of the withdrawal of Grenada from the Court of Appeal, the
Revolutionary Government withdrew, expelied, whatever took the initiative for Grenada to come
out from the Eastern Caribbean. Those in piison would say that it was not their wish, that in fact;
the system was withdrawn in Grenada, again that would be a matter of records.

Judge Trotman: If the constitution was suspended wouldn’t ail the appeals 1o the both the
Fastém Cayibbéan Cotirt atid the Privy Council gone in at the same time? [ know particularly of
the Privy Council but I can’t say with any certainty about the appeal to the Eastern Caribbean
Court on any sure grounds but if that was so, how did it get to the Eastern Caribbean Court?

Miss Joseph:. Their case was tried under the system for which all cases were tried, We had the
Grenada Supreme Court because we were no longer under the Eastem Caribbean system.

Judge Trotman: Under the PRG system whese did the appeals go?
Miss Joseph: To the Grenada Supreme Court which was ?1(: final Coutt of Appeal.

iss Joseph: Not autématiéally Grenada remaified under the system sct up by the P.R:G for 4

uple of years well after, It was only in 1991 Grenada came back under the courl system. They
were restered in 1984 but not the court system. The Act of 1991 brought Grenada back into the
court system but there are some who interpret it as a deliberae atternpi to keep —-

C:fnon Friday: If the constitution was suspended in the Revolution was it Testored?

Fr. Sean Doggett: —— i prohibited those convicted for bringing their appeals to the Privy
Council, )

Bishop Goodridge: How far do you make it legally right or morally wiong?

Judge Trotman: Our perception should be if at all to look more at its ways in the interest and
legality of it.

*" Fr. Peter Clarke: We still ot the attitude of people being very cautious of speaking their minds

because of the consequences so there might be quite a lot of feelings deep down inside but they -

.don’t want 10 come out with it in the gpen for very ebvious reasens,

Canon Friday: Why restore the constitution but not the jjdicial system?
iss Joseph: Well they had to in order to have Tlec!ions and reture to Parliamewtary
gmocra_cy, I suppose. |

Canon Friday: They restored the Constitution but they did not believe in it.

Miss Joseph: But remember the court system was a more elaborate procedure. If they had not
gone back it would be a question of a validity of all these laws which were passed during the
Revolution. |

Fr. Sean Doggett: Were they considered valid Jaws? When the Coastitution was restored, what
happened to all those Peoples’ laws?

Miss Joseph: There was a validation Act in early 1985 which validated all the Peoples’ Laws.

Judge Trotman: They had io be legally recognised. That is where the tochnicality came inlo the
Privy Council. The very fact that these People’s Laws themselves were subsequently validated
by law, including the Peoples™ Law which abelished its appeal to the Privy Counci) so that ilseil
as it was, was revalidated,

Fr. Sean Doggett: 1 do not know the fact and I would like 0 know, in 1979 was it the PRG
which withdrew Grenada from the Eastern Caribbean lcgfnl system or not?



Judge Trotman: Did Grenada withdraw, apart from the legal side.of it, from the O.E.C.S or
were they suspended?-

Miss Joseph: Grenada is part of the O.E.C.S in the areas of sporis, gtc.

" Canon Leopold Friday: The Terms of Reference mentions “Jooking info events leading up 1o
and including those of 13" March, 1979 and repercussions.” 1 think part of the hurt is being
felt goes back to 1976 and 1979 with persons who felt they have been treated unfairly by the
Commission then because they made their report and nothing happened. Leading to the
- Revolution and onwards people feit that they were treated unfairly. Many..persons have
mentioned that to me. Some supported the Revolution and said this was necessary and others of
the society said the Revolution was bad and that is a conflict.

Bishop Geodridge: 1f the churches have a day of commemoration would it involve gathering a
list so we can document something and help in the process and have a day of mouming?

Fr. Sean Doggert: 1 think it would be-very premature so to speak. They feel that they have been
forgotten so the Commission could make an approach to them.

Judge Trotman: We would take that into view and fnake our own proactive approach. How
. could we get to know the names of who to go to? _
I think we have faired considerably with the information we have gotten from you.

Time ended: 10:25am
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APPENDIX - J
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NAMES OF ORGANISATIONS AND GROUPS
invited to meet with the T.R.C.

ORGANISATIONS/GROUPS

ADDRESSES

YWCA

Mrs. Jacqueline Cornwall
President
YWCA

GNOW

Mrs. Jacqueline Cornwall
President
Grenada National Organisation of Women

GRENCODA

Mrs. Judy Williams-Modeste
General Secretary
GRENCODA

GRENED

Mrs. Winifred Teague
Acting Executive Director
GRENED

ART

Ms. Sandra Ferguson
Secretary General
Agency for Rural Transformation

NPTA

Mr. Solomon Stafford
President
National Parent Teachers Association

GCIC

Mr. Christopher De Riggs
Executive Director
Grenada Chamber of Indusiry and Commerce

IPE

Mr. Peter Antoine
President

| Institute for People’s Enlightenment

Grenada Trade Union Council

Mr. Rae Roberts
General Secretary
Grenada Trade Union Council

IAGDO

The President

IAGDO

C/o Agency for Rural Transformation
Marrast Hill, St. George’s

—_ —

Methodist Youth Group

The President

| St. George’s Methodist Church Youth Group

Cathedral Youth Group

The President
Cathedral Church Youth Group

- GCC

Canon L. Friday

Grenada Conference of Churches
C/o Anglican Rectory

Church Street, St. George’s

Mr. Ruggles Ferguson
President

Grenada Bar Association

Clo Ciboney Chambers

H.A. Blaize street, St. George’s

"GMA

The President

Grenada Medical Association
P.O.Box 1959

St. George’s

St. George’s Anglican Youth Group

The President
St. George’s Anglican Youth Group
St: George’s -

Presbyterian Youth Group

| The President

Presbyterian- Youth Group
Grand Etang Road
St. George’s

Otway Funeral Home

Mr. Clinton Bailey

Diréctor

Otway Bailey Funeral Home
The Carenage, St. George'’s

La Qua & Sons Funeral Home

Mr. Thomas La Qua

'Diréctor

La Qua & Sons Funeral Home
Melville Street, St. George’s

Evangelistic Centre Youth Group

The President
Evangelistic Centre Youth Group
Market Hill, St. George’s

The New National Party

Rt. Hon. Keith Mitchell
The Leader

The New National Party
Lucas Street, St. George’s

Grenada United Labour Party

Mrs. Gloria Payne-Banfield
The Leader

Grenada United Labour Party
Springs, St. George’s

National Youth Council

Mr. Cecil Greenidge
President

_1 National Youth Council

t



Nationai Parent.Teachers Association

National Youth Council
The President
National Parent Teachers Association

| The National Democratic Congress

Hon. Tillman Thomas

Leader of the Opposition

The National Democratic Congress
Old Fort Road, St. George’s

People’s Labour Movement

Mr. Francis Alexis
The Leader

| People’s Labour Movement

Grenada National Coungctl for the
Disabled

| The President
| Grenada National Council for the Disabled

Scott Street
St. George’s

Leo Club of St. George

The President
Leo Club of St. George

Church of God of Prophecy

The Pastor and Members
Church of God of Prophecy
Belmont, S1. George’s

P.T.A. St. Parrick’s

The President

-P.T.A. St. Patrick’s Multi-Purpose Centre

St. Patrick’s -

The People’s Church

Pastor Karl Hood

‘The People’s Church

St. Paul’s, St. Georpe’s

Catholic Church Roxborough Catholic Church
St. Paul’s, St. George’s
Living Word, World Outreach The Pastor

Living Word, World Qutreach
Mt. Airy, St. Paul’s
St. George’s

‘Pentecostal Assemblies of W.L~

The Pastor
Pentecostal Assemblies of W.I.
St.-Paul’s, St. George’s

P & M Investment Retaﬁé e

The President _

P & M Investment Retails
Maidgras, St. Paul’s

St. George’s

De La Grenade Industriés

The Manager
De La Grenada Industries

| St. Paul’s, St. George’s

|
|
E

St. Augustine’s Medical Services

The President
St. Augustine’s Medical Services
St. Paul’s, St. George’s

Gittens Agency Ltd.

The Manager
Gittens Agency Ltd.
St. Paul’s, St. George’s

St. Patrick’s Anglican Church

Fr. Christian Glasgow
St. Patrick’s Anglican Church
St. Patrick’s

H.M. Prisons

The “Grenada 17” incarcerated in

Jan 23, 2002 - through the Minister of National
Security

April 15, 2002 - through Commissicner of
Prisons

April 15, 2002 — by letter
April 24, 2002 - by letter

Feh. 04, 2004 through Attomey Keith Scotland
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Names of persons and organisations who came before the
| Commission, and of those who sent memoranda.

'____,---'
NAME NATURE OF PERIOD OF ;| DATE OF REQUEST OF
EVIDENCE TESTIMONY | TESTIMONY | COMMHSSION
{ | Terric Registe 11l treatment at prisons 1979-1983 9/10/01 Compensation
Knowledge of the
5 | Winston Courtney | Revolution and was 2 1976-1991 10/10/01 Compensation
. victim
3 | David Unlawful imprisonment, .
| Coomansingh ill reatment and shortage | 1979-1991 20/10/01 Compensation
: of salary
| = -
4 | Kennedy Jawahir Events leading to
situations on the Fortand | 1979-1983 26/10/01 Compensation
| financial losses
5 | Alexis Simon Enquiry of Compensation | 1979-1983 30/10/01 -Compensation
for victims
6 | Milton Coy Statement from the 31/10/01 Contribution to
G.H.R.O on the process Commission’s
work
7 | Alec Lewis Teachings about Jesus 1976-1991 31/10/01 Contribution to
Christ and UF.Q Commission’s
| " work
!
] !
| |8 Anthony Jones Time at Fort Rupert during | 1979-1983 12/11/01 Compensation
bl the years of the Revolution
; 9 Claudius Coutain Treatment during the 1979-1983 13/11/01 Compensation
] Revolution




-| Claims Commmission

10 | Robert Fanovich | Events on the Fort, Rastas znd the Revolution | 1979 - 1983 13/12/01 Contribution to
~ | disposal of bodies, 1979-1983 13/11/01 Commission’s
whereabouts of remains of work
Maurice Bishop and others
. '| Occupation of property by 08/10/01
; Prison Authority, effect of (Submitted
11 | NicolePhillip | Research conducted on the | 1979-1983 14/11/01 . r occupation wiows L | Pt | memomadum) ) Compensation.
. Period 2 | compensation on Hote
: |k Balisier 14/12/01
12 | Dolores Oroiwi { Mother was a victim of the | 1979 - " i r—— . - )
(Subtnitted invasion ¢ | 1979 1983 26/11/01 ' 71 | Dawne Patrice 1l freatment of PR.A 1979 - 1983 14/12/01 Compensation
memorandum) L
22 | Raleigh Date Contribution to
13 | Francis Dael T (Submitted 1976 - 1983 06/01/02 Commission’s
(Submitted Victim of the Revoliition | 1979 - 1983 27/11/01 memorandum) work
memorandum) S _ — .
— : |23 | Margaret Dubissette | Killing of children’s father | 1979 - 1983 14/01/02 Compensation
Conference of Contributions for 5 Contribution to e oo s —
14 | Churches reconciliation and healing | 1976 - ission” . ] :
Grenada for Grenadians g | 1976-1983 12/12/01 f&gr";cmsm s 24 | Thelma Phillips Broken leg 1979 - 1983 15/01/02 Compensation
. . Contribution to 25 | Yero Jabbar The detention period 1979 - 1983 16/01/02 Compensation
15 | Evlyn Gresham Period leading up to the 1979 - 1983 12/12/01 Commission’s ‘
Revolution - work :
' _ : . |26 | Thomas Gilbert 1979 Revolution
16« | Fr. Sean Doggstt Deajchs and dxlsposal of 1979 - 1933 12/12/01 Contribution to { ' Claims Commission and 1979 - 1991 17/01/02 -Compensation
bodies of various persons Commission’s ’ Results
work
' 27 | Teddy Victor Birth of Jewel/NJM, 1976 -1991 17/01/02 ;
17 | Louisa Johnson Time spent during the 1979-1983 13/12/01 Compensation | Revolution Compensation
Revolution and migration | 1984-1991
after the Revolution
b 128 | Alec Lewis On globalism and to’ | 1976-1978 04/02/02 Contribution to
\ conclude revelation 1979-1983 Commission’s
18 | George Cherubim Period immediately Contributionto | | | 1984-1991  work
leading up to and 1979 - 1983 13/12/01 Commission’s o
mtjuc;i:r;g October 1983 work Detenti d
and after tention and procedures )
= = — 29 | David Stanisclaus of getting money from the | 1979-1983 04/02/02 Compensation




T———

Miriam Bedeau Husband’s disappearanice | 1979-1983 3| 05/02/02 Resumption of
= | on March 9-10, 1981 the inquest
]
Theresa Braveboy Taking away of a car 1975-1983 06/02/02 Compensation
during 1981
. - —l
Winstots Simon “ ‘The detention period 1979-1983 08/02/02 Compensation
-Onrad Nelson The detention period, 1979-1983 25/02/02 Compensation
) treatment while
imprisoned, leg injury
The reasonable abduction (
Lidj Tafari and indefinite 1979-1983 26/02/02 - Compensation
imprisonment -
: '!
Mary Theresa Jerome ;| Observations from an- 1979-1983 26/02/02 “ Contribution to
outsider’s point of view ' Commission’s
- work
-Claude Regis Wrongfil di§missal’ 1976-1978 27/02/02 Compensation
' 1979-1983
Simon St. Bernard Wrongful dismissal 1979-1983 27/02/02 ‘Compensation
Jeffery Marryshow Violation of rights 1979-1983 28/02/02 -Compensation
E. A Heyleiger tInjustice of the Justice of | 1976-1991 28/02/02 Compensation
{Submutted the High Court '
memorandum)
—
Kade Layne Imprisonment for 2 years | 1979-1983 28/02/02 Compensation
and 8 months

‘I

.
41 | Michael Kenneth Detention by the PRG 1979-1983 28/02/02 Compensation
Andrews Unsettled
property matter
W =
42 | Theresa Beckles on | Dismissal from work at 1979-1983 | 01/03/02 Compensation
behalf of husband Her Majesty’s Prison for husband’s
Raphael Beckles time served
43 | Lester DeSouza and 1979-1983 11703/02 Compensation
on behalf of
1 Raymond DeSouza
" | and Norman DeSouza
44 | Stafford Moore Wrongful dismissai as a 1976-1978 12/03/02 Compensation
prison officer 1979-1983.
45 | Godwin Charles Imprisonment 1979-1983 12/03/02 Compensation
46 | BenedictHenry | Time of imprisonment and | 1979-1983 12/03/02 Compensation
health Medical
reatment
47 | Michael Mark Time of detention 1979-1983 13/03/02 Compensation
48 [ Lloyd Noel 13/03/02
49 | Floyd Bishop Inquiry into father’s 13/03/02 Help to bring
(Submitted disappearance on orabout | 1976-1978 closure to family
memorandum) December 17, 1978
| Compensation
50 | Goldfinger Joseph | 13/03/02 Compensation
51 | Rodney Garraway 11979-1983 .| 14/03/02 Compensation




B
52 | Edwin Frank 1979-1983 || 03/04/02
53 | Peggy Nesfield The period before and of | 1976-1978 10/04/02 ‘Contribution to
the Revolution 1979-1983 Commssion’s
work
54 |-Theresa Edwards Where to go from here 1979-1983 11/04/02 Compensation -
| 1984-1991 unemployment |
benefits :
55 | Dr. Terrence ' Events leading to the 1979-1983 11/04/02 Contribution to
Marryshow house arrest, assassination | 1984-1991 Comynission’s
of Maurice Bishop, work
evidence leading to the
recovery of remains
56 | Dr. Robert Jordan ‘Medical school activities | 1979-1983 11/04/02 Contribution to
. Oct.14" - Nov 16™ 1983, " Commission’s
work
57 | Rita Bailey | 11/04/02 Compensation
58 | Dr. Jordon 7 11/04/02 Contribution to
Commmussion’s
Work
.59 | Neville James Events on the Fort which | 1979-1983 12/04/02 Compensation
led to some physical
injurtes 1
; _ N : ]
.60 -| Michael Francis Wrongful dismissal as a 1976-1978 24/04/02 "| Compensation [
prison officer 1979-1983 - :
— i
61 | Wilston Colling Wrongful dismissal as a 1976-1978 24/04/02 Compensation _
prison officer 1979-1983 )

62 1 Bently Samuel Wrongful dismissal as a 1976-1978 24/04/02 Compensation
prison officer 1979-1983
63 | Reginald Phillip Imprisonment under the 1979-1983 25/04/02 Compensation
PRG.
64 | Samuel Bonaparte Time of detention during 1979-1983 26/04/02 Compensation
the Revolution
65 | Rita Bailey 26/04/02 Compensation
66 | Keith Scotland 22/05/02 Contribution to
Attomey at law for Commission’s
the 17 work
Father of October 19 26/08/02 Contribution to
67 | Anthony Romain Victim Commussion’s
work
68 | Dr. Reginald
Buckmire
(Submitted
Memorandum)
69 | NNP Representatives | Before, during and after 1974 - 1991 26/02/04 Contribution to
Revelution Commission’s
work
70 | GULP Before, during and after 1974 -1991 27/02/04 Contribution to
Representatives Revolution Commission’s

work

gL .
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Appendix L —

Persons on whom the T.R.C. made Courtesy Calls.

NAME DATE
His Excellency Sir Daniel Friday Jan/18/02
Williams
Sir Paul Scoon Tuesday Feh/5/02
His Lordship Bishop Sydney Monday Feb/25/02
Charles
Mr. George Brizan Wednesday Feb/27/02

Mr. Lloyd Noel

. .| Tuesday March/12/02

Mr. Allister Hughes Thursday March / 14{02
Mr. Leslie Pierre Friday April/12/02
Conference of Churches Grenada ’I‘uesélay April/23/02

Sir Nicholas Brathwaite Tuesday April/23/02
Senator Elvin Nimrod Tuesday April/23/02

Dr. Jenson Otway Wednesday April/24/02
Mr. Derek Knight Wednesday April/24/02
Ms. Gertrude and Martin Isaac ‘Tuesday August/27/02
Ms. Bernadette Gittens Tuesday August/27/02
Ms. Dorothy Maitland Wednesday August/28/02
Mrs. Annie and Patrick Bain Thursday August/29/02
Mrs. Alimenta and Ann Bishop Saturday August/31/02
Mr. Edward -Kent (Carriacou) Wednesday August/28/02
Ms. Lynn Creft Saturday August/31/02




N _ APPENDIX M

It is estimated that”over one hundred persons were treated for
injuries following the tragedy of October 19, 1983 at Fort Rupert;
the following is a list of some of those who sustained serious
injuries. v

List of known injured persons

—
: NAME AGE AT INJURIES SUSTAINED
: TIME OF
INCIDENT
1 Robert Boca 30 Gunshot wound to the chest
2 Lionel Fletcher 30 Superfitial wound of left arm
3 | Stephen Davis ' 12 Head Injuries
4 Claudius Panchoo 41 Superficial gunshot wonld of leg
. 5 Leonard Ogiste 32 Multiple leg fractures
6 Alexis Simon ' 17 Gunshot wound of the shoulder
APPENDIX M 7 Clenrick Barry 17 Multiple shoulder injuries
8 Adrian Phillip 21 Gunshot would resulfing in multiple
injuries to leg
9 Lewis Morain 39 Gunshot wound to right leg
- 10 | Neville James 40 Gunshot wounds
11 | Raymond St. Louis 34 Gunshot wounds to right leg
12 | Byron Cameron 27 (Gunshot wounds to leg
13 | Dexter Lalgee 15 Gunshot wound to armpit
' 14 ! Martin Simon 20 Gunshot wound to chest
15 | Hewman Robinson 51 Gunshot wound to chest
| 16 | Michael Calliste 18 Gunshot wound to right arm
17 | Emmanuel Hazzard 26 Eye injury
l 18 | Junior Adolphous 24 Arm injury
! 19 | Einstein Louison 26 Spinal injury
| 20 | Von Grimes 21 Multiple injuries
| 31| Julien Scott i Head igjury
[ 22 | Lomma Jacob 19 Spinal injury
23 | Decima Bowen 18 Injury to ankle bone
| 24 | Patricia Roberts 18 Leg injuries
| 25 | Helen Brown 14 Head injury
. 26 | Sherryl Bruno 21 Dislocation of right shoulder
‘ 27 Debra Alexander 16 Gunshot wound, head and right
ankle injury




L4

28 | Sonia Lessey 27 Hip injury

29 [ Jacinta Francis® 23 ‘Multiple arm injuries

30 | Cheryl Taitt 26 Injury to right arm

31 Celia Juerkhan 21 Unconsciousness

32 Ruth Robetts 17 Concussion o
33 | Lynette Brown 17 Head injuries

34__| Ann Neptune 13 Multiple right leg injuries

35 | Jeanetha Calliste 29 Gunshot wound to right shoulder
36 | Doreen Télesford 26 Gunshot wound to right arm

APPENDIX N
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|

| ’ Persons who made contributions at Public Symposia of the | glfhnzgéoﬂemming

i Il: i ‘.. a :

dl : ‘ T.R.C. + Lennox Mc Leish

| I‘ | ¥+ Anthony Jones

Wil & Parris Lewis

| % Joachim 81, John
e < Mathew Flemming

Public Symposium, Norton’s Hall Cathedral House # 1 %+ Matthias Joseph

Thursday December 13, 2001 % Steve Richardson
% Teddy Victor

' | < Salimbi Gill

. ¢ Thomas Gilbert
> Gordon St. Bernard
> Peter Carlton Antoine
< Lawrence Joseph
% Teddy Victor

* Glen St. Louis _, Public Symposium, Tivoli R.C. School
** Dr. Terrence Marryshow ' Tuesday March 12%, 2002
** Brian Lindsay of MBPM
D * Milton Williams . % Roland Budhllal
E.‘g “ Peter Antoine < Hayling Charles
E % Steven Lewis
{ Xl +» Emmanuel Toussaint
gB < Kennedy Budhilal
¥ ]
s
P } Public Symposium, St. Rose Modern Secondary School
=ty th
> 1l Thursday January 17%, 2002
1 ”
; > Mary Theresa Jerome
XN |
| [ H l Public Symposium, Grenville Secondary School
RN : Tuesday April 9%, 2002,
’_ ' ] Public Symposium, Mt. Rich Community Centre 'I
1 Tuesday February 26, 2002 |
i 1 | <+ Jacqueline Smith
i - Mr. Adrian Alexis < Dr. Reginald Buckmire
| J i < Raphael Phillip * Mrs. Roberts
el b . , ) * ’ .
B ’i [t | ‘ ** Speaker NO.3 {Tape inaudible] l +» Pastor Samue! Niles
R ** Roland Budhllal : % Kenny Bhola
I < Kathy-Ann Williams *# Christian Glasgow

% Adrian Alexis




4+ Fr. Sean Dogget

) ' % Gilenn St. Louis

' < Miss Josephine Mc Quire (PRO/TRC)
% QOsbert James

%» Anna Antoine

s Christian Glasgow

& FEleanor Glasgow (Field Officer/TRC)

*

Public Symposium, St. David’§ R.C. School,
Tuesday April 117, 2002

%+ Arthur Ferguson
<+ Samuel Joseph
+» Gertude Isaac
** Martin Isaac

i ium, Hillsborough Community Centre
% Lydia Whiteman Public Symposium, Hillsborough ty

Friday August 30", 20602

«+ Irene Livingston

¢ Teddy Victor

* Joslyn Whiternan < Amie Alexis
«» Winston Fleary

. . < Mitchell McKenzie
Public Sympeosium, St. Paul’s Governmen{ School : % Neville Caion
_Tuesday April 23" 2002 % Williams Guadeloupe

% Alma Lambert

. ) «* Peter Morris

% Fr. Clive Thomas % McKeénly McKenzie

+» Nathaniel Gilbert

v+ Alice Pierre

<+ Merille Lord

+» Harold Quash

** Eleanor Glasgow, Field Officer/TRC
+¢ Josephine McGuire, PRO/TRC

<+ Hector Lambert
+» Eleanor Glasgow (Field Officer/TRC)
< Dr. Cartis McIntosh

Public Symposium, Norton’s Hall Cathedral House #2,
Thursday April 25™, 2002

< Pauline Waldron
%+ Fr. Peter Clarke
<+ Reverend Cato
%+ Denis Noel

«+ Keith Banfield
v Mrs. Thomas

% Mathew Dopwell

T

-
-
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‘ § . ' TRUTH & RECONCILIATION COMMISSION (TRC)
N - Field Officer’s Report
. |

g | Review Period: 10 Feb. 2002 — 10 April 2002

X ‘ | Overview

| E E i -

4l { | The pericd of fieldwork under review was an extremely challenging
| o experience. It was evident from the outset that the Nation was not “ready”
» for a T & R Commission. Widespread ignorance of the purpose, intent and

’ mission of the Commission manifested itself in the various communities
L with which the Field Officers interacted.

| ; An unprecedented level of suspicion and distrust was directed towards the

L ) current political administration. ost without exception, every individu
R i | > dministration. Almost with dividual
| it '.uf _ ' approached prefaced his/her verbal response to the Commission’s work by
| il asking: “is this political?” In most cases, the community mobilization

= P ] i process was slowed down in having to spend time in lengthy discussion
[ R ‘ explaining the mandate’ of the TRC and, in some cases, defending the
Eé - ‘ APPENDIX O mtegrity of the Commission and staff who were perceived as “doing Keith
g's' ' ‘ Mitchell’s dirty work”.
L =5
&S

| Some persons bluntly refused to afford the Field Officer a moment to
i present a flyer or engage in any discussion. Others were more cordial in their
il . hasty dismissal of the Fiéld Officer. Those who entertained discussion
Tt l” preferred not to be recorded. Approximately 60% of such persons did have
i some story to tell but would chat only on a superficial level. In many
") _ instances, their statements were prefaced with the comment: “I wasn’t really
il involved but...” This left the Field Officer with the impression that people
11 are extremely cautious and fearful about coming forward with evidence
about the pre-Revolution and Revolution period in Grenada.
!I ] '

—

|

! It must be noted also that the majority of persons interviewed steered the
| conversation away from the events of 1976-1983 but preferred to discuss the
[ present political climate. At every juncture, interviewees leveled verbal
[ attacks on the ‘Keith Mitchell Government’ rather than address the issue
being investigated.

.




February

Parish of St. Patrick

Area: Mt.Rich/Mt. Rewll/H e/Belmont/Pointzfield/Mt. Rose/
Plains/RiverSallee/Morne Fendue/Snell Hall/La Fortune/
Sautenrs/Mt. Craven.

Public Forum; Mt Rich comnmnity Centre, Tues. 26 February 2002
- {Attendance: Approx. 150 persons]

Community response:
Residents of the Mt Rich community were generally accommodating.

However, there were strong anti-government sentiments expressed. There
were small pockets of hostility initially as some residents viewed the Field

workers as ‘Claims Committee people’ who were coming “to fool Mt. Rich-

people again”,

News of the unpendmg release of 3 ex-PRG members from prison created a.

serious setback in the ‘mobilization work in this area. The eventual large
turnout to the forum—was due mainly to residents’ curiosity. Several
individuals who were directly affected by the abuses of 1979-1983 period

vented their anger to the Officers but deckined the invitation to meet with
the TRC.

No. of individual imterviews:

Mt Rich/MtRenill =12

Hermitage =

Belmont =1

La Fortune/Madeys = [informal grotp discussions + PTA meeting]
Sauteurs = [informal group discussions]

N.B: Time did not allow for in-depth one-to-one interview in these
communities as the emphasis was on preparation for the impending public
forum. Lack of public education on the work of the Commission showed.
itself as a real obstacle to the Fieldwork in these communities.

March ’

Parish of St. Andrew’s:
Area: Tivoli/Conference/Moyah/Pearls/Belair

m o v B e wmeem e =% e

Public Forum: Tivoli R.C. School Tues. 12 March 2002
[Attendance: 64 persons]

Community response:

The residents were largely accommodahng and responsive to the Field
Officers. Many gave definite assurances to attend the forum, However, there
was a sense of unspoken suspicion about the TRC mussion. One woman

indicated a desire for a private sitting with the Commission. In recalling her
plight to the Field Officers, she was reduced to tears and some on-the-spot

counseling had to be done.

The Tivoli district appears to be very much under the influence of the
infarnous ‘Budhlal brothers’. On one occasion, TRC Field workers were

openly accosted by Mr. Roland Budhlal who seemed to be opposed to the
mobilization work being done in the area.

-

April

Parish of St. Andrew’s:

Area: Paradise/Grenville Town/Soubise/Marquis/Gladstone Rd./Grand Bras/
Telescope/La Digue

Public Forum:  Grenville Secondary School Tues. 9™ April 2002
[Attendance: 18 persons]

Community response:

This area was perhaps the most difficult to infiltrate.. Residents were
extremely vocal engaging the TRC Officer in lengthy debate on the mandate
of the TRC. Strong political views characterized the discussions. A wave of
anti-Keith Mitchell sentiments was prevalent. Much hostility and distrust
recked in the Grenville, Telescope and Marquis districts. The residents
interviewed felt strongly that the TRC is a “political” exercise designed to
test the pulse of the people in preparation for upcoming elections which they
saw as immument. This leg of Fieldwork was very challenging having to
interface with the prevailing strong political undertones. The 1976-1991

issue was, summarily dismissed as persons preferred to lash out at the
Government.
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‘leant more to the former than the latter. Not
‘information to share with the TRC or were

A combination-of heavy rains and a political climate of distrust may- have

been responsible for the extremely. low turn-out to the symposium at the .

Grenville Secondary School 10 April.
TRC Questionnaire

To date approximately 100 copies of the questionnaire have been distributed.
Respondents were randomly selected as follows:

x

St. Patrick’s = Staff of 2 schools -
= 10 individuals '

St. Andrew’s = Rotary Club East Grenada _

: = Telephone responses [Church & secular]

St. Paul's  =Telephone responses [Church & secular]

St. George’s = Credit Union staff

= Insurance Company staff’

= School Principal

= Construction Company Staff
= Church .
= Businessmen, Police Officers.

General Comments: :

The general feel from the questionnaire responses was that' a TRC is
necessary in Grenada but public preparedness for such a Commission was
pot in place resulting'in widespread ignorance of the TRC and jts purpose.
Concerns about damage control following the TRC exercise were raised.

The question. is asked: “I8 the Grenadian public mature and educated enough
to handle what may be unearthed?”

Several respondents. felt that the TRC should “function as an independent
body free of political influence.” Some falt that ‘the 17 on the hill’ should:be !
released; while others felt that they should pay for their crimes. Responses
many persons indicated having
interested in meeting with the
TRC. In regards to unecarthing the ‘truth’® and effecting national

He.

T U U —

v

reconciliation, respondents felt that there are many persons now holding
prominent positions in society [namely government ministers and lawyers
etc.] who hold the key to ‘the truth’ and should come forward with the -
¢vidence, Several respondents felt that the Church should do more-in terms
of preaching forgiveness and reconciliation.

Operational difficulti

1. Attempts to conduct indepth family interviews proved
unsuccessful. Persons seemed guarded and extremely cautious in
' releasing mformation. In some cases, memories of the family lost
appeared too painful to recall. Some families approached displayed
avoidance tactics by promising to get back to the Field Officer but
never found the time t do so. Mrs. Annie- Bain and
family[Grenville, St. Andrew’s] were referred to Fr. Mark Haynes
[TRC] for counseling.

2. Familics in the Mt Rich area were not open to discussion. This

-could be as a result of ignorance and mistrust of the TRC. These
families are to be revisited.

3. It wouid appear that generally people would prefer not to have this
life chapter re-opened. In some instances, the names of lost family
members are not mentioned 1 the homes.

4. TRS Staff Relations:

In-house staff grievances need urgent attention. Presently, the staff

function very much as an aggregate of individuals rather than a
cohesive productive unit,

Regular weekly staff meetings and a fice flow of information
rather than an apparent need-to-kmow méthod of communication
would go a long way in elimipating staff fifustration and
uncertainty. Too much pertinent information is assumed to have
been relayed and is rarely conveyed as intended.




Recommendations

1. There is URGENT need for public education to reduce current -
anti-TRC-climate. -

2. The media should be more forceful in the process of public

. education. "

3. More legislative ‘teeth’ should be given to the TRC to ameliorate
current negative public perception of the TRC.

4.  Religious denominations must be encouraged to come on board in
the proceéss of reconciliation and healing. The church must see
itself as-an integral part of this process.

5. * Schools should be imcorporated in this. important historic:
educational process. :

6.  Public suspicion and fear of recrimination as a result.of ‘political
tribalism’ must be eradicated. Political parties and, politicians in
particular, have a large role to play in this regard and should desist
from using the work of the TRC as a “political football’.

7.

The life of the TRC should be extended by approximately six (6)

. months as. the Nation is now beginning to get a feel and to 41
appreciate the TRC.  Places viaded saddiiy C gau.{raw r M ‘@ch art

t‘-wia.nq éw/ﬁ.’- TRE T rmomvs.f.

(TRS Field Oﬁicer)_
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Members sworn in for new

Anglican Bulwp Sehon Gmdrndge s:gning thc boolc dfter being presenied

Gavernoe General Sic
Dapiel Williams on
Tuesday  officially
administered the oath of
office t{o the three
member commissioners
of the Truth and
Reconciliation
Commission during a
cetemony held at his
residence on Lucas
Street, St George's.
The Commission which
was set up by the ruling
New National Party
(NNP) administration of
Prime Ministcr Dr, Feith -
Mitchell will look into
Gesnada's tumultuous
past from Janvary 1,-
1976 to December 31,
1983 with special
emphasis on the period
of the Grenada
Revelution from March
13, 1979 to October 19,
1983,

The body is expected to
Tinish hearing cvidence
within a 6 month period.
Thereafter another three
months will be used tg

with the Cath
compile dnd prepare a
repart for presemtation to
government.
Retired high court judge
Donald Trotman of
Guyana will chair the

Commission which.

comprise Roman
Catholic Priest Fr. Mark
Hayoes as well as
Anglican Bishop of the
Windward Igland, Sehon
Goodridge.

Also sworn in was
formmer Deputy Repister
and Attorney-at-Law
Claudette Joseph: as the
Secretary  to the
Commission.

Speaking at the
ceremony, Mhinister for
Local Goverpment and
Labour Senator
Lawrence Joseph
disclosed that the
Commissioners have
been mandated to saek to
mncaver the truth and ta
provide the nation with
& comprehensive

-understanding of the

political events that took

Reman Catholic Priest Fr. Mark Hoynes being bmsend ith his

place during the Grenada
Revolutionary of the
People's Revolutionary
Government of the late
Maurice Bishop.

The four-and-a-half
years of left-wing rle
came to an end with the
slaying on Fort George
(Rupert) of Prime

- Minister Bishop, three |:

cabinet  colleagyes’
(Norris Bain, Unison
Whiteman and
Jacqueline Creft) by
soldiess of the People's
Revolutionary Army
(PRA).

The slaying followed a
bitter leudership feud
amaong moderatss and
radicals for control of the
New Jewel Movement
(NIM) led People's

* Revolution.

Seventeen former
government and army
officials including ex-

deputy Prime Minister |
Berrard Coard, his |-
Jamaican-born  wife |
Phylliz, end Mobilization

Instrument of Appointment from Governor General Siv. Daniel Williams

LOCAL NEWS

GRENADA TODAY Fri. September 7, 2001 Page 2t

commission of inquiry

Mitchell administration
that when the inquiry is
copciuded that the
mistakes of the past will
not be repeated in the
future.

He stated that the
Commission is geared
toward providing the
nation with an

opportunity to become
{Continues on pg 31)

Minister Selwyn and others.
Strachan were convicted . Sen. Joseph said that it
forthe murderof Bishoo is the hope of_ the
* FROM PAGE 21
genuinely reconciled and
permanently healed.

He pointed out that no

one seems to° know
exactly how many
people died on Fort
George during the
bloody October 1983
events and that many of
the bodies were never
seen by relatives or
friends.

“The trauma of that
“horrific period is deeply
implanted on the minds
of many of us. It was a
period when brother
fought brother, sister
against sister and friend
against friend”, he said.

"Many questions
pertaining to that pegiod
1979-83 still remain
unanswered. It is hoped
that the Commission will
find some answers”, he
added,

Attorney-General
Raymond Anthony who
spok